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ABOUT FRASERS GROUP

Founded as a single store in 1982, Frasers Group
ple (Frasers Group, the Group, the business or the
Company) is todoy the UK's largest sporting goods
retailer by revenue.

The Group operates a diversified portfolio of sports, fitness, prem

estyle and fuxury fascias in aver 20 countries. We have more th

Our purpose is Lo serve consumers with the world's best brands. This requires
us to have the right product, in the right place, at the right ime and at the

people, systems, automation and data,

n

TO SERVE OUR CONSUMERS

WITH THE WORLD'S BEST SPORTS,
PREMIUM AND LUXURY BRANDS.

WE DO NOT RUN THE BUSINESS FOR THE SHORT-TERM

BUT WORK TO ENSURE WE DELIVER SHAREHOLDER
VALUE OVER THE MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM, WHILST
ADOPTING ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES THAT ARE

CONSERVATIVE, CONSISTENT AND SIMPLE.

un Steinbeis 160% Recycled and Carbon Caplured through the

Woodl

mpany in 2007,
2 we floated, the Group has greatly
sh econamy. This includes:

£250M

Approx. £250m paid
in staff share bonuses

25,000

Hove o workforce of
approx. 25000 peaple
worldwide, approx. 19,000
of which are in the UK

£2,100M

Contributed opprox
£2,100m in VAT and Duty

£190M

Approx. £150m paid
in sales commission to
retail bonuses

£600M

Contributed approx.
£600m in UK
Carporation Tax

£180M

Contributed approx.
F180m in Nl employer

It was the Agencies we were after”...
"We had to get you in order to get to
the agencies”

‘TUESDAY 4 OCTOBER 2016 MR STEVE TURNER
{ASSISTANT GENERAL SECRETARY UNITE UNICN)

2 (o creals new Brtsh woodland across the UK

FRASERS GROUP

OUTLOOK

The Group is continuing to invesk in its
physical and digital elevation strategy
and our omni-channel offering is growing

» in strength. Our steres in the UK have

recpened obove expectations and our
online channel continues to significantly
outperform pre-Covid-19 periods, None
the less, management remains of the view
that there is a high risk of future Covid-19
pandemic restrictions, likely to be aver this
Winter and maybe beyond.

The board of Frasers Group has continued
to consider the probeble return of
restrictions during FY22, including within
its accounting judgements and estimates
for FY21. As the effects of the Covid-19-
pandemic continue to cause future
uncertainty, including the Delta variant
surge we are currently seeing, the board of
Frasers Group considers it cannot currently
confirm with enough material accuracy
what the outcome for FY22 will look like,

Based on this we will not be giving

a projection to the market for FY22
performance. Any projections produced
by third parties such as research analysts
are not produced on behalf of Frasers
Group plc and Frasers Group plc takes
no responsibility for such projections,

As a result prospective investors and
other market participants should not
treat, and Frasers Group plc does not
intend to treat, the financial projections
produced by third parties as indicative
of the market expectations of Frasers
Group ple's future financial performance.
We specifically note that we-gre under
no ebligotion to correct estimotes made
by financial analysts or to inform the
market should we come to believe that our
actual performance will differ from those
estimates.

We will review the current situation

again at the hatf yeor and depending on
whether there is more certainty on further
restrictions or not we may ke able to give
guidance at that point.
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FRASERS GRQUP

GROUP AT
A GLANCE

UK SPORTS
RETAIL

54.3%
Total m-o:h mm:.g:m

£1,968.5M

UK Sports Retail includes core
sports retail store operations

in the UK, plus all the Group's
sports retail online business
(exctuding Bob's Stores, Eastern
Mountain Sports and Sports
Direct Mdalaysia), the gyms, the
Group's Shirebrook campus
operations, retail store operations
in Northern Ireland, Evans Cycles
and GAME UK.

Qur store footprint is significant,
with 806 stores ocross the UK,
totalling approximotely 6.5m
sq.ft. of retail space. The majority
of stores are operated under the
SPORTS DIRECT, USC, Evans
Cycles and GAME fascias.

4

Printed on Slemnbers 100% Recycled angd Carben Captured throuah the Woodland Trust. he

20.3%

Total Group Revende

PREMIUM
LIFESTYLE

The Group's Premium Lifestyle division offers a broad range of clothing, footwear and accessories
from leading giobal contemporary and luxury retail brands through our fascias in the UK: Flannels,
Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Sofa.com and Joack s along with their related websites.
The majority of these fascics operate os multi-brand prernium retail destinations and are focused
on providing fashion conscious consumers with high-end and on trend products, The segment is
supported by our Group-wide centralised commercial and support functions, giving the benefits
of scale ond operating efficiencies to each fascia. The segment is a significant part of the Group's
new generation retail concept and as such, in certain locations, Premium and Lifestyle stares

are co-located alongside our Sports retail stores to benefit from increased customer footfall and
operating synergies.

1.9% T

EUROPEAN
RETAIL
ok
. REST OF ,
W £615.2M THE WORLD _ﬂmy‘lu 1239
I RETAIL o =
11.8% ] s es in the der the B

Mountain Sp Sl S Italsat
stores in Malaysi it

The total Premium Lifestyle store count is 179 stores and approximately 4.2m sq.ft, of retail space,

- 4.2%

Total Group Reverue

b's Stare

Total Rest of World stere cou
European Retail includes oll

the Group's sparts retail stores,
management and cperations
cluding the Group's
European distribution centres
iumn and Austrio as well
as GAME Spain. The total
Eurapean store count is

res

Tatal Group Reverwie

WHOLESALE & "
LICENSING 4-3%

The Wholesale & Licensing segment operates our globally renowned heritage Group brands
[such as Everlast, Lonsdale, Karrimor and Slazenger} and our wholesale, licensing and distribution
relationships across the world, as well os our partnerships with third party brands that we
license-in to sell certoin products. The Group's own brands are managed both individually and
centrally within this segment. This unique, integrated approach to brand management leverages
the expertise of our people, encourages innovation, and ensures consistency,

continued to elevate the Group's
European stores and work

to further taiior the Group’s
consumer value propositions to

foom e e iy

[ERSS)

wt across the UK
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

8.4%

Group revenue decreased
by 8.4%
Excluding acquisitions and

on a currency neutral basis,
revenue decreased by 114%™

Reported profit after
J tox was a loss of
£78.0m down 177.2%
)

177.2% from a profit of

£101.0m

/

422%

Group gross
margin increased to 42.2%
from 42.0%

42.0%

FRASERS GROUP

T

Group underlying EBITDA®

increased by 29.4% to )
£390.8m g ﬂ”o“‘ ,

compared to £302.1m in the

29.4%, | prior period

Exciuding acguisitions and on a

currency neutral basis, underlying
EBITDA increased 16.9%"

Reported basic earnings per
share fell by 189.2% to a loss
of 16.5p, from a profit
of 18.5p
Underlying basic earnings © per
share decreased by 2049% to a
foss of 17.0p from a profit of 16.2p

95.1%
£5.8M

Underlying profit before tax®
decreased by 95.1% to £5.8m
from £117.4m

(16.5p)

the UK
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

£4271.8M

UNDERLYING FREE CASH
FLOW {PRE-CAPEX)
INCREASED TO £427.8M
COMPARED TO £263.1M IN
THE PRIOR PERIOD ™

—_—

————

1
£143.5m T £8.5m
g

Reported profit before tax was
£8.5m, down 94.1%
from a profit of £143.5m

T AL e B SeiL e

£2489M

N T R L

Net debt decreased to £248.9m
(£366.0m at 26 April 2020}

Group reported EBITDA
decreased by 2.6% to
£536.5m compared to

£551.0m in the prior
2 ol

|

FRASERS GROUFP

11.8%

N 1

EUROPEAN RETAIL REVENUE DECREASED BY 11.8%, LARGELY DUE THE
TEMPORARY STORE CLOSURES CAUSED BY THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

£xcluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral basis, revenue decreased by 20.5%'",
largely caused by temporary store closuras due ta the Covid-19 pandemic,

European Retail like-for-like gross contribution was down 15.0%™"

Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% lorgely
due to growth in our online
business, and new store
openings

10.7%

Excluding acquisitions,
e increased by 1.4%"

Premium Lifastyle like-for-like gross
ution was down 2.8%°

UK Sports Retail revenue decreased by 10.7%, largely due the
temporary store closures caused by the Covid-19 pandemic,
offset by growth in our online business and pent up demand on
reopening stores

Excluding acauisitions, revenue decrecsed by 14.6%", largely caused by temporary
store closures caused by the Covid-19 pandemic

UK Sports Retail like-for-like gross contribution was down 13.4%

(" Fi

288 LN eI Eonuealiants Betid d ettt el 2 ar

¥ O et man: e ek s L e Lot ot Hhe
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STRATEGIC AND
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Mz of
Ioefermers

FEARLESS (0 @l

25 LAUNCHED 20

The scheme exists to reward our top 1000 performers @@
when our share price reaches £10, for 30 consecutive

trading days. These top performers will be nominated by w@@
their colleagues for the embodiment of our 3 core values:

Think Without Limits, Don't Hesitate, und Own It. @@@

2022 ELEVATION
PROGRAMME S1ATTS

£1,000,000

£500,000
£250,000
£125,000
£50,000

2178 TOTAL APPLICATIONS

44%
MALE

55%
FEMALE

heis 100° Recycle

ZcFSQ

SHARES WERE AT
J3.8% OWNERSHIP
AT YEAR END

BOSS

HUGO BOSS

SHARES WERE AT
18.5% CHYNERSHIEP
AT YEAR END

FRASERS GROUP

WIGAN
RETAIL
PARK

27,064 soT
£41,750,000

PURCHASE PRICE
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OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, our highest
priority has been to protect the health, safety
and wellbeing of our colleagues. This reflects
both our duty to keep our pecple sufe and

the business imperative: if we are not safe, we
cannot trade.

Our response has been based on a number of
key principles, in particular: R

= following Government guidelines and
exceeding them in certain aspects;

+  completing thorough risk ussessments and
regularly updating them; and

+  communicating effectively, so our people
understand what we are doing and their
part in keeping themselves and their
colleagues safe.

The standards we have developed have been
shared ond followed across the Group, except
where local legislation mandates a different
approach.

The Group's senior management have baen
closely involved in our response, ensuring
the safety of our pecple is put first and that
sufficient resources and equipment are
available. We hove also been supported by an

+ independent health and safety consultant, who
is nelping us to drive continuous impravement,
including in relation to our response to Covid-19.

Ouwr Initia) Response To Covid=19

in last year's report, we detailed the steps we
had taken across our warehouse, office and
stores in the first few months of the Covid19
pandemic. These steps are summarised below.

Virtually oll furloughed colleagues received
100% of pay during the first lockdown, in excess
of the 80% guaranteed by the Government,
and we sent home on fulf pay all colleagues
over 60, as well as those categorised as
vidnerable or at risk. Other measures we have
introduced included random temperature -
checks for collecigues, strict protocais for
self-isolation after contact with a positive case,
encouraging regular testing and providing full

8

;

Panied on Stemnbers 1007 Heoyoled aod Ot €

poy for people who test positive, while they are
unable to work.

In summary, in the eorly stages of the Covid-19
pundemic we:

Warchouse

Invited the local envirorynenta! health
efficer and our independent consultant to
review our controls and social distancing
measures

Reduced the amount of traffic in and out of
tha building and in key areas, for example
by staggering start, finish and break times,
moaving agency staff to four-day weeks and
apening o hew entrance to reduce traffic
through reception

Introduced seven-day heolth and safety
coverage, to support the warehouse teams
Provided first aiders with advice and PPE
{personal protective equipment), to protect
them when first aid was needed
Implemented hygiene stations and created
a new rale of “Social Distancing Marshal®

introduced 'no contact’ security checks

Office

wd hrounh the Wooe

Required colleagues to work at heme
wherever possible and where they needed
to shield

Communicated restart guidance through
Slack (an internal messaging service
available to all head office colteagues)

Inereased cleaning, provided hygiene
stations throughaout and limited capacity in
key areas such as kitchens and lifts

Implemented protocals to ensure there was
no mixing between warehouse and office
stoff in common areas such as canteens

Allowed anly quthorised visitors and
encouraged meetings through digital
platforms

Stores .

»  Crected o retail restart pack for stares
reopening, including signage, PPE, increased
cleaning schedules, lower store accupancy
levels, one-way systems in-store and
training documents for all new procedures

«  Reduced traffic in and aut of the building
and in key areas by staggering stort, finish
ond break times

»  Revised delivery and processing procedures .
to maintain social distancing

- Added sanitisotion stations throughout

stores and encouraged colleagues and
custormners to use them

+  Used unannounced visits by the Health &
Safety team to ensure the retail restart pack
had been correctly implemented

Qur approach was well regarded by local
autharities, vith positive feedback following
unannounced visits to our stores and
warehouse.

Adapting And De

ping Cur P, 4

Throughout this financial year we have built

on cur initial actions, as we have updated our
risk assessments and adapted to changing
guidance, This has enabled us to introduce
new dnd stranger medsures, in particulor as
the Covid-19 variant first identified in Xent
began to spread. Examples of our key octivities
undertaken in the year are set out below.,

+  August 2020. We reviewed our warehcuse
risk assessment ond shared it with the
warehouse and agency teams, We started
weekly anti-viral fogging' of offices, sorters
and other areas to supplernent the regular
cleaning schedule, enhanced workstation
plexi-screens in the office to support sociol
distancing and introduced moximum
copocities for meeting rooms.

+  September 2020, We reviewed our

warehouse risk assessment and our first
aid guidonce and introduced a screening

FRASERS GROUP

November 2020. We reviewed and updated
our worehouse risk assessment and shared
it with the teams, Face coverings became
mandatory in the warehouse, and were
encouraged in offices (except for medical
and operctiona)l exemptions), going beyond
Government guidance, We issued guidance
to all agencies and departments about
reporting Covid-19 cases, including follow-
up actions required. .

2020, We reviewed the head
office risk assessment and shared it with al}
departments. To enhance social distancing,
we closed 50% of shared work areas and
the office warkstations used by people who
could not wark from home, and further
reduced meeting room capaotities. We
reviewed and communicoted our contacts
guidance and shielding requirements and
made face coverings mandatory in head
office. Al head office colieagues received
a Covid-19 controls review document,
requiring an electronic signature of
acceptance.

January 2021. We reviewed the warshouse
risk assessment and issued a warehouse
working refresh. We produced risk
assessments for security, transpaoct and
training and shared them with the relevant
tearns. Training started for all warehouse
management and supervisors, with

the "Covid Captain® role introduced to
monitor work areas. We increased anti-
viral fogging in alf areas, aver and obove
the manufacturers’ guidelines, ond issued
guidance on pre-shift cleaning.

February 2021, We further enhanced the
fogging procedures and preduced a risk
assessment for the Personclisation tearm,

n. N

We believe our efforts have been highly
effective. For example, infection rates at our
Shirebrook campus have been consistently
below those in the local community. We

will cantinue to adapt our approach as
circumstances change.

questionnaire for all visitors.

+  October 2020, We introduced face shields
on ol sorting machines, as on additional
layer of protection.

ek across the

CGutside of the UK we have complied with

alf tocal Covid-19 laws and guidance which,

ot a minimum, includes the same store and
warehouse fmeasures as implemented in the UK.
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FRASERS GROUP

CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Introduction

The Covid+19 pandermic continues to be a
significant challenge for the country, the retail
industry and for Frasers Group, Our stores were
clesed again in November 2020, followed by a
significant closure in the week before Christmas
which then led to the third lockdown in January
2021, These lockdowns resulted in virtually all of
our UK stores being closed for approximately
six months in FY21. Gur European steres

were also impacted by closures although the
impact was not as punitive as it was for the JK
business.

1 am proud of how our colleagues have

battled through these very difficult times to
help us achieve g solid set of financial results
on cn underlying EBITDA basis. We are o
resilient business but the Covid-19 pandemic
has resulted in seme significant non-cash
accounting impairments to our asset base. Cur
RNS announcements in February and April 2021
gave warning of the situation and consequertiy
we have to report an overall profit before tax of
F£8.5m down from £143.5m in FYZ0.

We cppreciate the Government support with
the furlough scheme and business rates relief
We are predominantly a bricks and mortar
business and this support has enabled us to
keep stores open that otherwise might have
been closed, particularly loss making House

of Fraser stores, saving many jobs. We must
caution however that the return to pre Covid-"9
business rates will present a threat to a number
of these stores. There must be a change to the
cutdated business rates system Yor us to justity
the survival of some of these House of Fraser
stores.

We are looking to take on a number of
ex-Debenhams stores across the country but
the excessive business rates make the viability
of these investments, and the jobs that could
be crected, less likely, Again, we ask for clarity
from the Government and for a new and
appropriate policy on business rates.

Prnted on Siemnbeis 100%, Rocycled and Carbon Capl.nad through the Woodland Trust. he

Elevation Without Limits

We continue to invest in all creas of the
business to support our elevation strategy.

Qur flagship Sports Direct store on Oxford
Street re-opened in June 2021 at & cost of
appreximately £16m to the Group and we have
received overwhelming endorsements from our
customers and our brand partners such as Nike
and Adidas.

Qur Flannels business continues to go

from strength to strength since we took full
ownership during 2017 and has revenue CAGR
from the end of FY18 to FY21 of approximately
40%. We have an ambition to reach
approximately £2 billion in gross turnover by the
end of FY26, with a forecast split of 60% from
physical stores and 40% from online channels.

We will continue to invest across the portfalio
of our retail fascias, always pushing the
boundaries and thi
investment in our digital capability, including
on platforms and people, will continue as will
investment in automation in our warehouse
to support our bricks and clicks fulfilment
capabilities.

The Elevation No Limits strategy is working
and we are futly supported by our third-party
brands as elevation is complimenting their own
strategies.

Results

We do not hesitate to remind our stakeholders
of our key accounting principles, namely being
canservative, consistent, and simple. 1t 15 with
this in mind that we present our financial results
for FY21in a period of uncertainty, with in our
opinion, the effects of the pandemic far from
over, and a probable risk of further restrictions,

Our results highlights are:

= Underlying EBITDA incredsed to £390.8m
{FY20: £302.1m)

» Revenue decreased to £3,625.3m (FY20:
£3957.4m)

auew Brtish woodland acros

+  Profit before tax £8.5m [FY20: £143 5m)
+  Net debt of £248.9m (FY20: £366.0m)

More underlying detail is given througheut this
Annual Report and Accounts, The highlights
and explanations of these by segment is set out
in note 4.

Our People

Cur people are our finest resource and we are
committed to treating ali of our colleagues with
dignity and respect. Throughout the pandemic
we have kept colleagues engaged with regular
update videos and a provision for help and
wellbeing support where peogple needed it.
Frasers Group colleagues are talented, loyal
and resilient. | have been very impressed how
they have found creative ways of working
through the challenges of the pandemic with
undiminished enthusiasm, The Board are very
appreciative of the efforts of our colleagues
during these challenging times.

The Board is redlly pleased that The Fearless
1000 share scheme was unanimously voted
through ot the AGM in October 2020 and is
now up and running. The Board is receiving
regular updates ond progress reports and we
are comfortable it is running os intended. The
aim of the scheme is to pay out significant
bonuses in the form of shares if the share price
stays above £10 for 30 consecutive trading
days. This could see 10 colleagues receiving
shares worth £1m each if the share price is at
£10 at the vesting dates. One thousand of our
Fearless colleagues, who live ond breathe our
values of thinking without fimits, not hesitating
and owning it, wilk be eligible to receive share
bonuses ranging frem E50k right up to £1m if
the share price i1s at EVD at the vesting dotes.
There is also a cash bonus scheme which runs
concurrently with the share scheme which will
pay out bonuses for those eligible colleagues
whao do not qualify for the Fearless 1000,

The Frasers Group Elevation Programme was
introduced in September 2020 to attract highly
talented people to Frasers Group. The quality
of the recruits from the initial intcke has been
strong and they have impressed people across
ali levels of the organisation including the
Board. We are looking to run this programme

tha UK

cgain in September 2021 with o new intake of
talent and our assessment centres are now up
ond running. Our objective is to populate the
organisation with high calibre, high potential,
well trained people who we intend to be the
future leaders of the Company.

Acquisitions And Strategic Investments

During the year we increased our investments in
Hugo Boss and Mulberry and we also acquired
the DW Sports and Fitness business, These
investments are consistent with cur strategic
objectives and align with our elevation strategy.

As ot period end, we held appreximately
16.4% directly and indirectly in Hugo Boss. We
consider this strategic investment in Hugo Boss
to be very successful. We have strengthened
our relatienship with the company and have
regular and constructive didlogue with the
senior executive team. We have noted press
speculation about a potential acquisition of
Hugo Boss and stated we had ne intention te
bid in our RNS of 26 May 2021.

We held approximately 36.8% of Mulberry
Group ple at the year end. We believe this is
an icenic British brand and hope that together
we can build a mutually beneficial partnership
going forward,

We acquired certain assets of DW Sports
Limited from administration for a cash
consideration of £37m. The transaction
complements the existing gym and fitness club
portfolic within the Group and is consistent with
the Group's elevation strategy, Frasers Group
looks forward to elevating the gym and fitness
assets and is alse pleased to have saved a
number of jobs. Further detait on the trade and
assets acquired can be found in note 31.

We consider a combination of both organic
and acquisitive growth will assist in the ongoing
delivery and success of our Elevation Strategy
and we will continue to look at potential
opportunities across a range of categories to
cemplement and enhance our Group offering,
in the UK, Europe and beyond if appropriate.
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Multi-Chennel Elevation Stretegy

QOur elevation strategy continues to work
towards improving our offering to customers
across alt our channels, including marketine,
social media, product, digital and in-store. This
aims to enable the Company, along with our
third-party brand partners, to connect with
custamers via a consistent voice across multiple
platforms, including online, mobile, and on the
high street. This strategy enables our stores and
our online operations to complement

each other.

The websites for each of our core fascias in
the UK, including SPORTSDIRECT.com, USC.
co.uk, Flanneis.com, Housecffraser.co.uk anc
GAME co.uk, have undergone significant
enhancements to facilitate optimum appeal to
censumers, Our product offering across thes=
core fascias, both in-store and online, aims to
create a compelling shopping experience in
key categories that include, amongst others,
football, women's, kids, running,-cycling,
lifestyle, fashion, luxury and gaming.

We offer product acress a range of price points,
including good, better and best. This enables
us to offer mote premium product, which is
net-new to the business. This gives consumer; a
greater range of choices for those who wish to
shop for premium products, whilst still retaining
our criginal entry-level and continuity product
offerings.

'Prograssion Of The Elevated Store Model

The elevation of the Group's stores continues
to progress and evolve across fascias and
territories. As reported last year, for Sports
Direct the enhanced concept introducing

an area not just for USC, but also for Gome
with a Belong Gaming arena and Evans
Cycles was delivered at the new Portsmouth
store. These combined elements develop the
destination status of our stores catering to

a wider customer base. The Group has also
pushed boundaries with the opening of the
game changing Sports Direct flagship store on
Lendon's Oxford Street shortly after financial
year end. The stare features world class
design incorporating new activation spaces,

Frinted on Steinbeis 1009 Recycled ancd Carbon Caplured hrough the Wood|

technology and features including o first in kind
bra fitting studio.

Following the success of the Flannels regional
concept, the Group has developed a new
regional flagship concept. This concept
encompasses a much larger footprint and
incorporates new categories for the fascia
including beauty and focd & beverage. The
first store to launch in this new concept is at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre with further sites
due to open in the coming financial year such
as Fosse Park in Leicester and Liverpocl

city centre.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
apening of Frasers Wolverhampton, The store
extends to ¢.34,000 sgft housing beauty,
tashion, lifestyle, kids, home and food &
beverage. This new store is a live example of
the Group's vision for the fasciafocusing on
experience, brands and service.

The Group is highly acquisitive across fascias
for new stores and with co-operative landlords
can offer a portfelio of new store deals
providing a variety of retail offerings. The Group
is prepared to sign long term leases for those
landicrds willing to co-invest in the elevated
store concepts.

Investment in Freehold properties remains an
option to assist the store elevation strategy as
has been the case in previous financial years.

Further details of the property strategies and
current property portfolio are inciuded within
the Chief Executive's Report and Business
Review section of this annual report.
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Our Pacple

The Group's policy is to treat all our people with
dignity and respect. Frasers Group celleagues
work together across all areas of the business
and we are proud that Frosers Group plc is one
of the first public companies in the UK to make
an elected Workers' Representative a Board
member. We welcome all new colleagues into
the Group following the acqui ns in the year
and those who joined us through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme.

Our policy is to foster a reward-based culture
that enables our colleagues to share in the
success of the Group. It is Compeny policy to
pay above the statutory National Minimum
Wage, including rates that are above the
statutory National Living Wage for those
over 25 years of age in the UK. In addition to
this, in current period the Group paid awards
and incentives of approximately £2.0m, from
which beth permanent and casual colleagues
benefited,

We are pleased thot the Feorless 1000 share
scheme is now up and running along with

the Fearless Focus performance reviews. One
thausand of our Fearless collaagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking without limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to £1m if the share price is at £10 ot the
vesting dates.

Workers' Representative

The Frosers Group Workers Represenoiive
is Colly Price, a Manager at our Cardiff Bay

store. The Workers' Representative has a unique

insight in to the Group and will speak on behalf
of the Group's workforce ot all scheduled
meetings of the Board in order to facilitate o
healthy and constructive diciogue. Due to the
success of the Worker's Representative Board
role we have decided to extend the tenure of
Cally Price for a further few years and thus she
will be proposed for re-election at the

2021 AGM.

v wondland across the UK

Collaaguwe Engagement

In addition to the Workers Representative,

the Company also has an ongoing dialogue
with colleagues via an initiative called "Your
Company. Your Voice.' This is a system whereby
colieagues are able to raise any issues of their
choosing via a number of different routes, both
physical and digital. This feedback is passed

to senior management and the Warkers'
Representative for review and appropriate
action.

Our Global Third-Party Erand Partners

We work with our leading third-party global
brand partners and provide significant
prominence for them with cur customers across
all our platforms. .

Qur third-party and Group brands are
managed by central brand and marketing
teams. This centralised structure significantly
benefits the Group lby enabling the individual
brands to participate in Group buying and
sourcing; aggregated supplier relationships
and enhanced supply chain disciplines; Group
inventory menitoring and replenishment;

and more inspired end harmonious visual
merchandising in-store.
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Qur Strategy - Elevation No Limits

Our purpose is to serve consumers with the world’s best brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, ot the right time and at the right price. Our strategy is cligned to this
purpose and is pased on three interconnected focus pillers - the brands we sell, our digital offering
and our physical stores. These are supported by & set of enablers, focused on our people, systems,
automation and data. By continuing ta elevate our performance across all areas of our strategy, we

will achieve our visian: to becarne the elevated multi-channel platform for sports, premium and luxury.

Steategy

Koy chivrmprants in FY21

Prioritias for F¥22

Qur custormens want 1o have the Liaice of the
worlef's best brands, whather in sporting goads o0
the premiurm and luxury segments Bewng able ta
aHer these heands 15 essentlal For our suLCess. We
tinerelore focus on bullding excellant relationshins
and truly infageated taams with key third-peety
brand owners

owerful brond affenng 1s supported by out
complementory (ange of own brands, where we
@im to gHet unrvalled choice and value. d
dnwe growth through influencer portnerships and
\prand celloborations We will cantiue to consider
strategic o s that bring ottactive bronds
o the Graup.

Puning FY2Y, aur achevemants included.

. turther growing our relotianshies with key
brand owners, sucl as Nike tor Sports Direct,
Burberry tor Hlupnels, and Huga Boss for

House of Frasel, giving us wiprovad access te

the producls cur rusiomers demand,

+ increusing aur strategic ivestment in Hugo
Boss AG, reltectmy our growing relations|
aut conhidence 1n ts future and the patents
for synergies batween ouf busnesses, ohd

+ Incresing our strategic investment in lusury
handbug retaier Mulberry

During FYIZ, our pri

+ cantinuetobuy
brund partner
access Lo th

+ inwesten evelving our aw
they remaim relevant to consumers by
respanaing ta changing styles ond trends,
and cantinue to complement the key thed-

orty brands we offer

. Relerance to Princiscl Risks,
see poge 31

Digita!

Both custamers ond brands wont actess to digutal
channels that atfer an excellant expern
Though our digitol elevation stratudy we

ore investing more than £100m to elevate
+cur propositieny across our mtaid channels
Thns wvestinent will build an eur core digial
foundations, to suppor future grewth and ogility It
meludes continung e custarmer
expenenes and caref ly targeted investment

\n plakforms Ehat suppoit custofter Service,
engugament ond dota We are olsa investing in
digrtal marketing ta arnve sales growth

Fhysleal
Tha contimal elevation of our physicol store sstate

 fundomental pat of cur strategy to make
therm dastinutions custormers wont ko come ta aned
whers brund owners w i products Lo be
<aan Wa do this by rollng out levated stores and
by elevating ssting siores To drive afhiciencies
1 funning our trare estate, we wil continue to
develop out operating ModM and mtroduca new
stare Lechnology Wa vl Blse conswdet st
eqursitions thak add attractive locations ta the
store gstare

During F¥21, our o ievements ncludad

+ sigmificantly improwng the custemer
expenance, customer sgvce and the

dedying plutform for our digita business,

reflecting the crticel importance of & strong
web prasencs dunng Covid-19 relates!
lockdowns, and

. introducing ot fest digital murketng
pragrmime, to suppart branding and sales
yrowth

Buing FY21, our schievements ineluded

+ continuing ta open new concept stores.
ncluding a Rugehip mult fasaa effering
1 Portsmouth and o new Frasers store in
wolverhampton .

+ sgmihcantly mvesting in wur flogsip Sports
Direct store an Oxlord Strest, Landon which
opened to great ar.claim in June 2071, end

+  fcquining the trude ond assets of DW Sports,

complementing aur existing gym and hitness

chub purtioho

During FY22, our priorities ofs 10

+ further wwest m our onh
poarticularly on the lukury side of Fhe business,
Inthuding our websie, custemer service and
poyment platfonms, and

+ cantinue to nvest 10 dig
use of social
rcude msights ke custome oe

Dunng FY22. our pricr ties ore to

Reference to Prntipat Risks,
see page 11

beauly o Flannals,

+ develop the lutest terations of our glevated
taore couepts.

. prograss the engoing elevatian of our exstng
stove portfolio, and

v sslectwaly open elevated storas n Europe

with u focus on tne Spons Direct and USC

fascias

Reference La Pancipal Risks,
see poge 3

Ennbler

We nead to hove tulented paople who will

enable us ta tucceed, supported by trainng that
empowers tham to achisve, Fo utirce new talent
we wilt contitwa to develop our eimployer brand,
while further improving mtet communicaiion o
dirmes engageiment with existing colleugues

W wall also cantinue te avest In ouf systewns and
sutomntion ka gahonca slhicancy. and i our data
Capathities, so we can make det-driven decisions
wherever possible.

Dunag FY21, pur uchievernents included

+ making sigmbcont progress with how we
attract, engoge and develop takent, nuludbng
defing our core volues, welcarming 27
new people In our commercinl deportment
through the Frazars Group Elevatio
Programme, introduting the Feorless
1000 bonus schame and Faorless Focus
pertormance reviews, and devalopmg o new
learning manngement system (LMS),

. lurther imvesting 1n automation, In particular
to impaove lulfibment for cur dignel usness,
©

. anhonong dato shanag with supphers
thiqugh electronic data nterchange D,
improving management of stock and
straamlining supplier payant processes

Dunng F122, our prionties are ta

- rollowt eur
the bustness, ga hve
the next intake for

parfonmaNLE FEVIEWS OFIDss
e LMS, anid rRerat

t n our digital

our pitysiol stores as quickly and
effectively o5 possible,

. cantwme onboardimy products onto EDI and

. coptwrs customer datd and nsights thraugh
growtl usiness, digitul
markating and the rolt-aut of our luyalty
progromme

Referance to Pl
see page 31

pat Risks,

lod on Stenbe

100, Regyclod aud Carbon Gap

(e throunh e Yoo

put

Key Performancae Indicators

FRASERS GROUP

The Board manages the Group's performance by reviewing a number of key performance indicators
{(KPls). The KP!s are discussed in this Chief Executive's Report and Business Review, the Financial
Review, the Environment section and the "Our People” section. The table below summarises the

Groug's KPls.
32 whohs snded »2wowks ended $1 wesks nded
1 Aprih 2021 16 Apdil 2020 28 Apeil 2019
Group revenua £3.6253m £35574m £3,7019m
\Underlpng ESITDA" §350 Bm £302 §787 Bm
Group gross murg 41 7% 420% 42 8%

Underlying bosic aamings oet share

g Free cosh flow ! *

n7op)
£4778m

16 p
F3631m

76y

£1733m

Net bt '
HON-FINANCIAL KPI3

Nuimber of retad stores”

£3489m £3660m [3785m

1,534 968

Warkbaer = turnover

28.6% 210%

Peickaging reryehng”

12,354 tonnes 12,807 tonnes

tmetlwad for calculating unde
Thie methad far calcuk

ndlerlying Lo wurings per sha

The method for calcuiatng Net debt 13 set out in the
ng assaciates ond stores i the Baltic sats
cludes GAME and Sofo tom cancessions

rascios
16k Corapoord and plaste recycling

The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying bosic EPS and underlying free cash
fiow provide further useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance

of the business in ad n to the reported
numbers and are consistent with how business
performance has been measured internally.
They are not recognised profit measures under
|FRS and may not be directly comparable with
*adjusted” performance measures used by other
companies, See Glossary for further information
on the Group's Alternative Performance
Meagsures.

Manogement will, from FY22, change our
main reporting,KP| from underlying EBITDA to
adjusted profit before tox {PBT). From FY22,
the Group will therefore no longer report
underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT is reported
profit before tax less the effects of exceptional
items, unhedged foreign exchange (FX), gains
and losses on strategic investments and share
scheme charges.

9 EBITDA s set out 1n Noty & ond the Glossory
15 ser aul in Nota 15

fren cosh flow « defned gs operaling cash flew after warking cuj

exctiunge gans ond lasses, less orporabion tax peid Further detnil on

ncial Review

ot troda under fascias athar thn SPORTLAND or SPORTSHRECT¢

nd pre IFRS 16, musds up of underlying CBI1OA plus reolsed
caiculatian eun ba found i the Financiol Revew

and ather mche

Management has taken this decision for the
foliowing reasons:

~ With the continued significant investment
in and roll out of our elevation strategy
on both the physical and digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation to both the Board and
our stakeholders in terms of assessing
performance has grown

- Our understanding from @ number of
financial sectors, including the banking
sector, is that IFRS16 is becaming an
increasingly important consideration.

~ With this new measure, we are trying
to align with the Financial Reporting
Council's thematic standpoint with regard
to ‘alternative performance measures’ as
far as possible, whilst retaining a degree
of interpretation given that factors
sutside of our controi, such as FX and
strategic investments movements which
are exceptionally difficult to forecast,
particularly months in advance.

Adjusted PBT for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021 was a loss of £53.7m. See Glossary for
reconciliation to reported PBT.
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Group revenue

The Board considers that this measurement is a
key indicator of the Group's growth.

Underlying EBITDA

Underlying EBITDA shows how weli the Groap is
managing its trading and operaticnal efficiency
and therefore the averall trading performance
of the Group.

Group gross margin

The Board considers thot this measurement is a
key indicator of the Group's trading profitability.

Underlying basic earnings per share (EPS)

Underiving basic EPS is a measure of adjusted
total shareholder return and ultimately on
indicator to our shareholders of the success of
our elevation strategy.

Underlying free cash flow

Underlying free cash flow is considered an
important indicator for the Business of the
cash available for investment in the elevation
strateqy.

Net debt

Net debt is on indicator of both the Group's
investment in the elevation strategy ond its
covenant headroom which is a key component
of the Group's going concern considerations.

Number of retail stores

The Board considers that this measure is an
indicator of the Group's growth. The Group's
elevation strategy is replacing older stores ard
often this can result in the closure of two or
three stores to be replaced by one larger new
generation store.

Waorkforce turnover

The Board considers that this measure is a key
indicator of the contentment of our people. For
more details refer to the retention section of the
"Qur People” section of this report.

13

Packaging recycling

The Board considers that this measurement is
a key indicator of ouwr impact and commitment
to the best environmental practices. For mare
details refer to the environment section of

this report.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT AND

BUSINESS REVIEW

Performance Overview

Group revenue decreased by 8.4% to £3,6253m
in the year. UK Sports Retail decreased by
10.7% to £1,968.5m, Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% and European Retail
decreased by 11.8% to £615.2m. Rest of World
Retail revenue was £152,7m, down 12.3% and
revenue in the Wholesale & Licensing division
decreased by 4.3%.

Group gross margin in the year was consistent
with the prior year with a small increase of

20 basis points from 42.0% to 42.2%. UK
Sports Retail margin increased 110 basis points
te 42.1% (FY20: 41.0%)} largely due to the
continually improving product mix. Premium
Lifestyle's gross morgin decreased by 340 basis
points from 4B8.3% to 44.9% loprgely due to g
reduction in concession sales within House of
Fraser as a percentage of total sales which
have a higher gross margin. European Retail
gross margin increased 60 basis points from
38.4% to 39.0% largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Rest of World Retail
margin decreased 250 bosis points from 44.4%
to 41.9%, largely due to the Jower margin rate
in the US business which makes up a larger
proportion of the segment in FY21. Wholesale
& Licensing gross margin increased 310 basis
points to 44.0% (FY20: 40.9%), largely due to
UK wholesale,

Group operating costs decreased by 15.7% to
E1140.0m (FY2C: £1,353.0m), fargely driven by
savings in store costs during the lockdowns as
a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, Government
support schemes such as CJRS (Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme) and business rates relief
particutorly in House of Fraser. The amount
received by the Group in the period in regard
to the CJRS (or equivalent where received

in non-UK territories) was approx, £80m.

The amount of business rates relief received

by the Group in the period [or equivalent
where received in non-UK territeries) was
approx. £97.5m. See the Financial Review

Prled on Stenbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captued through the Woodland Trust, helipng to credate new Biitish woodiand dcross the UK

for a reconciliation of Group operating costs
to selling, distribution and administrative
expenses.

As a result, Group underlying EBITDA for the
yecr was up 29.4% to £390.8m {FY20: £3021m).
Excluding acquisitions and on @ currency
neutral basis, underlying EBITDA increased
16.9%. UK Sports Retail underlying EBITDA
was £279.2rm up from £227.4m in FY20, while
Pramium Lifestyle underlying EBITDA was
£53.9m, up from £4.5m in FY20. European
Retail underlying EBITDA was £4.1m, down from
£51.8m in FY20. Rest of World Retail underlying
EBITCA was £25.6m, up from a loss of £6.8m

in FY20 and Wholesale & Licensing underlying
EBITDA increased ko £28.0m from £25.2m.

There were property related impairments in
the period totalling £317.0m (FY20: £122.6m),
including £168.2m in relation to right of use
assets (FY20: £97.8m), £84.4m in relation to
freehold land and buildings (FY20: £nil), £63.8m
of other property, plant and equipment [FY20:
£24.8m) and £0.6m of investment properties
[FY2Q: £nil). Property related impairments have
been recognised following a re-assessment of
future expected cash flows largely driven by
anticipated future lockdowns os o result of the
Covid-19 pandemic, the change in consumer
behaviour in meving from physical to online
shepping, the impact of Direct-To-Consumer
and increasing costs os a result of Brexit.
Further details including seasitivity analysis is
included within Note 2. :

Depreciation and amortisation charges have
increased by 11.3% to £307.5m (FY20: £276.3mj)
largely due to an increase in freehold land ond
buildings depreciation, following the change in
useful economic life estimate in the period. See
accounting policies for further details.
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Group underlying profit before tax " decreased i

to £5.8m {FY20: £177.4m), Jargely due to the =m<—m5 w< wcm—zmmm mmnzmzq
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including

the closure of retail stores, the associoted UK Sports Retail

provisioning and impairment and depreciation
and amortisation charges. Underlying basic EPS
for the year decreased by 204.9% to a loss of
17.0p (FY20: profit of 16.2p).

The UK Sports Retail segment includes all of the Group’s sports retail and USC store operations in the
UK {including Northern lreland), all of the Group's sports online businesses {excluding Bob's Stores,
Eastern Mountain Sports, Boltics and Malaysia), the Group's gyms, Evans Cycles, GAME UK stores and
online operations and the Group's Shirebroek campus operations. UK Sports Retail is the main driver

Within other comprehensive income, the Group’s of the Group and accounts for 54.3% (FY20: 55.7%) of Group revenue.

hedging contracts decreased by £16.5m (FY20:

decreased by £18.7m) as a result of the foir value _uﬂu_.!_ ah :“.»n-..ﬂ.hw“
mavemeants in the period. With regard to the {Em) {emt
Group's long-term financial assets, fair value LK Sports Retail Revenus . 19685 22031
movements have resulted in ¢ goin of £77.3m ot of Setes ey 113007
{FY20Q: loss of £19.7m] in the period. Gross Profit 8293 9032
The Group generated free cash flow during Crome Mg % =L =
the year of £427.8m, up frorm £262.1m in the Revenue decreased 10.7% to £1,968.5m. Excluding acquisitions, revenue fell 14.6%. This was largely
prier period. Net debt decreased by £117.1m to due to the temporary stare closures in the UK coused by the Covid-19 pandemic, portially offset by

£248.9m at period end. Spend on acauisitions growth in our online business and pent up demand on store reopening.
and capex, including Wigan Robin Retail Park
and warehouse automation, was offset by
continued strong cash generation in the core

UK Sports Retail gross margin increased to 42.1% {FY20: 41.0%), largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Excluding acquisitions gross margin increased to 45.0% [FY20: 43.5%)

business. Net debt nc:mwsﬂz stands at 0.5 times , Operating expenses decreased by 16.8% to £548.7m largely driven by savings in store costs during
reported EBITOA (FYZ0: 0.7 times). the store closure periods as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Excluding acquisitions, operating
M Undarying profit biefore tuxatien sxchudes the eflacts of FRS 15, expenses decreased by 20.2% largely driven by savings in store costs and Government support

ammu.u;_n:a;c:mw9.::5»..5;,_.&5& ‘ . ‘
dmumstiation <osts, excEphonal e, and the brofit / loss o schemes during lockdowns as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic,

disposal of subsidignes, strotegic investments ond proparties

Underlying EBITDA for UK Sports Retail was £279.2m (FY20: £227.4m), an increase of 22.8% for the
year, largely due to the strong recpening of stores after lockdowns, grawth in our online business and
improved operating efficiencies.

UK Sports Retail Store Portfolio™
. 15 April 1021 20 Apdil 2020
England 334 67
Seotard 39 ki
Walas 3 4
Morthern N 17
ssle of Man R 1 1
usC ¥ b
Cuans Cycles | 50
GAME UK 7 42
TOTAL * (L] 5y
Opened 25
: Closed 153
Acquired 9 256
Areo fsa Bl ) ppprox 6 Sm approx 6 Im

I9bune Gymhs
lude 71 concessions [FY20 3f operating within Sparts Dwact kokgw storet and toes

Toble exciudes I
The GAME UK s

hade BELONG arayas

iiked on St

X

T sy ot aeross o UK

iad though he
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Premium Lifestyle

Premium Lifestyle consists of Flannels, Cruize, van mildert, House of Fraser, Jack Wills and Sofa.com
fascia stores and corresponding web sales.

52 wasks smled 5} wuuks endud

15 April 2021 18 April 2020

Em {Emy

Gross Transaction Valus [GIV) - 1581 5031

Prermum Lifestyle Revanue 7356 720

Cost of sales {405.3| (373 4]

Gross Prokt 3303 B&

Gross Margin % 449 483
A} GTV being gross sales net of VAT, discounts and returns oad giass sales where the Group acts os ogent

Premium Lifestyle sales increased by 1.9% to £735.6m (FY20: £722.0m), mostly due to new Flannels
stores and increased web sales. Excluding acquisitions, sales increased 1.4%. The Premium Lifestyle
gross margin for the year decreased by 340 basis points to 44.9% (FY20: 48.3%) largely due o
reduction in concession sales within House cf Fraser as o percentage of total sales which have a
higher gross margin.

Prarnium Lifestyle operating costs decreased by 20.1% to £275.1m [FY20: £344.1m} largely driven

by savings in store costs during the store closure periods as o result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
Government support schemes such as business rates relief particularty in House of Fraser. As a result,
underlying EBITDA improved from £4.5m in FY20 to £53.9m in the year, largely due to Flannels stare
openings, growth in our online business, continued operating efficiencies and business rates ralief
particularly in House of Fraser,

P . Lifestyle Store Portfoli
13 Aprid 2011 14 April 2020
Flannels a1 3t
Cruise ) 5 5
van mildert ) 1 1
Jock Wills 50 67
House ol Fraser / Frasers 43 48
Sofacom™ 2 2
1BMantrose 3
Gorment Guorter 1
Psycha 1
m i)
Opened 12 )
Acgured 5 "7
Closad oA (a2}
Araa (st} opprox 43m approx 4 5m
[t Safa.cam store numbars ncluds ¥ concassians (FY20 17 carcessions) operaijpg withuy Hausa of Froser foseia stores

European Retail

The Eurcpean Retail division includes the Group's sports retail store management and operations
in Europe, including the Group's Eurepean distribution centres in Belgium and Austria, stores and
corresponding web business in the Baltic regions and GAME Spain stores and corresponding web
business.

52 wauks whded

A 2% Apri 2021 18 ApHi 2020

{Em) {Em)

Europaan Retall Revenue £15 2 6977
Cost of Sales 1375 5) 1429 8)
Grass Prafit 239.4 2679
Grass Praht % 390 384

Revenue decreased 11.6% to £615.2m. On a currency neutral basis and excluding acquisitions,
Eurcpean Retoil revenue decreased by 20.5% largely due to the temporary store closures caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic.

European Retail gross margin increased to 39.0% {FY20: 38.4%)] largety due to the continually
impraving product mix. Excluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral basis, margin is up 100 basis
points to 46.3%. .

Operating expenses increased by 10.2% to £238.1m {FY20: £216.1m). Excluding ocquisitions and on a
currency neutrat basis operating costs increased by 9.3% largely due to property related provisions

including prior year releases as a result of disposals. As a result, underlying EBITDA decreased 92.1%
to £4.1m.

All of the following stores are operated by companies wholly owned by the Group, except Estonig,
Latvia and Lithuanio where the Group owns 60.0%.

Frinted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Caibon Captured throuah the Woodiand Trust, helping to create tew Bribsh woadiand across the UK
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European Retail Store Portfolia '

18 Apeil 2021

26 April 2020

GAME Spoin
Repubhic of Irel

Befguin

Extenia’

Austrig

Portugal

Latwa*

Lithuong"

Patard

Slavenio

Czech Repubbc

Hungary

Cyorin
Holland
Shouakio

Frarcs

Gesminy

Luxembaurg

Spoin

Icelong

TOTAL

Opensed
Closed

{38]

(14t

Acquired

Aceafsatt]

apprex 3 6m

265

appeax_d0m

L] Includes only stares with SPORTSDHRECT com ond SPORTLAND fascias

° Excluding Heolons foscin stares
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Rest Of World Retaii
Rest of World Retail includes sparts stores in Maloysia trading under the SPORTS DIRECT fascia,

- retail stores in the US trading under Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain Sports and their online

businesses. In Malaysia the Group has 33 stares which are 51.0% owned by the Group.

STweuks ondud 52 weeks anded

28 Apel 2021 26 Apdl 2020

om) &m

Rest of Worki Revenue 1527 exd
Cost of sgles LRl [96.9}
Gross Profit 647 LE]
Grass Margin % ik a4

Rest of World Retail sales were £152.7m for the year. Gross margin was 41.9%, down frem 44.4%

in the prior year, lorgely due to the lower morgin rote in the US business which makes up o larger
propartion of the segment in FY21. Underlying EBITDA was £25.6m, from a loss of £6.8m in FY20. This
was targely due to opernting efficiencies in the US business,

Rest of World Retail Store Portloflio

28 April 2011 26 Aprifl 2030

Maloysio 73 3
Bab's Stores 2 3
Eastern Moyntain Sports P P
. = "

At e b} appraz 13m opprax 13m

Wholesale § Licensing

The portfoiio of Group brands includes a wide variety of world-famous sport and lifestyle brands.
The Group's Sports Retail division sells products under these brands in its stares, and the Wholesale
& Licensing division sells the brands through its wholesale and licensing activities, The Wholesole

& Licensing division continues to sponsor a variety of prestigious events and retains a variety of
globally recognised celebrities and sporting professionals as brand ambassadors.

51 weshs onded 32 weeky unded

25 Aprll 2010 26 Apri 2010

1£m) tm}

whelesale 1315 1344
Lirensing 256
Total Whalesale & Licenciyg Revmnus 160.2
Cast of Sakee (947}
Grass Profit 655
Grass Morgn % 411 a09

Wholesale & Licensing total revenue decreased by 4.3% to £153.3m (FY20; £160.2m}.

Wholesale revenues were down 2.2% to £131.5m {FY20: £134.4m). due to reductions in UK wholesale
activity offset by an increase in the US, Total gross margin increased by 320 basis points to 441%
(FY20: 40.9%). Whelesale gross margins increased 430 bosis points to 33.6% (FY20: 29.5%), largely
due to UK wholesale.

Licensing revenues in the year were down 15.5% to £21.8m (FY20: £25.8m).

Operating costs decreased by 2.2% to £39.4m (FY20: £40.3m). As a result, underlying EBITA
increased by 11.1% te £28.0m [FY20: £25.2m).

o across the UK
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PROPERTY REVIEW

The store elevation program remains o key
focus point for the Group across all fascias and
territories. For Sports Direct, the new stores
continue to push boundaries as demonstrated
by the opening of the new Portsmouth Spo-ts
Direct store incorporating @ USC, Evans and
Game, as well as a Belong gaming arena.
Further te this, shortly after fincncial year eqd
the newly refurbished London, Oxford Street
flagship epened featuring world class design
incorporating new activation spaces, technology
and features including a first in kind bra fitt ng
studio. In Europe, the portfolio of six Toys R Js
properties acquired during FY20 in Spoin have
now been developed launching as elevated
Sports Direct stores in the same format as the
UK.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Wolverhampton, another
example of the continued store elevation
pregramme. The opening of such stores
demonstrates the Group’s commitment to
physical retail and af
destinations,

Flannels remains an important fascia for the
Group. The key focus has been the development
of the Regional Flagship concept introducing
new categories for the fascia such as beouty.
food & beverage and active, Terms have

been agreed to launch this new concept ot
Meadowhall Shopping Centre which is set to
open in the coming financial yecr. Further sitzs
for this concept are also due to open ot Fossz
Park in Leicester and Liverpool city centre.

Another notable event in FY21 was the
acquisition of 42 DW Stores. The acquisition
enhanced the Group's gym and UK Sports Retail
estate. A refurbishment and rebranding exercise
commenced shortly after acquisition and will
continue into the coming financial year,

The primary objective for the estate continues
to be the transition to turnover based rents.
The Greup is highly acquisitive across fascias
and with co-operative landierds can offer a
portfolio of new store decls providing a variety

17
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ty to create genuine retail

of retail offerings. The Group is prepared to sign
long term leases for those landlords willing to
co-invest in the elevated store concepts.

With leasehold activity ccross the Group
expected to increase over the coming year, the
some is likely to apply with freehold acquisitions
as we capitalise on favourable market conditions
coupled with the Group's growing requirement
for retail space.

UK RETAIL STORE PORTFOLIO

Sports Stores in the UK {including
Northern lreland):

* The Group is currently operating from 394
stores in England, 39 in Scotland, 31in Wales
and 21in Nerthern Ireland. There were 14
openings and 20 closures for Sports Direct
fascio stores over the period. 42 stores were
acquired as part of the acquisition of DW
Sporis comprising a number of ‘combined’
sites with retail and leisure. Six of the store
closures were sites acquired as part of this
acquisition where agreements could not
be reached with landlords resulting in 33
‘combined' and 3 stand-alone Sports Direct
stores as additions in the period. 13 of the
remaining 14 closures occurred due to
relocations into elevated multi-Fascia stores.

+ Noteworthy openings include Portsmouth,
Birmingham Fort, Scunthorpe and Wrexham
where existing Sports Direct stores were
closed to relocate into an elevated multi-
format store.

+ Al new store openings include a USC lifestyle
affering as part of the elevated store model
across all formats, As mentioned previously,
both a GAME and Evans Cycles concept has
been developed to ferm part of the elevated
Sports Direct format in selected locations.
Qver the coming financial period there will
be a push towards more multi-fascia store
openings incorporating each of these fascios.

helping to create

.mcn:- Cycles

+ There are currently 48 Evans Cycle stores
operating, a reduction of two stores over
the period. During FY21the Evans Cycles
concept was first introduced as a store-in-
store areo in our latest Portsmouth mul
fascia store alengside Sports Direct, USC,
Garmne & Belong. This concept will continue
to be developed to rofl out into sefected
future store cpenings.

GAME UK

+  Qver the period, the relocation programme
moving Game into selected Sports Direct
stores was accelerated. Coupled with the
new Sports Direct store openings featuring
an area for Game, the overall number of
stores for the UK estate increased to 247
having closed 67 and opening 72 [net
increase of 5 stores).

+ The Belong gaming arenas are building
their presence across the UK featuring in ¢
numbér of the new Sports Direct openings
such as Portsmouth.

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE STORE
PORTFOLIO .

Flannels, Cruise and Yan Mildert

+  Acyoss Flannels, Cruise and van mildert
during FY21 there were 6 openings and 2
closures, resulting in a net increase of 4
stores. Combining these fascias, the total
estate amounts to 47 stores,

+ Key openings for Flarnels include Rushden
Lakes, Kingston Upon Thames and
Wolverhampton. The Glasgow Cruise
store was also extensively refurbished and
expanded.

+ A major area of deveiopment has been
the Flannels Regional Flagship concept,
incorporating new categories such as
beauty, food & beverage and active. The
first regional flagship to open will be
Flannels Meadowhall which will extend
to approximately 55,000 saft with further
locations to follow over the coming financial
year including Fosse Park in Leicester and
Liverpool city centre.

aw British woodland across the UK

House of Fraser

» At the end of FY21there were 43 House of
Fraser stores trading, a net decrease of 5
stores after 6 closures and 1 opening.

* A key highlight was the delivery of the new
'Frasers’ store concept at Wolverhampton,
This new store showcases the elevated
format and what can be provided upon
agreeing appropriate new long term lecse
deals,

= Much of the estate continues to remain
on short term flexibte leases. Whilst
negotiations are ongoing te transition stores
to long term leases it is anticipated that
there will e further closures, particularly
as business rates come back into effect in
FY22.

*  However following the demise of major
high street retail chains we envisage new
location opportunities to come to fruition
over the coming financial period, albeit
again punitive business rates at many of
these locations put the viability of doing
these lease deals in doubt.

Jack Wills

»  Over FY21there were 7 store closures and no
openings reducing the estate to 60 stores.
Woe continue to negotiate with landlords to
maove to long term leases.

* A new store concept is under development
with the ambition to open in new key
markets across the UK. The new concept is
intended to be finalised over FY22.

ﬂoi!ﬁogm-—u- UK FY22

= Over FY2), despite the challenges faced
relating to the Covid-19 pandemic the
Group continued the elevated store roll
out pregramme. For the coming financial
year the Group's ambition is to increase
the new store activity across fascias, with
a porticular focus on Sports Direct and
Flannels, Key new stores include the new
Flanneis Regional Flagships along with new
Sports Direct flagships such as Birmingham
city centre. Howevaer, it should be noted that
program risk remains relating to factors
linked to the Covid-¥9 pandemic.
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EUROPEAN RETAIL -
' STORE PORTFOLIO

Republic of Ireland {ROI)

= Over FY21the rermaining Heatens store
canversions ¢o include Sports Direct were
completed,

+ There was one opening in the year, with 39
stores ot the period end. Shortly after the
year end @ new store in Galway opened, o
. first for the Group in that market.

= The intention for the coming financial year
is to increase the store estate across RO,
this has been bolstered by the increasing
number of rew lacation opportunities now
being presented. In certain locations other
Group fascias not currently trading in the
RCI are being considered.

Continental Europe

+ The Group continues to operate sports
stores in 18 countries in continental Europe.

= 211 Sports retail steres in Europe, excluding
Republic of Ireland {plus 26 non-core,
speciality and outlets).

«  Tatal sq.ft. of approximately 2.7m of
all sports fascias in Eurape (including
Sportiend, Lillywhites, Sportsworld etc),

+  Closed 25 GAME stores in Spain during the
period as part of rationalising the estate
and removing duplication finishing the
period on 236 stores.

»  Twelve openings in four different countries,
three of which were relocations.

« 10 closures in seven different countries with
a mixture of clasing non-performing stores
ond closures linked to relocations. The 1
Austrian store closure was due to a sale of
our freehold property in Salzburg.

* During the period 8 Sports Direct stores
incorporating a USC were opened during
the period totalling 117,165 sq ft of retail
space. b of these were freeholds purchased
in FY20 that have been refurbished and
opened as elevated Sports Direct stores.

A further freehoid store opened in Maluga
shortly after FY21.

13
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As is the case in the UK, the Group is firmly
committed ta the rollout of elevated stores
across Europe. Due to the occelerated shift
to online experienced acress Eurape due to
the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and o
number of retailers reducing their pertfolio
size. The Group believes it can copitalise
on these market conditions to efficiently
expand our physical estate, focusing on
capital city end flagship opportunities.

REST OF WORLD RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO

33 stores in Malaysia with three openings
and one closure in FY21, The closure was a
Tesco hased store Jeaving us with three as
we continue to relocate our stores to higher
performance locations,

The Malaysian elevation and expansion
drive continues, with 2 new efevated stores
opened in the peried. We now have a total
of seven elevated stores in the region in line
with UK standards ond four stores with a
USC retail area.

As o major milestone aur flagship ASEAN
HG opened in FY21 in the Sunway Pyramid

“shopping centre with the adjoining retail

store opening shortly.

43 stores in the USA, following two closures
and one opening in FY21.

Frachold / Long L hold Property Purch

Over FY2! a total of 14 properties were
acquired across the UK totalling £84.3m.
The most significont purchase was Robin
Retail Park in Wigan for £41.8m. No
properties were acquired in Europe or RoW,

Disposal of property assets continues to be
standard practice for the Group. During the
pericd 4 disposals completed in the UK and
3 dispasals completed in the EU.

For the upcoming financial period it is
anticipated that there will be an increase
in acquisition activity as we capitalise on
favoureble market conditions coupled with
the groups arowing requitement for retail
space. Disposals will continue as has been
the case in previeus financial years.

Mike Ashley
Chief Exacutive

5 August 2021

tacross t

FRASERS GROUP
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financial Statements for the Group for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 are presented in
oceordance with Internotional Financial Reoorting Standards (IFRS).

Summary Of Results
57 wonkt wnded 52 weoks ondded
25 Apsit 2001 26 Aprd 1020
- {emt femt
Revenue 36353 39574
Reported EBITDA 5365 5510
Undarlying EBITDA 3508 30621
Reported profit before tax BS 1415
Undarlying profit bafors tax H "4

Earnings per shars {ERS)

Pence per share

Pehcs per shate

Heparted basic EPY

{16 9}

85

Underlying basic EPS

117ay

%2

EBITDA is earnings before investment incorre and investment costs, finance income and finance
costs, tax, depreciation, amortisation and impairment. It includes the Group's share of losses from
associated undertakings and jeint ventures. Underlying EBITDA is calcuiated as EBITDA before the
effects of IFRS 16, realised foreign exchange gains / losses in selling and administration costs, profit /
loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic invastments and properties.

Group Operating Costs
Stweuks ondud 52 waeks smded

28 Apelt 2021 0 Apr 2030
tem teml
Graup operahing costs 11400 13530
Depreciation and omortsabon 54 145 3
Intangible impormant - 5%
|FRS 16 deprac|uton a21 1206
IFRS 16 disposal and o i of lease habilities 12371 {97
IFRS 16 reversal of fent expensa i 1273) 075t
RS 16 rewerstl of brerous Yebse provisian 1364 135 5}
Realised FX [ass/lg! 263 (34 5
Operaling incain 368 325
SELLING, DISTRIBUTION AND ADMINISTRATION COSTS 1380 14417

Group operating costs for the purposes of management reporting:

i. Excludes depreciation, amortisation and impairments of property, plant and equipment,

intangible assets and realised FX gains and losses; ard

ii. Includes other operating income.

Prinled on Stembers 100%% Recycled and Carbon Gaplured through U

FRASERS GROUP

Foreign Exchange And Traasury

The Group reports its results in GBP but trades
internationally and is therefore exposed to
currency fluctuations on currency cash flows
in various ways. These include purchasing
inventory from overseas suppliers, making
sales in currencies other than GBP and holding
overseas assets in other currencies. The Board
mitigate the cosh fHow risks associated with
these Hluctuations with the careful use of
currency hedging using forward contracts and
other derivative financial instruments.

The Group uses forward contracts that qualify
for hedge accounting in two main ways — to
hedge highly probable EUR sales income and

USD inventory purchases. This introduces a
level of certainty into the Group's planning and
forecasting process. Management has reviewad
detailed forecasts and the growth assumptions
within themn and is satisfied that the forecasts
meet the criteria as being highly probable
forecast transactions.

As at 25 April 2021 and as detailed in note 29¢
the Group had the following forward contracts
that qualified for hedge accounting under

IFRS 9 Financiol Instruments, mecning that
fluctuaticns in the value of the contracts before
maturity are recognised in the Hedging Reserve
through Other Comprehensive Income. After
maturity, the sales and purchases are then
valued at the hedge rate.

Currency Hadging againet Curmsney vatum Timing Rates
U5D / GRP USD Inventary pur-hases LSD 720m FY22 - F¥Y23 136 -141
UsD/EUR USD inventary purchases USD 120m FY22, FYad 121-131
£UR /GBP Eura sales ELR 240m FY23 059

The Group also uses currency options, swaps and spots for more flexi

ity against cash flows

that are less than highly probable and therefore do not qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS9
Financial Instruments. The fair value maovements before maturity are recognised in the Income

Statement.

The Group has the following currency options and unhedged forwards:

Currency Expected use

Currancy vaka Timing Rates

EUR / GRP

Ewrp sules

ELR 380m FY23 059

The Group is preactive in managing its currency
requirements, The Treasury team works closely
with senior management to understand the
Group's plans and forecasts, and discusses and
understands appropriate financial products
with various financial institutions, including
those within the Group Revolving Credit

Facility [RCF). This information is then used to
implement suitable currency products to align
with the Group's strategy.

Regular reviews of the hedging perfermance
are performed by the Treasury team alongside
senior management to ensure the continued
appropriateness of the currency hedging in
place, and where suitable, either implementing
additional strategies and / or restructure
existing approaches in conjunction with our
financial institution partners.

Woodhand Trust, helping to create new Batsh woodland across the UK

Given the potential impact of commodity prices
on raw material costs, the Group may hedge
certain input costs, including cotton, crude oil
and electricity.
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Toxation

The effective tax rate on profit before tax in FY21 was 1017.6% (FY20: 29.6%). This reflects the impact
of the increase in property impairments and disailowable depreciation.

Earnings
B3 wesks ppeded 52 wmaks ondnd
25 apsil 2025 26 April 1010 Chanae 1%)
Reported EPS [Bosinh 116 54 185 1185 21
Underlyng £PS (Basic) 11701 162 2049
Weighted averags numier of shores loctual] 501,955,281 505,876,890
Basic earnings per share {(EPS) is calculated by Strotegic Investments

dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary
sharehelders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial period. Shares held in Treasury and
the Employee Benefit Trust are exciuded from
this figure.

"The underlying basic EPS reflects the underlying pertarmance

of the business compared With the prior period Und 15 caltuloted

using the weighted average number of shures. & 15 vot o reroynsed

proht meotue under IFRS and may not be directly camparakie with

“adjusted” perfarmance menzures used by other companies Fuither
detusis con ke found in the Glossury

dends

The Board has decided net to pay a final
dividend in relation to FY21(FY20 £nil).

The Board remains of the opinion that it is

in the best interests of the Group and its
sharehslders to preserve financial flexibility and
facilitate future investments and other growth
opportunities. The payment of dividends
remains under review.

Cupital Expenditure

During the period, gross capital expenditure
{excluding IFRS 16) amounted to £219.4m [FY20:
£323.5m}, which included £84.3m on freehold
properties {FY20: £177.2m) and £48.5m on
warehouse automation (FY20: £31.1m).

20

The Group continues to hold various strategic
investments as detailed in Nate 20. In addition
the Group alse holds indirect strateqic
investments within contracts for difference and
options,

The fair values of the contracts for difference
and options are recognised in Derivative
Financial Assets or Liabilities on the Group
Balance Sheet, with the movement in fair value
recorded in the Income Staternent.

Acquisitions

On 22 August 2020, the Group acquired

the trade and assets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deerned to
be the fair value of the consideration. The
acquisition complements the Group's existing
gym and fitness club portfalio and is consistent
with the Group's elevation strategy. Goodwill
represents the premium tssociated with
advantageous site locations, potential growth
opportunities offered by economies of scale,
and the assembled workforee. The fair valua
adjustment to property, plant and eqguipment
relates to the management's assessment of the
price that would be paid for the gcquired assets
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the acquisition date. The leases
were gequired under shost-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease liability
has been recogrised on acquisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited,

the entire share capital of GRMNT Limited,
and the trade and assets of 18 Montrose for
consideration of £2.7m. These acquisitions
provide increased product offerings in

the Premium Lifestyle divisien. The fair value
adjustment to property, plant and equipment
relates to the recagnition of right-of-use assets
and lecse liab

Related Parties

MM Prop Cansultancy Limited, ¢ company
owned ond controlled by Michael Murray, who
is a memher of key management personnel
as per |AS 24, continues to provide property
consuitancy services to the Group, MM Prop
Consuitency Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the acquisition of new
sites it the UK, Europe ond Rest of the World
for both our larger format stores and our
combined retail and gym units, It also provides
advice to the Company's in-house property
team in relation to existing sites in the UK,
Europe and Rest of the World,

In the year all properties are assessed. Those
thot are consigered by the Group's independent
Non-executive Directors to have completed
development and be eligrble for review at the
year-end are assessed and if required valued by
an independent valuer who confirms the value
created by MM Prop Consultoncy Limited. The
Group's independent Non-executive Directors
then review and agree the volue created and
have full discretion to approve a payment to
MM Prop Consultancy Limited of up to 25% of
the value created. There is a current pipeline of

The analysis of net debt at 25 April 2021 and at 26 April 2020 was as follows:

FRASERS GROUP

properties that may be eligible to be assessed ‘
both pasitively ond negatively by the Group's
Non-executive Directors in future years.

In the current year £2.5m hos been accrued
based on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through contract exchange or completion

of sale {(FY20 - £nil provided and Enil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was fast paid
in relation to FY19}. This is payable to MM
Prop Consultancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the period the Group entered into an
agreement with M.P.M Elevation Limited, o
company owned and controlied by Michgel
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M.PM Elevation Limited will be paid an annual
fae of £0.1m it relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services.

Other related parties ore disclosed in note 34,
Cash Flow And Net Debt

Net debt decreased by £117.1m fram E£366.0m
at 26 April 2020 to £248.9m at 25 April

2021. Interest on bank loans ond averdrofts
decreased te £11,2m {FY20: £17.8m) largely due
to reduced usoge of the RCF in the period,

2 Apdt2en 2 April 1020

Emj {Em)

Cash and Mk equivi 4570 3340
Bewtowings (7% %) 1900 04
NET DEBT (2| {264.9)

The Group's Working Capital Facility is £913.5m (FY20: £913.5m). 1t is available until November
2021 and is not secured against any of the Group's assets. £847.5m of the facility is due to expire in

November 2022,

The Group continues to operate well within its banking covenants and the Board remains
comfortable with the Group's gvoilable headroom. Note: due to the timing of payroll and supplier
payments, net debt at calendar period end 30 April 2021 was approximately £350.0m (FY20:

approximately £408.0m).

o fOns
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CASH FLOW
Total movement is as fotlows:
52 weahs sndad 52 waeks ended
25 Apeil 2021 26Aprl 2020
ey ) lem)
Undarlying E8ITDA 39048 301
Realised FX lloss)/ gain 12631 b
Tanes paid 1843 14851
Maverment in inventory 993+ 11208)
Working apitol und other 233 $55
UNDERLYING FREE CASH FLOW AFTER WORKING CAPTAL N 2831
INVESTED IN:
Purthase of own shares 1431 14351
Dudend pad to nan-controlling mtgrest L) -
Purchnse of subsldianies, ne of cash acquired 1354} a3
Purt hase of Nsted investments - f13 3 2¢8)
Purchase of intunghbiss noy -
Purchasy of assoc iatas - {56l
Bracesds on disposal of investinents and devotives %51 ay
Procewds on disposal of intangibles 75 -
Net capilal erpenditurs 1198 B] (17051
Exchange movement on cash hulances 15 3) 50
Invesiment incorne recerved 05 25
Finance mcome recervad less financa costs pard (10.8) 15
DECREASE IN NET DERT m s
M Tivs tubla excludss the impuct of IFRS16
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Significant balance sheet items are shown below:
28 Apell 2031 6 April 1020
tem ml
Praperty, plant and equipment . 9532 . 1041y
Righ! of yse nssets 97 087
Long-term hnanciol assets 2613 838
Inventory 1096 8 1158 3
Trade ond other teceivahbles 5465 4142
Provisans - (1612) 1336.0]
Trade ang ot her payubles 1646 3 1602 5t
Laosa fiabilties ’ k) (6241

The majority of the decrease in property, plant and equipment relates to the impairments of freehold
land and building and plant and equipment due to the Covid-19 pandemic and factors such as
changes in consumer behaviour.

IFRS 16 right of use assets have decreased largely due to impairments. Lease liabilities have
increased largely due te remeasurements during the period.

Long-term financial assets have increased during the period due to the additions of Hugo Boss AG
and Mulberry Group plc.

Inventory has decreased lorgely due te o reduction in inventories held within the Rest of World
segment,
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Receivables includes a £118.3m reimbursement asset in relation to the Group's ongoing non-UK
tax enquiries (FY20: £118.3m) and £131.0m relating to deposits in respect of derivative financial
instruments [FY20: £71.3m) with the increase mainly retating to Hugo Boss.

Provisions have increased mainly due to an increase in property provisions as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic.

Payables have increased lergely due to rent payments under negotiation as o result of the Covid-19
pandemic, :

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
Significant balance sheet items are shown below: '
25 April 2021 16 Apdl 2020
tem) . m
dnwesbments 14549 12358
Debtors 1666 &6 8
Creditars, ameunts falling due within cne year (609 0} (9015}

investments relates to investments in subsidiaries and long-term financial assets. The majority of the
increase relates to additions due to a recrganisation of our US businesses and purchases of physical
shares in Mulberry Group pk and Hugo Boss AG.

The majority of the movement in debtors relates to an increase in collateral te cover margin
requirements for derivative transactions held with counterparties,

Creditors relates to amounts owed to Group undertakings, the decrease relates to subsidiary
dividends declared during the period.

Chris Wootton

Chiel Finoncial Officer

5 August 2021

g to creati now Britsh woodiang across the UK
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FRASERS GROUP

WORKERS' REPRESENTATIVE REPORT

1 have now been the Workers' Representative-

NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The table below sets out where the information required by sections 414CA and 414CB of the and places its people at the forefront of any *

Companies Act 2006 can be found in this Annual Repart.

Requirement

Lecatian

Rajayant Pol

Envirapmentul Matlers

ENWRONMENT — pages 26 to 27

Laray

rental pelicy

HUMAN RESOURCES - puge 23

Stuft Hondbook Employuse Data

and Non-executive Girector for aver two
years. The role has been challenging given the
pressures of the Covid-19 pandemic. However,
it is immensely rewarding and | remain proud
to be representing my calleagues at Frasers

SUCCEesSes,

This year, despite the shift to working virtually,
I rernain fully invelved in all Board and strategy
meetings, giving fresh insights and perspectives

Empl Pr State e . . . .
Mplayess STAFF INVOLVEMENT - poge 62 et e Group. an decision making, and my relationship with
Socigl Mttars® COMMUNITY INVOLYEMENT - page 75 the other Board members has gone from

Humon @ahts SUPPLY CHAIN - page 25 Ant.-Slgvary and Hurnan Tralficking With the contirivious lackdewns ond the strength to strength. | continue to be involved

Anti-Bribery & Cormption paiy

MODERN SLAVERY ACT 2015 - poga 75

Palicy

ANTHBRIBERY & CORRUPTION - page 25
WS ILEBLOWING - page 25

Busingss Modsl

Princisat Risks and Businuss Ackvity

BUSINESS MODEL - page 16

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE
GROUF'S BUSINESS = poges 30 ta 16
VIABILITY STATEMENT - poge 26

Non-Financial Key Parformance indicators

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - page 12

Handioak Auti-Brbecy &

iowang Pulicy

Code af Condudt / Suputy Paley

Risks Register ond Pancipal ks
Profle Customer Doto Privacy Policy

Dato Ret

1o Pality

* We continually wark to ansure thot we imprave w this sector Our pokey 15 net formalised ol

30

- Further inforrnation is provided within the Group's ESG Report on poge 23,
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wvidence of whot we do can be logeted on poges 2110

uncertainty the Covid-19 pandemic has brought
during the past year to the Group, pratecting
our colleague’s wellbeing and maintaining
consistent, transparent communication have
been wtal. | continue to have full control and
ownership of o confidential whistleblowing
hotiine for retaif colleagues, as well as the stoff
welfare portal, where every colleague has the
cpportunity to anonymously raise any concerns
or gueries that they may have. | operate with
complete transparency and any findings from
these platforms are shared with the rest of
Board. .

As part of my role as the Workers
Representative, | have collaborated with our
Troining team and the Retail Trust to sofeguard
the welibeing of our colleagues. Using the
most frequently asked questions from the
staff portal, the Retail Trust's psychologists
and counsefiors have used their expertise to
answer our colleague queries. We have run
regular webinars and discussed financial
support, emotional support and coping
mechanisms for all Frasers colleagues during
the Covid-19 pandemic. Each webinar was
recerded and made available acrass all of our
communication piatforms,

Furthermore, I am pleased to confirm that
despite the evident challenges that the
Covid-19 pandemic has brought, we are
currently implementing poy reviews for our
retai! teams, demonstrating the volue and

faith we place it our peaple. ln addition to this,
we have launched cur 'Fearless 1000’ bonus
scheme where some of our coileagues have

the potentiol to be rewarded with life-changing
bonuses. | am proud to represent my colleagues
and o business that rewards its people so highly

s aoross the TIK

in all decisions and correspondence regarding
sofe systems of work to maintain good Covid-19
practices at our worehouse, offices and stores.

Whilst we navigate the year ahead and the
chailenges it will undoubtedly bring, | hope |
can continue to make a positive difference at
Board level to ensure that our people continue
to be at the heart of all business decisions, and
to help drive our Elevation No Limits strategy
forward.
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FRASERS GROQUP

ESG REPORT

Our People

We ermploy more than 25,000 people ucross
the Group, Despite the challenges saised by the
Covikd-19 pandemic, during FY21 we continued
to enhance many aspects of how we manage
our people, to ensure that those who work

hard and want to be challenged can excel and
quickly progress within Frasers Group.

Culture And Values

Having the right culture is critical to sustainable
business success. We want our colleagues to
feel valued and engaged, and to have a culture
that helps us to attract, retain and develop
talent to create our future leaders.

This year, we worked with a specialist
consultancy te develop an employer value
proposition for the Group. As part of this we
looked to understand how our peogpte perceive
our culture, including our unique strengths

and where we can improve. Interviews with
people at alt levels of the business showed

that we have a culture of acting fost and
without hesitation, and where people rise to the
challenge and are valued for their contribution.
We see strength in difference, offer the
potential to progress and develop strong joyalty
ameng our people.

Areas for improvement included the need for
better communication, more focus on work-life
balance and clear objectives. We have already
begun to address these matters, including
establishing an internal communications team.
Qur Your Company, Your Voice’ portal aiso
supports engagement and cemmunication,
allowing our people to raise questions and
concerns with the Workers Representative, with
the respenses then published. Cther initiatives
this year include our new performance
management precess (see below) which
includes objective setting, Following a return to
the office under Covid-19 guidelines, we have
clso introduced 'Frasers Fridays', so head office
colleagues can request to work from home on
Fridays.
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> Recyeled and Carbon Captured through the Woodinnd Trust,

Drawing on cur people’s responses, we have
defined the core values that underpin how we
work. These are:

«  Own it and back yourself
*  Don't hesitate and act with purpose

*  Think without limits cnd take the team
with you

We haove communicated these values across
the Group and use them in our recruitmént,
performance management and reward
schemes {see below), We will continue to
embed them going forwards.

The project elso enabled us to define our
employer vulue proposition, For our existing
talent, this is about being trusted to perform.
For future talent, Frasers Group is for the
fearless’.

Retention’

We aim to hire the most telented and capable
individuals across our sector, and to retain their
valuable knowledge and experience within the
Group. During FY21, 29% of our UK salaried
colleagues left the Group which is consistent
with FY20,

Stare Manager stability within Sports Direct

is currently sitting at 84%, this is a decrease

of 1% compared to FY20. Assistant Manager
stability currently sits at B7%, an increase of
2% compared to FY20. Footwear Manager
stability currently sits at 94%, an increase of 6%
compared to FY20,

A significant proportion of our people have
been furloughed ot various times in FY2%, in
particular when store closures have been
mandated, Use of the furlough scheme has
enabled us to retain people within the business,
while accessing Government support when our
stores have not been able to trade.

Divarsity And Inclusion

We believe diversity plays an important rote
in a successful business. We strive to ensure
thot our pecple reflect the diverse cultures and

0 Croale new

values of cur customer base. We endeavour to
provide equal eppertunities, recruit those with
the best skills and capabilities for the role and
to ensure that training, career development and
prometion opportunities are available to all.
We will not tolerate discrimination on grounds
of gender identity, sexual orientation, race,
nationality, religion, oge, disability or any other
grounds.

We endeavour to meet our responsib
train and employ disabled people. Applications

for employment by people with any disability
are given full and fair consideration for all
vocancies and are assessed in accordance with
s. People who have a first
language other than English are important to
our business. We provide free English langucge
lessons, to help them participate and be
successful in our workplace and more broadly
as citizens. Since their introduction in January
20177, 248 colleagues have cttended these
classes,

The table below shows the gender diversity of our workforce at the year end. Approximately 53% of
our workforce is female, including 35% of our senior management [FY20: 32% UK workforce). We aim
to ensure that both male and female candidates are provided with equal opportunities to apply for

and work in all positions across the Group.

Femula Male
Dectars 25% 5%
Other senior managars 5% £5%
Other smployess 53% A%

Gender Pay Gap

Our gender pay gap report for 2020 was
published in August 2021. We are pleased to
report that we have maintained a 0% average
gender poy gop across the Group over the
past three years compared to 6.3% in 2017.
We attribute this chonge to a continued focus
on reviewing and applying our pay structures
consistently across the business, We recognise
there is a difference in total earnings between
female and male colleagues. We are therefore
continuing to explore and implement methods
that will establish enhanced processes and
training tools for our employees and engaged
workers to achieve maximum earning potential
through our various bonus and commission
schemes,

Talent And Capability Development

We invest withcut limit in people who show the
potential to be future managers and leaders,
and whe can drive the elevation strategy.
Haeme-grown talent is key to us and many of
our management and senior positions are filled
through internal promections.

To inspire our home-grown talent, we offer
existing colleagues the chance to take
apprenticeships, including obtaining relevant

sty woodiand ncross the UK

external qualifications. Over 100 cofleagues
have started apprenticeships since May 2020,
learning about topics such as customer service,
HR, finance, IT, warehouse management and
various levels of retail management. We have
also recruited new people into apprentice
positions within IT and are looking ot extending
this to other areas of the business.

We ran our first early careers programme for
graduates this year, with 27 people joining

our commerciol function through the Frasers
Group Elevation Programme, This two-year
programme will create the future leaders for
that part of the organisation and enable the
highest performing porticipants to earn up to
£680,000 in their second year or to enter other
areas acsoss the commercial team. The trainee
commercial managers {TCMs) started with an
intensive three-week orientation, covering the
Group's purpose, strategy and culture as well
as all aspects of the commercial division and
the essential skills required. The TCMs also took
part in a three-day business simulation, te learn
how their decisions affect other areas of the
business.

The 2020 intake aiso has a dedicated Early
Careers Manager wha is responsible for their
learning and development, running frequent
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professional conching and mentoring sessions
to ensure they dre gettina the most out of the
programme and supperting them in alt areas
of the role, The Early Careers Manager also
supports the entire commercial team to ensure
the programme runs effectively. The Frasers
Tearn has been on hand to shift the structure
and scope of the programme to fit in with the
business's strategy throughout the Covid-19
pandemic and make sure alf the relevant
learning needs are accounted for. A second
cohort of people will join us in September 2021
and we will look to recruit for other parts of
the Group in future. We also continue to run
placement years for undergraduates, primarily
within JT.

Managing performance is essential for
identifying key talent and helping aur
collengues to uchieve their growth potential.
We have therefore introduced our Fearless
Focus performance reviews which went live

for head office colleagues in March 2021 and
will be rolled out across the business. We have
identified compatencies against which to judge
perfarmance and will also assess behaviours
against the values described above, Each
function’s objectives will filter down to the
objectives for individuals and provide clear
expectations about performance. We will also
generate development plans, so colleagues
can improve in their current roles or fulfil their
aspirations to progress, in conjunction with our
succession planning.

L ing And Devel &

Ensuring our teams have the knowledge

they need to perform at the highest level is
paramount to the continued success of the
business. While we have had to adapt our
appteach to learning and development during
the Covid-19 pandemic, we are josking forward
to resuming regular in-person training when
possible, as port of a blended approach. Gur
Shirebrook teaining centre is state of the art and
is supported by our brand partners Mike, Puma
and Adidas who have their own environments
in the ¢ampus. The facilities offer an unrivalied
training environment, which alengside the
Shirebrook store, give tolleagues the perfect
mix of classroom and on-the-job training.
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We offer a varied portiolio of troining options
for our teams. The training and development
portfolio continues to grow and includes brand
and product knowledge, customer service,
management training and induction, as well
as our apprenticeship courses and free English
lessons,

In FY21, we started to develop a new learning
management system (LMS) on Netex's Learning
Cloud platform, This went live to selective
groups in early 2021 with the aim to roll out to
all UK employees by the end of the calendar
year. Learning Cloud is industry leadling in size
and scope, showing the impertance we ploce
on the continued learnings of our colleagues,
it contains @ blend of interactive e-learning
medules, videos and documents on specific
skills and copobilities, os well as allowing us

to create bespoke content and digital events.
The systern will give managers the option to
recommend further training to their teams
and to report on engagement, which will

allow us to understand the uptake of training
and to monitor completion of any mandatory
courses. Learning Cloud is eosily aceessible
and is compatible with PC's, laptops, tablets
and mobile phones, gving every employee the
option of how they wish to absorb their training.

While the Covid-19 pondemic has reduced
the epportunity for face-to-face training, we
hove stepped up the use of online platforms.
This has included our Feariess Fortnights,
where we record a webinar every two weeks
on o specific topic. Exarnples include webinars
on performance reviews and on improving
communication skills.

AndR q

R, ot

We foster o reward-based cuiture that enables
our colleagues to share in the Group's success.
In the UK, our policy is to pay abave the
Natianal Minimurn Wege, including rates that
are ahove the National Living Wage for people
aged over 25. We offer bonus schemes and
incentives depending on the role and the fascia,
and colieagues receive discounts across all
fascias.

The Fearless 1000 incentive scheme aligns the
interests of our people and our shareholders.
Colleagues can be awarded points for

their performance by feaders across the
organisation, including for living our values. The
scheme runs far four vears and if o £10 shore
price target is reached for 30 consecutive days,
it will result in on oword of shares or a cash
equivalent for the top 3,000 people, with the top
ten receiving an award equivalent to £lmat a
share price of £10 on vesting. The scheme atso
includes a cash reward for all other colleagues
outside of the top 1,060 people based on their
length of service with the Group.

We have also introduced the Frasers
Champions recognition scheme, which aliows
people to nominate colleagues for an award
for demonstrating our values. The strongest
neminations each menth are champianed
across the business and receive an additicnal
month's pay. As at April 2021, 72 pecple had
received an award. ‘

In addition, the intraduction of the Fearless
Focus performance reviews described abeve
will suppart the move to a more structured and
robust performance-related pay review process.

Casual Workers

We strive to ensure our arrangements for casual
staff are fair and equitable. Al casual workers
are paid the same rates as full-time employees
in the same role. We promote stability in
working hours, while our casual workers also
benefit from the flexibility to decline shifts at
any time. This flexibility also benefits the Group,
enabling us to adjust staffing levels to cope with
peak times and quieter periods.

Casual workess are also included in the Fearless
1,000 bonus scheme.

rnn_.r And Safety

As the Group grows, we have continued to
increase our focus on consistently implementing
health and safety measures and evalugting our
safety performance. We implament our pelices,
in conjunction with legal standords, fo protect
our colleagues and customers.

FRASERS GROUP

During the year, the Group introduced a
new improvement tearn, responsible far
enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness
of our eperations at Shirebrook. This team
is reviewing all processes across the site and
pulling together contributions from different
teams, including health ond sofety. This has
the potential to further improve our sofety
performance at Shirebrook.

In FY20 we implemented a new sccident

and incident reporting system, replacing
paper-based reporting with an online system
accessible from ali our stores and businesses,
We are how reviewing the potential to
implement a more integrated system, which
will link to claims and capture the information
required by our insurers.

Appropriate heclth and sofety training is vital
and we have focused this year on training the
store management teams, This training covers
all aspects of in-store safety, from testing

fire alarms to carrying out evacuations and
reporting incidents. The Covid-19 pandemic has
limited the number of people who have been
able to take this training in FY21 and we are
looking to introduce a digital format to speed
up the roll-out ond make the training more
engaging.

The majority of in-store health and safety
incidents relate to customer trips and falis. The
elevation programme is helping to reduce this,
by providing more space in store isies and an
elevated shopping experience.

Health And Safety Performance

All RIDDOR incidents are recorded and are
reportable to the local authority. The health
and safety team meet the Derbyshire lacal
guthority with responsibility for Shirebrook on
a quorterly bosis and work closely with other
authorities when required. Ali accidents and
incidents are investigated in a timely manner
and warehouse RIDDOR incidents are reviewed
during these meetings.

During FY21 there were no fire, local authority
or environmental enforcernent actions or
prosecutions and no work related fatalities.
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FRASERS GROUP

Wellbeing

Colleague wellbeing is always a focus for

us and has become even more important
during the Covid-19 pandemic. We continua
to partner with Retail Trust, which provides

all Frasers Group colleagues with access

to free and confidential wellbeing support.
Retaii Trust offers advice, financial assistan-e,
face-te-face and telephone counselling,
cognitive behavioural therapy, non-repayable
grants, career development support, legal
guidance and on-site critical incident support,
The helpline is available 24 hours a day, seven
days a week.

To ensure our people know what support is
cvailable through Retail Trust, we have elevated
our communications during the Covid-19
pandemic. This has included webinars and
education sessions for managers, so they ar=
aware of what is available, as well as sacial
media messaging and other communicatiors
for colleagues. This has resulted in a noticecble
uplift in use of the Retail Trust service.

Human Rights And Modern Slavery

We are committed to respect and equal
treatment for all people.

We recognise that modern slavery is an
“ongeing challenge for organisations, especiclly
those dealing in consumer goods, and we
remain committed to addressing this risk.
Ultimately, we strive to ensure that no slavery
or human trafficking takes place within our
business or supply chain. We have poficies in
ploce aimed at preactively identifying and
mitigating these risks. These policies aim to
send a ¢lear message that we do not tolerate
these practices.

We have a range of tools in place including
videos and literature to educate colleagues
about their rights and a number of
communication channels, including an internal
telephone hotline and comments boxes on site,”
for repofting any feedback or concerns. Anyo e
making a report can remain anonymous if they
choose. We alsc continue to review and develsp
our colleague training, monitoring processes
and evaluation of outcomes, and work with

cur employment agencies and other relevant
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baodies, including the Gangmasters and Labouwr
Abuse Authority and the police, to support our
training and knowledge.

If we find, or suspect, that any organisations or
individuals are participating in modern slavery
we will take immediate action. Accordingly,

we have a policy of reporting any suspicious
activity to the police, which has historically
assisted in successful convictions, Our 554
Modern Slavery Act statement can be found on
our website www.frasers. group.

Developing Our HR Function And People
Policies

Woe are investing in the structure and capability
of our HR function, to enable it to effectively
support the Group as it continues to grow.

As part of this, we are reviewing our people
policies and the way that they govern our
people’s behaviours, as well as the appropriate
mechanisms we need to have in ploce to
ensure complience. This will allow us to take

u more preventative approach to instances of
non-compliance.

Cur main focus for policies under review
includes cttendance manogement, maternity/
paternity/parental leave, performance
capability and redundancy, A significant and
positive change will be the maternity policy
for our casual workers where they will remain
engaged with us throughout their maternity
leave period.

Community And Charity

We are committed to engaging with the local
and wider communities around our stores and
our offices in Londoen and Shirebrook, and we
aim to minimise ony detrimental impact on
them.

Our Sports Directory subsidiary has been a
specialist suppiier of sports equipment to the
education sector for over 25 years, and part of
the Frasers Group since 2016. Sports Directory
plays a key role in giving back to scheols in
the UK and helping to keep our young people
fit ond healthy, often giving children their

first experience of team sports. Through its
‘My Schoel scheme, schools purchase sports
equipment from the business and Sparts

Directory gives them the opportunity to claim
a voucher worth 25% of every purchase. To
date, Sports Directory has issued over 42,000
vouchers to UK schools, which equates to
more than £3.2 million worth of free sports
equipment. Sports Directory has also, via the
Professional Footballer's Association, donated
free equipment to 72 football league clubs.

In addition to Sports Directory, we support the
development of grass roots talent in tennis vio
Slazenger. We have donated over £350,000 of
tennis equipment to scheols and tennis clubs
via the Slazenger Academy. The Academy is
supported by Tim Henman, as well as the All
England Tennis Club.

Closer to the Shirebrook campus, we donated
winter clothing to Nottinghamshire YMCA,
which was distributed to homeless peogle in
the local community. Store managers also
contribute to their local communities. An
example of this is in Aberdeen, where the store
has in previous years worked alongside a local
hospital to denate presents to the staff. Due to
the Covid-19 pandemic, this was not possible
this year, so instead the store donated to alocal
food bank.

Frasers has also worked on a number of
initiatives to empower women in sport. The
highlights of this inciude working with Women
in Sport to supply kit for their “Daughters and
Dads” programme, which encouroges girls to
play more sport. The Group also sponsored
the "Driving Force” series on Sky Sports that
highlights the challenges foced by elite
sportswomen.

As discussed in the Chair's statement, on 15
June 2020, in England, we offered a 50%
discount to all NHS staff in owr Sports Direct
stores as a gesture of goodwill to these
fantastic individuals as our stores re-epened; it
was an overwhe{ming success with gross sales
of appreximately £50m before discount and
approximately £25m aofter discount.

and Carbon Cagturad through the Woodland Trust, helping o creats new Brtish wouadiand actoss the UK

Anti-Bribery And Corruption

The Group has an Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Policy in place, which was originally created
following the introduction of the UK Bribery
Act. As d result of the Act, all policies and
procedures were reviewed to ensure compliance
measures were put in place to mitigate staff
being offesed and / or accepting bribes. We
have a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and
corruption at Frasers Group, and we encourage
our people to speak-up if they have concerns
that bribery or fraud is taking place. No
instances of bribery, corruption or fraud have
been reported during FY21.

Due to the number of acquisitions into the
Group since 2018, the Group is reviewing policy
te ensure that the policy remuains effective.
The revised policy will be subject to Audit
Committee oversight.

Whistleblowing

The Group has an approved whistleblowing
policy and a number of processes operate
which support our policy including Your
Company Your Voice, our Retail Support Unit
Asset Protection hotline as well as a dedicated
whistleblowing e-mail address.

A policy review and revision process is ongoing.
Tire updated whistleblowing policy and related
processes will be subject to Audit Committee
reporting, approval and oversight on an
ongoing basis.
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ENVIRONMENT

We recognise that supporting and protecting
the environment is important to our
stakeholders and to the future success of our
business. We therefore look to be proactive

in making a positive contribution to the
environment, including through reducing

our energy use and greenhouse gas [GHG)
emissiens, minimising woste, moximising
recycling and considering how we can make our
products mare sustainable.

Frasers Group welcomes the introduction of
the Taskforce for Climate-related Financicl
Disclosures (TCFOj. We understand this i
an important step in tackling global ¢climate
change and we look forward to sharing our first
full disclesure in next yeor's Annual Report. As
part of this process we have engaged external
advisers to carry out a gap analysis to ensure
we are in a strong position to meet these
requirements, There is more to do and we have
already hegun identifying opportunities and
risks around climate change and are using
these findings to inform future strotegy.

Embedding Sustoinability

During FY21, we formalised our approach

to sustainahility in a number of ways. This
included creating o dedicated sustainability
function, which has been seeking out and
implementing projects that are beneficial to the
Group and the environment.

Towards the end of the 2020 calendar year, we
- formed a network of Sustainabifity Champions
under the sponsorship of the CFO. This
reflected our belief that the best way to embed
sustainability across the Group is to take
everyene on the journey with us. All colleagues
were given the apportunity to toke part ond we
received a significant numiber of applications
from around the business, demonstrating our
collengues’ interest in environmental issues.

The Sustainability Champions work within their
own deportments, using their unique knowledge
of their day-to-day roles to help make all

areqs of the business more sustainable, They
feed back to the newly formed Steering

Group, which has representatives from senior
management and key departments, including
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experts in retail, procurement, design, legal,

HR ond finance. The Steering Group set the
Greup's sustainability strategy and menitor aur
progress, as part of our wider ESG approach.
This will enable us to toke a more strategic
approach to environmental matters in the years
ahead.

Training for our Sustainabitity Champions has
been delayed due to the Covid-19 pandemic
but will take place as soon as practicable.
We intend to run workshops, bring in external
speckers and provide an oppartunity for our
Champions to share good practice and leorn
from each other.

Enhonting Energy Efficiency

The sustainability team's primary focus in the
year was ot reducing energy use ond GHG
emissions, primarily through behavioural
changes and best practice. The vast majarity of
our sites have smart meters, giving us live and
accurate data which is fed into a monitering
and alerts system. This allows us to take action
when usage issues are identified.

We continue to comply with the UK
Gavernment's Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting {SECR) and have identified key areas
where we cun make further energy reductions,
in particular energy usage in our stores and
efficient transport and logistics.

Improving the environmentaf performance

of our store portfolio is a significant focus for
us and presents the greatest opportunity for
associated costs sovings. For example, LED
light replacements resulted in a 52% energy
recfuction and rapid payback on their upkront
cost. All new light fittings are now LED and we
are rolling eut a programme of LED lighting
upgrades at a rate of two stores a week. We
have alse upgraded the external lighting at
Shirebrook to LED.

We have triglled replacing overhead door
heaters in stores with infrared heaters, which
are much more energy efficient. In our
Mansfield store trial, for example, we repiaced
three 12kw blow hecters with a single 3kw
infrared heater. However, store closures due to
the Covid-1% pandemic halted these trials and
we are awditing more data and feedback from

stare colleagues on the heaters' effectiveness,
before planning a full roll out.

In addition, we carried out desktop studies of
the feasibility of replocing air conditioning units
in our stores with more efficient units, While
these studies showed that retrofitting stores

is not cost effective, particularly for leasehold
premises, we are using more efficient units

in new stores. We continue to review the
practicality of replacing existing units, ot least
annually.

In suppert of the transition to a low-carbon
gconarmy, we have installed 18 electric vehicle
chargers at several points around our head
office which are pravided at cost to colleogues.

electricity supplied to all of our stores and
gyms is from 100% renewable sources. Cur
Shirebrook distribution centre electricity is from
a local independent power supplier, which
supports the grid during the tronsition to a
green natwork and a zero-carbon economy.
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The Group's truck fleet all meet the Eure

& standard and we use an engine fugl

additive te further reduce emissions, By using
containgr optimisation, which maximises the
amount we can get into a containar, we save
approximately 0.6315 tonnes of carbon per
forty foot container. Therefore, since 2013, we
have cut our transport impact by approximately
26,473 tonnes of carbon. That is equivalent to
31,478,002 kilometres of lorry travel or 787 times
around the world.

We work with our factories and third-party
brands to optimise eur container space and
recluce the number of containers shipped, to
ovoid fuel waste caused by 'shipping air. Our
freight forwarders continue to work hard to
condense shipping and to compare the impact
of different transport modes, such as rail or
rood.

All parcels we send to customers via OPD are
carbon neutral and we receive a certificate
each quarter settin-—g out the GHG emission
sovings as o result, During the year we sent
56,572 parcels via DPD, saving 24,275kg of CO2,
the equivalent to planting 93 trees.

woothand across too L
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Waste And Recycling

Reducing waste and maximising recycling is
another importent area of focus for us and we
have a target to send zero waste to landfill from
our UK operations by 2025, We are planning to
lack at targets for the rest of the world once our
UK waste streams are managed as efficiently as
possibile.

Qur approach te managing each of our waste
streams is set out below.

Cardboard

Sorting our recycling into different streams at
our Shirebrook warehouse aliows us to facilitate
the recycling of approximotely 95% of our
cardboard.

We are g AAA producer of caordboard waste,
which means that we produce clean, bigh
density bales of a consistent quality. This
attracts a high buy-back price and ensures we
are a preferred supplier when demand is low
90% of our cardboard is reprocessed in mills in
the UK by our recycling partner who we work
closely with to constantly improve recycling
rates. On average, we recycle around $00
tonnes of cardboard each month.

Paper

All office paper is mode from Steinbeis recycled
paper in partnership with the Woodland

Trust and recycled after use. Frem Jonuary to
December 2021, the partnership has created
3,363.36m* of mew native woodland in the UK to
remove 130,494kg of carbon dioxide.

Plastic

We have ¢ separate baling eperation

for plastic, which eliminotes end-of-bale
contamination. The plastic we produce on

site is high grade, making it very suitable for
recycling. Office plastics are also separated at
source ond recycled.

We aim to reduce single-use plastic within

the business as far as possible, such as tags,
pailet straps and packaging bogs, We are
working hard to identify the 'hotspots’ we need
to address first and actively procure more-
sustainabie aiternatives.
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Electrical Woste

IT waste is disposed of by a specialist
contractor who alse ¢leans any hard drives of
sensitive information where required.

The majority of electrical waste we generatza
is light bulbs and tubes which areloaded into
waste containers provided by Electrical Waste
Ltd and exchanged as required.

Fridges and freezers are collected by the
supplier, as required.

Occasional appliance waste is put in the scrap
metal bins for recycling.

Metal

We recycle scrap metal from Shirebrook and
our stores through a portnership with two iocal
companies. We are now sorting different grades
where possible, to facilitate a faster and more
efficient process.

General Waste

Every month, around 105 tonnes of dry

mixed recycling {non-sorted recyclables /
general waste) are baled from our Shirebroak
distribution centre, Once baled, the waste is
sent to a third party for recycling at cost to us.
This has reduced by approximately 45 tonnes
per month from last year, partly due to the
Covid-1% pandemic and partly due to better
separation of waste which ensures we can sell
mare of our own recycling.

Recyeling Initiatives In FY21

We continue to work on reducing waste and
increasing recycling. During the year, we have
communicated to all colleagues that our
expectation is for waste to be recycled. We
have supported this by replacing individual
bins at desks with recycling bins in offices to
sort woste at source, Food waste is also now
recycled. We are trialling waste segregation in
store, to further increase our recycling rates.

xunen_.m..._u Parformance

In FY21, we recycled 86% of the waste we
generated at our Shirebrook distribution centre
(FY20: 889%). This included:

+ 6,118 tonnes of cardbeard [FY20: 12,358
tonnes)

« 30 tonnes of waste paper [FY20: 27 tonnes)
+ 28BS tonnes of plastic [FY20: 623 tonnes)
+ 771 tonnes of metal (FY20: 778 tonnes]

+ 3,227 units of electrical equipment (FY20:
5,051 units)

In FY21, we separated and directly recycled
7,558 tonnes (86%) of materials. A further 1,241
tonnes {14%) of mixed waste was collected by
specialised recyclers.

This compares to FY20 where we separated
and directly recycled 10,200 tonnes (88%) of
materials and sent away a further 1,517 tonnes
[12%) of mixed waste to specialised recyclers,

The recycling rate has stayed broadly
consistent year on year but the absolute
quantity of waste produced and recycled this
year is down significantly due to store closures
because of the Covid-19 pandemic. There was
therefore much less stock coming into the
warehouse and no waste cerning back from
stores during the country-wide lockdowns.

Product Design And Sourcing

We continue to explore ways to enhance the
sustainability of our products. Carrying out a
‘sustainability check' is now part of the design
and procurement process for ali new products’
to ensure we use the most sustainable materials
and processes for each line. We review
continuity products annually and refresh them
with G more sustainable material or process, if a
viable option exists.

For F¥22, our biggest sustainability project will
be to improve the sustainability of the products
we offer, looking at water use, chemicals,
carbon emissions and raw material production.

As part of this, we ore a founding signatory
of WHAP's (Waste and Resources Action
Programme} Textiles 2030 i tive, which

is designed to accelerate the fashion and
textiles industey’s shift towards circularity and
system change. Signatories wili collaborate on
carbon, water and circular textile targets, and
contribute to national policy discussions. To
help move our product improvements forward
WHRAP provides a scenario planning tool which
calculates environmental impocts such s woter
and energy saving benefits from swopping
materials or processes. We continue to look
for more recycled content in our products and
request a recycled content or reduced impact
option with every proposal from suppliers.

Improving Qur Packaging

We continue to work to reduce the volume of
packaging for our products and to increase
the recycled cantent of the packaging that
remains. For example, we use an auto-boxing
machine that cuts boxes to the exact size
required, substantially reducing the quantity
of card used. We continue to use 100%
recycled card for all our own-brand shoeboxes
and ail our card for packaging or labelling

is nen-lominated, for easier recycling and
piastic reduction. This required substantial
research and development to get the desired
quality and appearance, while minimising the
environmental impact.

The Group has joined the On-Pack Recycling
Label {OPRL) scheme, which ensures UK-wide
adoption of a simple recycling symbol system,
to help increase recycling rates. All the
packaging we have produced since Aptil 2020
has an GPRL symbol assigned and printed on it,
to help consumers dispose of it ot home within
the correct waste stream.

Qur new Sports Direct bag for life which is
coming in Summer 2021 will have B5% recycled
content, up from 70% recytled content in FY20.
We are alsc introglucing standard Sports Direct
carrier bags made from 100% recycled material
{80% post-consumer waste and 20% factory
waste) later in the year and oll fascias with a
plastic carrier will have ot least 30% recycled
content. Our plans to rell out these recycled
in-store bags have been delayed, as we use up
old stock due to store elasures because of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

and Carbon Capturad through the Woodland Trust, helpmg to create new British woodiand across the UK

N

Frasers stores will have an FSC certified
recycled grass paper bag.

Cur in-store hangers are now made from more
than 80% recycled polypropylene, replacing the
virgin plastic hangers we previously used,

Reducing Water Use

Reducing water usage in our estate is a focus
for us. We have begun installing woter-saving
Hippo blocks in toilets in our stores and at

the Shirebrook distribution centre. These save
around three litres of water per flush. The
installation in stores is taking place in line with
the onnual maintenance rota, meaning all
stores will be covered within 12 months.

Other Environmental Initictives

The Group is involved in a number of other
environmental initiatives,

Group subsidiary Gul Watersports has teamed
up with the Big Blue Ocean Cleanup (BBOC)
to be its officia! partner for the next 3 years.
The BECC mission is to drive positive change
towards clean oceans that support all rarine
wildlife and sustainable tiving.

The Eco baat operated by BBOC will be
conducting one of the biggest microplastic
surveys in the world by collecting vital
micropiastic data using manta nets, The
open-source data collected will be availcble to
Governments and groups across the world to
use for policy change. The team will also rescue
marine animals that have become trapped in
poliution.

Another huge part of BBOC's work is beach and
river clean ups, It provides equipment to help
volunteers clear beaches and rivers around the
world.

For Eartih Day 2021, we partnered with Trees for
Cities to support its work planting trees in wiban
communities and promote the health benefits
of spending time outdoors. ’

Frasers' donation aflowed it to plant 3,500 trees
on our behalf and supported work to improve
air quality in school playgrounds, as well as
teaching children to grow vegetables whilst
learning about where their food comes from.
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND
ENERGY CONSUMPTION

REPORTING PERIOD 1 May 1070 10 30 Apni 2071

BASTLINE YEAR™ Fr30
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The Group has engaged o third-party provider
to assess emigsions and energy consumption fer
the periods reported in these results.

Scope 1 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with the combustion of fuels ang
operation of any facility by the Graup. Scope

2 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with alectricity consumption by

the Group, as well as emissions from any
generoted electricity. The non~UK emission
factors are those published by |[EA and specific
to each country. Scope 3 GHG emissions are
calculated based on the purchased quantities

ik retol”, reraing previous estimotes

of commercial fuels, using published emission
factors for the Weli to Tank (WTT} impact

and edditionally from metered electricity
consumption and published emission factors for
the Tronsmission & Distribution (T&D) aspect of
the delivered utilities.

CO2 equivalent factors are used, which ensures
we have reported on all of the emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006
Reguiations. Con--sumption considers all
Group comparnies and ne adjustments have
been made ta compardtives for prior periods
for subsidiaries newly acquired in the period,

The Group's CO2 emissions and supporting metrics are detailed in the following table:

Yuur Fn Frig
Scope 1€02 emissions [tonnes] LA 20987
Scope 2 GO2 ervssions (manket based] Nonnes) 4260 o863
Scope 3 hOu. eusstons fionnes) 6359 2550
"Totol Scope 1.1 and & emusions {ionhes! 45,758 96,695
£0Z ermssiors thannes) / Em turnover 137 M4
01 mrussions vs Turnover Index (2030 = M50} 561 o0

&5.4% of Scope 1 and 2 emissions relate to the UK and UK offshore areas.

The table below shows the Group's energy consumption. Scope 1 consumption relates to the
consumption of fuet ond consumption from facilities cperated by the Group.
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This excludes consumption frem refrigerants
due to the cost of data collection, although
this is expected to be negligible in comgarison
to the Group's total consumption. Scope 2

consurption is based on the omounts of
efectricity purchased through the period, as well
as heat and steam the Group generates for its
own use.

Year Frac FY20
Scope 1 consumption [kWh) 95479574 101.337897
Sgope 3 consulnphon (vh) 205,650,426 276618554
Total $eope 1 and 2 consumptions [kWhi 30\130,020 377,956,881

The Covid-12 pandemic hos brought about significant emission reductions.

The table below shows energy consumption for the UK and UK offshare areas only:

Yuar lazdl £
Scope 1consumphian (kWhl 79342651 BG 667,17
Scope 2 consurnption [KWh) 141507.624 195,475,533

[kwhy 20845275 376143250

Tota! Scope 1 and # consumplio

Frasers Group is cormmitted to responsible
energy management and sustainability, which it
practises throughout the organisation where it
is cost effective to do so.

During the reporting year the Group has
implemented the following energy and carbon
efficiencies across the arganisation to ensure
that energy consumption and associated
emissions are reduced:

- Each Retail site in the UK hos been set a
weekly target for consumption, The actual
consurnption versus the Target has been
reported on a weekly basis using the half
hourly data from the previous week, in
a league table format. Any Retail sites
censuming mare than target have been
contacted and given guidance on actions to
take to bring consumption down. This has
been part of a wider project to influence
behaviour, by communicating the process
of controlling Retail consumption, ena °
daily basis. When Frasers Group returns to
"business as usual’, there is an indication
and expectation that consumption will have
reduced by 10% due to the acticns token
during the previous 12 months versus the

- FY20 baseline;

- We cantinue to upgrade fluorescent lighting
to LED. For the Retail sites all opportunities
ta replace lighting during a refit were taken
and the resulting consumption has reduced
by . 52% for those sites that have had a full

refit of lighting to the latest LED technology.

- The number of face-to-face meetings with .
colieagues and suppliers hos reduced
through the increased availability of video
conferencing thereby reducing the amount
of bravel and further reducing Frasers Group
carbon footprint.

- We are Implementing mini Building
Management Systerns that are highly
flexibile based on commen industry
standards ond provide excellent energy
savings;

- We are using additional submetering within
sites and properties to improve real time
energy cansumption and promote granular
in-depth review of facility energy data;

- Heating and Ventilations systems are
undergoing trials that include retrofits to
improve energy efficiency; and

- We are implementing voltage optimisation
projects that provide cost effective solutions |
and deliver optimised supply voltage.

A number of other enerqy efficiency meosures

are under consideration for implementation
during the next reporting yeat.

_
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Environmental Policy

During FY21, we defined an environmerital
policy for the Group. This sets out our
commitments to:

» have robust and transparent reporting cnd
governance of erwironmental issues

*  minirmise our carbon dioxide emissions

+  reduce waste, so we meet our target of zero
waste to landfill by 2025

«  consider the enviranmental impact of our
supply chein, and

»  work with partners to enhance
environmental performance.

The policy will be shared with suppliers clong
with our regulor terms and provided to new
colleagues upon induction,

Our newly formed Steering Group will ensure
the palicy is implemented as part of business
as usual. This will be supported through regu ar
tracking and reporting of targets and with

the engagement of a third porty energy and
carbon reduction specialist.

The policy is further supported by our
commitment to initiatives such as WRAP's
‘Textiles 2030’ which obliges us to measure and
report our progress annually.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that, during FY21 they
consider they have acted in good faith, and in
the way that would be most likely to promote
the success of the Group for the benefit of

its members as a whole having regard to the
stakshelders and matters set out in s172{1{a)-(F}
of the Compenies Act 2006.

This statement sets out the matters considered
under each subsection of 5172(1) (a]-{F) and
provides cross references to where further
information can be found in the Annual Report.
Details of some key decisions taken have also
been provided.

The Likely Consequences Of Any Deacision In
The Long Term

The Directors are mindful that any decisions
they make now can, have possibie lang-
term consequences. The Directors take into
consideration the strategy, purpose, values
and culture when making decisions, During
the year the Directors have made decisions
based on Board papers, presentations from
senior executives, information documents,
and discussions with external advisors.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Board commissioned o report on the
culture of the Group. The outcome from
this was three key principles, set out below,
which will enhance the Group's journey

in enabling colleagues to implement the
etevation strategy long term.

«  Own it and back yourself;

- Don't hesitate and act with purpose.

- Think without limits and take the team
with you;

¢. The Interests Of The Company's Employees

Details of initiatives and .m:mamm_sm:n with
our cclleagues is set out in the Our people
report and the Directors’ Report.

Principal Deciston/Steps: During the year
the Group introduced the Fearless 1000

woodiand across {he UK

Bonus scheme which was approved by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM and the
Frasers Group Efevation Programme to
attract the best talent to the Group.

The Nead To Foster The Company's Business
Relationships With Suppliers, Customers
And Others

Details of the Company's business
relationships with suppliers, customers,
regulators and lenders are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Principal Dacision/Steps: The Directors have
worked closely with suppliers and banks
during the Covid-19 pandemic to ensure
thot the Group remains in the best possible
financial situation. The Elevation No Limits
strategy targets stronger relationships with
key brand partners, and this continues to
be a priority. Enhancements were made

to the retail websites to enhance customer
experience, due to the higher demand

for online purchases during the Covid-19
pandermnic.

Tha Impuct Of The C: y¥'s Operati

L

On The Community And The Environment

The ESG report details of the initiatives we
have undertaken in sustainability and the
community.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
discounts worth approximately £25 million
were offered to NHS staff working in our
local communities to recognise their
contribution in the Covid-19 pandemic. A
network of sustainability champions has
been set up across the business together
with a steering group which sets the ESG
strategy and monitors progress. The Board
has also adopted an Environmental Policy

" during the year.
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The Desirability Of The Company
Maintaining A Reputation For High
Standards OF Business Conduct

At all times we endeavour te adhere to
strict corporate governance stondards,

An external Board evaluation was carried
out during the year covering all aspects

of Board and committee performance,
Recommendations will be reviewed and
appropriate action plans put in place. The
Non-exequtive Workforce Director is another
method by which we are implementing
good corporate governance. Caolly Price
brings collecgue queries and concerns
directly to the boardraom for action by the
Board. Further details can be found within
the Workers Representative Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: Although an
external review is only required once every
three years, the Board has decided to
undertake yearly external reviews. Externat
advisors have been appointed to review the
Group's policies and ensure they reflect best
practice. Further details can be found within
the External Board Review.

Frinted on Steinbets 100%0 Heoyeled and Carbon Captured throuah the Wondiand 7§

9. The Need To Act Fairly As Between Members

©Of The Company

All members of the Campany hofd ordinary
shares which attach the some rights and
benefits. Shareholders are oble to raise

any queries through the investors Relations
emoil oddress. All investor presentations are
made available on the Group website for
shareholders to access. The AGM allows an
oppertunity for all shareholders to attend
ond ask questions of the Board. Following
the lifting of Covid-1% restrictions we intend
to revert to an in-persen AGM this year. This
will allow shareholders to meet face-to-face
with Directors.

Principul Decision/Steps: The re-
commencernent of the share buyback
proaramme has benefited atl shareholders
by increasing the percentage ownership
held by each investor by reducing the total
nurmber of outstanding shares.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Risk Management Framework

The Board has overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk management
and internal control. These systems are intended to monage, rather than eliminate, the risk of faling
to achieve business objectives, and they provide reasonobie but not absalute assuronce against the
risk of material misstaternent or financial loss.

The Audit Committee supports the Board with discharging its responsil es, under a delegoted
authority. The Chief Executive Officer has overall accountability for managing risks in the business,
and his dwect reports are accountable to him for effectively managing those risks within their remits,

The Group's risk management framework comprises o top-down and bottom-up approach to risk
identification, evaluation and mitigation. Principal risks are discussed and agreed by executive
management through the Compliance & Risk Group and by the Audit Committee on behalf of the
Board. The Board and/or its sub-committees discuss each principal risk ot least annually and recejve
presentations ond detailed risk reporting from risk owners on a cyclical basis, Risk owneys re-evaluate
principal risks in advance of each Compliance & Risk Group discussion. Any changes ore reported to
the Audit Committee, as part of our Group Risks Profile reporting.

The Compliance & Risk Group provides connectivity between executive management's
responsibilities for risk munagement and internal controls and the oversight roles of the Audit

Committee and the Board, It facilitates cross-functional discussion and colluboration across principal
risk areas and matters of internal control. It alse facilitates horizon scanning and emerging risk
discussions, challenges the appropriateness of internal controls and progresses their effectiveness.
The Compliance & Risk Group's activities are reported formally to the Audit Committee. Our Steering
Groups will also report formally to the Compliance & Risk Group, completing our governance
structure.
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Our approach to risk management:

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMIWORK

Boord § Audit Comimittes | Sub-commatess
Compliunce & Risk Group
Slesrmg Graups

THREE LINLS MODIL

First line Sacond lins Thisd Bne

Management

RISK
GOVERNANCE

inchudad sructurs,
appetite b weohartion

MONITORING &
ASSURANCE

COMMUNICATION
& TRAINING

& QUIDANCE

Principal risks are cascaded to operational
teams and central functions for discussion ard
actien on risk mitigations, as part of operatical
risk management activity. Operational risk
management facilitates the elevation of risks
to the Compliance & Risk Group, for onward
reporting to the Audit Committee. We continue
to elevate our operational risk activity s part
of our risk management roadmap for FY22 ard
we have put plans in place te focus on this in
the next period.

N

o C

CONTROLE

Intarmal Audit

ASSURANCE

During the period, the Audit Committee, on
behalf of the Board, has:

» undertaken a full review of the Group risk
register;

* received reports on the continued
development of the risk management
framework, including risk appetite
parameters and internal controls definitions;
and

» received risk owner presentations, detailed
risk reporting and summery update
reporting on the Group's principal risks
profile, for further discussion and challenge.

The key elements of the Group's internat control
framework are monitored throughout the year
in this way.

Board Review

The work of the Audit Committee and the
Internal Audit & Risk team has been presented
to the Board for discussion. The Board is
satisfied that the Group's systems of risk
management and internal control {including
financial, operational and compliance controls)
have operated effectively during the financial
period, up to and including the date of this
report, and no significant failings of internal
controf were identified during the period.

The Group is committed to continuously
improving its risk management framework and
methadology, in line with requlatory standards
and the Group's elevation strategy.

Assassment OF Principal Risks

We have carried out a robust assessment of
our principal and emerging risks in the period
and our principal risks profile remained largely
unchanged through the period.

We have continued to respond well to

the challenges presented by the Covid-19
pandemic. The effects of the pandemic on
economies and society at large have been more
prominent than expected. Whilst mandated
restrictions ore currently easing, travel is
opening up and the vaccination programme

in the UK continues at pace, new variants
continue to emerge. Uncertainty therefore
remains over the period of time needed to bring
the Covid-19 pandemic under control. As a
result, this risk remains a key focus for us.

During the period, we hove continued to

" respond te the pandemic by:

+  prioritising the safety of our people and
customers;

+ re-aligning our strategic response, to ensure
we are able to serve our customers;

+ evaluating the strength of our business on
all levels; and

= optimising opportunities for growth and
investment, to ensure we are well placed for
the period of economic recovery.

As a result, our operating performance has
remained robust. This risk has therefore been
evaluoted through the normal course of
reporting and in our viability statement, rather
than through seporate risk disclosure in this
period.

Brexit has presented some challenges to the
Grougp in respect of administration, planning
and logistics, but we do not currently consider
these to be material, Accordingly, our
evaluation of Brexit risk has reduced since

the prior period, though this remains part of
our engoing monitoring of broader glebal
macroeconomic conditions, events or political
factors. We will continue to menitar the full
effact of implementing the UK-EV) Trade and
Co-operation Agreement and the development
of the trading relationship with the EU.

ad lhrough the Woodland Trast. helping to create new Brish woodland across the UK

Environmental, social and governance

{ESG) issues feature more praminently in

our disclosures. Climate and sustainability
risks have remained an integral port of

our commitment to ESG and our business
operations, but have previously been
incorparated inte our broader disclosures

on corporate and social responsibility. With
increasing regulation and in recognition of the
potential significance of this emerging risk to
the Group in the future, we have enhanced our
reporting and have included this as a separate
principal risk for greater transparency.

The following risks and mitigations are an
extract from our principal risks profile and are
not presented in any order of pricrity. Principal
risks are those which we consider pose a threat
to our business model, future performance,
prospects or reputction.

Reference To Strategy

R Building excellent
relationships with the world's
ki best brands

W
Elevation in our digital
offering

Elevation of cur physical
stores

Enablers : People, Training,
Brand, Communication,
Systems, Automation, Data

Risk Trends

* Increasing

=3 Unchanged

« Decreasing .
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PRINCIPAL RISKS ,

Strategy

The Group continues to deliver its elevation strategy, which focuses on the brands we sell, our digital
offering and our physical stores. Our vision is to become the elevated multi-channel platform for
sportts, premium and luxury brands.

We continue to deliver well against all aspects of our strategy, during a challenging operating period.

s CONTROLY

- Tha Board ond semor ncnngament sat and pgree the Group Strotegy und undertoke both reguiar and detailed
annual reviews

Gur Graup 15 divarse in kerms of geagraphy ond proguct and execUtive manpgement 18 gishe 1o respond Lo stratege
W fail to deliver our appartunites ond cho 0 (ROXIMISS O @YEnent of DU s1/0T8 G AMBILIONS

steategy efficwntly - We Conbiue 10 evoluate strateqic brond acyusitians, 10 provide praduct gnd chdce 1n e with our brand strategy
affectivaly and en i hmely and ollractive locations Lo the stare extate

hosis, o we adopt the
wrong strategy, which
Impnets our long-tenn - Wemoniof our parlarmnce, Morkets and Compet
orowth, performente and ~  Qurstrang hoanc
ambitinn flow ord suppon

- Effectve monagement of aut property portloho supparts aur elevated difes

1 bn ant ongeing busis

cantrols, 1eportiog ond analysis help 10 optise resource allacations, maximise prafits and casn
1ent und eftactive stralegic delvery

- Wa perform bngomg research for

seghts 1nt consumer trands

- Dngoing internal and extermal communeotion of pur Stmtagic dueclion supports unaerstanding, angugemeart and
sffectve defivary

3z

Prntad on Stemnbers 100% Raeey

2¢) aned Carbon Captuad throunh the Woodiandg 7

FRASERS GROUP

Third-party Brond Relationships, Key Suppliers And Supply Chain M

Key brands, brand suppliers and major manufacturers are central to our business and elevation
strategy. Our strategic acquisitions and business model cim to bring attractive brands into the
Group, to suppert customer demand and cheice.

Our supply chain is international and is subject to stringent management of supply chain logistics
and working tapital, to ensure the flow of product in line with our strotegic ombition.

We have continued ta strengthen our brand and suppiier refationships during the pandemic,
demonstrating the strength of our business model and strategic performance. This also supports new
product availability, in line with our elevation ambitions.

RI3K CONTROLY

- The Graup hos g potcy o Tarqeng close long-term 1l Iups which ara d by our
commitmant ta product, elvsation and customar excelienca

W b to anage and - TN elevation stratagy torgers forging stpnger relutonshins with key brand panners aned this 15 on ongoing phonty

Teverage our supphat - Dedicated raohonship poriners anrd ang areuqh Laains suiport truly Integrated supplier
engugament .
Tha Group utibses twis lzading supsply chem companees to pracure much of its own: brand products A Group -uwared
supply chain anty further diverstus sk

roaducts for our busmass
UL e pyhr prce ang - Qur stack ievels supported our Gt

y ta trarde through 11 Covssl-19 pandermic and wa have cantinued ta sécure
guubty, nrd 1o meet or ongaing supplies, dus o the depth gad Leeadth of aur cormmertial relatiunships

#xrwiel! ouf CUTTemers - Supgliers sigh-p to the Grous's Suppiier Manual, h ¥ hables us to momitor and benchmark supp muhca
exgectatons Foilure 1o

Impate {ese ks Mg Strong senncs level agreements ure o o suppgrk an aflactive supaly than network

impott Gur elavatisn - Dur own-orand nvestment Largets consumer weads and complaments thied-pirty Lrands, SUppLering cansurmar

targets, perfarmance and thoce
song-teren growth -

infyencar portnesshos ond brand colluborolians pravide apporturtes lof own-brand growth

Elactranic Dot interface [EDI cupobilty mproves aur pracess
suppher engogement thimugh o dedicated swaplier porta!

1ancy theough the commercal cycle ond enfnces

dodkantt across th
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Es

Brexit or Globul Maucro-economic Conditions, Events {Pandemic) Qr Political Factors Treasury, Liquidity And Credit Risks

The global pandemic and Brexit are core aspects of this risk in the period under review, We also Shert, medium and Jong-term funding arrangements support our business operations and our ability

moniter global and national political chance on an ongeing basis, for impacts on our strategy and to meet our financial obligations and deliver our strategic ambitions.

supplier networks. These are external events and we respond well to those foctars we can control. . i . .

._.:Mum:.n:m»: of our business and our perfornance m:c_cn_.mm us to absorb the broader indirect Funding availability remains a principal risk but the ‘overall risk level trended downwards towards the
economic impacts associated with this risk, as we hove a proven track record of responiding with end of the period, based on our trading performance and strategic defivery through the height of

agility to priotitise trade and performance and maximise opportunity. the pandemic. Whilst revenue has been impacted by the Covid-1% pandemic and prolonged periods

of mandated store closures, we have increased our e-commerce trade, supporting our liquidity

We are committed to escalating our elevation programme and building on opportunities that . position. We are alse prioritising renewal of our working capital facility which matures in November
support praduct and brand availability thre agh our digital offering and physical steres. 2022, through strong funder dialogue and engagement, supported by the Group's robust business
performance.
RISK COMNTROLE AND MITIGATIONS
Interest rate risks arise on net borrowings. Foreign exchange risk arises from international trading,
Pandemic: . . - )
andamie future sales and purchases in foreign currency, loans to non-UK subsidiaries and unhedged options
- We have implemented effectiva 1esponse proceduras, with Board oversight and pront sation A e ) K : A )
A to buy or sell foreign currency. Credit risk arises primarily through our Wholesale and Licensing
- Qurmenduted safe working and operating stundards pricntise colleague and customer wellbaing N 3 ? R
- Wadeployad new safety raquiremants quickly, with externol vohdaton and angoing svaluation, réview ont! customers and there is some level of counter-party risk expasure, although we do not consider this to
. montanng . _um Bn_.nm_...ﬂ_.
- We made an agle switch 16 focms on e-commerce delivery, os o result of mandated panods of tockdown
Failura to anticipate, - ty ond cuslamsr sarvice delivery support our accelerated graweh in a-cormmerce RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS
evalunte or oppropriotely - nemngement optirmses warking captal ond laverages and strengthans our -
respond 16 external evants eommascial rul .
such o Bresit, or broades = Our Board reporting on deby, cavenants, tunding and cash Flow positians includes stress tasting ond extensive
globalmacioeconomic - Effectvainonegament of cosh fiows ond cammitted faclities supports our iquidity, long term viability aed trading " R Lusiness risk seenono analysis, includeing Brexit, Covid-19, mandoted store closures and related tosts,
coaditians, events. partner support Failure Encms_.esz:. - The Group Tracsury funchen manuges Aguchty, nterest rate ond foreign exchange nsks
.‘Snnoa_n_ o ﬂn_s_ © 7 Weconthucl engoing scanare ai alysis, with limaly reparting o manogerment manoge our funding ond = The Graus Ereatury pohcy, wil Baard cvermaht, outlines delegatad authorties for operatinn, manitorng and
factors, ﬂw%-“ uEn - We laverage opportunities for Investment, through strang managemant oversight nquichly positions and - teparting,
performance wrgets, Besxit: secure occess 1o funding - Wa hove o working capl eility avdiluble untl Navermber 2022, with angming early dialegue and engogament with
impact aur strategic T - We carry out anh engaing swsluat o af Brexit risk impocts st reporting to the Boasd markets might impoct funders tar renewal
direction ar langer-tesm owr plons for growah, the o t d reperting of ' d i taadard sute of internal and
9 - Wemantor UK-EU trade relationshup davalopmants and the implamentahion of the Tade nnd Comgperatinn absility to manags aur ngaing menitanng and reperting of gaing vencedn and wabihty are our standard suite of internal an
viakidity, ar result In oot Agrssmart ¥ Y

i _lrading requitemants,
opportualties for grosdi neet fongertarm - Our hadging strategy 1s reviewed and opproved thnually os port of our reasury governonce, with hedging activty
63 and the onyolng reported to Board.

biity of our Lusiness R

on transport [ogistics, raw documentation requiraments and the Fow of quads supperts praduct

Horing af Ky 3 'y Investmants of surplus cash, g5 and in i s are mude under pie-dpproved investment criteno

- Wa ensure ongoing Finunce and Cammercol svaluation of edanomic and political change, with semor manageiment . - We use forward foraign curreny cantrocts to hedge against highly proboble forsign eurrency troding transactions.
oversight and Board éparting

T - We have o cradit pohey w pluce, with fagulor onltanng of custemer snd counter-parly credit risks
- The executive-led Compliance & Risk Group holds ermurgmg risks discussions, with oversighl reporting te the Audit
Cormimittes

See Note 3 to the Financial Statements for further detail on financial risk management.
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Customer engugement and retention is vital to our Group, whether through aur physical steres or
online. Harnessing customer value and loyalty across the Group is multi-faceted but underpinned by
our produst offerings, price and service,

We have enhanced our e-commerce offering and significantly improved our customer experience
through our elevation strategy, as well as our customer service and the underlying platform for our
digital business,

We continue to strengthen our elevation through our new concept stores and flagship multi-fascia
offerings.

RISK CONTROLE ANE MITIATIONS

- Owgoing monikenng of tustomer Insights and teedback, aid campetitor nnd matket trands, enalbles us to respond
ond drive bur customeled strategy

fiyre o anuicipote and
+espond to customer

needs of changes
cansumer trends and
spending, of to drive
and debver customar - Wecanhinue to devalop ond invest in our oaline affering, capucity ond capabuity, mchidig our outemahon
service exceflerice, many capabilities ond hayment plotforme, for an impraved customer exr

- Continued investment in aur customer servica offening, systems and communication ennbles us to understand
imprave our customer expanance, both online ond 1hiough tha development of ur store ppesanng model. suppor
by new in-store technclogy

Impact aur grawth, value, - Torgetod social media and digital marketing programmes suppart our customer groups and Uraedrg
reputaton and suategie — We use IMluencer engagernent to rise bran ond praduct owareiess

- Ongoing enh

2ment of our E56 agendas supnorts aur sirateg e vath our custamer feuus

Legal And Regulctory Compliance

) | ‘

The legal and regulatory landscape in which we operate is constantly changing. Our commitment to
delivering robustly an our cbligations is central te cur culture and values.

We hove increased our assessment of this risk in the period, based on factors which continue
to impact the legal and regulatory landscape in which we operate. We are conservative in our
assessments and ore confident in our ability to manage these risks effectively. The trend we
are reporting recognises anticipated changes through our herizon scanning and emerging risks
evaluations, until we have implemented our respornse plans.

RISK LONTRALS AND

- Ourexpénenced and gquolihed in-house legol team provides core services nnd advice as well es aversight of new and
wmergung legrslatve and regulotory requiraments.

- Ertemol odvisers provide oddi
An action ar mcrdent team,

ol servicas und training n specl st areds, as required by the business and legal

- Key legrslative and regulotory comphance risk arses ore pronbsed and nchice off Goverrmend-mandales
reguirements «n 1asponss to the Covid-19 pandemie, the Group's intellactual property nghts, the Listing Rulas, doto
protéchion and kealth and sofety .

& lege) er reguiatery
breach and which
mpaets our bugness

- Dur Coda of Conduct supparts our ethwcs, nehavieurs ond culture, ond our ragul
Ant-Brihery b Corruption, Carporoka GHits & Hespital

- Wareview the appreach and tontent of mandatary mduction. polickes and ongeing trining across relevont aoreas, lor
oll eolleagues

¥ prieies includ

- Asswew of our ramework Ter ongeng monitonng of compliance 15 1n progress
- The Legal leam s o key contributsr and adwsar to the Compliance & sk Graup
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Technology Capobility And Infrastructure Renewal

.‘lllv

We operate in a competitive and challenging custorner-focused market. Qur systems need to be
ot the forefrontof customer service excellence and support our end-to-end supply chain logistics.
Avaitable technofogy is constontly evolving and managing changes and transformation in this
environment is @ key focus.

We have invested heavily in this period in our automation, platforms and deiivery capabilities, which
support an enhanced online and in-store customer experience, and cur business resilience.

Qur roadmap includes improved technalogy and information security capabilities, oligned to our
business continuity and IT disaster recovery review, which cantinues to strengthen our controls.

RISK - CONTROLS AND

- Wa have o Graup lechnolngy strategy in place. afigned to the Lusiness stralegy

trword progriunene o
¥ to Campete

hstructyre tanewol gnables us o operate aul businesses ¢ffic

Iy N supperts our
Foaltre 10 Inuxmisy o
use uf o g - Ou straom
103y T 10 renew
astrut fure 1n o
1meny and wrhectios Wy
iy offect our abibty to - Growth of oy pxpenenced in-house leehnolagy teon
kewps yp win Hhe puce of helps us to keep obreast of amargng technalogies.
change and d
sirutegic o

g and decom MissIGHING BrIGIaM Me supRan s urguisitions and ikegration actviy

= wwestments in our orline troding cupaisitie, worehacse smaragemunt sysk
&ng-to-and £ustomar expenence and improve Product avarlobity ohd

and m-stors technalogy enhance the
inent

ickiig extereish hurs, supported by ongoing skills b
- keading ntights

<

er our - We have an angoing cycle of tra ming progro
across our L st they e

- Stengthening owr information secunty capn
technolagy debivery ond

to support effecitve use of axsbing lechnologies ond naw

honced our trar
@ cversight

y has
e robiustness of our secune

formatron prog

55 Hne LK
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FRASERS GROUP

isks, Data Loss And Dota Privocy

I

Attempts to ottack or gain unauthorised aecess to systems and data are becoming increasingly
sophisticated. Our systems are critical to our operations and trading. We have legal and commercial
abligations to protect the security and privacy of the data we hold end process.

We combine the continued investment in our digitat offering, dutomation and technological change
with the strengthening of our people and in-house capabilities, to deliver on our risk mitjgations.

RISK

CONTRELS AND MITIGATIORS

A cyber-ottack may result
in data loss andyor denial
of servi

Faituru ta adeguately
protect the data we hald
and pracass may result in
Iegat er regulatery breagh,
Ioss of trust aad hranciol
loss..

Wa hava stratagies and policis in place to suppoet our 1 secunty

Wa collgborote closely with av- ustry leading service partners, who provida core sarvices beyond gur in-house
cupabulities Copabulity deliver «, secunty ond sqvings are cora drivars Our portners include Microsatft, os wall os other
strutegic partiesinps for content delivery network suppart for our wabstta and eybsr miligotions

Pratection tooks, including encryption, and detection tacls are m place ta support elfective monitoning and raparting,
and ar reviewed regulory.

We have grhanced au infarme tion secunty capabiliias and strengthanad eur secon

& manitonng

| extarna

ew of our cyber posture and penatratian testing acrass Group

our data prolect on mondate, enhancong our policies ond procedures und vngaing internal k
help to mitigate data protectio s and privaey (sks and support delivery of gur change ond transformation programme

We have on ongoing progranime of secunty and privacy monitunng across our Gioup ond extended entarprisa
hause Lugal tesin supperts secand

re moniloning and reporting of leg

wa camplioncs

We make ONIGOING MYESEMENEs 1 UALa protection traning and communicatians |
Qur overseas operations)

d local legislative equivalents in

We rautinsly aclion and ratain Dato Protsction Impact Assessments

Our policy framework 1s subject o ongamg review and revision, with axtenal support and In hne with our governance
agenda

Benchmork stundards form part of ous cantmls improvement actvity

Business Continuity M

t And Incident R:

Qur Head Office and Distribution Centre at Shirebrook and our e-commerce activity are critical to
our business operations. There is an ongoing and increasing reliance on the availability of technology
across our Group. We need the ability to respond to incidents effectively and on a timely basis, to
ensure continuity of operations and trade.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

Failute to tespond
alfacnvely orona b
bous ko aperational af
IT incidents or events
might impoct the Group
finaneially through

Aot revenve or have

a reputational impoct
based on our capability
and communications

Qur Business Continnty nnd 1T [ soster Recovery pluns are usdergoing reviaw, revision and tasting with sxternal
support

Our governance structure uppor s agila ingident respanse, with cleqr rolis, respansi

es and reporting linas

Annusl external review and challengs of our processes sUPPOMs oUF COMAKIIIENE 1 Canbiutus IMprossiment
©ngoing trainng supports good practiee and knowladge sharing for continuity

intern

18 ar

| externul coimmunicatons, marketing and PR eapab ntegrol to sur mcident respansa plons

Rucovery priontis

laf of IT systers and procasses forms parl of our business iImpact analyss review
We have rerovary time targets for both cntical and nomal ssrvice fanctions
Critienl recovery capahilities oligm to our insurence cover, uppetite und cantrols
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Our Group is complex and extensive and includes oversight of our third-party and extended
enterprise partners and suppliers. We are committed to ensuring we have the right levels of
transparency, consistency and monitoring across our Group, to enable effective oversight in line with
our vatues and culture. : :

We have an appetite for acquisitions as part of our strategic growth agenda. Qur integration
strategy is being formalised and captures lessons learned to support ongoing efficient and effective
acquisition engagement and management.

RISK CONTROLS AN MITIGATIGNS

- Transparency across our Group and extended enterpnse and ts ¢lhianyes is an ongang priorty It 15 subjact to ragular
ravew and diseussian und Tarms part af our sk manogament framawork and reporting

Foilure to effectively
Fmonitor oetivities acrass - Overaght roles ond respansibikties ncross sur Group structure suppert risk-bused functional mamtonng and
qur Group e 5, assurence

partners and suppliers,
who farm port of our
extended entarprise
may result in finan:
reputatianal or legal - Governunca and mamitonng ase in glace lar new investiments, acquisitigns and opportunities
compliance issues.

"= We maintain strangth in our supply ehuin mohagerment and supphar and partner relsbionships

- Risk ond controls reporting across the Group is subyect (o eontiyous improvement, including sell-assassmant
processes for contwmation of compliance with key policies, controls ond othar Group raguiren

- The Group Internal Audit tzom is developmag third
actiss the Glaup

& montoning to suppert the broader mtzrnal cantrals framework

t And S i

Our business benefits from strength and depth of knowledge, talent and experience, which has
long been pivotal to its success, Retaining and protecting this talent, providing for succession ond
an ongoing programme of attracting and deveioping new talent is core to our people plans and
objectives.

We have made significant progress in the period in this area and when new initiatives have time to
embed, we expect to see this risk trend decrease.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- Continued development of strong traines and appr o
pineline

supports our futwe tolent

- We recrul externally to hill copahility gops nacassary for our growth and transformation
- We prionhise intsrnal devalopment and promotion wherewer possible gl actvely encoyrage cross-functional

Foilure to atbroct, retoin of . axperence

develap talent across our
business and implament

.- Anew appraisal systern has bean ntrodut sd wilh clear axpec tutions ler performance, opportunities for development
anu birouder succession planmng

r Peapls Fromewark supporting perlannance and talent racognitian s now i place acrass the Graup

- Anapternal recrutmant mi

dnte operotes, with imprasarnants n onboarding and appheont tracting

ples and a o
un alevated o

business and stroteght |
obyec

- We hqua crealad core pr
Gur Braple, wh

@ague valua propostion that shate the Group's volurs and ambltians for
re-energised website to gtiroct tolent

tronstormation. - Anuew recognilion und bonus structurs hos bean launched, recognismg ong rewet

g peaple wha are fearless amd
. adopt our care principles

~  The Workers' Representative s o Baard Drrector whe supports cammun
b tha highest level In our business

n channels ang gives our peopla o voics

We hove o sliong strategy for diversity and inclusion gnd people suppert

1o create now Batsh woodiand across the UK
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i tal, Social & Go (ESG)

-

Tackling climate change is a global imperative and the resulting increase in regulation is o key focus
ared for the Group.

Measures which support climate change initiatives and our wider ESG agenda continue to be key
components of our strategic direction, supporting sustainability, the broader sacial agenda and
consumer choice,

RISK CONTROLS

_ We howe Board-level engagement and an Exeevtive spusisor of our £5G agenda
_ Ihe Sustambilty Steening Graup biaadens gut dctians and the contiaued develapment of aur sustumatibty stra’eqy
. Deticoled operancnsl leadership cantinues to dnve praject ord programme initiatives ond engugement thrgugh cur
supply chaity
Foulura ko mawme — We hove Sustamaikty Chompions i place, to mobilise cross: Group and eross:fncticnel support
aur post and value _ e have appanted o Graup Carbon Reductian Manuger
reloting to ESG factors
msght impact ou bty
ta acheeve our growth,
volue, raputation and © Weuare reviesing a supplisr centrol framework 10 copture commiments from suppliers und brands on ESG molters
stiotegic ombitions L suppert

st decisons

- e ure evalucting our readingss for comphance with the Taskforce for Chimate-related Financial Diclosures (TCH!
e have.an envrenmentol palicy In place, which has been renewed and approved by the Board

- Wa have enargy efficiency targers, moaitorng and measurement, with external spec

— We continue tolounch ranges and praducts thot drve responsible ond sustanable pt

_ Qur community whtigtives support the provision ol

& sporswenr to argannations and schaols

. Rewiew and ohgainy develapment af the Groua Code of Conduct supports our volues, colleague engugen
collzogue und suppher anboarding

Property

L

This is @ new risk added during FY21. The reta andscape continues to see significant changes with
a high volume of retail properties vacant due to the high level of retail insolvencies and retailers
moving away from bricks and mortar to e-commerce due to the shift in consurmer behavious, which
has further been increased due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

As a result of the above, both the value and value in use of retail properties has declined.

RIsK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

_ tnrmew store lsosss we aetiety engage ond work with our lendords (o support rents that are Hozble and inked to

stare turneer,

Tuere s o inancal

115k to the Group if our
commitment to g leose o
the value of aur freghald s units become mare offordable wa lock to mave it marz prme Incations with more tootta
propeities dacline where reshence

Tugh varancy ‘ates make
the aren less attructive lor
our consurners and drive
lass toatfall t our stores

- We an ta align rert free porkages and capital sontriputions front londiords ta reflect the gleugted store it ous

Wl consumer

- We are achwely reviewing qur lease portfelia ond looking to renegotiate with lor
stores

Nrds in relation w underperk

- The treehold estate is actively monaged by the property tearn and we will ook la dspose of sites wiirl ate nat

Groips strategy

Mike Ashley
Chief Executive on behalf of the hoard

5 August 2021
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VIABILITY STATEMENT

The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
requires the Board to express its view of the
long-term viability of the Group and assess the
Company's prospects, capital management
and principal risks.

Accordingly, the Board regularly carries out
thorough and robust assessments of the risks,
including stress testing the Group's resilience
to threats to its business model, strategy,
future performance and liquidity ‘and the

risks identified in the Principal Risks and
Uncertainties section of this Report, together
with the steps the Group has taken to mi igate
them. In addition, the Board regularly reviews
the performance and financing positien of the
Group and its projected funding position and
requirements.

The Group continues to face the challenges
presented by the Covid-19 pandemic on

the retail industry and changing consumer.,
behaviour, in addition to supply chain issues
due to both the Covid-19 pandemic and Brexit.

The Board chose to review these over a three
and q half year period to 27 October 2024

This peried is partially covered by the Group's
Revolving Credit Facility {RCF) up to Novernber
2022 plus two years beyond the maturity date.
Management are currently of the opinian that
any negoetiations to replace the current facility
will be concluded well in advance of maturity
with the expectation that a new facility will
have a minimurn term of three years. This
period also best reflects both the short term
budgeting and planning process of the Group,
the longer term forecasting and the expected
timescales for strategy implementation. The
process adopted to prepare the model for
assessing the viability of the Group involved
input from a number of departments across the
business to model a conservative scenario,

Ll AUTORE

I relation to each viability related risk the
Board has: .

Covid-19

. reviewed the impact of the pandemic on the
Group's sales and margin in relation to both
store and online revenue,

. forecast and medelled future temporary
full store closures from potential further
lockdowns (two months in FY22 and two
months in FY23), potential Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and
cost saving initiatives.

Market Forces

+  tested the business model's resilience to
changes in the retail market and responses
to variability in sales and margins;

+ taken into account further consumer shift
from bricks and mertar to online; and

+  forecast the impact of key suppliers going
direct to consumer,

Treasury & Financial Risk

. reviewed the RCF and its suitability for
the Group’s cash flow cycle and liquidity
requirements;

. considered the maturity date of the Group's
RCF and the potenticl financing options
post Navember 2022; and

. reviewed the Group's hedging strategy.
Brexit
+ forecast and modelled increased costs

associoted with leaving the EU and impact
on margin.

Supply Chain
« reviewed the arrangements with key
suppliers; and

+ forecast and modelled increased costs
associated with such items 0s container
shortages.
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Viability has been assessed by performing
sensitivity analysis and stress testing of the
Group's FY22 budget and farecast for the
viability period prepared by management.
Thisscomprised o recent review by the Board
of a number of scenarios in which the Group's
income stotement, balance sheet and cash
flow forecasts were stress tested to determine
how much the Group's trade would need to
be affectad in order to bredach the Group's
covenents (being interest cover and net debt to
EBITDA ratios). These scenarios included:

+ a further decrease in sales of 10%, margin
remaining consistent with original budget
and direct costs falling in line with sales;

+ a further decrease in sales and margin of
10%, with no change in direct overheads;

*  maximum breakpoint, being breach of
covenants per the Group's RCF (Sales
would need to reduce by a further 20%
than forecast, with no change in direct
overheads)

The Group's working copital facility is at
£913.5m (FY20: £913.5m} available until
November 2021 and is not secured against any
of the Group's assets. The Group enacted an
extension option for a further year to November
2022 for £847.5m.

The Group has consistently created a strong
free cash flow from underlying trading and
has an appropriote hedging strategy to meer
currency risks. There have been no post
balance sheet changes to liquidity.

The impact on the projected cash flow as a
result of the conservative madel has been
reviewed, if required manogement have a
rnumber of mitigating actions which could be
taken such os putting on hold discretionary
spend, liquidating certoin assets on the balarce
sheet, reduction in labour and marketing costs.
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Bosed on its assessment, the Board has a
reasonable expectation that the Group will

e cble to continue operating and be able to
meet its licbilities as they fall due for a period
of approximately three and & half years, to the
end of the expected minimum maturity of new
Group finance arrangements and facilities {the
period of the assessment),

The Viability Statement was approved by the
Board on 5 August 2021, and signed on its
behalf by:

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer

5 August 2023
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THE BOARD

DAVID DALY

Non-Executive Chair, Chair of the Nominotion
Committes

Appointed: 2 Cctober 2017

Committees: Nominction and Remuneration
Committees

Previous roles;

David held a number of positions during

a 30-year international career with Nike,
where his primary focus was the business of
football. He started in a sales rele in 1986, later
becoming sales director for Nike UK / Ireland.,
He retired in 2015 as a Senior Director for
Nikes Club and Federation business, where he
was responsible for the global merchandising
business for all of Nike's teading foathall clubs.

Present rolas:
David is a Non-executive Director
of Fulham Football Club,

Key skills, experience and contribution:
David's career at Nike gave him significant”
first-hand knowledge of the sporting goods
industry. He has warked in senior roles in
sales, marketing, product development and
general management, giving him a thorough
understanding of consumer trends and
behaviour. He spent 18 yeors working outside
the UK and this international experience hos
proven crucial to the Boord. David joined the
Board in October 2017, allowing him to gain a
scund understanding of the business before
being cppeinted as Chair in October 2018, His
focus has been on improving best practices,
corporate governance, prometing diversity
and driving the elevation strategy. He ensures
the Board functions effectively by facilitating
an open and productive debate and providing
constructive challenge.

g 1o cleate new Bntish woodiand across the UK

MIKE ASHLEY
Chief Executive

Appointed: 1982 (founder]

Pravious rales:

Mike established the business of the Group
an Jeaving school in 1982 and was the sole
owner until the Group's listing in March 2007.
He was Executive Deputy Chair prior to being
appointed Chief Executive in September 2016,

Key skills, experience and contribution;

Mike was the founder of the Group and has -
the necessary skills for formulating the vision
and commercial strategy of the Group, With
over 40 years in the sports retail business with
Sports Direct he is invaluable to the Group.
Mike's knowledge and experience in all areas
of retailing, buying, warehousing ond logistics
ensures that he is crucial to the effective and
efficient running of operations. During the
continuing Covid-1% pandemic his decisive
leadership has meant the Group has managed
to come out of this crisis in good health and
will be able to take advantage of future
opportunities.
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CHRIS WOOTTON
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed: 12 September 2019

Previous roles:

Chris worked in the assurance practice at PwC
for much of his accounting career, including
warking on large corporates and listed entities.

Key skills, experience and contribution:
Chris is o Chartered Accountont. After joi
the Group, he quickly understood the business
and progressed rapidly within the Finance
team. He has helped the Group on its elevation
path and significantly improved the Finance
teom's skills, experience und capaobilities.

Chris is @ key driver of the Group's accounting
principles, namely being conservative,
consistent and simple.

Chris has had to play o key role as part of the
Leadership team in the Group's response to
the Covid-19 pandemic, including stakeholder
management, and cashflow management and
forecosting.
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CALLY PRICE

Non-Executive Workforce Director and Workers'
Represéntative

Appeinted: 1 January 2019

Previous rofes:

Cally begon her career with Frasers Group as
a casual sales assistant in our Sports Direct
Aberdare store in 2007.

Present roles:

the Company's Workers' Representative and
Manager of the Cardiff St David's Sports Direct
store,

Key skills, exp and
With over 12 years' experience with Frasers
Group, starting on the shop floor working under
a zero hours contract, Cally is ideally placed

to ensure that the voice of the workforce is at
the forefront of the Board's discussions and
decision-making. She has current knowledge

of every aspect of the day-to~day running

of a retail outlet and applies this to her
directorship. Cally is committed to ensuring

tull transparency across the Group and has
controi of the workforce company app and
confidential hotline, taking on the responsibility
of answering every colleague personally.

Cally reports to the Boord with worker issues
raised and consistently chalienges them

from her unique perspective. Alongside qur
colleague development team, Cally has been
committed to ensuring that the welibeing of

alt Frasers Group colieagues is parameount
during these unprecedented times. Through
our relotionship with the Retail Trust, Celly has
presented compaony-wide webinars with trained
mental health advisors, to offer support and
guidance to our colleagues. When restrictions
have permitted her to da se, Cally also sits

with Senior Monagement at aur Shirebrook
Head Office twice weekly, ensuring that she is
continuvously invalved in the running of Frasers
Group. Cdlly has become both the voice and
face of our people, representing all of our
colleagues and providing a collective voice

for all.

e
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RICHARD BOTTOMLEY OBE DAVID BRAYSHAW
Senjor Independent Non- itive Director, Independent N ive Di , Chaiy of
Chair of the Audit Committee the Remuneration Committee

Appointed: 1 October 2018

Committees: Audit and Nomination
Committees

Previous roles:

Richasd hos aver 25 years' experience working
with listed companies during his time as a
seniar partner at KPMG, ond he remains a
member of the Audit Committee Institute.

Prior to joining the Bogrd, Richard was o
Nan-executive Director of Newcastle Building
Society, where he chaired the Audit Committee,

Present roles:

Richard is Chair of Trustees of the Greggs ple
1978 Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme.
He is aise o Non-executive Director of MSL
Property Care Services Ltd, Marsden Packaging
Limited and Jessgrove Limited.

Key skills, experience and contribution:
Richard has strong experience in corporate
governance, corporate finance and strategy.
His experience in the audit sector has proven
beneficigl. Richard has been influential in
the recruitment of ¢ Head of Internal Audit,
ensuring that risks are properly ¢ssessed and
mitigated.

W ons the

Appointed: 8 December 2016

Committees: Audit, Nomingtion and
Remuneration Committees

Previous roles:

David is a very experienced senior investment
and commercial banker. He has over 30 years' |
experience with erganisations such as Barclays
Capital, HSBC, Citigroup and Pilkington pic.

Key skilly, experi and iburti

David graduated from Oxford in 1975 with a
Masters of Arts in Chemistry. He has spent

o long career in corporate financing for a
nurmber of major financial institutions, and
was the Group Treosurer of Pilkington ple.
David spent 15 years at Barclays Capital,
advising FTSE 350 companies on ¢ll aspects
of corporate, syndicated, and capital markets
funding, together with interest rate, foreign
exchange ond balance sheet hedging. He has
funded countless public company acquisitions
and remains involved in an advisory role with
several corporates and banks in a private
capocity He hos o proven track record in the
finance and acquisitions sector, providing
sound advice in line with the Group's elevation
strategy.
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NICOLA FRAMPTON
Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed: 1 October 2018

Commiltees: Audit and Remuneration
Committees

Pravious roles:

Prior to joining Domina's Pizza Group, Nicola
was at William Hill from April 2010, She was
Managing Director of its UK Retail division,
working closely with the Board, Exco and
operational management. During her time «at
William Hill, Nicola led a number of successful
major innovation and transformation projects,
Before switching to an executive management
career, Nicola spent the previous ten years
working in the professional services industry,
most recently as a Director at Deloitte.

Present roles:

Nicola has spent most of her recent career in
senior axecutive management reles and has
recently been appointed to a new position
with Domino's Pizza Group, where she is Chizf
Operations Officer.

Key skills, experience and contribution:

Nicola has extensive experience in risk
managerment, assurance and corporate
governance across a wide range of industries,
having specialised in these areas of corporate
activity at both William Hilt and prior to that
whilst at Deloitte, The Board benefits from
Nicola's current retail experience as the serving
Managing Director of a large non-competinc
retail business, Nicola serves as a Trustee
Board member on a number of charities and
brings an informed perspective on corporate
responsibility to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chair's Introduction

#s Chair, | am respansible for leading the Board
to make decisions thot will benefit the Group
and ultimately its stakehelders. My role js to
ensure thot we adhere to high standards of
coerporate governance and allow the Group

to thrive during these particularly challenging
times. From the downturn of the high street

to the current Covid-19 pandemic, we have
remained resilient and robust in our approach
to corporate governance,

Our Non-executive Directors have a great depth
of experience, remain independent throughout
cll discussions and are rigorous in chalienging
the Executives in the best interests of the Group.
Our Executive Directors understand the Group's
values and behaviours, They work tirelessly to
retain and grow shareholder value, engage our
workforce and promote the Group's strategy.

The Bodrd and the Audit Committee held
more meetings than usual during the year, to
ensure that matters arising from the Covid-19
pandemic were dealt with effectively and
promptly. | would like to thank Board members
for their additional time and commitment
throughout this period.

With increasing stakeholder focus and incoming
requlation, we have increased cur work on
improving our environmental impact and
sustainability. During the year, the Sustainability
Steering Group was formed under the CFQO's
leadership. Further details are included in our
£5G report.

Further information regarding our compliance
with the Code can be found in our Corparate
Gaovernance Statemendt.

David Daly
Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021

Butish woodland across the UK
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This Corporate Governance Report and
Statement sets aut how the Cormpany hgs

Disclosures in relation ko DTR 7.2.6 (shore
capital) and DTR 72 5 {diversity) are set out
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ERNANCE STATEMENT

gmo_.-mnﬁoa. mmna;o:o:_: the Nomination
Committee Statement.

The Beard considers that it complied with the
majority of the Principles and Bravisions of the
2018 UK Corporate Governonce Code for the

in fully complied with during Ey .

Feassniar nun-campbionce

b The Group doay not hgve on (7p
share scheme far the Executive
Durectors

AL toted vt the Dggions
Rernunerar, o, Resort, an HRECUTIv
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BOARD LEADERSHip AND COMPANY

PURPOSE
The Board

The Bogrg decidad tg fenew the FRpointment

of our workforce Director, Cally Price, for ¢

19QUIEIMENS encompassurg gt

Business Modej

Years, foliowing its renewal by the Bogrg in July

2320,
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Culture

DBunng the year, the Bogrg feceived gn
independent feport on the employee valye

ospirational ang trstructive way:

~ Ownitang beck yourself,

~  Don't hesisnte and act with PUrpose.

= Think without fimits and taye the team with
you,

Further mnformation an the m_.ocv‘u culturs
Is contoineq within the “Cufture and Valyes®
section of this report,

Stokehoider Engugemens

The Group has o number of stokeholders to
cansider ond we \jge A variety af methods to
ensure that we capture their vigws and yse

themn to shq, ions, Stokeholder
engagemen t to ayr Umion._._nanm.
and we tak ath “Ommendation ane

executives gnd discussions with ang reparts
from externgl consultants,

Empiloyees

Please see the Directors Report for detyils of
colleague engagement,

Shoreholders

Our AGM Provides gy OPPortunity for q||
sharehoiders 1o engage with the Board

The views of Major sharehalders are shored
amengst the Board when received ohd we
respond gs necessary. The Boarg ensures that

it is ovoiloble for Questions at the half year .
ond full year resytts Presentations, 1o which

major shareholders are invited, Shareholders'
opinions gre closely monitored through aralyst
and broker feporting and o)) correspondence
received fram majgr INVestors is cirpyiateq to

the relevant committee chair or the Board g5
approprigte.

Customers

We strive to continuglly improye customer
“ngagement and satisfoction, The Customer
Service function has centinued with its

within the Group, IMproving customer
CorMmunication nrﬂ::m? o=o§:w customers to
self-service anef improving the lavel ang speed
of response Provided by the Customer Service
teoms. Thig work continues, gs we offer more
contact channels to ehable customers to reach
Qut to one of gur Customer cara tearm, rm._v.iw
te resolve enquities faster than ever before,

Measures for store feopening 3:025@ the
Covid-1g rondemic to efisure the safety of
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customers and colleagues. The Board alsa
approved a 50% discount for customers
employed by the NHS in recognition of their
work during the pandemic.

Through our digital elevation strategy we

are investing more than £100m to elevate

our proposition across our retail channels.

This investment will build on cur core digital
foundations and includes initiatives to improve
the online customer experience by carefully
targeted investrment in platforms that suppart
customer service, engagement and data. We
are also investing in digital marketing to dr.ve
sales growth.

Supgpliers

We aim to forge strong and transparent
relationships with all of our suppliers, to enakle
us to provide customers with excellent prod.acts
and to meet the standards that our brand
partners set for their products, The Elevation No
Limits strategy targets stronger relationships
with key brand partners {including our Strategic
Investments) and this continues to be a prio-ity.
Having worked with Nike for over 30 years, the
Chair is instrumental in engaging and helpirg
_to maintain our relationship with one of cur key
brand partness, Nike.

Dedicated relationship and procurement and
commercial teams support teuly integrated
supplier engagement. Electronic Data Interface
(EDI} capability also improves our process
efficiency through the commercial cycle and
enhances supplier engogement, through a
dedicated supplier portal. -

We have long-standing relationships with twa
key goteway suppliers, which we use to source
Group own-branded products.

Further details in relation te environmental and
ethical considerations can be found within the
Environment Report.
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Regulators

The Group makes every endeavour to comply
with its legaf and regulatory obligations. We
regularly licrise with HMRC, the FRC and the
FCA in an open and transparent manner. The
Finance team and the Board have established
regular communicatiens with tax authorities
internationally.

During the Cavid-19 pandemic, Board members
aised with the Government on a number of
occasions, to clarify the Group's position, for
example, regarding store closures.

Landers

Alongside attending all Board meetings, the
CFO is always available to inform the Board
of any updates in refation to financial lenders.
With the assistance of the Finance team, the
CFO ensures that the Group complies with

the terms and conditions in its credit facility
ogreements. The CFO reqgularly liaises with the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee and the
Chair of the Audit Committee, to discuss the
Group's financial performance.

During the Covid-19 pandemic, the Board
discussed cash flow forecasts and the
availability of headroom in the RCF. This
uncertain time also led to Board discussions
regarding other financing methods, including
the Covid Commercial Finance Facility.

Qur Finance team has engaged with our
lenders during the year. There wos a particulor
focus during the early period of the Covid-19
pandemic in the UK, as management held
regular conference calls with lenders to say
engaged and informed.

Community

Details of our.engagement with the community
can be found in our ESG report.

Workforce Concerns

Workforce concerns regarding the business
ond its operations are taken seriously and we
provide a number of ways that colleagues can
voice their issues. When issuas orise, colleagues
are encouraged to speak to their line mancgers,
or they can seek advice from the Retail Trust.

If colleagues want to express their concerns
canfidentially or anonymously, they can use the
whistleblowing hotline or 'Your Company, Your
Voice'. Cally Price works with colleagues across
the business to resolve issues and she reports
issues to the Board during schecluled meetings.
The Company Secretary is made aware of

all whistle blowing reports and has access to
independent advice as appropriate.

Director Concerns

During the year, no concemns were raised by the
Board regarding the operation of the Board or
the management of the Group.

Conflicts of Interest

Details of procedures regording Directors’
conflicts of interest, including the Relationship
Agreement with Mike Ashley as the control
shareholder, can be found in the Directors’
Report.

Corporate Governance Policy Review

During the year, external advisors were
appainted to review the Group's governance
policies and ensure they are documented and
reflect best practice, A review of these findings
will take place in FY22 once the external review
is completed.

4 S

Prinled on Steinbeis 100%% Recyclad and Carbon Ca

red through-lhe Waoodland Trast. heiping to create new Bntsh woodland across the UK



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GRCOUP

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Chair

The Chait ieads the Board, ensuring
constructive communications between Board
members and that all Directors are able to play
a full part i the Board's octivities. The Chair
sets Board agendas and ensures that Board
rmeetings are effective and that ali Cirectors
receive accurate, timely and clear information.

The Chair communicates with shareholders
effectively and ensures that the Board
understands the views of major invastors. The
Chair also provides advice and support to

both the Executive and Non-executive Board
members, Upon his appeintment, the Chair met
the independence criteria set out in provision 10
of the Corporate Governance Code,

The Chief Executive

The Chief Executive has a pivotal role in
formulating and implementing the Group's
strategy. He is responsible for the day-to-day
running of the business, equipping himself with
a team of executives to ensure that the Board's
decisions are implemented. The Chief Executive
is the main point of communication between
the senior executives and the Non-executive
Directors, and regularly updates the Board on
the Group's trading position.

The Senior Independent Director

Richard Bottomley, OBE, is the Senior
Independent Non-executive Directer. He
supports the Chair and Non-executive Directors
and is available to assist shareholders if they
have concerns.
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Role OF The Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors have broad
experience from « wide range of sectors,

Their role is to understand the Group in

its entirety, to constructively challenge

strategy and management performance,

set executive remuneration and ensure
appropriate succession planning is in place.
The Non-executive Directors must also ensure
they are satisfied with the accuracy of financicl
information and that effective risk management
and internal control processes are in place.

Independence

There ore currently three independent
Non-executive Directors, as well as a
Non-executive Chair, a’Non-executive
Waorkforee Director and Workers'
Representative, and two Executive Directors

All Non-executive Directors, other than the
Non-executive Workforce Director and Workers'
Representative, were considered independeant
upon appointment. The Non-executive
Workforce Director and Workers' Representative
is not considersd to be independent as she is
émployed by the Group.

Delegation of Responsibilities

The Boord has three sub-committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committes
and Nomination Committee. The Committees
are governed by Terms of Reference, which
provide details of matters delegated to

them. The Terms of Reference ore avoilable

on the Group's website ot frasers.group/
financials/corporate-governance. The roles

of the Choirmaon, Chief Executive and Seniar
Independent Director are clearly defined

and set out in writing, The role profiles were
reviewed and updated during the year.

um%%hn»:&_....m_m_a KEY BOARD ' AUDIT
. "RESPONSIBILITIES COMMITTEE
. ) Approving budgets External
»Remuneration Setting the Group's volues and stondard vt
N up's values and standards
policy g Financial
Approving strategic aims and objectives. reporting
_ Remuneration - Approving acquisitions and disposals . - Interna) .
schemes . ' ] audit
Approving the appointrment or removal of
Baard members Risk
. management
Service Approving foreign exchange and .
contracts for commodities transactions above no.Bv__n:na
senior executives a material level and fraud

NOMINATION COMMITTEE"
Compasition of the Board

. ‘ Succession planning

Matters Reserved For The Board

There is a formal schedule of matters that require Board approval, as they could have significant
strategic, financal or reputotionol impact on the Group. These matters were reviewed and updated
by the Board during the year.

m
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Board Performance .

On an annual basis the Non-executive
Directors, led by Richard Bottomley, review the
performance of the Chair, taking into account
the views of the Executive Directors. The
outcome of the review is relayed to the Chair,
with constructive comments to improve future
performance. During the period, the Chair
reviewed the performance of all Non-executive
Directors, to ensure their performance remains
effective and that they are committed to and
capable of performing the role. The Chair has
discussed with each Non-executive Director
how they can imgreve their knowledge,
behaviour and skills, in order to be better
equipped for the role. The perfermance of the
Executive Directors was also reviewed by the
Chair and the Non-executive Directors and
performance objectives set.

An external review by Belinda Hudson Limitzd
was glso carried out during the year and this is
discussed within the Board Review report.

A number of informal meetings also took
place throughout the year between varicus
Non-executive Directors and the Chair without
the Executive Directors present.

Director Commitment

Prior to accepting Board positions, prospactive
Directors are informed that following induction,
they are required to dedicate between 15

and 20 days per annurm to fulfil the role of o
Non-executive Director. Non-executive Directors
are aware that scheduled and unscheduled
meetings may toke place, as well as other
evarys including site visits, sharehelder
meetings and strategy meetings. The time
commitment specified in Non-executive
Directors’ letters of appointment is regularky
reviewed by the Nomination Committee and
was recently deemed to be appropriate,
Regular training is offered to all Directors

ond this is further considered during Director
evaluations.

The Directors are expected to attend all
scheduled Board meetings and are asked to
use best endeavours to attend unscheduled
meetings, To assist with managing their
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commitments, the Non-executive Directors are
given prospective annual Board cclendars ecrly
in the secand half of the preceding yeor. During
the year, there were five scheduled and seven
unscheduled Board meetings.

A P + 0, oy
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Details of Executive Directors' service contracts,
and of the Chair'’s and the Nor-executive
Directors’ appointment letters, cre contained
within the Directors’ Remuneration Report,

Capies of service cantracts and appointment
letters are aveileble for inspection at the
Company's registered office during nermal
business hours and at the Annual General
Meeting. Neither of the Executive Directors hold
a directorship of another FTSE 350 compary.

Mgeting Documentation

A detailed agenda is established for each
scheduled meeting and appropriate
documentation is provided to Directors in
advance. Regular Boord meeting agenda
items include reports from the Chief Financial
Officer, reports on the performance of the
business and current trading, and specific
proposals where the Board's approval is
sought. The Board monitors and questions
performance and reviews anticipated results.
The Board also feceives reports from the
Non-executive Workforce Director and
Workers' Representative, who attends all Board
meetings.

During Beard meetings, presentations are
made on business or strategic issues where
appropriate, and the Board considers the
Group's strategy at least annuclly. Minutes of
Committee meetings are circulated to all Board
members for agreement. Copies of analysts’
reports and brokers' notes are alse provided

to Directors, Guest attendees are invited to
present at Board meetings.

Board Meeting Attendance

The Board has a formal schedule of regular meetings, where it approves major decisions and uses its
expertise to advise and influence the business. The Board will meet on other occosions as and when
required, .

The Directors’ attendance at Bodrd and Committee meetings during the year, and the total number
of meetings that they could have attended, are set out in the table below. Attendance was high for
ail Directors, who attended all meetings unless prevented from doing so by a prior commitment.
There was o high number of unscheduled meetings during the year, to discuss the Group's response
ta the Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on our colleagues and stores. A number of additional Audit
Cornmittee meetings also took place. A strategy day was held in Cctaber,

Bowd Noard
Mustings:  Mastings:
Schodubed Unscheduled

Mike Ashley 5f6 7
Richard Bot 5/ 657 8/8 373
Dovid Brayshow 5/6 ” 5/8 3/3 3/3
Dowvid Baly Bt 7 373 3
Nit ol Frampton 66 1 B8 33 3
Chris Woatlon &/f 7
Cally Price 676 71

Trast helmng (o create now B

m Richard was unabde ta uttend one Boord maeting which wos scheduled at short notice, dua te beng oa holiday

ended by Boord members wha ware not
e Committae Chairs Board manbars attended

these rmeatings for infarmatian rother than influence, and may not hove attended for tha bull durahcn of the mestings.

h woodland across the LK
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All Directors have access to the advice ond
services of the Company Secretary, and may
take independent professional advice at the
Company's expense, subject to prior notification
to the other Non-executive Directors and the
Company Secretary. The company secretarial
taam has been strengthened during the year,

to support the Group's expansion and ensure
compliance with increased regulation.

The Company Secretary ensures that the
Company maintains appropriate insurance
cover in respect of its Directors and Officers.
He also advises the Board on corporate
governance matters, During FY21, external
training was provided to the Board on the
Market Abuse Regulotion,

The Group's Position And Prospects

The Board take respensibility for the
preparation of the Annual Report and
Accounts for FY21, and is in agreement that
taken as a whole, they are fair, balanced and
understandable, Wa are confident that the
Annual Report and Accounts provide sufficient
detail and that our shareholders have been
provided with the necessary information on
the Group's position, performance, business
model and strategy, further details of which
can be found in the Strategic Report. Detailed
information on the Group's financial position
and performance can also be located in the
Group Financial Statements.

The Covid-19 pandemic and the resulting
closure of non-essential retail stores for much
of the year, has had significont impact on
high-street retailers, including the Group. During
this period the Board has met ona number of
occasions Yo discuss the impact of the Covid-12
pandemic on trading and the Group's long-term
future. The Covid-19 pandemic is deemed to

be a highly significant issue for the Group. The
Board is confident that the Group has adequate
resource to remain in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and has continued to
adopt the going concern basis of occounting in
preparing the financial staterments, As a result
of its findings. the Board has adopted a going
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concern statemnent for FY21, and full details of
this can be found in the Directors’ Report. The
Directors have also assessed the prospects

of the Group over 3.5 years, the Viability
Statement can be found at pages 36 to 37.

Risk Management

The Board's responsibilities and procedures
for managing risk and the supporting systems
of internal control are set out in the Principal
Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strategic
Report and further information is included in
the Audit Committee Report.

Controls in respect of financicl reporting and
the production of the consaldated financial
statements are well established. Group
accounting policies are consistently applied
and review and reconciliation controls operate
effectively. Standard reporting packages are
used by ali Group entities to ensure consistent
and standard information is available for

the production of the consolidated financial
statements. The Greup Accounting Manual is
under a cycle of ongoing review and farms part .
of our internal controls continuous imprevernent
activity during FY22.

The Board has carried out a robust assessment
of the Groups' emerging and principal risks in
the period and further detail can be found in
the Strategic Report as noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the report of the Audit
Committee [the Committee} for the §2-week
period ended 25 April 2021. The report sets out
the Committee's work and areas of focus during
this unprecedented year, which has seen the
global spread of Covid-19 and Government-
mandated lockdowns impacting all
geograghies across our Group. The Committee
heis therefore focused on and discussed the
Group's performance, and the impacts of, and
response to these external factors,

We monitored the Group's ongoing viability
and going concern positions, incorperating
the impaocts of the pandemic and including
the review of key accounting judgements and
estimates. We have kept the Group risk profile
and emerging risks under continued review
and had ciear oversight of the activities of
the executive Compliance & Risk Group. We
have also monitored the Group's response to
opportunities and acquisitions, to ensure we
come through the period stranger and on track
ta meet our strategic targets on the return to
brocder economic recovery.

On beholf of the Board, the Committee
monitors the Group's financial reporting
processes and the integrity of its financial
stotements and ensures high standards of
quality and effectiveness in the external audit
process. The Committee olso reviews and
monitors the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk management and internal
control, governance and compliance.

We have built a strong and productive working
relationship with RSM since their appointment
in 2019 as our External Auditer ond we value
the integrity, strength and depth af their audit
and appreach.

The Committee has supported managemeant
with the Group's RCF renewal with petential
new and existing lenders and is comfortable
with the strength of engagement and financial
support for the business and its strotegic intent.

sondinnd across the HK

We have made strong progress against our
continuous improvement assurance agende
across governance, risk and control and this
was noted in the Group's external Board
evatugtion which is discussed in more detail
within the External Board Review report We
also continue to strengthen relationships with
cur Big 4 and Top 10 co-source partners. We
have closely monitared the Government's audit
and governance reform agenda and considered
our approach to readiness as part of our F¥21
and FY22 agendaos.

The Committee values the ongoing work of the
Groug's Retail Support Unit and Digital Risk
teams and continues to seek assurance that
their work remains a strength in our Group, Our
performance as a business has remained strong
in these extremely challenging circumstances.

It hes been impressive to see the continued
strength and depth of experience across

al our business teams and their ability to
withstand and manage the significant risks that
materialised.

Toking its responsibilities as a whole, the
Committee is satisfied that the going concern
basis of accounting is appropriate (see further
detait at page 64) and that the Group is viable
over its assessment periad {see page 36).

| would like to toke the opportunity to thank all
our colleagues for their valuable commitment,
contributions and support towards our Group
performance.
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Membership

During the year, the Audit Committee
comprised three Non-executive Directors, David
Brayshaw, Nicola Frampton and myself as
Chair. Biographies of each Committee member
are set out in the Directors' profiles on pages 37
to 39 of this Annual Report.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and Senior
independent Non-executive Director, | am
satisfied that the Committee's membership
includes Directors with recent and relevant
financial experience and competence in
acceunting, risk management and governance,
and that the Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the retail sector in
which the Group operates.

Meetings

The Committee met eight times during the
year as we have extended our agenda to
accommadate our assurance requirements.
Non-Committee members of the Board and
the executive management team attended
Committee meetings at my invitation to
ensure the Committee is kept informed of
important developments in the business and
the risk and control environment. Attendance
by members of the executive management
team also helps to reinforce a strong culture
of risk management within the business.
Nen-Committee members do not participate in
Audit Committee decision making.

Our External Auditor attended all Committee
meetings during the year. The Committee
meets privately with the Externol Auditor at
least annually. In my cepacity as Chair, | have
regular meetings with the External Auditor
prior to each Committee meeting during

the qudit plenning process and as the audit
progresses, to address issues early and to avoid
any surprises. | am also in continuous contact
with the Board Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer, External Audit Lead
Partnar and our Head of Internal Audit &

Risk Management, who has cn independent
reporting line to me.
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The Main Responsibilities Of The Audit

Committee

The Committee’s main responsi ies, as
delegated by the Board, remained unchanged
during the year and are set cut in the
Committee's Terms of Reference. These include
ovarsight, ossessment ond review of:

Financial Statements And Reporting:

»  The integrity of the Group's financial
reporting as a whole and any formal
announcements relating to the Group's
financial performance, including any
significant judgements contained in them;
and

+ The Group's assessment of its going concern
and lenger-term prospects and viability.

External Auditor

+ The effectiveness of the external audit
process taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements; and

+ Developing and implementing policy on the
supply of non-audit services by the External
Auditor and approving any such work.

Risk Manugement And Internal Controls

+  The effectiveness of the Group's.internal
financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems, including the
activities of the Internal Audit function,
and driving an agenda of continuous
improvement;

»  Identifying and assessing principal and
emerging risks and risk exposures; and

+  The effectiveness of whistleblowing
arrangements.

In awddition, the Committee: + Monitored the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control
systems and received detailed reports
and presentations on principal risks
management;

= Supports the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for Corporate Governance
Code compliance;

» Advises the Board on the outcome of the
external audit and whether it considers
the Annual Report and Accounts, when
taken as a whole, are fais, balanced and
understandable and provide information + Reviewed its Terms of Reference; and
necessary to sharehelders to assess the - Together with the Board, considered the
Group's position and performance, business Committees own effectiveness.
maodel and strateqy;

+ Continued to support the Finance
leadership and evaluated the strength and
depth of the Finance team;

+  Makes recommendations te the Board on
the appointment, reappointment or removal
of the External Auditor;

+  Approves the External Auditor's fees and
terms of engagement;

+ Maintains strong relationships with the
Board, executive management, the External
Auditor and Internal Audit, in the execution
of their respective responsibilities; and

= Reports to the Board on how the Committee
has discharged its responsib
year.

During The Peried

The Committee focused on a number of

ant areas of internal control {including
financial, aperational and compliance controls).
During the pericd, the Committee:

= Monitored the business response, internal
controls and impact on the Grougp's financial
performance and reporting as the Covid-19
pandemic risk materialised;

* Reviewed the Group's financial statements
and assessed whether suitable accounting
policies have been adepted ond whether
management has made appropriate
estimates and judgements;

*  Reviewed the detailed scenarios and
assumptions behind the going concern basis
of accounting and longer-term viability;

+  Assessed the effectiveness of the external
audit process and considered the
reappointment of RSM as the External
Auditor for FY22;

Funtad on Steinbeis 100°% Recydled and Carbon Caplurad through the Woodland Trust, helping to create new Bntish woodland acress the LK
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| Controls

Infarmation on our approach to risk
management gnd internal control is set out

in the risk section of the Strategic Report and
concluding of our review of these systems is
set out on page 30, Our plans for continuous
impravement of sur risk management and
internal contral systems remained in piace
during the year and estoblishing a Group
Internal Audit & Risk Management function has
reinforced our progress. The work of our Retail
Suypport Unit is central to the Group's system
of interndi control. The Unit provides internal
assurance on the efficacy of controls over our
retail operational procedures and systems,

In the year, the Committee focused on a
number of significant areas af interral contro)
including:

«  Solvency and liguidity;

*  Business continuity, IT disaster recovery and
incident response;

¢+ Key legisiative and reguiatory obligations,
including doto protection, pandemic-related
regulation and oversight of Government
plans for audit and governance reform
- strengthening controls over financial
reporting;

« Cyber risk and data loss prevention,
including strengthening of our iInfermation
security capability;

* Progress against business and finance
systems tropsformotion; .

+  Updates on the governance policies review
and reporting;

* Reviewing significant accounting
Jjudgements and estimates;

*  The valuation of assets and stock and the
calculation of associated provisions;

«  The effectiveness of hedge accounting
and the managerment of foreign currency
exposures;

+  Property and the systems in place to ensure
impairments are recognised on a timely
basis;
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v Climate risk and our environmental, social
and governance agendg, supporting
Taskforce for Climate-related Financiai
Bisclosures reporting; and

*  The Group's banking arrongements,

See further at page 39 for the Board's
statement on Corporate Governance,

Audit Quulity

The Committee received comprehensive

updates from RSM and the business in response

to outlined reform proposals in the current
Government consultation: restaring trust in
audit and corporate governance,

Building on the three sigrificant reviews in
the last couple of years -the Campetition and
Markets Authority (CMA] Market Study, the
Kingman Review and the Brydon Review - the
UK audit sector, the cudit profession, audit

regulation, and the quolity of the oudit product,

have never been under greater scrutiny.

The Committee will cantinue to oversee the

development of plans for compliance readiness

in response to the current consultation.

External Auditor

The Committee wos pleased to recommend the

reappointment of RSM as Exterrial Auditor for

FY21 fallowing a rebust externat qudit review of

FY20. The fength cf tenure of RSM as external
auditors is 2 years.

RSM has reported to the Committee that, in its
professional judgment, it is independent within
the meaning of regulatory and professional
requirements and the objectivity of the oudit
engagement partner and audit staff is not
impaired. The Audit Committee has assessed
the independence if the ouditor, and concurs
with this statement.

The Committee evaluates the effectiveness of
the external audit process on an ongeing basis
and miakes recommendations annually to the

Board on the External Auditor's reappointment.

The External Auditor is then propesed for

reappointment {as applicable} each yeor at the

AGM.

In making its recommendations to the Board,

the Committee considers a number of factors
relating to the level of service provided by the
Externol Auditer, the quality of its work and its
independence. These include:

- The quality and scope of the planning of
the extemnal audit, including the External
Auditor's ussessment of risks and how it
intends to evolve the qudit plar ta respond
to chonges in the business;

«  The quglity end timeliness of the External
Auditor's reports to the Committee and the
Board during the year;

+  The level of understanding that the External

Audiitor has demonstroted in relation to the
Group's businesses and the retail sector;

= The objectivity of the External Auditor's view
on any deficiencies in internal control which
came to its attention during the course of its
audit work, and the robustness of challenge

and its findings on areas which require
management judgement;
= The contents of any external reports or

regulatory statements published in respect
of the External Auditor; and

«  The noture ond scope of non-audit services

provided by the External Auditor and the
level of fees charged for these services.

We have g stiingent palicy and opproval
process in place in respect of non-audit
services and our view is to keep this type of
engagement minimal unless in exceptional
but reasonable circumstances, and in line with
Group policy.

Opinion On The Annua! Report And Actounts

The Board has asked the Committee to advise
it on whether the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, are fair, bolanced and
understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's position, performance, business model
and strategy.

FRASERS GROUP

The Committee has reviewed the process
for preparing this Annual Report in order to
assess whether other information contained
in it is consistent with the Group's financial
statements for the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprit
2021, This process has included the following
key elements:

= Reviewing new regulations und reporting
requirements with external advisers
to identify odditional information and
disclosures that may be appropriate;

- Prepafting a detailed timetable and
allocation of drafting responsibility to
relevant internal teams with review by an
appropricte senior manager;

*  Providing an explanation of the requirement
for the Annual Report and Accounts,
token as a whale, to be fair, balonced and
understandable, to those with drafting
responsibility;

¢« Monitaring the integrity of the financial
staternents and other information provided
to shareholders to ensure they represent
a clear and accurate assessment of the
Group's financial position and performance;

*  Reviewing significant financial reporting
issues and judgements contained in the
financial staternents;

¢« Review of ali sections of the Annual Report
by relevant external advisers;

*  Review by the senior manager working
group responsible for the Annual Report
process; and

+  Overall review of the contents of the Annua)
Report and Financial Statements for the
period under review,

The Committee has advised the Board that

it considers the Annua! Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 25 April 2021,
when taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced
and understandable and that they provide the
necessary information to assess the Group's
position, performance, business model and
strategy. .
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Significant Financial Reporting Lssues

The Committee has considered the fgllowing areas of significance during the period and held
discussions with management and the Externat Auditor in reviewing these matters. The Committee is
satisfied with how each of these matters hcs been discussed and addressed.

Geing cunearn ond vighility The Audit Cornrnittag s held extensive talks with monagement on going rencern ond viabiiity, and
the Committas us o whole hos reviawed and chullenged management analysis and assumptions used
i both thesa Jssassrnants This includ#s reviewing Lagh fiow Kordasts, sansitinty analps
facilities and buture funding plons We conmdered areas of ongoing uncertainty in raspect of s
pandemnic, Bre gt and Lhe brooder ecanomic downturn

it the Greug's RCF expires in Novernber 2032, management ond the Committee ara confident new
cng will 2 orronged with the Group's syndicata of lenders, replating the cuscent kacility by the
tima it expires On this bas f gecounting s
appropuata 0 d the Groug i viabsle ver Hs assessment penod  Further information 15 included within
the Viabibty § atement and the Diractor's Repart

Inwantory The Committas has considered the work patformad on ivantory valuation und prowvisiohing and hos
ment’s methodalogy The Commictas is sabisfied the appronch o cons
prior penod ard has approprictely cansidered the impact of the Covid19 panderrwe on the Groups
nvenlory posifion

IFRS 18" occowiting for leases The Com 2 has considered ol aspacts of IFRS16 accounting for laoses
methadology, ubgements and assurmpbont and the pretentation in the Financ
Committee is satislied that management’s approach 15 reasonable

Impairment of right-of-use assets. property, plant  The Cammitten raviewed ond challanged management's wmparenent testing

& anuipment; heshold praperty and relatad assumptions o d methodologies used. Tha projected cash Nows, discouty

property provisians valuations used in the wate mpcapriate wHin the cantext of the Cowid-19
pandenic. ehe 1ges in conswmer behaviour and aconomic uncertaintiss

Farward curency cantyacts Thae Comrmiltee raviawad oid discussed with inanugueinent the valuation mathedalogy used and
accountng traatment appied to dervalive contracts The Co ltee alsa review del it

« place for theaxerution of such transactions and 15 satished thasw ate uppropnate

Accounting for invastinents und associates - Investiments. th= Cornmittee considared management's work on presentanon and ¢lassifie.otion nsk,
iespect of imvestment shareholdings in excass of 20% This wor

whether ar not the Group has sigrificant influence ove;

with managerm snt and reviewad ther rapr 1% 1N g
Associotas tha Zommittes also T ant's work on
w relalion to assecates The Committea has simdarly ducussed with management and rewiewed ils

09 whether the Group has contral aver it assaotes

Tepresentations i det

The Cam e 15 salishied that d are opprop that the investrmen|
Mulberry i the Seniad has baen teedtad and disclossd apprepsately and there 15 otherwise no matesiol
chongs froim th ¥ pror yeat posien impachng it contlsion

Related porties The Committae has evaluated the uppropriatansss o ity disclosures through dis
+ with management and review af papers outhning the veluctian of the loan ta Four Holdings Limited

and the FYZ1 payment und opprouch ta pravisiening b respect of MM Prap Consultancy Limited The
Conumittee 15 sonishad t the disctosures, paymant and approoch ta provisigning are opproprate

Governaient support [furlought Tha Group hos rzceved Governmant suppork n the period in the faem of the Caranavirus Job Ratention
cherme bosed cn mandated stors closures and the need to praserve |obs The complexites of the
stheme und the need to ansure I wlfnits legislative and regulatary f hove mode
this o key area of focus duning the yaar and for externol audit raviaw The Corimites 15 satstied,
considering the work of the ntemal teams and external advisers that inanagement hos appropnotaly
nrcounted for and recogrisad the Govarnment support recerved und that there is ne matanal ercr in
the pracesses susporting these claims The Comnutiee also notss the transparency nd engagerment
with HMREC throughout this process

n

vLegal and other provisions and gccrugls The Commiltue o reviewed and discussed with managament its judgaments ond datarmunotions in
ruspuct of lugal prowsioning and necrual for tox-reloted matters ot the period and Givan the inhers
ation in thase areos, the Committae has carafully considered

manggement’s conclusions and reviewad ndependent third-party reports whare ovarloble
As o result, tha Committas is satished the elossfreation and presentabion of legal and olher prowisions
ore apprapnate
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CMA Order 2014 Statement Of Compliance

Frasers Group confirms that it was in compliance with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market Investigation {Mondatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial period ended 25 April 2021. The
Committee has discussed all the items above in detail with the External Auditor.

Review Of The Committee's Effectiveness

The annual review of the Committee's effectiveness was included in the externally focilitated Board
evaluation during the period. The Committee is pleased to see the positive outcome of that report, as
well as its observations and recommendations.

The Committee has improved its governance and annua! planning cycle in the year and will continue
to build on this in FY22. | monitor and assess the effectiveness of the Committee regularly as Chair
and invite input from the Externat Auditor on this.

Key Objectives For FY22
The Committee's key objectives for FY22 are:

»  Continue to monitor the impacts of the pandemic on our business, its performance, its response
and its financial position;

+  Owersee the development of plans in response to the Government's reform proposals: restoring
trust in audit and corporate governance;

= Moniter continucus improvement of the Group's systems of risk management ond internal control;

«  Maintain a strong relationship with our External Auditor and engagement on the delivery of a
robust, efficient and effective external audit; and .

*  Strengthen assurance activity across the Group based on the three lines model, {accountability,
actions, assurance},
Richard Bottomley

Chuair of the Audit Committee and
Senior Independent Non-executive Director

5 August 2021

vwaodland across the LK
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Sharsholder

To meef the Group's needs, the Nomination
Committee must ensure that the Board
remains competent, diverse, well balanced and
equipped to deal with any present or future
issues which may arise. It is also important
that the Nomination Committee both supports
and challenges the decisions of the Executive
Directors, which includes reviewing the Group's
leadership and making recommendations
regarding the appointment of new Directors
and extending the term of office of existing
Directors. -

Biographical details of each Committee
member are shown in the Boord of Directors’
profiles on pages 37 to 39,

The Nomination Committee usually meets
formally twice a year, although additionai
meetings take place when appropriate. The
Committee formally met three times during
FY21, with all meetings being held virtually due
to the Covid-19 pandemic. The Committee
members also had a number of informatl
discussions during the year. All members of
the Nomination Committee are Non-executive
Directors and, with the exception of the Cheir,
are considered to be independent.

The Responsibilities Of The Nomination
Committee Include:

« Reviewing the leadership needs of the
Group, iocking at both Directors and senior
management;

* Reviewing the composition, structure and
size of the Boeard, and recommending
adjustments to the Board, having regard to
diversity, skills, knowledge and experience;

«  Reviewing the time the Non-executive
Directors are required to spend discharging
their duties;

+ ldentifying and nominating, for the approval

of the Board, condidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise;

+  Considering succession planning for
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Directors and senior management,

taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
skills and expertise therefore needed on the
Board;

«  Formally docurmenting the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors;

- ldentifying potential candidates for senior
posts, and making recommendations to the
Board; and

+  Considefing the recommendations to
shareholders for re-electing the Directors,
under the annual re-election provisions of
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code,

A fulllist of the Commuttee’s responsib|
are set out in its Terms of Reference which are
available on the Group Website: www frasers.
aroup.

Whot Has The Committee Done During
The Year?

Board Nominations

*  The Committee considered and
recommended to the Board the
regppointment of Cally Price as Non-
executive Workforce Director. In making
this recommendation, the Committee
recognised the enormous value and
contribution that Cally brings to the Boord.
She provides great insight and perspective
on all important issues thot affect the
perfermance of the workforce across the
organisation.

+  The Cormmittee considered and
recommended the election or re-election
of all Directors at the AGM, following
consideration_of their effectiveness and
commitment.

Composition of the Board

+  The Committee has reviewed the Board's
composition and we continue to ook to add
talented people to the Board, who will bring
the appropricte skills and experience. The
restrictions as d consequence of Covid-19
lockdowns have slowed the process but we
remain committed to strengthening our
Board. We have again spoken to Audeliss
recruitment which specialises in recruiting
diverse talent and we have clso had
discussions with a number of candidates
with strong experience and a background in
HR. Audeliss has no other connection with
the Company or any of its Directors,

+  In considering new appointmerits to
the Board, the Committee will identify
suitable candidates te Rifil the skill-sets
required, by taking into account succession
planning and diversity objectives. Members
of the Committee and the executive
management team will then meet with the
candidate before the Committee considers
recommending the appointment to the
Board.

Board Evoluation

+ Belinda Hudson Ltd was engaged
to conduct the FY20 external Board
evaluation. Due to restrictions caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic this was delayed
until F¥21. Neither the Company nor any of
its Directors has any other cannection with
Belinda Hudson Ltd. The evaluation was
conducted via one-to-one interviews with
individuol Directors and key members of
senior management. This is discussed within
the Board Review report.

Annual Performance Appraisals

All Board members, both Executive and
Non-Executive, went through an annual
performance review during FY21 and each
Director engaged fully in the process. This
included setting objectives for each individual. |
led these appraisals, as Chair of the Board and
the Nomination Committee, This process will be
repeated annually. Richard Bottomiey, Chair of
the Audit Committes and Senior Independent
Non-executive Director, led my perfarmance
appraisal and goal setting.

FRASERS GROUP

The Directors will take into account any
development needs identified in their appraisals
and will be challenged on how they have taken
action against these goals during their rext
annual appraisal.

Diversity and Inclusion

The Board reviewed various diversity and
inclusion policies from cther compaonies, to
erichle us to benchmiark curselves cgainst
industry standards, As a conseguence we have
now updated eur Board Diversity policy, which
<an be found on cur website at
https:/#frasers.aroup/

The Board has two fermale Directors,
representing 28% of the Board. There is
currently no representation from ethnic minority
backgrounds on the Board. However, we note
the contents of the Hampton Alexander Report
and the Parker Review for FTSE 250 companies
and we are continually seeking to increase
diversity at Board level, as reflected in our
objectives below.

The Group's objectives in relatior: to Board
diversity and inglusion are:

+ To ensure that the Board has an appropriate
mix of skills, experience and knowledge,
to ensure a variety of perspectives are
represented on the Board and enable the
Board to effectively oversee and support the
Group's growth and maneogement;

+ To maintain Board representation fram
the workforce, which brings the voice of
colieagues into the boardroom, supports
our strategy of investing in our people and
enables the Board to effectively oversee
and support the Group's growth and
management.

+  Toincrease female representation on the
Board to 33%, in line with the Hampton
Alexander target; and

+ To strive to appoint at least one Director
of colour to the Boaard by 2024, as
recornmended by the Porker Review.

The Group achieved its Diversity palicy

objective in respect of gender and age, by
having < strong gender balance in senior
management and their direct reports (see
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gender diversity table of page 23, and a varied
representation of ages in middle and senicr
management. When reviewing candidates

who may become potential Beard members,
the Committee has regard to factors inciuding
professional experience, skills, education,
gender, ethnicity and background to ensurz

a variety of perspectives are represented ak
Board level. As discussed abave, we have been
working with a recruitment agent specialising in
diverse candidates. The Board is conscious that
to successfully deliver the strategic goals o”

the business our people, including the Board of
Directors must reflect the diverse cultures cnd
values of our customer base.

The Cemmittee recognises the advantages

of having a diverse team and has therefore
reviewed the composition of the senior
management team, including their direct
reports. A number of senior management

roles were held by women ct period end,
including the Head of Internal Audit and Risk
Management and UK Financial Controller. Qur
senior leadership team is 27% female, whils:
the overall UK workforce is approximately 52%
female.

We were pleased that our most recent Gender
Pay Gap Report showed o reduction in the
median gender pay gap within our largest
relevant subsidiary (SPORTSDIRECT.com Retail
Limited} to 0%. However, we will continue tc
explore ways to address other gender pay gap
differences within our business.

Further details on diversity and inclusion are set
out in the Our People Report.

Frasers n_.r-._u Elevation Programme

During FY21, we worked with We are Wiser to
launch the Group's new Elevation Programrre.
This has resulted in the recruitment of a diverse
mix of talent, with the potentic! to become t1e
future leaders of the Group.

David Daly

Chair of the Nomination Committee

5 August 21
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EXTERNAL BOARD REVIEW

We recognise that some of the main driving
forces behind the success of Frasers Group

are our Board, Committees ond management
teams. To ensure we are getting the best from
our Board, we undertook an independent review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness. We
hoped that this review would provide insight
and clarity into how our leadership team is
performing, especially when benchmarked
against other listed companies, as well as
highlight areas of improvement that would
add value to the Group and ensure we become
market leaders in governance and best
practice.

In January 2020, the Board agreed to engage
Belinda Hudson Limited to undertoke a review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness.
Belinda is o recognised expert in enhancing
board effectiveness and has over 15 years'
experience working with Boards, Committees
and directors of FTSE 350 companies. Belinda
Hudson Limited has no other connecticn with
the Group or any of its Directors.

The Board review was originally due tc be
completed prior to the Apri 2020 financial

year end. However, it was deferred when the
first iockdown was initioted as there was a
strong preference for conducting foce to face
interviews, As it became clear that face to face
meetings would not be an option for some
time, it was decided te proceed with remote
meetings eatly in 2021 to ensure that evaluation
of the Board's performance could be conducted
by the end of the April 2021 financial year.

Methodology

Belinda undertock confidential one-te-one
discussions with members of the Board and

a selection of senior management who have
regular interaction with, and support the Board
and Committees. She attended the February
2021 Board meeting for observational purposes,
Belinda was given unfettered access to the
previous 12 months' Board and Committee
papers and minutes and governance
documents to inform her review.

Frinted on Stembeis 1007 Recycled and Carbon Captuied thrauah the Woodiand Trust, helping to create new Bntish woodland avrass the UK

She compiled @ comprehensive report which
covered all aspects of board and committee
performance. It was broken down into the
following categories:

- Board composition and dynamics

- The Board's role

- The Board at work

- Committees

The report was presented to and discussed with
the Board at the Aprit 2021 Board meeting.
Qutcomes

The report highlighted the many strengths of
the Board and Committees and contained
several recommendations for further
development. The Board accepts the
recommendations and where necessary, is
taking steps to implement them.

Belinda's findings in each section were as
follows:

Board C ition and Dy i

P

The report found that "the Board at Frasers
Group has enjoyed a good period of stability
since the CFO was appointed in September
2019. The Board has strengthened and is
becoming increasingly effective under the
leadership of the current Chair with strong
support from the Senior Independent Director
and others.”

The Board composition benefits significantly
fram the inclusion of o full-time employee

as the Non-executive Workforce Director

and Workers' Representative. It provides the
Boeard with *full transparency and visibiliey on
the perspective of the warkforce without any
filters™ and very strong insights into workforce
engagement.

Despite some previous investor oppasition to
the Chair, the review presented a positive view
of the Chair. He brings many relevant and
useful strengths and is growing into the role
well. Board members and Senior Management
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weTe Unammous in their auﬁmSm% that he was
on excellent choice for the role. 18 possESSES
“pyaluable wnawledde and experente

celating to the settor, geosysiem™ and brand
am,aso_..wiiw, and his relationship with the
Chief Erecutive s based o0 openness and
transparency as well as utuat trust and
aspect. The relationship agppears robust s
that they can chailenge each other and handle
disag reement” The Chairis committed T
developing his skills and addressing the gaps in
1is knowledge.

The el view of the Seniol _9ann:n_m2
Digecko¥ and other Mon-executive Directors of
the Board was positive- They are all igent
and focused on acting in the pest interests of
the Group. They bring with them & preadth
of knowledge and expeiience thot they

are wiliing 1O share poth insice and oukside
the boardroom™- The Seniof Independent
Director plays ¢ very useful role in developing
external relationships through netwarking and
v..o:..oz_._m the Group Ind positive light.

The \eadership .v_\o<..am& by the Chief

Executive Was described 05 peing .Emv:nﬂ..o:a;.
honest, wan:mﬁaqm:n ond no___avoaﬁ.am. The
Chief Executive plays & v?ano_ ole in the
SUCCesS of the Group He adopts @ positive

and canstructive aititude to the Board and
welcomes input and challende from the
Non-executive Directors. The review ZmZ‘_mrﬁm
the disparity between internally held views of
the Chiet Executive and the Chvief Exgtutive’s
externd! reputation. He is taking steps to
remedy the impuoct his axternol reputation

hos on the Group BY stepeind pack from his
external facing roles ~ to enable the next
mm:ma_“._n_: of talent within the Group to alevate
the external reputation of the Group

The review has dentified soMe areas of
mcmmmmﬂmm gevelopment inchuding the
recruitroent of o ZOJ.mxmn:cz» Director
with strong listed company experience and

to address these issues during the next fingneial
year.
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Despite the chollenges dentified, the overall
gssessment of the Roard’s campasition. senior
|eadership and dynamics was c<m§:m_3_:m_<
pasitive. Members of the Board ang Executive
Committee anjoy positive relationships and
mm:ma_z engage in positive Board wehoviouTs

The Boord's Role

Board members heve & good understanding of
the role of the Bourd, but further developmert
is peeded t ensure that the Board Futfils ot
ospects of s role and strengthens centaint
aspects of the Groug's corporate governante.
These issues &€ ready beind oddressett

"y the Board toltowing @ report ancnmm by

externd owisoTs

Belinda noted that the Boord offers @ good mix
of suppoeTt ana chafienge and adds yalue an
mary fronts. The Mon-executive Diractors make
agood conkribution t9 the Group in ways that
qo beyond the usual remit of Non-executivé
Directors, The jntroduction of the strotegy

day has been very “positive and useful’ and
|eaves sCOPE for further chm_ov_ﬂm:_”. The
current oversight that the Board exercises over
the financial and anm.gﬂosn_ perfosmance

is sount. Areas where :.sﬂ_.o{mz_m:nm canbe
made include mﬁofmjoEma focus and oversight

Z@Z._mramu thot the Board took great jnterest
n the heoith ond scfety of the warkiorce during
the pandemic.

Itis gncourading thot the Boord is increasingty
focusing ©n people related matters has
mBﬂ_Ema axperts to review and develop 1t
emplayar value _Houom._gc: ond is actively
pursulng a stretedy of deveioping a younget
cadre of Basnm%mn» o support the
sustanability of the Group- The intention of
ncBBcanu",Sm a positive cuttare from the
top appears 1o be effective; 0% Hon-executive
Directors heve roade positive seponts that
“ipere is 0 ST0NY sense of Oﬂﬁcﬁc:._z and
frust enjoyed by mnﬁ.o‘mmm,‘. The Board is

also driving the agendd of incrensing giversity
and incluston tnroughout e Qrovp with the
CFO ond won-Executive Workforee Directer
ond Workers' mmmamwm:ﬂn?m leading the
indtiative. The Baard is rabust, hos (nfluence and

\J\J\\\l\\\i\tﬁl\w\\\l\\\\\\lx\ﬁ\‘

communicatés d positive culture whitst leaving
room for further growth and developrnent 85
the business grows.

The Board ot Wark

The current c:_uj@m_.:m:nw for the trequency of
formal Boord mestings have heen assessed €5
appraprcie and beneficial as they meet the
needs of the Non-executive Directors without
placing urnecessary parden on the Executives:
The formalt of the meetings hos alsa beet
commended 08 it gives the merbers ample
opportunity ta interect outside the meetings
and develop their relationships:

The information nﬂoﬁam.w to the Board 19
@m:mqof of a goed quality and s _u:wwm_...nm.a. in
o wary open and yransparent menner However,
,:....m:oemBm:ﬂm can be made to the timeliness

in which it 18 _ua<.ama‘ There wos concern thot
the Company mmnqmgozn, pet WOS sometimes
o<m:zrmr3m& but this team Vs recently been
m:m:o«.:m:m& with the rectuitrent of bwo new
hires and 16 petter vﬁnma now 1@ ﬁaﬁm_m strong
support 1o the Board and Committees.

Committess

The review ot the Cornmittees wWas eguolly
encouraging aythough arens of .,3?053&:»
nave peen jdentified for each of the
Commitiees, the overarching conclusion was
thot they are becoming .:Qmomimz effective in
carrying aut their functions:

The Audit Committee Nas pecome MOTE
affective under the \eadership of the Chair.
His wackground as @ portner it & Big Fous
qccounting fFrm means he brings ysefut and
relevant experiente The Chair's Bnnomm_jm:n
of meetings has been noq::.m:nmu and

Ythe Committee erijoys good support from
:..D:Q@m:,_m:a.

1t pas olso Been recognised that the
Committee's oversight of risk gpvernance
hos seen m.,m:m:nn:« ,390&3@:? wil
_.mnE:HBm:» of the new Head of Internal

Audit who hos mode good progress inthe
further development of the risk monagerment
framework and is "bringing incrensed rigour o

The Audit Committee enjoysa relationship with
e Externd! Auditors that is collaborative @ nd

faear] alT

ﬂﬂ}mmﬂm grou?

e

positive T i also robust and challenging.

The ravieWw has r.m::m:nmn the "very positive
and extensive role” the Remuneration
Committee has piayed in the development of
the Feariess 4000 share plon which secwed

PUMErous initigtives 1o overhoul policies and
processes 1o ensure it offer competitive
packages 1o arnployees with strong drive

and support from the Committes and input
qu(_..ama by external rermunetation consultarts.

David Do
Chair of the Homination Commitiee

5 August 207
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Board Succession

As a Remuneration Committee we fully support the prospective changes within our Board and senior
team mare fully described in the announcement dated 5th August 2021, Ajthough some of these
changes will not become effective until loter in the three-year periad in which our new policy will
operdte, we already know some of the detail around how we want pay arrangements for our new
senior executive team to be aligned to, and support, the growth and elevation strategy which our
Board succession changes will seek to accelerate and deliver.

Accordingly, where we are able to do s, in the new policy we have set out details of proposed

incentive arrangements for our Executive Directors {both current and prospective) and particularly
our new Executive Share Scheme, os described below. Any further details of pay Grrangements for
new Executive Director appointments will be disclosed at the appropriate time when they join the

Board.

Naw LTIP To Align To Principles Of Fearless 1000

At our 2021 AGM, we will be seeking shareholders' approvol for o new share plan (the “Executive
Share Schame”} which.ceeks to apply many of the principles of the Fearless 1000 to an LTIP. Three
awards, sach subject to a £12 share price target, will be initially made to Chris Wootton [CFC), Sean
Nevitt (Chief Cammercial Officer} and David Al-Mudaflal (COQ). An awerd, subject to a £15 share

price target, is also proposed to be made ta Michael Murray when, as anticipated, he joins the Board,

The key terms, and how these compare to the key terms of the Fearless 1000, are summarised below:

EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME FEARLESS 1000 PLAN
AWARD LEVELS Three imbal awords are expected 10 milhon shares
to be made tothe CFO, Cheef 100,004 shares maximum pE per:
Commeraial Othcer and COO ovar 18 fof top 10 partarmers warth £1
miibon shores n total (500000 shares aoch fot thase ndividuals ot £30 per
muximUIn per person] charal, funther allactions betwesn
others in the top 14608
A single uword 15 expected 1o be
made te Michael Murray, on his
wppantment &0 the Bourd, aver
6,711,409 sharas in toted, being &
number of shares which ot 1 share
price of £15 per shore (less the 10p
per sharenominal saiue of thase
shotes) will be worth £100milion
The value of awards can be reduced
by the value of solaries paid in the
penod ko vesting
TIMING OF AWARDS Awards to CFO, Chalf Commercial  Award pencd bagan following 2020

Otficer ana £OO to be mode as soon
as possible after 2021 AGH

Awrd to Michosl Murigy 1o be mode
on oinmg tha Board

AGM on 7 Oetober 2070

TARGET SHARK PRICE FOR VESTING

Either £12 per share ffor aweads to
CFO, Chiet Commeraial Officer ond
COO) or £15 per share {proposed
querd to Michoal Murny

£10 per share

PERFORMANCE PERIOb UR1te 4 years bram AGM 2021 Up ta S years kram AGM 2020
fextended oy 1 yeor due to Impact of
the Covid-19 pondenic)

PGTENTIAL VESTING DATES 1f the share prce target Is acheved  1F £10 target achieved by October

by October 3025 awords vestw Lea 2025 awords west In twe equal
equal tranches, 50% niiatly and tranches, §0% itially and 50%
50% I year kater The Com¥utiee oy 1 yeor luter The Carnmitlee iy
ollow all owards to vest eatly fthe - allaw il owards to vest early If the

. E15 shore pace target 1s ochiaved. £18 shore price target 15 achieved
Hawever, shares would rormally be  However, shores wauld normolly be
drkvered m two banchas delmered w two

52

The extension of the performance peried

for the Fearless 1000 plan is seen to benefit
participants as it provides an gdditional period
to achieve the £10 share price target given that
the difficulties associcted with the Covid-1%
pandemic have impacted the business in the
first year of the Fearless 1,000 plan

As a Committee, we consider it very important
to align Executive Directors ond senior
executives to the aspiration of the Fearless
1000, albeit Gt an enhanced performance
target of £12 or £15 as appropriate.

Chair And Non-gxecutive Director Fees

Although not ¢ matter for the Remuneration
Committee {being a matter reserved for the
Board), the Board has delegated responsibility
for setting the remuneration of the Chair ta the
Remuneration Committee which has carried
out o review of the Chair's fees and of the
Non-executive Directors’ fees. As a result of thot
review the Board has decided to increase fee
levels for the Chair and Non-executive Directors
as detailed on page 58, This is the first increasé
in fees to the Chair and Non-executive Directors
since the [PO in 2007

Format Of The Report And Matters To Be
Approved At Our 2021 AGM

At the 2021 AGM, shareholders will be asked to
approve three resolutions related to Directors'
remuneration matters. These resolutions are:

«  to approve the Girectors’ Remuneration
Policy;

= to approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Report; and

«  to introduce the new Execulive Shore
Scheme described above.

The vote to approve the Directors'
Remuneration Report is the normal annual
advisory vote on such matters.

If approved by our sharehelders, the Directors’
Remuneration Policy will apply for a maximum
of three years from the 2021 AGM and w
replace the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
previously approved at the 2018 AGM.

For completeness, a resolution will also be
proposed at the 2021 AGM to amend the

-

FRASERS GROUP

Fearless 1000 plan for consistency with the
Executive Share Scheme with regards to
potential acceleration of the vesting and
release of shares if the £15 share price target for
the oword to Michael Murray is achieved.

| hope that our sharehelders remain supportive
of bur approoch to executive pay ot Frasers
and vote in favour of the resolutions on
remuneration matters to be tabled at the 2021
AGM.

David Brayshaw
Chuir of the Remunaration Committee
5 August 2021

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
POLICY

This report contains the matencl required '
te be set out as the Directors’ Remunerction

Report for the purposes of Part 4 of The

Large and Medium-sized Companies and

Groups [Accounts and Reports) (Amendment)

Regulations 2013, which amended The Large

and Medium-sized Companies and Groups

(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (the

DRR Regulations').

This part of the report sets out the Company's
propased Directors’ Remuneration Policy
which, subject ta shareholder approval, sholl
take binding effect from the date of the 2021
AGM and remain volid until the 2024 AGM.
The praoposed Policy is determined by the
Committee, and key proposed changes to
elermnents of the current Directors’ Remuneration
Palicy, which was approved by shareholders
at the 2018 AGM ond expires at the 2021 AGM
have been highlighted for ease. As explained
in the statement from the Chair of the
Remuneration Committee, the Remuneration
Committee has decided to introduce o new
executive share scheme thot appropriately
aligns Executive Directors' interests with

the interests of sharehaolders by focusing on
absolute shareholder value, and intends to
seek shareholder approvai for the Executive
Share Scheme at the 2021 AGM. Consequential
changes have been made os to reflect the
changes to the Remuneration Policy.

nted on Steinbeis 100%, Recycled )

o Carbon Captu ad thrauah
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FRASERS GROUP

FUTURE POLICY TABLE

The table below describes each of the elements of the remuneration package for the

Executive Diractors,

ELEMENT OF

CHANGES TO POLICY TO NE ARPRGVED AT

REMUNERATION PURPOSE/ LINK TO STRATEGY DPERATION MAXIMUM ERFORMANCE MIASURES THE 2021 AGM
RASE JALARY Fixed element of tha :smunaration package, where the  Base salanes are narmally reviewed annually Althaugh salanes lor Exacutive Cirectors {othar thon Nat apphcable No chonge
bolance of fixed and variable remuneration is aligned to Mine Ashley, wha does nat currantly receive o solary) are
the commercial strategy of long-term profitabls growth  Mike Ashiey does not currently receive o salary for i set ot fevels balow the amaunts typcally paid by similar
and rallects the Compony remuneration philosophy of ol sized companias, tha Committes ratans diseration te
geanng reward to perfarmonce with a shanng of nsk 52t salanes at lave!s considered oppropriata kor the
betwean Exacutive Directors and shareholders businats, contidenmng K8 $i2w and complenty
Wit the exception of a 20% colleague discount on The current Executrve Directors do nat receive any Although the Rermunarution Conwnittas has not set un Not applcbie ) Mo chanys
products purchosed trom the Group's retod stores, which  banahits other than the cefleague diseount, which s net absolute maximum leval of benafits Exacutive Diractars
1s owailubte to Executve Directors ather thar Mike avalable for Mike Ashiey may receive, the Company retains discration to set
Ashiley, no additional benefits ore generally available benehts at o level which the Remuneration Committee
ta Exscutive Directars, The some leval of discount s Banefits muy be provided i Iine with morket practice  considars appropriots aganst tha market and to
' ovailabls to ull colleoguas 1o recrut @ naw Exscutive Diractor tukmg mia uccount  support the an-gaing strategy of tha Compoany
ncvidual crcumstances Such
banalits may welude relocotion expenses [mare fully
datoifed In App o t '
balow] X
RETIREMENT . PFrowde post-amployment benefits to recruit and retain The Executiva Directors aru entitled o parucpoteina The currant maximum employer contribulion to the Net opplicatile, Na change
BENEFITS indenduals of the calibre requirad for the buyiness stokehalder pension scheme on the some bosis os other  stukeholder pension scheme 15 3%
employeas .
The Comnmities moy incraase smplayer contnbution .
On nequest this benelil may be pad 05 a salury rates to reflect changes in the aulo entolment employer
1 heu of pensicn contmbutian as necassary _contnbution rates
ANNUAL BONUS Rewards the Executve Directar lor perfonmance which  Executive Diractors, other than Mike Ashley, may esn The maxwnum bonys that on Executive Director imay Any bonus appartunity shall be assessed nguinst ane or  No chunge
suppoats the Group's strategy and performanca nrofe o bonus Any bonus earned in excess al 100% of soiory  earn sholl be 200% of safory in respact of any hnuncial — mare metrics determined by the Committes and linked N
wouid be defarred nta shares for o penod of two years,  year, to the Campany's strategy ond/or the perdormance
unless the amount 1o be deferred amount would be less - of the Executiva Director in role, with the waighting
- than £10000 fhe Cammittee also retains a discretion betwezn the metrics determined by the Committes
ot ta operate deferal n on excaptionol cose and il relevant. Bonuses will be determined between 0%
wihera salury paid in the year wos £250,000 or less and 100% af the moxitmumm gpportunity bosed on tha
c i of the 2 ratrics.
Any bonus paid would be subject to clawback for o
penod of 3 years following its datarminatzn in the The annual banus plan is a discretionary atraagament
evant of gross misconduct, materiol ausstateinent of e and the Commitiee retains u standard pawer to apply
Compony's hnancinl statarments or corparaie falure #s judgement to odjust the outcome of lhe aanual bonus
plan for any performeance megsura [rgm zeng to any
capl should it cansider that {o be oppropriate,
LOMG TERM INCENTIVES Ta matwate and incentivisa delvery Exacutive Diractors, ather than Mike Ashley, may recerve  For awards with o £15 share price targar, the maxmuim — Awards will vast sublect ta an obselute share price Introdugtion of the Executive Shore Schema, which s aur

af sustained performanca over the long term, ond
ta pramate ahgnment with sharehaldars' interests,
the Compuny intends ta aperate an Executive Share
Schems

awards under the Exacutive Shars Schame. Awards
may be grantad uy norminol cost gplions or conditipnal
shars awords which vest to the sxent the perlormonce
canditions ane sotisfled over o penod ol lour years

The Cammuttee shall hove discretion 1o raduce the
numher of Sharas subject o an award granted under
the Execulive Shore Scharss by un amount equol to the
aggregate gross solary recewwed by u porticipant dunng
the perfarmance period

Clawhdck and matus prowsions apply te owards granted
undler the Executiva Shara Scheme Any amounts
recarved under tha Executive Shors Schema moy be
subjecl to clowback for g period af 3 years following

the end of the parformanca parcd in the event of gross
misconduct, matedial misstatement of the Compeany's
financial statements, corporate fallure of reputanonal
demage

4515 norrmab, the Committes retains power Lo seftie
awards in custun exceptiongl cases only

opportunity for an Exegutive
over up to 6711409 shares

rector will be on award  target of ether £12 or E15. The thara price must ba over

tha target fer oy period of 30 cansecutive denling daye
. during tha four-yaur performanea periad

For awards with o £12 share prica targst, the maxmum
oppertunity for an Executve Dirertar will be on oword
ovar up ta 600,000 thores

The Committax may sst additional parformance
<anditions on @words under the Executive Share
Scheme, as it considers appropriate.

raw lang term incentive plan that will reward cur serior
executives lor achieving sustained parformance over the
lang term,
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The table below sets out an averview of the approach to remuneration for the Chair and

. Non-executive Directors.

PURFGSE / LINK TO STRATEGY

APPROACH OF THR COMPANY

Choir ond Non-executie Diractor fees

Providd 0n apprepriote rewand 1o altsact and proctie
ratain Diecters of the calibre raquired for the

160 Pol
ities and duties placed upan them, wiile also having regurd to market

The Committea's Remune:
winch retiect the responsil

n respect of the Nen-exec c1ors 15 to pay enoual fees

huuness Non-executive Puectors receve o fied apnual tee

Non-executiva Directors [other than the Non-executive Worklarce Director] do nat und are not entitied

ta participate in any benus or shore scharmes The Nan-exe

paitieipate in employes henug and share schemes for employees ineluding ony al-employse schemas

Nen-executive Drertors may ba ehgible for benefits such us the use of sacretonal support, trovel costs

or other ber

its that oy be appropricte

.The aggregate lees prd ooy banehls of the Non-exet utive Drrectors (including the Nan-executive
Workloree Director] will not excaed e bt from hme to time sat out inthe Campuny’s Afickes of
Associotion for such fees This us currently ESG0000 p o 1n aggregote. A resolution wil be put to
shioreholders to increcss this bt 10 £1000.000 B 0 aggregate This s a formul cap and dots not

reflect any form of ospir

Explanation Of Performance Measures Chosen

Any bonus opportunity would be subject

to perfermance metries determined by the
Committee and linked to the Compaony's
strategy and/or the performance of the
Executive Director in role. The metrics and
performance against them would be disclosed
in the Directors' Remuneration Report in which
payment of the bonus was disclosed, or if
later when they were po longer considered
commercially sensitive. Any performance
measure may pe varied or substituted by the
Committes if an event occurs which causes
the Committee to determine that it would be
appropriate ta do so. The rationale-for any such
variation or substitution wouid be given in the
next Directors' Remuneration Report.

The proposed Executive Share Scheme will be
subject to a performance measure determined
by reference to the Company share price as
welt as personal performance. This metric has
been chasen as it aligns the interest of the
Executive Director with those of shareholders,
The torget share price required for vesting

is considered stretching (being either £2 or

£5 above the target for the Fearless 1000
plan} and will therefare reward sustained
performance over the long-term.

|
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In addition to the shere price performance
measure, it Is intended that awards under the
Executive Share Scheme will be granted subject
to two underpins requiring:

i. satisfactory performance ratings for each
participant; ard

ii. onticipated delivery of our elevation
strategy.

The purpose of the underpins is to ensure that
@ minimum level of performance is achieved
befere an award may vest {in addition to
achievement of the share price performance
target), Details of the performance measures
and underpins that apply to each award
granted under the Executive Share Scheme to
an Executive Director will be disclosed in the
appropriate Directars' Rermuneration Report
(subject to censiderations of commercial
sensitivity). .

FRYI
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Explanation Of Diff InR d

FRASERS GROUP
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Policy For Other Colleaagues

The Company has a large number of colleagues
with different responsibilities and differing levels
of seniority. Reward policies for colleagues
other than Executive Directors are determined
by reference te grade, role, performance and

other relevant foctors. The Committee engages

with the wider warlforce on the remuneration
policy through the Non-executive Workforce
Director, whose feedback and views are sought
by the Committee.

The Committee has reviewed the salories, other
remuneration and other employment conditions
of senior and middle managers thraughout

the Group, and has taken them into account in
considering Executive Directors' salaries and the
creation of new incentive schemes in order to
create a sense of common purpose and sharing
of success.

In response to those considerations, the Frasers
All-Employee Omnibus Plan (known as "Fearless
1000 was launched following approval by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan 15 intended to provide a significant
one-off reward for eligible and qualifying
colleagues if o stretching share price growth
torget is achieved within a five year period
from the 2020 AGM.}. There are two rejated but
distinct parts to the Fearless 1000 as follows:

- cash bonuses to eligible and qualifying
calleagues in the Company's group, to
reward them for their loyalty ond hard work;
and

+  share awards to those 1,000 eligible and
qudlifying colleagues in the business who
most demonstrate outstanding service and
performance consistent with the Company's
vaiues.

Further details regarding the Fearless 1000

are provided in the Our People section of this
Annual Report,

RO IR AN

i ions OF Application Of
Remuneration Policy

The chart below sets out an illustration of the
palicy for FY22 in line with the future policy
table above. The chart provides on illustration
of the total remuneration opportunity thot
could arise under four different levels of
performance. No chart is included for Mike
Ashley, who does not receive any remuneration
from the Compeny. If Michoel Murray joins
the Board as anticipated, an updated version
of this disclosura will be pravided in the next
Directors' Remuneration Report following his
appointment,
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Chris Wootton, Chief Financial Officer
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For the purposes of the chart, the following assumptions have been made.

SCENARIO

FINED PAY

EOHUS

Maxmum Ramuneraton
with 50% Shate
rce tnrease

LTl

Mirimum remuneratian

Performaica w line
sxpectations

Moximum remunaration

Mawmum remuneration with 50%
shore price Incrense

Base salary of £250,000

An smplover pansian contriutian of
3% of salury, capped at first £50,000
al salary,

No banufis {as na benefits e
currently proposed to ba pf weded to
the Executive Directors in 23 other
eague discourt, which,
in the apinien of the Comm ttee,
cannot be rellacted i these charts
as its value depends upon t e valug
uof the Executive Directar's purchase]

No bonus earned

No vesting of shara twards

No bonus earned becauss n the
opinion of the Committae, the

such that any bonus garned would
require tha achievement of stratch
perfarmance.

No vasting of share owards biectuse
v the apinion of the Committee,
the share awards will only vest as o
tasult of stratch parformnce

A bonus ol 206% of solacy 15 samed.

Caleuluted basad an the volue of
600,000 shres fmaxmum potential
vusting for un oward to the CFO
under the new Executive Share
%chernel ot the end of FY2 {using o
3 manth average]

A bonus of 700% of solary 1s eamed

Calculoted bosed on the voiue of
£00.000 shares at the und of FY21
tusing & 3 month averagel plus S0%
share price increase.
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Approdach To Recruitment Remuneration

When agreeing o remuneration package for the appeintment of a new Executive Director, the
Committee will apply the following principles:

+ the package will be sufficient to attract the calibre of Director required to deliver the Company's

strategy,

+ the Committee will seek to ensure thot no mare is paid than is necessary; and

+ inthe next Annual Report on remuneration, the Committee will explain to shareholders the
ratichale for the arrangements implemented.

The Committee will ordinarily seek to implement the remuneration package in accordance with the
elements referred to in the policy tabte on pages 53 to 54, Cansistent with the DRR Regulations, the
Committee retains discretien to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside that policy to
meet the individual circumstances of the recruitment, subject to the limits and porameters of this
racruitment remuneration section of the Directors” Remuneration Policy.

ANT APPROACH

Aase salary ond benehts

Typicolly oligned with the policy sat out in the policy table an page 53 In lne with the DRR Regulations,
there 1 no farmal cap on salaries in raloton 1o o recr

Retirernent benefits

Ahgned with the pelicy set out i the policy tuble on puge 53, pension benalits may be provided at
tates tligned to employee levels, although the Committen may provide for such amount te be paid te o
pansian arrangement e poid ut o supplement 1o base sakary  lieu of a pansion orrongement.

Wariubla remunerairen

Any vanable remuneration grantad to a newly appamted Executive Diracrer would ba subject ta the
same maximum levels that generally apply undst the Direetors' Remunetation Policy.

Tha vglue of any buy-aut arrangems (described belaw) dass nat count towards those n
lewals The Comrmittee may vary the application of duterral te ang annual Banuy oRRcALRity (o reflect
the circumstances of tha recrutment

Compersdtion for farfellud arrangernents

The Commattee may make awards on hinng on extamal candidats to buy-out
arrangements forferted on leaving o praviaus amployee In daing so, thi Comnattee will have regard to
relavant factors mncluding any perlormoncs condibons attachad to such arangeiments [and whethier
such conditions were ot were likely Lo Be nchieved), the lorm of thase arrongements (e.g cash or
sharast and the tmeframe of such arangaments

‘While such uwards are excluded from the maximum level of vanable ramuneration referred ta ubove,
@ Committee’s mtention is thot the value aworced would be no higher than the expected value of the
forfaited arraigarments

Buy-out awards wil be subysct to torfeiture of cluwhack on e
lorfeiture if the Executiva Director departs witlun 12 mo
if tha dupartuns aceurs within 12 and 24 maonths

Iy deparlure, with 100% heing subject o
ming, and  shding scale down to 50%
mng, gt the Committes's discratian

Relotatian costs

It nacessary, tha Compaiy will poy oppropriate relacak
turther two financiol years, as it considers appropnate The Comr
s paid than 1s necsssary

& yeor of uppontment ond for @
tee wil seok 1o ensure that no mare

Any share awards referred to in this section will be granted as far as possible under the Company's
existing share schemes. If necessary and subject, where relevant, to the limits referred to above,
oawards may be granted outside existing share plans as permitted under the Listing Rules, which
cllow for the grant of awards to facilitate, in unusucl circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive

Director.

Where o position is filled internally, any en-going remuneration obligations or ocutstanding variable
pay elements shall be allowed to continue occarding to their subsisting terms or be adjusted to
reflect the new appointment as appropriate.

The remuneration package for a newly appointed Non-executive Director would normally be in line
with the policy set out in the future policy table above for Mon-executive Directors,

d Garbon Captured throtgh e Woodland Trust. b 3ingG fo create new Brnsh woodland across the UK
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Service Contracts And Policy On Payments For Loss Of Office

The Company's policy is for Executive Directors to be employed an the terms of service contracts
which moy be termincted by either the Company or the Executive Director on the giving of not mere
than 12 monihs’ notice. All Directors are subject to annual re-election.

Exacutive Directors

Details of each current service contract ore set out below:

UNEXPIRED TERM /
CONTRACT DATE NOTIEE PERIDD GOVERNING LAW
Mike Ashley 110242007 12 months* Englond & Wales
Chs Woottan 08/03/1017 & months £ngland & Wales

*The Campany moy termy 15 unable to perform tis duties for over 120 duys in oy

cansefubive 17 manths

te Mr Ashley's servica contract by giving & months’ notice

The principles on which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are
summarised below.

Payment in kou of nehice The Company may tenminate on Executive Directar's smployment w
paymen u of notice consisting of basic solary [but excluding any bonws, romimission, bene

haiiday enttlement) dunng the notice penod

s discrehion, pay
4 payments to
be reduced in the event thot the Executive Duector ohitans olteriotive im ome within the nubce period

Mika Ashiey does nnt recaive any saley or contrmgtue! benehts, and fis service contrae r cous not
provide for @ payment i hieu of notice

Arnutl bonus Whether 1o Gward o bonus W1 FUHl or in part 10 the event of o terminotion of employmeat wauld be
at the discretian ol the Committes an af ndividyol brasis and drpendent 6i a Rumbler of factors,
wicluding the circumstonees of the Executive Duwctor's daparture and ks com 2 business
during tha bonus penod in question Typicolly boryus amaunts would anly be paw to g0
be prosrated bor tima In servics by and on 4 & Any bonus in respect ot
the year of terminotion or preceding year which wauld otherwise be deterred inta shores may be poid
wholly In cush at the election of the Cammittes

vers” ond

Any deferred bionus would typically continws in the event of erminutian (ther than an dismissal far
cause] and be released to the Executive Director at the end of the orginally anuicipated daterrol periot,
olthaugh the Commttes has discration Lo release the armount soohar In oppIoprate cecumstances

Exscutive Shore Sch

It on Execuliva Director ceoses amployment of resigns dunng the pedormance penaa, b urmested
aword will generally lupss However, if the Eauclitive Duecter doet Or the Comaeites detennines he s o
“gaod leuvar’ then awards are retoinad and muy vest in the nonhal course subiect i the perlarmance
conditions Awords will nocmally be pro-rated by reference to the ua_uc;_n: of the nce
pencd for which the purticipont remained employed (or, if ea dae af resignaton) The
Camwnttee Nas o standard abrlity to vary timeé pro-rating Vested vE unexerc et owards moy normally
ba ratmined by g porticrpont, exgept i coses of mesconduct

Other pnyments Tha Remuneiakion CofiMities reserves the Hight to make odditional ext poyments where soch
payments ori made in good feuth in wischarge of on waisting legal sirlganar lae oy way af dervsgs e
breach of such an or by way of or or of any cianrm an
with the terminaton of o Directar's office or emplaymsnt In opproprate Lrumstances, payments
may alsc be made  respect of legal fees und outplacement services. Were the Compony 10 make
an award 6N recrutment ot an Executive Director ko buy oul rémuneration arrangerments forfeded on
leawing o previoys employer then the leaver pravisions bor that awaed would be cietermingg o the time
of grant. A payment moy 4iso be made in respact of aconved but uaiaken halrday For the avordance of
doubt, the prlicy does not mnchide on explict cop on the cost of terminutian payments

v comnachioe
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Non-Executive Directors .

The Non-executive Directars enter into an agreement with the Group for a period of three years,
other than the Chair whose ageeement continues until terminated in accordance with its terms. The
appointments of the Non-executive Directors may be terminated by either porty on one month's
written notice and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Termination wou'd
he immediate in certain circumnstances (including the bankruptcy of the Non-executive Director).

Non-executive Directors [other than the Non-executive Workforce Director) do not and are not
entitled to participate in any bonus or share scheme. The Non-executive Workforce Director is
entitled to participate in employee bonus and share schemes for min_o.,.mmm including all-employee
schemes.

The approach to determining Nan-executive Directors pay is to benchmork ourselves ogoinst
other companies/retailers within the FTSE 250. Each year the remuneration of all Directors is put
for shareholder approval ot the AGM. Last year, 99.81% of shareholders voted in favour of the
remuneration report.

Non-executive Directors are subject to confidentiality undertakings without limitation in time.
Non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any tompensation on the termination of their
appointment.

Details of the Non-executive Directors' letters of appointment are set out below:

END DATE OF

Besition Dote of Intiaref  APPGINTMENT [subjuct

the AGM}

Dovid Daly ) Non-2xeut v 16 July 2020 st Qrieber 2023
David Brayshaw Mon-exstutre D 23 Apnl 2020 Tth Decamber 2032
Nirola Frumptan MNon-sxerytive Director 1 October 2008 30th Septernber 2021
R rd Bottormley Nonrenecutive Director 1 October 2016 30th Septamber 2024
Cully Price Non-executive Diiector 6 Qctober 2020 Sth Ocroher 2007

Caopies of the service contracts of Executive Directors and of the appeintment letters of the Chair
and Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection ot the Company's registered office during
normal business hours and at the AGM.

Payments Outside The Policy In This Report

The Committee retains discretion to make any remuneration payment or payment for loss of office
outside the policy in this report:

« where the terms of the payment were agreed before the policy came into effect;

= where the terms of the payment were agreed at a time when the relevant indvidual was not
a Director of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in
consideration of the individual becoming a Diractor of the Company; or

»  to satisfy contractual commitments made under legacy remuneration arrangements.

For these purposes, "‘payments” includes the satisfaction of awards of variable remuneration and,
in reldtion to an award over shares, the terms of the payment dre "agreed” at the time the award is
granted.
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Engagement With Shareholders

The Committee consults major shareholders
and representative groups where appropricte
concerning remureration matters.

General representations have been received
from investors regarding overall FTSE
remuneration. The Committee has due regard
to the investment Association principles, and
is always happy to receive feedback from
shareholders. There have been no changes

to the Remuneration Policy as a result of
shareholder engagement.

Colleague Reward

It is worth reminding shareholders that our LK
colleagues (excluding the Executive Directors)
who have participated in our share schemes
have received, subsequent to any IPO bonus
payments, a total value of £250m of awards
since their introduction.

In addition to share schemes, the Company
operates cther bonus and incentive awards far
its workforce. By way of recent example, in F¥21
colleagues in our UK retail operations received
a total of £5.4m in bornus and incentive awards,
A significant proportion of these other bonus
and incentive awards were paid to our casual
retail workers.

During F¥21, the Company lounched the
Frasers All-Employee Omnibus Plen (known

as "Fearless 1000"} following approval by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan is available to all eligible and
qualifying Fraser Group employees [except for
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Commaercial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer.and is intended to provide a significant
one-off reward for employees if a stretching
share price growth target is achieved within a
five year period.

There are two related but distinet parts to the
Fearless 1000 plan as follows:

+ Share awards to those 3,000 eligible and
qualifying employees in the business who
mest demonstrate outstanding service and
performance consistent with the Company’s
values; and

57

= Cash bonusesto eligible and qualifying
employees in the Company's group, to
reward them for their loyaity and hard work.

A similar incentive plan is also aveilable for our
non-employee Group workers.

As explained in the Committee Chair's letter,
we took the decision to extend the original four
year perfermance period for the Fearless 1000
pian to up to five years due to continuing UK
lockdowns in FY21. As a result, the perfermance
periods for the Fearless 1000 plan and the
proposed Executive Share Scheme will each
end in Cctober 2025.

The Remuneration Committee remains
committed to transparent and simple
remunerdtion for Executive Directors based ”
upon reward for significant financial and
personal performance only. The Committee
ulso remains committed to appropriately
rewarding our large and loyal waorkforce.

Our Workforce nominated Director, Cally Price
engages with colleagues through regular and
mutti-channel communication mecharisms.
This enables colleagues to understand the
strategy of the Company, the vital role all
colleagues play in contributing to the overall
success of the Group and how this is rewarded
and to raise any questions directly with a Board
member. Cally has been directly involved in

the review of retail colleague pay during FY21.
The Committee haos reviewed the salaries, other
remuneration and other employment conditions
of senier and middle managers throughout

the Group, and has taken them into account in
considering Directors' salaries. The Committee
has considered pay and employment conditions

- of colleagues {other than the Directors) and has

aligned pension contributions and colleague
discounts of the Directors with employees.

Whilst the Company has not directly consulted
with employees on Directors’ remuneration, the
views of colleagues can be expressed by the
Workforce Director.

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This part of the Directors’ Rermuneration
Report sets out the actual payments made by
the Company to its Directors with respect to
the period ended 25 April 2021 and how aur
Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied
in the year commencing 26 April 2021,

Impl tation of sur R tion policy
for FY22

The members of the Committee have no
personal financial interest, other than as
shareholders, in the matters to be decided, no
actual or potential conflicts of interest arising
from other Directorships ond no day-to-day
operational respensibility within the Company.

'Base Salury And Fees

Chris Wootton's salary has increased to
£250,000 per annum, with effect from 1 May
2021 {from £150,000). Whilst the Committee is
aware of sensitivities towards sclary increases
for executive directors generally, the proposed
salary increase for Chris is considered
appropriate due to his very strong performance
in his rele since appointment in September
2019.

Despite this increase, Chris' base salary will
remain at a tevel well below the lower quartile
for a CFO in a business of the size and
complexity of the Group.

Mike Ashley does not receive a salary for his
role.

Fees for the Chair and Non-executive
Directors are normally reviewed annually.

In respect of fees for FY22, David Daly will
receive an increased annual fee of £150,000
{from E£100,000) for his role as Chair. Richard
Bottomnley, David Brayshaw and Nicole
Frampton will each receive a fee of £65,000
{from E50,000) for their roles as Non-executive
Directors. Cclly Price will receive a fee

of £20,000 (from £15,000) for her role as
Non-executive Workforce Director.

heiping to create new Bntish woodland across the UK

Pension {Audited)

The contribution rate for Chris Waotton will be
3% of salary, capped ot first £50,000 of salary,
being the maximum employer contribution
rate available under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme. No Director participated in a
defined benefit scheme.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to receive m:._vmof.m_.
contributions under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme.

Annual Bonus Scheme

Chris Wootton will be eligible to earn a bonus
in respect of FY22. Any amount earned shall

be determined by reference to one or more
performance metrics determined by the
Committee and linked to the Company's
strategy and/or Chris Wootton's performance

in rele. The Committee will provide appropriate
and relevant levels of retrospective disclosure of
the assessed criteria applied to the FY22 bonus,
Any such bonus shall be of up to 200% of
salary, and any bonus earned in excess of 100%
of salary may be subject to deferral

Mike Ashley shall not be eligible to eamn o
bonus in respect of FY22.

Long Term Incentives

Chris Wootton be eligible to participate
in the new Executive Share Scheme (subject
to shareholder approvai of at the 2021 AGM].
He will receive an award of 600,000 shares.
The award may vest four years after grant,
subject to a stretching abseolute share price
performance target.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to be granted awards
under the Executive Share Scheme.
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Single Figure Table (Audited)

The aggregate remuneration provided ta individuals who have served as Directors in the period
ended 25 Apri) 2021 is set out below, along with the aggregate remuneration provided to individuals
who have served as Directors during the prier financial year,

Longten
Other - Yatnl fixud Totol variakin
Birster Mooy B e Pansenld] Tl il emunetien

Fral Fr20 FY2H FYI0 ¥Y2  F¥Io FYy Frag  B¥21 Frp0 FY21l FY30 FYZ FR0 EYR FYI0

£600 (000 EOO0 EQOU EOOO £000 EO0DG K00 Q0D €000 EQO0 €000 £Q0G  £Oop FoRD  FODh

Statement Of Directors’ Shareholding And Share Interests {Audited)

The beneficial interasts of the Directors who served during the year and of their connected persons
in both cases at the beginning of the financial year, or at the date of appointment if later, and 6t the
end of the financial year, or at the date of resignation if earlier, in the share capital of the Company
are shown below:

Ordinary tharms hald ot 33 Ordinary Shares hald ot 25

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ke Ashiey - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Chiis Wastton 50 88 - - m . . - 1 125 8% 15 gy 100

Jon Kernpstar: WA 83 MA - WA - Na - N TUNA B WA b4 NA -

DIRES TGRS

Dawid Daly 100100 - - - - - - T 191 Wo o -

Diawid Brayshow 56 50 - - . - - - - 150 s sy 5t

Nicols Frampton 50 _ 50 - - - - - 1 T8 s om 51 -

Richard Bottambsy 5050 - - : - - - - 150 5 s 1

Cully Pree [CRR) - - - - - - 51 Iy B

TOTAL M5 an . - g .- L D I ) -
n Cheis Woottods remunerdticn b FY20 8s set aut in the teble i his remuneration for the i the dfate of fis oppoitriedt ar 12 Saptember

2009

N Jon dempster’s remuneraton far FY20 a3 set, Out in the nhove wable is his ramuneration far the penad From 29 Apnl 2019 unul 17 September 1019

when e ceased to be on Execulive Directar No payinent was made to J ovwrng s resignation
(3] Further details of the borus cutturn fer Chis Wootton for FY21 can be found sn paga 58

45 Pensons are provided wa @ defined contnbiution ta the Company staksholder pention scherma Isee puge 574

Further Information On The FY21 Annual Bonus
Chris Wootton received a bonus of £100,000 in respect of FY21.

In awarding this bonus, the Committee considerad Chris' strong leadership of the Group through a
very challenging periad. While no formal criteria were set at the beginning of the year due to the
uncertainties of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Committee considered the impact of Chris' contribution
to the financial results detailed in the Financial Review and his personal leadership of the Group's
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Poyments For Loss Of Office And Payments To Former Directors [Audited)

No payments for ioss of office or payments to former Directors were made in FY21.

58

Stamnbeis 100% Hegyoled And boo Cagtinod thrauat he Waog

Apr 1931 o i sarlier he AP 2010 of o tha
date of resignotien disty of rosignation

DILECTORS AS AT 35 APRIL 2034
ke Ashley 330,000,000 230,000000 *
Cliret Woolton B
Dowid Daly 4205 naw
i ol Frampar 5732
David Brayshow N g
Richerd Brtrorbey 0000 10000

Cally Price

There has been no change to the interests reported above between 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021
Other than noted on page 62 the Company did not receive o:< notifications under DTR 5 between
25 Apri} 2021 and 5 August 2021,

As qt 5 August 2021, neither Chris Wootton nor Mike Ashiey participate in any Carpany share
scheme arrangement. Therefore, there are ng outstanding shore scheme interests held by any
Director of the Company.

b rons e TR
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Performance Graph And Table

The following mn.n__u: shows the Company’s perfermance measured by the Total Shareholder Returny
compared with the performance of the FT3E 100 and FTSE 250 Index [excluding investment trusts).

—-&— Frasers Group plc ke - FT52300 o= FTSE 250 x Investment Trusts

400

350

250
w00 - -

150

50

jus] . . ' !
20n 012 2013 2014 2015 pravy N 08 2019 200 201

Yean “

The Committee considered these as appropriate indices against which to compare the Comparny's
performance. They are widely accepted as natienal measures ond include the compeanies that
investors are likely to consider alternative irvestments.
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Total Ceo R tion And Performance-Related Pay

The table below shows details of the total remuneration ond performance-related pay for the
Compuany's Chief Executive over the last ten financial years.

Executlys Shars Schema
Total munerstion a5 o % al maximum
sppartunity
FY21 - Mika Achley Nil Nk
FY20 - Mike Ashiey Nil NZA&
FY13 - Mike Ashley N&
FY18 = Mika Ashley N
FY17 - Mike Ashley NiA
FY17 - Dave Forsey - - £62500 N/A
FY16 - Dave Forsey F150,000 N/A
FY15 - Dave Forsey £150000° 0%
FY14 - Dave Forsey F150000 N
F¥13 - Dave Farsey £150,000 e
£Y17 - Dove Forsey £150.000 N
m Mike Ashley was oppointed as Chisf Execulive with uftect from 22 September 2006
12]  Duva Forsey resigned wath effect from 22 Seplember 2016 Hes total ramureraticn 18 his rem) he period from 25 Apnl 2016 until

the date his rasignntion toak affact

13 The figures far FY15 retiect Dova Forsey's decision an & June 2018 to forego an aword over Tmilion shams which would otherwise have been due to
vest on 6 Saptarmber 2017

Chief Executive To Employee Puy Ratio

In line with reporting requiremants, the Company is required to disclose ratios which compare

the total remuneration of the Chiaf Executive, to the remuneration of the 25th, 50th and 75th
percentile of the Group's UK empleyees. The Company has not disclosed these ratios and associated
suppeorting information on the basis that Mike Ashley is not remunerated by the Company.

is 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captuwed through the Woodiand Trust. helnng to create new British woodlund across the UK
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Relative Importance Of Spend On Pay -

The table below sets out the Group's distributions to shareholders by way of dividends and share
buybacks, investment (calculated os set out below) and total Group-wide expenditure on pay for all
colleagues {as repoarted in the oudited finoncial statements for FY21 and FY20) and the Cempany’s
share price {calculoted as at the close of business on the iast doy of FY21 and FY20).

[2Z] L IR

Distisbuh ons 1o shareholders by way of ddend and share buyback - £43B00000 41001%

Inyestmeant” £731300000  £432.600,000 (78,31%

Group-wide expenditure en pay for all employses IUTI00,000 _ £492,800,000 123 55%

Share prica {pencel* 56 5 3R 127 5%,
~Campnses of ncseoses 1n warking capital, acguistions and capital diture m the year {see C Cosh Fiow Stofsrment ie 32 Cosh

nflow from operating vctivities] as the Board beleves these to be the mest relevant measures of Lhe Group's investment os fucure Jrowtit

**Fof these purpases, the share prce for FY21 and the share price for FY20 1s coleuloted at the clase of butiness on 23 April 2021 and 24 April 2020
taspectively, being the last warking doys print t the year ends

Remunaration Committee

During FY21, the Remuneration Committee consisted of David Brayshaw and Nicola Frampten who
are considered independent and the Chair of the Board, David Daly. The purpose of the Committee,
as previously cutlined, is to ossist the Boord to ensure that Executive Directors and senior executives
receive appropriate ‘evels of pay and benefits.

Attendance at the meetings held during the year is detailed on page 43,

The members of the Committee have no personal financial interest, other than as shareholders, in

the matters to be decided, ne actual or patential conflicts of interest arising from other Directorships

ond no day-to-day operatienal responsibility within the Company.

Advisers To The Committee

Mike Ashley, the Chief Executive, and Chris Wootton, the Chief Financial Officer, have advised or
materially assisted the Committee throughout FY21 when requested. Executive Directors are not
present during, nor do they take part in, discussions in respect of matters relating directly to their
own remuneration.

During the vear, ¥IT Remuneration Consultants LLP {"FIT") were oppointed as adviser to the
Committee. FIT are o founder member of the Remuneration Consuitants’ Group and adhere to its
code of conduct. Fees totalling £127,184 plus VAT have been paid for its services during the year for
the provision of advice to the Committee on various aspects of remuneration including odvice on
the remuneration policy and the drafting of the rules of the Fearless 1,000 scheme. The Committee
has reviewed the quality of the advice provided and whether it properly addressed the issues
under consideration ond is satisfied that the advice received during the year was objective and
independent. FIT has no personal connection to the Cempany or its Directors,

Total Remuneration

The Committee considers that the current remunerotion Grrangements promote the long-term

success of the Company within an appropriate risk framewark and are suitably aligned to the

Company's objective of delivering long term sustcinable growth in Total Shareholder Returns givery
. bonuses are discretionary.

&0

_

Prnted on Steinbos 100% Rocycled and Carbon Caplunad throurdr the Weordlond

Remuneration Principles

A key priority is to ensure that our
Remunaeration Policy is aligned with strategy
to achieve the long-term success of the Group.
The Cornmittee ensures that it complies with
the requirements of regulatory and governance
badies including, but not limited to, the UK
Corporate Governance Code {" the Code”),
whilst meeting stakeholder, shareholder and
workforce expectations.

The Remuneration Committee ond Boord
remain committed to o fully transparent and
simple Remuneration Policy that is aligned
with the interests of all its sharehelders. In the
operations of the Remuneration Cormnmittee we
reiterate our commitment to the following key
principles:

+  Clority: We provide open and transparent
disclosures regarding our executive
remuneration,

+  Simplicity: Our Remuneration Policy for
our Executive Directors is straightforward
and understood by both Directors and
sharehalders.

+  Predictability: Most companents of Director
remuneration are either fixed or subject to
individual caps set by reference to base
satary. Through the use of a share price
meosure under the Executive Share Scheme,
performance outcomes are predictable
and highly aligned to the experience of cur
shareholders.

+  Proportiohality: Our Executive Director
salaries are amongst the lowest in the FTSE
250. Variable poy awards are ‘at-risk’ and
Jinked to delivery of ur strategy and long-
term performance, to ensure that poor
performance is not rewarded,

+  Risks and behaviours: We ensure that
in our operctions we identify and
mitigate reputational risks ansing from
our remuneration arrangerments and
behavioural risks related to incentive
targets.

- Alignment to culture: Increases to pay
and bonuses are only awarded where the
Executive Director demonstrates high level
behaviours and performance consistent
with Coempany purpose, values and strategy.

FRASERS GROUP

Rasponsibilities Of The Committee

Determining the Company's policy on
Executive Director's remuneration, including
the design of bonus schemes and targets,
share schemes when appropriate, together
with payments under them;

Determining the level of remuneration of the
Chair and each of the Executive Directors;

Setting the remuneration for the first layer
of management below the Board leve!,
inctuding the Company Secretary;

Monitoring the remuneration of
senjor management and maoking
recommendations in that respect;

Agreeing any compensation for loss of
office of any Executive Director; and

Ensuring that the Company’s Remuneration
Policy remains fit for purpose ond takes
note of any new regulatory requirements.

What Has The Committee Done During The
Year?

Reviewed ond approved amendments to the
Company's Remuneration Pelicy:

Reviewed cnd opproved the Directors’
Remuneration Report for FY21;

Reviewed Executive Directors' and senior
executives' pay (including octions taken
in response to the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic);

Considered shareholder feedback regarding
remuneration policy and implementation;

Considered and approved the appaintment
of independent remuneration consultants;

Agreed the introduction of the Fearless
1,000 scheme;
Reviewed gender pay gap reporting; and

Monitored developments in governance
and reporting requirements, relating to
remuneration.

The Remunerotion Committee meets several
times a year, with 3 formal meetings and a
numbeér of ad hoc meetings held in FY21,
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Shareholder Voting

The following table sets out actual voting i1 respect of the resolution to approve the Directors'
Remuneration Report for the year ended 25 April 2020 at the 2620 AGM and the resclution to

approve the Directors' Remunerction Policy at the 2018 AGM.

Votus Total vates Vatan

Vetasfor whor el . b

Directors’ Remuncration Report for the year ended 26 Apr 2020 453,415 £30 ¥o8!  HOGALE 015 464312796 157
Directors’ Remunaration Pohcy

[vote 1o apmeoee ot 0N AGMY 442947085 94 7134022 159 450,081707 314

Directors' Remuneration Poficy 464,243,582 o3y 67814 001 46431396 1957

{vote to amend at 2020 AGM in respact at Feorless 1,600|

David Brayshaw
Chuir of the Remuneration Committee on Behalf of the Board
5 August 2021
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Frasers Group pic present their
Annual Report and Accounts for the periad
ended 25 April 2021. The Group's Corporate
Governance Statement forms part of the
Directors’ Repart.

Principal Activities And Business Review

The Chief Executive’s Report and Business
Review provides a detailed review of the
Group's current activities and potential future
developments together with matters likely to
cffect future development, performance and
conditions. Principal risks and uncertainties
likely to affect the Group are set out within the
Principal Risks and Uncertainties section. The
financial position of the Group, its cash flow,
liquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described in the Financial Review. The Strategic
Report covers environmental matters, including
the impact of the Group's businesses on the

. environment, the Group's workforce, customers,

suppliers and on community engagement.

The principal activities of the Group during the
period were:

- retailing of sports and leisure clothing,
footwear and equipment, lifestyle and
tuxury apparel;

+ retailing through department stores, shops
and online;

+ wholescle distribution and sale of sports
- and leisure clothing, footwear and
equipment, lifestyle and luxury apparel
under Group-owned or licensed brands; and

= licensing of Group brands.

Frasers Group ple, through various subsidiaries,
has established branches in a number of
different countries in which the business
operates.

Further information on the Group's principal
activities is set out at the front of this document
and in the Chief Executive's Report and
Business Review,

Ponled on Steinbais 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured throuch the Woodiand Trast, helping to create new Bolish woodland across the UK

Results For The Peviod And Dividends

Revenue for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
was £3,625.3m and profit before tax was £8.5m
compared with £39857.4m revenue and £143.5m
profit before tax in the prior period. The trading
results for the period and the Group's financial
position as at the end of the year cre shown

in the attached financial statements and
discussed further in the Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and in the Financiai
Review on poges 19 to 21,

The Board has decided not to propose a final
dividend in relation to FY21(FY20: nil). The
Board remains of the opinion that it is in the
bast interests of the Group and its shareholders
to preserve financial flexibility, facilitating future
investments and other growth opportunities. *
The current situaticn in relation to the Covid-19
pandemic has resulted in a number of retailers
finding themselves in extreme financial
difficulties. We therefore currently feel that
paying a final dividend at this uncertain time
would be incppropriate when facing such an
unknown future. The payment of dividends
remains under review.

Share Capital And Control

As at 5 August 2021, there are 640,602,369
ordinary shares of 10p in issue and fully paid,
of which 127,180,237 were held in treasury. As at
the period end there were 121,260,175 ordinary
shares held in treasury.

Further information regarding the Group's
issued share capital can be found in note 24,
Details of our share schemes are alse set cut in
note 24,

There are no specific restrictions on the transfer
of shares, which are governed both by the
general provisions of the Articles of Association
and prevailing fegislation. The Directors are
not aware of any agreements between holders
of the Company's shares that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of securities or on
veting rights.
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Authority To lssue m_.-n..mn

The Ditectors were authorised to allot shares
in the capital of the Group up to an aggregote
nominal gmount of £17,311,406 (being
approximately. one third of the then issued
share capital) for the period expiring at the 2021
AGM.

Iy line with guidance from the Associotion of
British Insurers, the Company was also granted
authority to issue a further third of the issued
share capital to a total nominal amount of
£34,622,812 in connection with o rights issue.

An authority to allot shares up to a

maximum nominal value of £2,596,711 (being
approximately 5% of the then issued share
capital} as if statutory pre-emption rights did
not apply, was also approved. [n oddition, the
Directors were granted a further authority

to allot up to @ maximum neminal value of
£2,596,711{being approximately 5% of the then
issued capital} as if statutory pre-emption rights
did not apply when such allotment was for the
purposes of financing lor refinancing, if the
power (s used within six menths of the originol
transaction) o transaction which the Board
determined to be an acqu n or other capital
investment of o kind contemplated by the
Pre-emption Group's Statement of Principles on
disapplying pre-emption rights.

The Group was authorised to make market
purchase of ordinary shares of 10p each in

the Company of up to a maximum aggregate
number of 77,849,395 represerting 14.99% of
the Company's issued ordinary share capital at
the 2020 AGM. The above authority expires at
the close of the next AGM of the Compony.

The authorities expire ot the close of the

next AGM of the Company, but a contract to
allot shares under these authorities may be
made prier to the expiry of the authority and
concluded in whole or part after the AGM, and
at that meeting ather authorities will be sought
from shareholders.

Share Buyback

During the period to 25 April 2021 the Company
did not purchase any shares under the
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Share buyback programme. The Company
recommenced its Share buyback pregramme
on 4 May 2021 and on 21st June 2021 and since
4 May 2021 has purchased 5,919,962 additionol
ordinary shares. No shares have been disposed
of by the Company to this date.

Shareholders

No shareholder enjoys any special control
rights, and, except as set out below, there are
no restrictions in the transfer of shares or of
voting rights. :

&5 a controlling shareholder Mike Ashley has
entered into o written and legally binding
Relationship Agreement with the Company.
This agreement ensures that the controlling
sharehaldar complies with the independence
provisions set cut in Listing Rule: 6.5.4. Under
the terms of the Agreement Mike Ashley
undertook that, for so long as he is entitled to
exercise, or to control the exercise of, 15% or
more of the rights to vote at general meetings
of the Company, he wi

«  conduct all transactions and relationships
with any member of the Group on arm’s
length terms and on a narmal cornmercial
basis;

.+ exercise his voting rights or other rights in

support of the Company being managed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the
principles of good governance set out in the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
not exercise any of his voting or other rights
and powers {0 procure any amendment to
the Articles of Association of the Cempany;
and

» other than through his interest in the
Company, not have any interest in any
business which selis sports apparel and
equipment, subject to certain rights, after
notification to the Company, to acquire
any such interest of less than 20% af the
business concerned, and certain other
limited exceptions, without receiving
the prior approval of the Non-executive
Directors; and not solicit for employrnent
or employ any senior employee of the
Cornpany.

The Company has complied with this Agreement's independence provisions during the period and,
as far as the Company is aware, the controlling sharehaider and his associotes have olso complied

with them

As at 25 April 2021, the Company had been advised that the following parties had an interest in 3%
or more of the issued share capitol of the Company pursuent to Rule 5 of the Disclosure Guidance

and Transparency Rules (“DTRY);

133UED OROINARY

swamsHnp  HARECAPTAL oo

WITH VOTING

RIGHTS HELD
Mike Aghlay 130,000,000 63 54% Indlirect
1osnix Asset tanogerment Partners Limited *1 8,672,052 7.48% Duruct

o

the Company} respeclively

bigres through tws cormpares, nomely MASH B&ta Litnitad ond MASH Holdings Limited, which hold 303,507.460 ordinary
issued ardmary shave copital of the Company! and 26,452,540 ordinary shares {5.10% of the issued ortinary

4 capitaf of

I These figures ore us a1 1 Apnl 2071 being the last date on winch the Compuny was notifed of 0 rhanga in the percentage af shares

Between 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021 [being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
this Report) there have been no changes in the interast held by the above parties

ADR Programmes

We are aware of unsponsored American
Depository Receipt (ADR} programmes
established from time to time in respect of our
shares. We have not sponsored or authorised
their creotion and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depository.

Frasers Group has not and does not intend

to offer or sell its ordinary shares or other
securities {in the form of ADR or otherwise) to
the general public in the United States nor has
listed or intend to list its Ordinary Shares

or other securities on ahy national securities
exchange in the United States or to encourage
the trading of its Ordinary Shares on any over
the counter market located in the United States,
The Group does not make arrangements to
permit the veting of ordinary shores held in the
form of ADRs and its publication of pericgic
financicl and other information is not intended
to facilitate the operation of any unsponsored
ADR prograrnme under Rule 12g3-2{b} of U1.S.
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended or
otherwise.

Articles Of Association

The Company's Articles of Association may only

be amended by special resolution at a generol
meeting of shareholders. Subject to applicable
laws and the Compony's Articles of Association,
the Directors may exercise all powers of the
Company.

Tokeovers

The Directors do not believe that there are any
significant contracts that may change in the
event of a successful takecover of the Company.

Share Schemes

Details of the Executive shore scheme are set
out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Colleague Involvement

The Group currently has more than 25,000
colleagues in its stores, offices and warehouses.

The workfarce is notified of announcements
and major changes in the business vio
Company emails, $lack, social media and

our intronet, os well as information being
communicoted through line managers.

The Company has elected a Workers'
Representative, Cally Price, who attends all
Board meetings and provides feedback from
colleagues to the Board and is a trusted
advocate for colleagues. The, Company aiso has
the “Your Company, Your Voice” scheme which

_
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enables colleagues to roise issues of concern
via suggestion boxes. The contributions are
read by senior manogement and the Workers'
Reprasentative who provides the Board with
an overview and replies to colleagues as
appropriate. A selaction of questions receivad,
and answers given by management are
displayed in cemmunal areas for colleagues.
Cally has been key in representing colleagus's
views in the Board room and has o dedicated
time slot at every scheduled Board meeting
Much focus this year has been on the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic on our employees
and Cally has been involved in Board des
and communication to staff regarding new

safe systemns of work approved by the Board

to maintain good Covid-19 practices at ur
worehouse, offices and stores and has also
provided feedback to the Board on mental
health webinars run in conjunction with the
Retail Trust. Cally makes weekly visits to Head
office and has worked with management on
initiatives including diversity, pay structures and
staff benefits.

Training proegrammes and induction courses
provide the workforce with opportunities to
keep up to date with the latest developments
of the Group. Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic
our annual retail conferenca offered attendess
an opportunity to cetebrate their successes,
receive updates on how the Group's strategy
is progressing, and for them to judge how

the Group is performing via the 'Confident or
Concerned' questionnaire.

There are various incentives avaitable to our
retaif colleagues. These incentives include our &
Star Commission Scheme, Turnover Bonus, PBT
Bonus, Stocktake Bonus and other commissian
schemes. These schemes vary between fascias,
Retail colleagues {including casual workers) ore
also eligible to perticipate in the Fearless 1000
bonus scheme,

Further information on engagement with our
people can be found in the Our People report.
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Diversity And Equal Opportunitiss

The Group's recruitment poiicy is to match the
capabilities and talents of each applicant to
the appropriote job. Factors such as gender,
race, religion or belief, sexual orientation, age,
disability or ethnic origin are ignored, and
decisions are made with regard to candidates
irrespective of these factors. Discrimination in
any form is not tolerated within the Group.

Applications for employment by persons
with any disability are given full and fair
consideration for all vacancies and are
assessed in accordance with their particular
skifls and obilities.

The Group endeavours to meet its
responsibilities towards the training and
employment of disabled people, and to
ensure that training, career development and
promotion opportunities are availabie to all,

The Group makes every effort to provide
continuity of employment if any of our
colleagues become disabled. Attempts

are made in every circumstance to provide
ermployment, whether this involves adapting
the current job role and remaining in the same
job or moving to a more appropriate role.

lob retraining and job adaptation are just

two examples of how the Group works in the
interests of its workforce to promote equal
opportunities in order that an individual's
empleyment within the Group may continue.
The Group values the knowledge and expertise

_that our people have gained throughout their

tirme with us, and therefore dees not wish to
lose valued colfeagues.

Further information on our approach to
diversity can be found in the Our People report

Business Relationships

Details of relationships with our suppliers,
customers and other stakeholders are set out in
the 5,172 statement within the Strategic Report
and the Corporate Governance Report,

[ h And Devel t

L

The Group designs some clothing and footwear
for our in-house brands for sale in stores.
External brands are purchesed from third-party

suppliers although we do work with them to
agree an the specific pieces which we sell
in-store.

Charitable And Political Donations

Dwring the year, the Group made charitcble
donations of £3k (2020: £13k) in the UK. No
political donations were made {2020: nil).
Further information on our charitable donations
and community initiatives con be found in the
ESG Report.

Details of current Directors, dates of
appointment, their rales, responsi
significont external commitments are set out on
pages 37 to 39, The membership of the Board
of Directors has remained the same throughout
Fy21.

Although the Company's Articles of Association
require retirement by rotation of one third of
Directors each year, the Group complies with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
at each AGM all of the Directors will retire and
stand for reappointment.

Information on service contracts and details of
the interests of the Directors and their persons
closely associated [PCAs) in the share capital
of the Company at 25 April 2021, and at the
date of this Report, is shown in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Copies of the service contracts of Executive
Directors and of the appointment letters of the
Chair and Non-executive Directors are available
for inspection at the Company's registered
office during normal business hours and at the

"AGM.

No Director has a directorship in commeon or
other significant links with any other Director,

Director appointments are governed by The
Companies Act 2006, the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Group's Articles of
Associotion.

The Directors confirm that:

+ so far as each Director is aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditors are unaware; and

= the Directors have taken all steps that they
ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any relevant cudit information and
to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information.

. Directors’ Conflicts OF Interest

The Beard has formal procedures to decl with
Directors' conflicts of interest. The appointment
letters of Non-executive Directors state that
they agree to consult with the Chair prior to
accepting any directorships in publicly quoted
COMpanigs or QJ<.EQ._cq external appointments.
Also, if any Non-executive Director becomes
aware of any potential conflicts of interest

the Chair and Company Secretary must be
notified as soon as this becomes apparent.
During the period neither the Chair or the
Company Secretary were aware of any

further appointments or potential conflicts of
interest. The independence of Non-executive ,
irectors is reviewed by the Board annually. Al!
Directors complete an annual questiennaire

to record any potential conflicts of interest .
The questionnaire for FY21 did not disclose any
conflicts of interest

The Company has entered into a Relaticnship
Agreement with Chief Executive, Mike Ashley,
whose wholly-owned companies, MASH
Holdings Limited and MASH Beta Limited,
currently hold approximately 5.10% and 58.44%
respectively of the issued share capital of the
Company lexcluding treasury shares). This
agreement is described in the Directors' Report.
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Directors' Indemnities

The Group has qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the Directors within the meaning given
to the term by 5234 and 5235 of the Companies Act 2006. This is in respect of any potential exposure
of liability in their capacity as a Director of the Company ond of any Company within the Group.
Such indemnities were in force throughout the financial period and will remain in force.

Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust

We note that the Trustees of the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust have waived their right to
receive dividends on the ordinary shares comprised in the trust fund. No dividends were paid by the
Compariy for the period ended 25 Apeil 2021 {FY20: £nii).

Disclosures Required Under Uk Listing Rule 9.8.4

The information required by Listing Rute 9.8.4 is set out in the table below:

APPLICAELE SUR-PARAGRAPH WITHIN LA $.4.4 H3CLOAURE PROVIDED

1] nterest copiicised by tha Grous NA

{2) Putiication of unaudited finanzial informatinn N

[3] Requirerent deletad from the Listing Rules

(4} Detnily of fomg-retm mcanivg schemas oply NA

invalving @ Director

(5] Wanvar of emoluments by a Dinector ) NiA

{6] Warvar af future smolumants by o Director NP
Non peo-raka ailorrnents for cash fisswer) NA

{81 Nam pro-rola alicbmeants far cosh major R/

subsidianes)

(i Parent parhcpation o placmg by o listed /A

subsidiary

(10} Contracts of sigrficonte N7R

111 Prawision of services bw a comralling puge 56

shorehaider

{112} Sharahglder waivers of dindends pag 61

(13) Shareholder waivers of tuture dividends N/A

{14 wath contreling cage 62

Green House Gas Emmissons And Energy Consumption

See The Enviranment report -
Annucl Generol Meeting

Further detaits on the date, time and formet of proceedings will follow m_,_o;_.< after the finalisation
of these Annual Report and Accounts, taking into account Government guidonce surreunding the
Covid-19 pandemic., -
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Going Contcern

The Groug's business activities, together

with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and position are set
out in the Chief Executive’s Report and Business
Review.

The financial position of the Group, its cash
fiows, fiquidity position gnd borrowing facilities
are described in the Financial Review. In
addition, the financial statements include the
Group's objectives, policies and processes

for managing its capital, its financial risk
management objectives, details of its financial
instruments and hedging octivities, and its
exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and hos considerable financial
resources. The Group is able to operate within
its bonking facilities and covenants, which

runs until November 2022, and is well placed

to toke advantage of strategic opportunities

as they arise. As a consequence, the Directors
believe that the Greup is able to manage its
business risks successfully despite the continued
uncertain econemic outlock.

Management has assessed the ievel of trading
to date since the impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic and has forecast and projected o
conservative base case and also a number

of even more conservative scenarios taking
into ccount a potential further wave and
associated lockdowns over winter, Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and

cast saving initiatives. These forecasts and
projections show thdat the Group will be able

to operate within the level of the current
facility ond its covenant requirements (being
interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios).
Management also has a number of mitigating
actions which could be taken if required such as
putting on hold discretionary spend, liquidating
certain assets ori the balance sheet ond poying
down the Revolving Credit Facility. See the
Viability Stotement for further detoils.

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's -
performance and having made suitahble
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adeguate resources to remain in

FRASERS GROUP

operational existence for the at least 12 months
from the date of these financial statements.
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actiens or a refaxation of covenants.
Qn this basis, the Directors continue to adopt
the goitig concern basis for the preparation of
the Annual Report and Financial Statements
which is a period of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of these financicl
statements.

Accountability And Audit

A statement by the External Auditor can
be found on page 66 detailing its reporting
ibilities. The Directors fulfil their

es, and these are set out inthe
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement.

Auditor

RSM LK Audit LLP will be proposed for
reappointment at the AGM, In accordance with
5489{4) of the Cormparnses Act 2006, resolutions
to determine remuneration are to be agreed at
the AGM.

Post Balance Sheet Events

See note 36 of the Annual Accounts
Future Developments

Future developments are discussed throughout
the Strategic Report,

Fi ial Risk M ent

Financial risk management is discussed in note
3 of the financial statements.

By Order of the Board

Torn Piper
Company Secretary
5 August 2021
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing :he
Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, the separa:e
Corporate Governance Statement and the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable iaw and regulations.

Companylaw requires the directors to prepare
group and company financial staterments for
each financial year. The directors have elected
under company law to prepare group financial
statements’in accordance with internationa
accounting skandards in cenformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ard
are additionally required under the Listing Rules
of the Financial Conduct Autharity to prepafe
the group financial statements in accordance
with international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant ta Regulation (EC} No
1606/2002 os it applies in the European Union.
The directors have elected under company law
to prepare the company financial statement s

in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingd'sm
Accounting Standards and applicable law).

The giroup financial statements are required
by law and international accounting standards
in capfarmity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and internotional
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
to Regulation [EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Union to present fairly the
financial position and performance of the
group; the Companies Act 2006 provides in
relation to such financial statements that
references in the retevant part of that Act to
financial statements giving & true and Fair
view are references to their achieving ao fair
presentation.

Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the group and the
company and of the profit or loss of the group
for that period.
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In preparing each of the group and company
financial statements, the directors are required
to:

a. select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

b. make judgements and accounting estimates
that cre reasonable and prudent;

c. for the group financial statements, state
whether they have been prepared in
accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and international financial reperting

‘standards adopted pursuant to Regulations
{EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
Eurcpean Union;

d, for the company financial statements,
state whether applicable UK accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the company financial
statements;

e. prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the group
and the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the group’s and the
company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the group and the company and
enable thern to ensure that the financicl
statements and the Directors' Rerauneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the group financiol statements,
Article 4 of the JAS Regulation. They ore alsa
responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the group and the company and hence for
taking reascnable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Directors’ St nt P To The Disclosure

and Transparency Rules

Each of the directors, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 37 to 39 confirm
that, to the best of each person's knowledge:

a. the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation
taken os a whole; and

b. the Strategic Report contained in the
Annual Report includes o fair review of
the development and performance of the
business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the
Company's website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions,

Chris Wootton
Chief Financial Officer
5 August 2621
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF FRASERS GROUP PLC

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of
Frosers Group PLC (the ‘parent company') and
its subsidiaries {the ‘group’ for the period ended
25 April 2021 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated
Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cashfiow
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Company Balance
Sheet, the Company Statement of Changes in
Equity and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework

that has been applied in the preparation of

the Group financial statements is applicable
law and International Accounting Standards

in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
to Requlation {EC) Na 1606/2002 as it applies

in the European Union. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the parent company financial
statements is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial
Reporting Standard applicoble in the UK and
Republic of lreland’ {United Kingdom Generglly
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In cur opinioh:

.+ the financial statements give & true and fair
view of the state of the group's and of the
parent company's affairs as at 25 April 2021
and of the group's loss for the period then
ended;

+  the group financicl statements have been
properly prepared in accardance with
Internationa} Accounting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 ond international
financial reporting standards odopted
pursuant to Regulation [EC) No 1606/2002
as it applies in the European Union;

66

* the purent company financial statements
have been properly prepared in gecerdance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

. the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing {UK] (ISAs
(UK} and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described

in the Auditor's responsibilities for the cudit of
the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the group and parent
company in accordonce with the ethical
reguirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC's Ethical Standard os applied ta listed
public interest entities and we have Fulfilled our
other ethical responsi es in accordonce with
these requiremants. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a bosis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate.
For an explanation of how we evaluated
management's assessment of the group's
and parent company’s ability to continue to
odopt the going concern basis of accounting
and our key sbservations arising in respect to
thot evaluation, please see the Impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic and Geing Concern key
oudit matter,

Based on the work we have performed, we
have not identified any material uncertainties

refating to events or canditions that, individuaily

or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the group's or the parent company's ability to
continue as a going concem for a peried of at

least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

I relation to the entities reporting on how they
have applied the UK Corporate Governance
Code, we have nothing material to add or

draw attention to in relation to the directors’
stotement in the financial stetements about
whether the directors considered it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibiities of
the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this repert.

Summary of our audit approach
Key audit matters

Group - Recurring risks’

+  Valuation of inventory

+ Impairment of property related assets
+  Property, Legal and Other Provisions
« Classification of investments

Group — event driven

+ Impact of the Covid 19 pondemic and going
concern

Materiolity

Group

«  Overall materiality: ETlAmillion
«  Performance materiglity: £7.2million
Parent Compuny

+  Overali materiality: £1tmillion

+  Performance materi lity: £7.1

Scope

©Our Group audit procedures covered 88% of
revenue, 88% of total assets and 78% of the
result before tax.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our professional judgrent, were of most
significunce in our audit of the group and
parent company financial statements of the
current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether of not due to fraud) we identified,
including those which had the greatest effect
on the overall cudit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters, and
any comments we make on the results of our
procedures thereon, were addressed in the
context of our audit of the group and parent
cornpany financial statements os a whole, and
in farming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
This is not a camplete list of all risks identified
by our audit.

Inventory - valuation and existence
Key audit matter description

At 25 April 202), the Group Consclidated
Balance Sheet records inventory of £1,096.6m

{2020: £1,198.3m). This amount is net of an

inventory provision of £219.8m (2020: £223m).

The Covid-19 pendemic resultad in physical
stores being temporarily closed at various
points during the period and the resultant
reduction in the level of demand and a reduced
ty to sell through seasonal inventory may
increase the risk of inventory obsolescence.

As described in note 2 to the financiat
statements, management use a forward looking
inventory provisioning mode! which calculates
a provision by category of inventory based on
historical experience, pricing and discounting
strategies and managerment's assessment of
risk.

There is significont estimation involved in the
calculation of inventory provi ions to ensure
that inventory is held at the lower of cost and
et reglisable value. This involves consideration
of expected future losses on sale of inventory
including ossessing the likely impacts of the
Covid 19 pandemic, inventary obsolescence ond
the additional costs to sell which need to be
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We assessed whether the disclosures within the
financial statements are consistent with 1AS 36,

Key observations

Our audit work in respect of the impeirment
of property related assets concluded that the
related balances were not materially misstated
and the disclosures management have made
ore appropricte.

Property, Legal ond Qther Provisions
Key audit matter description

The Group makes provision for iiabilities where
it identifies there is o present obligation as a
result of o past event and where it is probable
that there will be a resultant outflow of
resources thot con be reliably measured.

The Group has a significant provision in relation
to legal and reguictory matters and property
related pro ns. As detailed in note 28 to

the financial statements, the Consolidated
Balance Sheet includes provisions of £215.8m
{2020: £225.4m) reloting to Jegal and regulatory
matters and £144.1m, {2020: 107.9m)} relating to
property provisions which principally comprises
provisiens for dilapidations on leasehold
properties,

The dilapidation pravision requires significant
judlgements to he made os to future omounts
paycable based on historical experience,
externof advice and evolving conditions within
the property sector.

Additionally, the Group faces a number of
legal, tax and other commercial claims and
significant judgement is required in determining
whether a provision should be recorded and for
what ameunt.

Due te the amounts invalved and the
significant judgements required in quantifying
ond assessing provisions we have identified
existence, aceuracy, completeness, presentation
and disclosure of property, legal and other
provisions as @ key cudit matter,
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How the matter was addressed in the audit
Our cudit work included the following: -

+  Considering management’s assessment
in respect of provisions and assessing
whether the recognition criteria of I1AS
37 -~ Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent assets had been met.

+ Challenging the assumptions made in the
dilapidation provision model in respect
of the expected level of dilapidations on
a store by store basis. As a result of our
findings from challenging manogement's
model, we independently develaped an
alternative medel that appiied histeric
dilapidation costs and relevant foctors
such as geography and property type as
wel) s considering the impacts of likely
future changes in the property market. Qur
alternative model aliowed us to develop
an estimate of the level of provision we
considered appropriate and supportable
against which we were able to assess
management’s estimates.

* Challenging provisions ond related
assumptions with key management outside
the finance function, including members of
the property and legal teams and obtaining
caorroborative evidence from third parties in
relation te matericl ongeing legal and tax
matters

+ Auditing the movement in provisions and
checking for completeness through the
review of ongoing claims for dilapidations
and thiough circularisation of legal advisors
in relation to other claims.

Key observations

Our audit work in respect of Property, legal and
other pro ns concluded that the related
balances were not materially misstated and
the disclosures management have made are
appropriate.

Classification of investments
Key oudit matter description

The Group has a number of investments in
which it holds more than 20% but less than
50% of the veting share capital of the investee,

1AS 28 - Investments in associates and Joint
Ventures - requires that where an investment
falls within this range it should be accounted
for ais an associote, unfess management can
rebut the presumption that significant influence
exists and can clearly demonstrote thot thisis
the case.

The Group sold its investment inFrench
Connection ple during the year but at the year
end has strategic investments in Studio Retail
Group ple {36.9%) and Mulberry Group ple
{26.1%| and has rebutted the presumption that
significant influence exists. These investments
have been gecounted for ot fair value through
other comprehensive income as explained in
note 2 to the financial statements.

Since the judgements thot the Group has made,
that it dees not have significant influence over
Studio Retail Group plc and Muiberry Group
ple, have a significant impact over the financial
statements we have identified the classification
and disclosure of investments as a key audit
matter,

How the matter was addressed in the audit
Qur audit work included: - .

= Assessing the accounting for the above
investments under IAS 28 - Investments in
Asscciates and Joint Ventures and IFRS 9 ~
Financial Instruments.

+  Obtaining and critically challenging
management's papers addressing the
accouhting far the above investments
against the requirement of the accounting
standards and the judgements made in
addyessing the questions of significont
influence

+ Discussing management's strategy for
helding the investments and challenging
whether this was consistent with the
accounting treatment

o tha
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«  Assessing the five criteric set out in |AS 28
as suggesting whether significant influence
may exist by examining both confirming
and disconfirming evidence.

In particular we: -

= Obtained and examined certain
agreements and correspondence
between the Group ond the investees to
corroborate managements assertion that
no significant influence exists

»  Reviewed investee financial statements,
press announcements, orticles of
association, shareholder agreements and
media reports to assess whether there
was evidence of significont influence

+  Made enquiries of the Group's Head of
Strategic investments to understand
the Group's interactian with those
investments, including in particutor, the
nature and purpose of the abserver role
on the board of Studio Retail Group ple

+ Considered whether transactions
between the Group and the investees
were indicative of significant influence

+  Critically chollenging whether the
judagements made are cleorly disclosed in
the financial staterments.

Key observations

Our audit work in respect of the classification
of investments concluded that management’s
judgements that they did not have significant
influence over Studio Retail Group plc and

Mulberry Group plc to be supportable ond the
related classification and disclosures made in
the financial statements to be appropriate.
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Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and going
concem

Kay audit motter description

The Covid 19 pandemic and the mandcted
temporary closure of retail stores at various
times during the year, has had a significant
impact on the group’s revenue and result
before tax. In addition to heightened audit
risks relating to the carrying value of property
related assets and inventory set out in the
key audit matters above, the pandemic has
implications for;-

»  The Group's considerations in relation to
going coencern and viability

»  Accounting for monies received under t1e
UK Government's Job Retention Scheme
{CIRS)

Significant judgements are always required

around the assumptions underpinning futurz
cashflow projections. These judgements are
heightened in the current retail environmen-

given the uncertainties surrounding the loncer -

term impact of the pandemic and structura,
changes to the UK retail sector. Whilst retail
stores have opened post year end, and web
sales hove performed well, the longer term
impacts on shopping habits and the risks of
a global recession are difficult to accurately
predict.

Taking acceunt of these sensitivities, the
Directors have acknowledged there will be
potentially- material variations in forecast
financial performance, but concluded that

the Group has sufficient resources available

to meet its liabifities as and when they fali

due and that therefore there are no material
uncertainties that cast significant doulbst on the
Group's ability to continue as ¢ going concern.

In undertaking their assessment of going
concern, the Directors have reviewed forecast
future performance and anticipated cashflows
for the Group, These forecasts have also been
applied in determining the need to impair
property related assets as set out in the key
audit matter above, Their assessmeant has
considered cashflow forecasts and financing
and covenants in place for the period to
November 2022, which is the date ot which th2
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current Revolving Credit Facility expires.

As part of the assessment and as disclosed in
the viability statement on page 36, the Directors
have determined appropriote sensitivities to the
forecasts, including a reverse stress test of the
Group's ability to meet its covenants.

We have identified a key audit matter related
to going concern as a result of the judgement
required in undertaking a going concern
assessment in the current uncertain trading
environment, the adequacy and accuracy of
disclosures and the conclusion that there is not
o material uncertainty related to geing concern.

The Group has received furlough (CJRS) income
of approximately £80m in the year and has
recognised this as a reduction in payroll costs in
the income statement. The rules that applied to
furlough claims in the year were complex and
subject to variation and there are significant
penalties for nen-compliance. Consequently

we identified a potential risk of misstatement
relating to the processing and management of
claims.

How the matter wos addressed in the audit

Cur audit work in refation to going concern
included:

= Obtaining an understanding of
management’s going concern models,
discussing key assumptions with
management and assessing whether those
assumptions were consistent with those
applied elsewhere, such as in relation to
inventory valuation and the assessment of
property related provisions

+  Checking the mathematical accuracy
of management's cashflow models, and
agreeing opening balances to 25 April 2021
actual figures

* Checking management's covenant
compliance calculations to determine
whether there is ¢ risk of breach and
assessed whether the assumptions in
management's base model appeared
realistic, achievable and consistent with
other internal and external evidence

+ Comparing forecast sales with recent
historical information to consider the

aceuracy of forecasting

+ Considering post year end sales patterns to
assess whether they were consistent with
those assumed in the base model

+  Testing management's sensitivity analysis
and reverse stress test and performing our
own analysis based on further sensitising of
the models to toke account of reasonably
possible scenarios thot could orise from the
risks identified

= Challenging management regarding their
identification of discretionary spend that
could be reduced should mitigating octions
Umnﬂam necessary

« Reviewing agreements and correspondence
relating to the availabkility of finoncing
arrangements

» Evaluating the Group's disclosures on going
concern against the requirements of IAS 1

In reiction to the furlough income received
by the Group under the UK Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) we:

+  Obtained an understanding of how
manogement communicated and operated
the scheme and the process by which
management calculated ond submitted
their claims

+ Reviewed correspondence between the
Group and HMRC

+ Agreed cash received for claims made
during the year to bank statements

+  Reperformed the calculation of g sample of
claims including agreeing details to payrall
records

* Reviewed the internal audit work performed
over CJIRS claim procedures

Key observations

Qur audit work in respect of the Covid 12
pandemic and going concern concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropricte and we did not
identify any material uncertainties relating

to events or cenditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the group’s or the parent company's ability

te continue as a going concern and that the
associated disclosures are in accordance with
accounting standards.

However, the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic
on future performance is difficult to predict with
any certainty and no audit can be relied upon
to identify all possible scenarios that may have
future implications for the Group.

Qur work in respect of CJRS claims did not
identify any material misstatement.

4
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There are na key audit matters relating to the _uo..mmn company.

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall qudit strategy, we set certoin thresholds which help us to determine

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
«nderstanding of the Group's business and is
risk based, and in particular included:

the nature, timing ond extent of our audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of

misstatements, bath individually and on the financial statements as a whole, could reasanably .

Evaluation of identified components to

influence the econamic decisiens of the users we take into account the qualitative nature and the
size of the misstatements. Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the

financial stotements as foliows:

OVRRALL MATERIALITY

Purant Compaty

£31 nibron 12020 £11 Yrmillion)

£V Qronllion 12020 #1 9mullienng

BASIS FOR DETERMINING OVERALL MATERLALITY

RATIONALE FOR BENCHMARK APPLIED

2 8% ol Underlyng EBITDA

In deterrmining cverall Mtenality

we guve cangderntian t underlying
TBITOA, revenus and the nuerage re:
‘belofe tax for the prewcus thiee years

Since the Group utes underlwny EBITDA
I WS communiEations with sireghalders
we hve determined HYS 1o b8 the most
appraprats matanohly henchmark

We upplied o lower level of muteriakty
10 the quet of campenents any i
nccardance wah 1S4 320, in s2lotion to
certnin closaes of trnsasuons, account
bolances and diclosures

& g EBITDA 1 aghined ot note
ndhan the glossary te the nancal
statennents

% of tolol assats lLuppea at overll
Group Mate

The Parent Company duss hat tde
ond thevefore Latal assets s consered
to be the mosk appropriate benchrnacd

PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY

£72million

We set perfannonce matenality ot

u bevel lower than overoll motenohty

for the hnanciol skatements as g

whole to reduce to on opprapnately
low lavel the probatility that,
aggregote. uncorected and undetecter
SSOIEMATE $acpad Owess)]
matenahty

The lactors we consdared in
detanmining peformonte mater

the pressures within the ratal sectar
ard the leval of misstatements m pnor
pacads

W sat partarmanca mater
 level ower than over
for the finani siat
whola ta reduce to on oppropriotely
Iy laval the probability that,
uggregate, wicorrectad omd undetacted
statamens excesd gverll
matenclity

BASISFOR

ALITY

5% of cwerell mutenably
12670, 75% of gwergll moterinlity|

5% of averal
12020 79% of o
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Migstatertients i €xcess ol £ Hmlh

nls in excess of ED&m
and misytat: 5 bl Mol
That, i Gur view, war
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assess the significance of each compaonent
and to determine the planned audit
response bused on a measure of materiality.
This included significance as a percentage
of the Group's revenue, total assets and
result before tax; :

For those components that were evaluated
as significant, ar likely 1o include sign
risks, either a full-scope or targeted
approach was taken based on their
relative materiality to the Group, and our
ossessment of the audit risk. For significant
components requiring a full-scope
approach, we evaiuated controls over the
financic! reporting systems identified as
part of our risk assessment and addressad
critical accounting matters. Substantive
testing was perforrmed on significant classes
of transactions and balances, and other
material balances, determined during the
Group scoping exercise;

Full scope audit procedures have been
performed on the financial statements of
Frasers Group ple, and on the financial
information of the main trading companies
within the UK Retail component;
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited, Wareshop 2
Limited, Sports Direct International Holdings
Limited, House of Froser Limited, The
Flannels Group Limited, Jack Wills Retail
Limited, Evans Cycles Limited and GAME
Retaii Limited;

In relation to overseas components we
engaged RSM member firms in Austria,
Ireland and Spain, to perform full scope
camponent audits ond RSM in the United
Stotes and Belgium to perform targeted
audit procedures. Additionalty, RSM
member firms attended inventory counts in
o number of locations;

g
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+ The group engagement team reviewed the
work performed by the component auditors,
We determined the level of involvement
we needed to have in their audit work
at those reporting units to be able to
conclude whether sufficient, appropricte
audit evidence had been obtained as a
hasis for our opinion on the Group financial
statemernits as @ whole.

+  Further specific oudit procedures over the

* Group consolidation and areas of significant
judgement including impairment of property
rafated assets, leases, toxation and treasury
were performed by the group engogement
team,

The operations that were subject to full-scope
audit procedures made up 80% of consolidated
revenues, 82% of tota! assets and 72% of
absolute profit before tax.

The operations that were subject to targeted
audit pracedures, including specific significant
judgement creas noted above, mode up 8% of
consolidated revenues, 6% of total assets and
6% of profit before tax; and

The remaining eperctions of the Group were
subject to analytical procedures over the
balance sheet and income statements of the
relevant entities with a focus on applicable
risks identified above, This made up 12% of
consolidated revenues, 12% of net assets and
22% of profit befare tax.
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The coyerage achieved by our audit procedures was:

E Full Scope ..._.n_dmﬁnn_ audit . Analytical procedures
Full scope audits were performed for 5 corrponents {some of which included a number of legal
entities which were combined for group reporting purposes), targeted audit procedures for 4
components and anaiytical procedures at group level for the remaining components.

. ,u...___.-n........_n Revenue Toralomets | Belt
FULL SCOPE AUDIT 5 BO% B2% 1%
TARGETED AUDHT PROCEDURES 4 s ik, %
TOTAL k4 BbY% BH% 8%

The Group team had planned to visit component locations in Austria, Spoin and the USA. However,
these visits were prevented by trovel restricions imposed as o result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
instead the group team held video confererce calis and performed remote file reviews to assess the
audit risk and the work planned and performed in response.

The parent company was subject to a full scope audit for the purposes of the Group and Parent
Company financial statements,

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other irformation. The other information compyises the
information included in the annual report or pages 1ta 65 other than the financial statements

and our auditor's report therean. Our opinien on the financial stotements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitty stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing sa, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies o- apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is @ material misitatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatermnent of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conchude that
there is a material misstaterment of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Tl

Opinions on other mutters p
Companies Act 2006

ibed by the

In our opinion, the part of the directors'
rermuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit:

« the informatien given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors' Report for the
financiol year for which the finencial
statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements and those reports
have been prepared in accordance with
applicable Jegal requirements;

»  the information about internal control and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compiiance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rules sourcebook
made by the Financial Conduct Authority
{the FCA Rules), is consistent with the
financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal
requirements; and

« information about the company's corporate
governance code and practices and about
its administrative, management and
supervisory bodies and their committees
complies with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of
the FCA Rules
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Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and the parent
company and their envirenment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified
material misstatements in:

* the Strategic Report or the Directors' Report;
or

= the information about internal control and
risk manogement systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent compuany financial statements
and the part of the directors’ remuneration
report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

= certain disclosures of directors’
remunergtion specified by low are not
made; or

+ we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit.

Corporate governance stutement

The Listing Rules require us to review the
directors’ statement in relation o going
concern, longer-term viability and that part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the parent company's compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Statermnent specified for our review,
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Based on the work undertaken as part of

our audit, we have concluded that each of

the following elements of the Corparate
Governance Statement is materially consistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the audit:

»  Directors’ statement with regards the
appropriateness of adopting the going
concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified {set out on
page 64);

= Directors’ explanation as to its assessment
af the group’s prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why this period is
appropriote {set out on page 36);

+ Directors' statement on fair, balanced and
understandable [set out on page 44);

* Board's confirmation that it has carried out
a rabust assessment of the emerging ard
principal risks {set out on page 31;

+ The section of the annual report that .
describes the review of effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems
(set out on page 44); and,

- The sectionh describing the work of the audit
committee {set out on page 44)

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’
responsibilities statement (set out on page
65), the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the
preperation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the
group's and the parent company’s abitity

to continue os a going concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to going
concern ond using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the group or the parent company
ar to cease operations, or have no redlistic
alternative but to do so. :
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Auditer's responsibilities for the qudit of the
financial statements

Our obfectives are to obtain reosonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements vs o whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
{evel of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs
(UK) will always detect o material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually ar i the aggregate, they could
regsonably be expected to influence the
econamic decisions of users token on the basis
of these financial stotements.

The extent to which the audit was considered
pable of det lorities, includi

fraud

Irregularities are instances of non-compliance
with lows and requlotions. The objectives of
our audit ore to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding compliance with
laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the determination of material amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements,

to perform oudit procedures to help identify
instances of nen-campliance with other laws
and regulatians that may have o moterial effect
on the financial statements, and to respond
appropriately to identified or suspected
non-compliance with laws and reguiations
identified during the qudit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit
are to identify and assess the risk of material
misstatement of the financial stotements

dye to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit eviderice regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud through
designing and implementing appropriate
responses and to respond appropriately ta
fraud or suspected froud identified during the
audit.

FLeie

However, it is the primary responsibility of
rmanagemeant, with the oversight of those
charged with governonce, to ensure thot
the entity's operations are conducted in
accordance with the provisions of laws
ond regulations and for the prevention and
detection of fraud.

In identifying and assessing tisks of material
misstatement in respect of irregularities,
including fraud, the group audit engagement
team:

+  obtained an understanding of the nature

of the industry and sector, including the
legal and regulatory framewarks that the
group and parent company operates in and
how the group and parent company are
complying with the legal and regulatory
frameworks;

+ inquired of management, and those
charged with governance, about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities, including any known actual,
suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

+ apelied analytical review procedures to
identify unusual or unexpected relationships;

+ discussed matters about non-compliance
with laws and reguiations and how froud
might occur including assessment of how
and where the financial statements may be
susceptible to fraud

As the group is regulated, our ossessment of
risks involved gaining an understanding of
the effectiveness of the control environment
including the controls established to mitigate
the risks of froud and the procedures for
complying with regulatery requirements,

All relevant laws and regulations identified at a
Group level and areas susceptible to froud that
could hove o moterjal effect on the financial
statements were communicoted to component
quditors, Any instances of non-compliance

with laws and regulations identified and
communicated by component auditors were
considered in our audit approach. We remained
alert to any indications of fraud throughout the
audit.

FRASERS GROQUP

As a result of these procedures, we considered
the opportunities and incentives that may
exist within the Group for froud ond identified
the greatest potential for fraud in those areas
in which management is required to exercise
significant judgement. In cammeon with all
audits under [SAs {UK] we aiso performed
specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override and the risk of fraudulent
revenue recognition, These procedures
inclucied:

= testing the appropriateness of journal
entries and cther adjustments based on risk
criterio and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation

+ assessing whether the judgements made
in making accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias

+ evaluating the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusuat or
ouytside the normal course of business

»  testing the operating effectiveness of
the manual controls in relation to the
completeness, accuracy, and existence of
cash sales -

*  investigating transoctions posted to nominal
ledger codes gutside of the nermal revenue
cycle identified through the use of data
analytics tools,

The Group is subject to laws and regulations
which directiy affect the material amounts

and disclosures in the financial staternents.

The most significant laws and regulations were
detertrined to be os follows:-JFRS and FRS

102, the UK Companies Act, Financial Conduct
Authority regulotions, including the Listing Rules
and tax legislation.

In addition, the Group is subject to other

laws and regulations which de not have a
direct effect on the financial statements but
compliance with which may be fundamental
to the Graup's ability to operate or to ovoid
material penalties. We identified the following
arews s those most likely to have such an
effect: competition and anti-bribery laws, data
protection, employment, environmental and
health and safety regulations.
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In response to the above, oudit procedures
performed by the audit engagement team
included:

« reviewing financial statement disclosures
and testing to supporting documentatizn
to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described
as having a direct effect on the finoncial
statements

= enquiring of management, the Audit
Committee and in-house legal counsel
concerning octual and potential litigatian
and claims

+ reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance, reviewing intarmal
audit.reports and correspondence with
HMRC

A further description of aur responsi
the audit of the financial statements is locaoted
on the Financial Reporting Council’s websit= at:
http:/fwww fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibi
This description forms part of cur ouditor's
report.

Other matters which we are required to add-ass

Following the recommendation of the audit

. committes, we were appointed by the Audit
Committee and the Board on 18 November
2012 to audit the financial staternents for tha
year ending 26 April 2020 and subsequent
firincial periods.

The period of total uninterrupted consecutive
appointments is 2 years covering the years
ending 26 Apiil 2020 to 25 Aprit 2021,

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's
Ethical Stondard were not provided to the
group or the parent company and we remain
independent of the group dnd the parent
company in conducting our audit.

Qur audit opinion is consistent with the
additional report to the audit committee.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's
members, cs a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed,

Mark Harwood
{Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP,
Statutery Auditor

Chartered Accountants
25 Farringdon Street
London

ECA4A 4AB

5 August 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
. For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 , nozvzm:mzm—<m —znozm R

52 wasks ondud '
Hats 28 ApAl 2031 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
] e Frw— 52 weeks sndad
REVENUE 4 1,683 25 Aprit 2011 24 April 2020
Cast of sates 12,094 5} 12,294 8) ml (K}
GROYS PROFIT 13168 16676 {tasslraft dor the peron 4 184l 00
Selling. distnbution ond wdrministrative expenses N.N50] nas 7
Orher operating income 5 368 25 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Property reloted impoirments ' 1847 (31701 226 ITEMS THAT WILL NOT 8E RECLAISIFIED SURSTOUENTLY TO PROFIF OR LOSS
Eacephinnol stermg L] &) an Fenr vablue movernant on long-term fingaeial assats 20 713 119 7)
v
Profit ah sale of properties 7 97 544
ITEMS THAT WILL LE RECLASSIFIED ¥ TOPROFIT ORLOSS
OPERATING (LOSSYPROFIT 48 16931 ms
Ewchargie dilferentes on Ironslation of fareion cperotions (490 '
Arwestmant income w0 037 152
Fa 0 movement on hedged contracts - recagnised in the penod 25,79 0 Ha
Irvestment costs it 77 149 8}
valur movement an hedged caalracts - melfechvensss 2529 - 0z
- Fimonce ircome 12 90 3o
Fair value movement on hedged contracts - reclassiied ond reported in soles 2539 128} 07
Finance cost 13 (3521 1293} i
Far volue mavameant on hedged controcts - reclassibed and reparted w cast ol sales 2529 ) 1374)
Share ot loss of associated undertakings i - {15
Fuir value movemért on hadged contiacts - toanbon taken bo reservas 245,7% L 30 28
Fair vole gam on stap scquisition 5 . 04
PROFIT 5 G 618 OTHER £ DMPREHENSIVE INCOME/|LO3S) FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX nr
4 8¢
Tavauor, . 269 1623 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE {LOSSV/INCOME FOR THE PIRIOD . 1683} T4
(LOSSL/PROFIT FOR THE PRRIOD 4 [T8.0) 101.0
ATTRISUTABLE TO:
ATT To: Eaurty holders of the group [CE] 657
.
Cauty helders of the Grous (630} 528 e PP =
Non-controliing mterests 72
168.3) T4
(LOSSHPROFIT SOR THE PERIOD B 010
PER LHART ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE KQUITY DERS
The accompanying accounting palicies and notes form port of these financiol statements,
Pencu par shars Penca parshars
Bawic earmings par shore 15 14 5) w5
Diluted earmings per share 15 HER]] H5

1h Propenty related impaitments of £3170m hove baen sepOrately presented for tha yeo: ended 25 Aprl 101 the prior yeor compantitive af £122 tm
which wos previausly included witivn Selling, distrbution ond admmistrotive sxpenses in the FY20 Annunl Repert has heen represented
ta be comparoble

The Consolidated Income Statement hos been prepared on the basis that all operations are
continuing. The accompanying cecounting policies and notes form part of these
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 25 April 2021

Nets 25 April 2021 26 Aprll 2020
’ gl tm)
ABSETS = NOW CURRENT
Property. plant and sguipment 16 164§ 13476
Invasiment properties ” 141 189
Intangible assaty 18 205 1434
Long-teren financlal assets ri 2633 838
Detemrad tox ossets 27 1] 499
16208 18424
ASSETS - CURRRNT
Inventories 2 1096 6 1198 3
Trode and ot her recaivables 22 5465
Derivatlve financial assets 29 554 ki
Cash and cash equivalants 23 4570 5340
1888 22244
TOYAL ASSETS 17881 18842
EQUITY
Share capital 24 641 641
Share pramium 8743 8143
Truosury shares resurve 12951 (2957
Permanent contribution te caputal 25 @l 01
Gapital redemptlon reserve Fi3 80 a0
Foreign currency transiohon reserve 288 ne
Reversa combrmnatian resarve 35 1987 3) (98731
Dwn shara rasarve J{-L})) ter ol
Hadging resarve 25 ns 280
Shore based payment resaive 13
Retained earnings 1.554.5 15649
HEUED CAMTAL AND RESERYES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENY 11923 %2672
Non-controllng interests 181 120
TOTAL EQUITY 12110 11801
LIABILITINS - NOM CURRENT
Laase liobility 5 5347 4763
Borrowsngs % 7059 5000
Retirarnent banefit obligotians 19 1%
Dafayred bax hobilities a7 70 58
Pronvisions 8 612 3360
. 16503 [tEIA]
LIABILITIES - CURRENT
Derivotive inoncial ¥ iy 192 447
Tradu and ather payables 0 8461 6025
Leasa liabiliby 2% 1885 1479
Current tox hobiltes 89y 536
(%] ]
TOTAL LIABILITIES 25H1
TOTAL EGUNTY AND LIABILITIES pRiA)

The accompanying accounting policies ond notes form part of these Financial Statements. The'
Financial Statements were approved by the Board on 5 August 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Chris Wootton

Chief Finoncial Officer
Company number: 06035106
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

Mot Sz waeks onded 53 weshs endnd
25 Apnil 2021 26 Apeil 3020

Em)

CASH INFLOWS FROM OFERATING ACYIVITIES a2 415.2
Inceme taxes paid 146.5)

NET CASH INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITINS

Froceeds on disposal of property. plant ond equipment and investment property 06 1524
Procaeds on disposol of mtangisles ussets 15 -
Froceeds on digpasol of hited nvestments and dervalives 551 43
Furchase ol asiocioles - 156
Purchase ol subsidioties, net of cosh nequired Ell 1354] 73
Purthase of progerty, plant and equiprent 1215.4) 1322.5)
Purchasa of wlangible assets n.0) -
Purchase of investments - 133 174 B
fiwustrient income eceved a5 05
Fance ncome racsived 90 28
NET CASH OUTFLOWS EROM INVESTING ACTIVITIRS (280.4) 193.4)
Lease paymants 7801 mast
Finonca costs pad {316t 8.3}
Banawings rirgwn dewn % 11281 00
RAanawings repad % 11,3236) 1436 51
Dnvidands pard to non-controbing intarssts 09 -
Purchase of own sharss 143) {439]
NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES o3} 1wz
NI REASEVINCAEASE [N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCLUDING fL3)) o
Exchunge movernenl an cash baloncas 153 50
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AURORAFTS AT OF PERIOD L]

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FT5 AT THE PERIOD END 23 4370 3]

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financiol statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN EQUITY

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

Foreign currency Total attribytabls te Nop-eenirslling

* Share copital Shovs pramium™ Treawry shares  Share rshems coverve ronslation Owh thare fesdeve Ratained sarnings Othac ewners of parent intataste Total
Em) {&m) Em) (£m} [tmi lem) e} fem (L) lim) em)
AT 29 APRIL 2013 3 &4 842 {2811 - 881 {61.3) 14808 (931.5) 12158 as 1ang
Purchase of awn shares - . (4804 - - oz - 4438 - 1438}
Reversal ot FYip far valusnon of thare buyboek controctual obihgotion - - 00 - - - - - 300 - 300
TRANIACTIONS WITH OWHERS IN THRIR CAPACITY A5 OWNERS - - (1.0 - - 0.2 - . - el
Profit lar the noncial pared - - - - - - 936 12 10
OTHER CONPREHENSIVE INC OME
Cash flow hedges - racognised in the pariod - - L. - - - - %4 164 - 4
Cosh flow hadges - ineffectiveness - - - - - - a2 012 - 0z
Cash llow hedges - reclassified ond reported in sates . - - - - - ! ik L7 117
Cashi flow hedges - reclasghed ond reprrted in cost of soles - - - - - - - 137 4] 1324] - {374}
Cush How hadges - taxation - . - . - - . 38 13 EL]
Fair volue in respect of long term hinanciel ossets - racagnised - - - - - : N - usn - {17
- Translahon dstferences - Group - - - - - 98 N ya
TOTAL COMPREHENSIYE INCOME FOR THE FERIOD - - - A {1e.r 45.2 13 114
AT 26 APRIL 2020 &b 143 1293.71 - I 5.8 15848 #2121 12613 ne 13002
Acennsibions (aote I - - - - - - 10 19
Share schema - - - 13 - o3 1471 - 131 - =K
Dividends paid 16 non-coptrolling nterests - - - - - - - 109 o
WITH OWNERS JN THEIR CAPACITY A3 GWNERS - - . 13 - 0.3 LRl - ny LAl 1.0}
{LossWprofit for the linaneial peried - - - - . f83a} . 1830 50 (78 0]
OTHER COHPRIHENSIVE INCOME
Cashllow hadges - recognisad n the penod . - "’ - - - - 04 D4 04
Cashtlow hedges - reciassified ond reported in cales - - - - - 3 - i28f 128} - 78
Cushiiow hadgds - wclustiied and raponted in cost of soles - - - . - - - [EAl " . [t
Cashllow hedges - taxation - - - - - - ) ag 30 . 30
Fuie valye adjustment in respect of long-taim financial gssets - recogmised - - - - - . 73 iE] . L
Transluton drilerencas - Groun - - - - 1491 - - - 1491 {491
TOTAL COMPREHEN3IVE {1,055) FOR THE PRRIOD . - - - 9.9 - [t 2] 116.5} 1.3 50 146.3]
AT 23 APRIL 2001 Al M3 (395.7) 15 202 88.3) 1,554.5 (942.7) 11928 w1 12119
m Tha shore pravmum ot count 15 used to record the excess praceeds over __c.:_:u,.ﬁ._:m on the issue of shares

(2t Other reserves compnses permonent contribubion to Lapit
mavements In the penod related Lo the hedging reserve

cupitol redemption raserve, Tevarse cominnauon resarve and the hedging reserve All
ote 26

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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FRASERS GROUP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Frasers Groeup ple {Company number: 06C35106)
is a company incerporated and domiciled in
the United Kingdom, its shares are listed on the
London Stock Exchange. The registered ofice

is Unit A, Brook Park East, Shirebrook, NG20
8RY. The principal activities and structure of the
Group can be found in the Directors' Repart and
the 'Our Business' section.

Bazis Of Preparation

The consolidated Financial Statements have
been prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and in
accordance with interational financial reporting
standards adepted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union. The consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified to include fair valuation
of certain financial assets and derivative
financial instruments.

The accounting policies set out betow have
been applied consistently to cll periods in these
Financial Statements and have been applied
consistently by all Group entities. Certain
subsidiaries have been consolidated based on @
calendar year-end date of 30 April 2021,

The numbers presented in the Financial
Statements have been rounded to the nearest
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Going cancern

The Group's business activities, together with the
factors likely to affect its futuré development,
perfarmance and position are set out in the Chief
Executive's Report and Business Review.

The finencial position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described in the Financial Review. in additicn,
the Financial Statements include the Group's
objectives, policies and processes fer managing
its capital, its financial risk management
objectives, details of its financial instruments and
hedging activities, and its exposures to credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financial
resources. The Group is able to operate within

its banking facilities and covenants, which run
until November 2022, and is well placed to take
advantage of strategic opportunities as they
arise. As a consequence, the Directors believe
that the Group is able to manage its business
risks successfully despite the continued uncertain
economic outlook.

Management have assessed the level of trading
to date since the impacts of Covid-19 and has
forecast and projected a conservative base case
and alse a number of even mere conservative
scenarios toking into account a potential further
wave and associated lockdowns over winter,
Government support, foreign exchange exposure
and cost saving initiatives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able to
operote within the level of the current facility end
its covenant requirements (being interest cover
and net debt to EBITDA ratios). Management
also have a number of mitigating actions which
could be taken if required such as putting on
hold discretionary spend, realising certain
assets on the Balance Sheet and paying down
the Revolving-Credit Facility. See the Viability
Statement for further detuwils. -

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitable
enguiries, the Directars are confident that the
Greup hos adequate resources to remain in

Printed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trost. heiping to croate new Bn

operational existence for-at least 12 months

from the date of these Financial Statements.
Trading would need to fell significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants.
On this basis, the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis for the preparation of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements which is
a period of at least twelve months from the date
of approval of these Financial Stotements.

Basis Of Consolidation

The consolidated Financial Statements
incorporate the financiol statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Cormpany [its subsidiaries) each year. Control js
achieved when the Company;

+ has the power over the investee;

+  is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involverment with the investee; and

+ hasthe ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of contral listed above,

When the Company hos less than a majerity of
the voting rights of an investee, it considers that
it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the refevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant
facts and circumstonces in assessing whether or
not the Company’s voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power, including:

+ the size of the Company's holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
haldings of the other vote holders;

+  potential voting rights held by the Company,
other vote holders or other parties;

» rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

v any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need
to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholdess’ meetings.

woodland across the UK

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Compony loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to controf the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
the accounting policies used into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and fiabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between the members of the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-centreiling interests in subsidiaries are
identified separately from the Group's equity
therein. Those interests of non-controlling
shareholders that are present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets upon liquiddation may initially be
measured at fair volue or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement is mode on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Cther nen-contrelling
interests are initially measured ot fair value,
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to

the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries is attributed

to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.



Prn

FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in o loss of cantral are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amount of the Group's interests and
the non-cortrolling interests aré adjusted to
reflect the changes in their reigtive interests

in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-¢ontrolling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed ta the owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on dispasal recognised in profit
or loss is calculated as the difference betweern
{i} the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and [} the previous carrying
armount of the assets (including goodwilll

less ligbilities of the subsidiary ond any
non-controlling interests. All @gmounts previously
recognised in ather cornprehensive income in
relation ta that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directty disposed of the
reloted nssets or Wobilides of the subsidiary

{Le. reclassified to profit ar loss of transferred .
to another category of equity as required/
permitted by opplicoble 1FRS Syandards). The
fair value of any investment retcined in the
former subsidiary at the date when controt

is lost is regarded as the tair value on initial
recagnition for subseauent accounting under
IFRS 9 when appliceble, or the cost on initial
recognition of an investrnent in an gssociate or
@ joint venture.

SBusiness combinotiens

Acquisitions of businesses ore accounted for
using the acquisition wethod, The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair volue, which is calculated
as the sum of the orguisition-date foir values
of assets transferred to the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former awners
of the acquiree and the equity interest issued
by the Group in exchange for contral of

the acauiree. Acqui tion-relcted costs are
recognised in profit o loss as incurred.
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Al the acquisition date, the identifioble assets
acquired and the lighilities cssumed are
recognised at their fair value ot the acquisition
date, except that:

. deferred tox assets of Yiabilities and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recagnised and measured
in accordance with 14512 and 18519
respectively:

« ligbilities or equity instrurnents related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-bosed payrnert
drrangements of the-Group entered
into to replace shore-based payment
arrangernents of the acquire are measured
in accardance with |ERS 2 at the acquisition
date (see beiow]; and

. assets [or disposal groups) that are
classified ag held for sale in accordance
with FRS & are meosured in accardance
with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration trarisferred, the amaount of
any non-contrelling interests in the acquiree,
ond the foir volue of the acauires's previously
held eguity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquited ahd the liohilities
assumed. [f, after eassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date arnounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabiities assumed exceeds
the sum of the cansideration transferred, the
amount of any nan-contrelling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previcusty held interest in the acouites (if anyl,
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

For business combinations achieved in stages,
the Group remeasures its previously held equity
interest in the acquiree at its acqu
fawr value and recoguises the resulting gain
or loss, if any, in the Income Statement as
appropriate.

Associates

An asseciate is an entity over which the Group
has significont influence and thot is neither

a subsidiary nor an interest in g joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the fimancial ond operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not controt or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these financiol
steterments using the equity methad of
accounting, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it Is’
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5.

Under the equity method, an investment

in an associate is recognised initially in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's shase of the profit ar foss and other
comprehensive income of the asseciate. When
the Group's share of lasses of an assotiate or
o joint venture exceeds the Group's interest i
that associate {which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associote), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
anly to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal of constructive abligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investrment in an associate,
any excess of the cast of the investment over
the Group's share of the fet fair value of

the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investes is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the
investment, Any excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately

| oacross t
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in profit or loss in the period in which the
imwestment is acquired.

The requirements of |AS 36 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary o TECOGNISE
any impairment 1oss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire corrying amount of the investment
{including goodwill) is tested for impairment

in accordance with IAS 36 as & single osset by
comparing its recoveroble arnount {highes of
value in use and foir vaiue less costs of disposal)
with its corrying amount, Any reversal of that
impairment Joss is recognised in accordonce
with 1AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment supsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
caases to be an associate. When the Group
retains an interast in the farmer associate
and the retained interest is a finoncicl asset,
the Group measures the retained interest

at fair value at that date and the fair

value is regarded as its fair value on
recognition in aecordance with [FR5 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
associate ot the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the faic value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of

@ part interest in the associate is included

in the determination of the gain o loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts far all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation o
thot asseciate on the some basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets of ligbilities. Therefore, if

a gain or loss previously recagnised in other
comprehensive income by thet associcte would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the reloted assets or figbilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity 1o prafit
or loss {as o reciassification adjustment) when
the associate is disposed of.
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When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an asseciate but the Group continues to

use the equity method, the Group reclassifizs
to profit or loss the proportion of the gain

or loss that had previously been recognisec

in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit

or loss on the disposal of the related assets

or liabilities. When a group entity transacts
with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with tre
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s censelidoted financial statements cnly
to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue with customers is measured based on
the five-step model under IFRS 15: ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers".

-

identify the contract with the customer;

2. identify the performance obligations in the
contract;

3. determine the transaction price;

4. dilocate the transaction price to separate
performance obligations in the contract;
and

5. recognise revenues when {or as) each
performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value odded taxes. Customers have a right of
return within a specified period and this give;
rise to variable consideration under IFRS 15.
The right of return asset is recognised within
inventory, with the refund liability due to
customers on return of their goods recognised
within trade and other payables.

In the case of goods sold through retail stores,
revenue is recognised when we have satisfied
the performance obligation of transferring tha
goods to the customer at the paint of sale, less
provision for returns. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for such returns at
the time of the sale, Retail sales are usually in
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cash, by debit card or by credit card.

In the case of goods sold on the internet

where the customer has opted for delivery,
revenue is recegnised when we hove satisfied
the performance obligation of transferring

the goods to the customer, which is the point
of delivery to the customer. Transactions

are settled by credit card or payment card.
Provisions are made for internet credit notes
bosed on the expected level of returns using the
expected value method, which in turn is based
upon the historical rate of returns. In the case
of internet ¢lick and collect orders which are
collected in store, the performance obligation is
deemed to have been satisfied when the goods
are dispatched fram the warehouse.

In the case of goods sold to other businesses
via wholesale channels, revenue is recognised
when we have satisfied the performance
obligation of transferring the goods to the
customer upon delivery. Payment terms are
generally 3G-60 days with no right of return.

In the cese of income generated from
trademarks and licences, revenue is recognised
based either on a fixed fee basis or bosed

on sales with specified minimum guarantee
amounts in accordance with the relevant
agreements. If the sales-based royalty is not
expected ta clearly exceed the minimum
guarontee threshold, revenue is recognised over
the rights period measured cn the basis of the
fixed guaranteed consideration. Revenue above
the minimum guarantee thresheold is recognised
as earned based on the contractual royalty rate
applied to the sales.

Revenue from Gym membership fees is
recognised on the accruals basis over the
related membership period. .

I the case of revenue from third party
commission on concession sales within the
House of Fraser department stores this

is recognised when goods are sold to the
customer. As we act os the agent this is
stated at the value of the commission that
the Group receives on the transaction rather
than the gross revenue from the sale of the
concessionaires’ goods.

The Group operates loyalty programmes
which allow members to accumulate points
on purchases and receive exclusive offers and
benefits. The fair value of the points awarded
to customers is determined reiative to the
total transaction price and accounted for as
a separate identifiable component of a sales
transaction. Revenue is deferred to match
the estimate value of earned loyalty points.
Deferred revenue is adjusted for the value of
points that are not expected to be redeemed
by customers based on histerical redemption
rates, When the pofnts are redeemed and the
Group fulfils its obligations pursuant to the
programmes, the revenue that was deferred is
recognised. In the UK points awarded expire
following a period of 12 months of inactivity,
in Spain they are valid until the end of the
following calendar year.

Revenue from gift cards and vouchers is
recognised when the cards or vouchers are
redeemed by the customer, breakage is
recognised when the likelihood of the card
or voucher being redeemed is remote or
has expired. For gift cards monies received
represent deferred revenue prior to the
redemption.

Government Gronts

Government grants are not recagnised until
there is reasonabie assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.
Grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in the Income Staterment in the
period in which they become receivable.

The Group has received Government support
in the period relating to business rates relief
and the Coronavirus Jeb Retention Scheme
{CJRS) us a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
The amount received by the Group lincluding
the UK) in the pertod in regard to the CJRS lor
equivalent where received in non-UK territories)
was approx. £80m. The amount of business
rates relief received by the Group in the period
{or equivalent where received in non-UK
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territories) was approx, £97.5m. Government
grants that compensate the Group for expenses
ircurred are recognised in profit or loss as a
deduction against the related expense over

the periods necessary to match therm with

the related costs. The amounts quoted have
been recognised in Selling, distribution and
administrative expenses in the period.

Exceptional {tems

The Group presents exceptional items on

the face of the Income Statement, These are
significant items of income and expense which,
because of their size, nature and infrequency
of the events giving rise te them, merit
separate presentation to allow shareholders

to better understand the elements of financial
performance in the year, so os to facilitote
comparison with prior pericds and assess
trends in financial performance more readily.

Interest Income

Interest income is reported on an occruals basis
using the effective interest method.

Taxation

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the Income Statement,
except to the extent it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directiy in equity. The income tax expense or
credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current periods taxabkle income, based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction,
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and .
lia es attributable to temporary differences
and to unused losses.

Deferred taxation is calculated using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
lial es and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated Financial Statements. However,
if the deferred tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or initial recognition
of an asset or liability in o transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxabie profit or loss, it is not accounted
for. Deferred tax on temporary differences
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associated with shares in subsidiciies is

not provided if reversal of these temporary
differences can e controlled ty the Group
and it is probable that reversal will not oGTur if
the foreseeable future. In odditicn, tax losses
avaitable o be carried forward as well 95 othet
income tox credits to the Group are qssessed
for recagnition o8 deferred tax assets. Deferred
tax is determined using \x rotes and lews hat
have been enacted (of m_.__u%o::,..mz enacted)
by the pojance sheet date and are expected

to apply when the reloted deferred tax asset is
reciised or the deferred tox liokility is settled.

Deferred tox liobilities are provided in full.

Deferred tax assets are _.mnomammn 1o the extent
thatitis probable that future taxable profits
will be avoilable against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
are offset where thereis a legally enforcecbie
right to offset current tax ossetd and habilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to
the same tox aquthority.

Changes in current and deferred ox ossets of
liobilities are recognised as @ component of
ot EXpense it the Income Staternent, except
where they relate Yo items that are tecorded
in ather comprehensive income of charged or
credited directiy t© equity in which case the
related deferred tax is also charged to other
comiprehensive income of credited directly to
equity. Deferced kax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consalidation i$ recognised
as an asset ond reviewed for impairment

at least annually of when a change in
circumstances oF situatian indicates that the
goodwill has suffered an impdi rrent loss. The
need for irapairment is tested by comparing the
recoverable amaunt of the cash-gereralting unit
CGUL which is the higher of faif value less €osts
1o sell and volue in use, to the carrying value.
Arny impairment is recognised snmediotely v
the lncome Statement. Impairment losses on
goodwill are ot reversed. Gains and losses o0
the disposal: of o business include the amount
of goodwil velating to that business.
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Depreciotion is ro.ama on alt property,

plant and equipment other thah frechold

land ond is caleulated an d straight-line basis,
whichever is deemed by the directors to be
more appropriate. to cliocate cost Jess assessed
residuch value, other than assets in the course
of construction over the estimated useful lives,
as follows:

When the nan-controlling interest of an existing
supsidiary 1 acquired the carmying walue of the
non-controlling interests i the Balance Sheet s
eliminated. Any difference between the amount
py which the non-tontroling interest is adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid 15
recognised directly in equity.

Other Intangible Assets
. freshold puildings - bepween 10 to 15 years

Brands, trademarks and licences that aré - straight lire

internotly mmﬂmanmn_ are not recarded on the
Baolance Sheet. Acquired prands, podemar ks
and licences are initially carried on the
gaiunce Sheet o cost. The fair walue of brands,
trademairks and licences that are acquited by .
vistue of a business combination is determined
at the date of oequisition and is mcfmmncmsnf
assessed as being the deemed cost to the
Group.

. Leasehold improvements ~ 5 years af Over
the term of the lease, whichever is shortest
_ srronght ine

plont and equipment - between 312 5 years
- straight line

During the period the freehald buildings
depreciaton estimate was changed from
between 10t 25 years to between 10 to 1%
yedrs. This hos resulted in approt £30m of
additional depreciation peing recognised in
the peried. This was based on a review af the
freehoid property portfolio by managernent
ond itwas geemed appropriate to reduce the
(ange to bette? dlign with the estirate of the
remaining useful lives of the freehcld buildings.
This change i accounking astimate is expected
to impact the depreciction charge in future
perieds but an estimate of the impact has not
peen disclosed due to it being ,i._vansnaw_m ta
do so given the (evel of additions and disposals

* that could be anti jpated based on nistoricah
trends.

Expenditure on advertising ond Eo:..oco:c_
activities i ,‘mnow:mwmm as an expense as
incurred.

Amortisation is provided on bronds, trademarks
and licences with a definite |ife on a straight
fine bosis over their useful economic lives

of between 51© 15 yedars and is aceourted

for within the seliing, distribution ond
adrmnistrative expenses category within the
Incame Statement.

Property, Plant And Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated

at historicol cost less depreciation less any
recognised impairment yosses. Cost inchudes
expendituré that is directly attributable to

the acquisition or Qu:u::n..znj of these ftems.
subsequent costs ore included in the asset’s
canmying amount only whenitis probable that
future economic benefits associated with the
itern will flow to the Graup and the costs can be
measured refiably.

The assels useful lives and residual values are
reviewed and, if appropriate. qdjusted ot each
balance sheet date. The gain of Joss arising an
dispasch of scropping of on qsset 5 detesmined
as the difference between the sales _uanmmn.m.
et of seling costs, end the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the Income
gratement.

All other costs. including repairs and
mamtenonce casts and labour costs are
charged to the Incormne Steternent iy the period
in which they are jncurred.

Propefty. plant and equipment where the
carrying amount is recovered nﬂ.__.,n,_nn____<
through a sales rransaction and where @ sale is
considered to be highty probable are stoted b
the lower of carrying vake and fair value 1ess
costs to sefl.

] asnons fhwe UK
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Investmant Properties

{rwvestment progperties. which are defined as
property held for rental income oF capital
appreciation, aré initially measured at cost
being purchase price and directly attributeble
expenditure. Where the intention is 1o hold
praperty a8 owner occupied, this is recognised
as property, plont and equipment.

gubsequently jnvestrment properties are held
at cost less aceumutated depreciation and
._:.__uo._:.:m:_” Josses. jrvestrnent properties are
mmuan_nﬁma between 10 t0 15 years straight
lire, cther than the land slement which is not
amu-mn._n«m&

Fair values of the investment properties are
disclosed.

impairment OF Azsets Other Thun Goedwill

At each balance sheet date. rhe Directors
review the carrying arnounts of the Groug's
tangible and intangible gssets, other than
mooas.._:. to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets hove suffered

an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset in
ts curreric condition is estimated i arder to
determine the extent of the impairment 10s, if
arry. Where the asset coes not generate cash
flows that areé independent from cther ossets,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGEU to which the asset belengs. With
respett 1o propetty plont and equipment.
each store is considered t¢ pe a CGU ond
reviewed for ipairment whereby changes in
circumstances indicate that the recoverable
amount is lower than the cerrying value.

The recoverable amaunt is the higher of fair
volue less costs to selt and volue in use- in
assessing the value in usé, the estimated future
cosh flows are discounted to theif prasent
vaiue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments af the time value
of money and the risks specific 1o the osset fof
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset {of

CGUL s estimated 10 be less than its carrying
arnount, the carmying armount of the asset
©cGUlis reduced to its recoverable amount. An
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impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately, uniess the relevant asset is
carried at a re-vclued amount, in which ccse
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease to the eriginal historic cost and tien
as an expense.

Impairment losses recegnised for CGU's to
which geodwilt has been allecated are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata
to the other assets in the CGU.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the casrrying amount of the asset
{CGU} excluding goedwil), is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so thot the increased carrying omount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment joss keen
recognised for the asset {CGU) in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the Income Statement immediately.

Assets Held For Sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale
are presented separately and measured at the
lower of their carrying amounts immediately
prior to their classification as held for sale cnd
their fair value less costs to sell. Once ciassified
as held for sale, the assets are not subject to
depreciation or amortisation.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost end
net reclisable value. Cost includes the purchase
price of the manufactured products, materials,
direct labour and transport costs. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling price less all estimated sel ing
costs,

The Group receives trade discounts and rebates
from suppliers based upon the volume of
orders placed in a given time windew. Typical
discounts and relbates received by the Group
include early settlement discounts, volume
rebates on inventory purchases, supplier
rebates based on faulty goods, and marketing
support. Where there is sufficient certainty
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that @ discount or rebate will be received in
the future that relates to historic purchases this
is reflected in the cost of inventories. Where
the receipt of rebates is uncertain, the cost of
inventories is held at fulf cost price until the
rebate is received. Recognised rebates are
released to the Income Stctement to the extent
that the stock has been sold.

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and deposits held on call, together with

" other short term highly liquid investments that

are readily convertible to knewn amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. |

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities cre
recoghised in the Group’s Balance Sheet when
the Group becomes o party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets and financial lia
initially measured at fair value. Transoction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities {other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liakilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss,

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financiol
asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards are transferred. A financial liability

is derecognised when it is extinguished,
discharged, cancelled ar expires. -

Financial Assets

Classification and initial measurement of
financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component

and are measured at the transaction price in
accordance with IFRS 15, all financial assets
are initially measured at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs [where applicable).

Financial assets, other than those designated
and effective as hedging instruments, are
classified into the following categories:

+ amortised cost
»  fair value through profit or loss ._u<._._u.r_

» fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI)

All income and expenses relating to financial
assets that are recognised in profit or loss
are presented within finance costs or finance
income, except for impairment of trade
receivables and amounts due from related
parties which are presented within selling
distribution and administrative expenses.

Cuby "

t of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised
cost if the assets meet the following conditions
{and are not designated as FVTPLY

+  they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and
cetlect its contractual cash flows

+ the contractual terms of the financial
assets give rise to cash flows that are solely
poyments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured

ot amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group's
cash and cash equivalents, trode and most
other receivables fall into this category of
financial instruments,

Financia! assets at foir value through profit or
loss (FVTRL)

Financial assets that are held within a different
business model other than hold to collect’

or 'hold to collect and sell’ are categorised

at fair value through profit and loss. Further,
irrespective of business model financial

ing to credale new Brtish woodiand acioss the UK

assets whose controctual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal ond interest are
accounted for at FVTPL. AH derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for
those designated and effective as hedging
instruments, for which the hedge accounting
requirements apply (see below)},

Assets in this category are measured at fair
value with gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The Fair values of financial assets in
this cotegory ure determined by reference to
active market transactions or using a valuation
technique where no active market exists,

Finaricial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI)

On initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made
the irrevacable election to aceount for fong
term financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYQOCI) given these are
net held for trading purposes. The election has
been made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, only qualifying dividend income is
recognised in profit and loss, changes in fair
value are recognised within QCl and never
reclassified to profit and loss, even if the asset is
impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9's impairment requirements use more
forward-tooking information to recognise
expected credit losses - the ‘expected credit
loss (ECL) model'. Instruments within the
scope of the requirements include loans and
other debt-type finoncial assets measured at
amortised cost and FYOCI, trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, contract assets recognised and
meaosured under IFRS 15 and loan commitrents
and some financial guarantee contracts {for
the issuer) that are not measured at foir value
through profit or loss.

Other recaivables and amounts due from
related parties

Recognition of credit losses is no longer
depandent on the Group first identifying a.
credit loss event. Instead the Group considers
a broader ronge of information when assessing
credit risk and measuring expected credit
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\osses, including past Evenits, Current congditions,
regsonabie ond supportabie fovecasts that
affect the expectad collectability of the future
cash flows of the jnstrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, @
distinction is made betwean:

. finencial instruments that have not
detatiorated significantly in credit quality
since initial recognition a¢ that have low
credit risk {"Skage T} and

. financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since 1 ial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
{"stoge 2%

. “Stage 3" would cover financial assets where
the credit risk has increased to a point at
whichitis considered eredit impaired

2-month expected cradit losses’ are
recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime
expected credit losses’ are recognised far the
second category.

Megsurement of the expectad credit losses is
deterrined by @ vqoaagzz.im..m:nmn gstimate
of cradit losses over the expected lite of the:
financial nstnament.

Trade receivables

The Group makes use of a simplified gppreach
in accounting for trode receivables and records
the foss allowance os lifetime expected credit
losses. These are the expected shortfails

in contractual cash Fows, considennd the
potential for default at any point during the life
of the financic instrument, In calculating, the
Group uses its historical experience, external
indicators and forward-looking information to
caleulate the expected credit losses using @
provision matrix.

Financial Licbilities

Classification and meosurement of financiol
liabilities

The Group's financia es incude
harrowings and lease liabilities, trade and other
payables and derivative find neial instruments.
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Financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, and. where applicable, adjusted for
trarsoction costs unless the Group designated
a financial liehility at fair value through profit
or Joss. Subseguently. finonciol licbilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method except for derivatives and
finonaral Hobilities designated at FVTPL, which
are carried subsequently at fair value with
gains or l0s5€8 recogmised in preficor loss
{other than derivotive finamcial instruments
that are designated and effective as hedging
instruments).

All __._nw-mm_"%mwnnmn charges and, if applicable,
fair value changes in currency derivative
instruments thot are reported in profit or loss
are included within finarce costs o finance
income. Foir value chonges in aquty derivotive
financiol instrumants are recognised in
investment income or investrient costs.

Derivotive finoncic! instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivative finaneich instrurnents are pecounked
for ot fair-value through prefit and loss [FYTPLI
except for derivatives designated as hedging
jnstruments in cash flow hedge relationships,
which raquire a specitt accounting treatment.
To quatify for hedge cccounting, the hedging
relationship rmust meet oll of the following
En::mn._m:ﬁ

. there is an economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging
jnstrument

. the effect of credit cisk does not domlncte
the value chonges Engt result from thet
economic relationshig

+ the hedge ratie of the hedding relationship
{5 the same os that resuiking from the
quentity of the hedged item that the entity
actyally hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrurnent that the entity actually

- e

uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Vritten opticn contracts do not qualify for
hedge accounting end fair value mavements
are recognisec girectly in the Income
Statement.

For the reporting periods under review, the
Group has n_mm,.m_:cwma_ certain forward currency
contracts as hedging instruments in cash fiow
hedge relationships. These grrangements have
been entered into to mitigate foreign currency
exchange risk arising from certain highty
proboble sales and purchases transactians
denominated in foreign currencies.

All derivative financia) instroments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value in
the Balance Sheet.

To the extent that the hedge is etfective,
changes n the foir value of derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in cash flow
nedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and inchaded within the cash flow
hedge reserve in equity. Any ineffectiveness

in the nedge relationship is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Al the time the hedged item aftects profic or
joss, any gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity 1o profic o joss and Emwmjnma
os @ reciossification adjustment within

other comprehensive income. However, ta
non-financic) asset of fihility is recognised o8
a result of the hedged transoction. the gains
and losses previousty recogrised in other '
commprehensive incore are included in the
imitiol measurement of the hedged item.

if g forecast yansaction is ne longer expected
to GLour, O related gain of loss recognised

in other comprehensive income is yransierred
immediotely to profit or loss. 1§ the hedging
reigtionship ceases to meet the effectiveness
conditions, hedge accounting is discontinued
ond the relaked gain ar loss & heid, in the equity
reserve until the farecast transaction oceLrs.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has
a present legal or ~onstructive ohbligotion as
a resutt of @ post guerh, k35 probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and a religble estimaté can be
made of the amount of the obhigation.

FRASERS GROUF

The Groug provides for its legol responsibility
for dilapidation costs following advice from
charieret suneyors and previous experience
of exit costs. The astimated cost of fulfilling
the leasehold dilapidations obligations i
discounted to present value and anclysed
hetween non-capital and capital companents.
The copital elerment is amﬁﬂmnﬁaﬁma aver the

life of the asset. The non-capital element is
taken to the Income Saternent in the first yeos
of the lease where the cost it represents 1s of
ne lasting benefit to the Group or its landiord.
AWear and tear’ costs are expensed to the
Income Statement. Provisions for onereus lease
contracts are recognised when the Group
believes the unavaidable costs af meeting the
lease obligations exceed the economic penefits
expected to be received under the lease. Legal
provisions tincluding settlements and court
fees) are recognised posed an advice from the
Group's lawyers when it is probable that there
will be an authiow of resources and & ralicble
estimate can be rrade.

Other provisions include management's best
astimate of restructuring employment rejated
costs and other claims. .

Any reimbursernent that the Group is virualty
certain to collect from a third party with espect
to the obligation is recognised as d separate
asset, Howevel, this asset may not exceed the
arnount of the related provision.

No lichility is (ecagnised if an outfiow of
ecOnOMIG TesouTtes as o fesult of present
obtigations s not pretoble. Such situgtions are
disclosed as contingent liabilifes uniess the
outflaw of resources is remote.

Lecses

The Group as5esses whether a contract is of
cortains a lease, at inception of the contragt.
Lease liabilities are measured ot the present
value of the contractual payments due to the
lessor over the jease term, with the discount
cate determined by refarence to the rote
implicit in the Jease unhess (s is yypically

the case) this is not readily determinable, IN
which case the Group's incremental barrowing
rate on commencement of the lease IS used.
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Variable lease payments are only incleded in
the measurement of the lease liability if thay
depend on an index or rate. In such cases,

the initial measurement of the lease liability
assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Otler
variable lease payments such as revenue linked
property leases are expensed in the period to
which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the
lease liability alse includes:

*  amounts expected to be payable under any
residual value guarantee;

« the exercise price of any purchase opticn
granted in favour of the Group if it is
reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised;

+  any penalties payable for terminating the
lease, if the term of the lease has been
estimated on the basis of the termination
option being exercised.

The lease liability is presented as o separct=
line in the consolidated Balance Sheet.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease
liabilities increase as a result of interest charged
at the effective rate on the balance outstanding
ond are reduced for lease payments made.

Right of use assets are initially measured at

the amount of the lease liability, reduced for
any lease incentives {payments made by o
lessor to a lessee associated with o lease, or
the reimbursement or assumption by a lessor of
costs of a lessee) received or impairment, and
increased for:

+  lease payments made of or before
commencement of the lease;

+ initial direct costs incurred; and

+ the amount of any provision recognised
where the Group {s contractually required
to dismantle, remove or restore the
leased asset, providing it meets the
Groups property, plant and equipment
capitalisation policy.
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When an indicatien of impairment is identified,
right of use assets are tested for impairment

in accordance with 1AS 36 by comparing the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal} with its carrying
amount. The right of use assets are presented
within preperty, plant and equipment in the
consolidated Balonce Sheet.

Subsequent to initicl measurement, right-of-use
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
aver the remaining term of the lease or over the
remaining economic life of the asset if this is
judged to be shorter than the lease term.

When the Group revises its estimate of the

term of any lease {because, for example, it
re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension
or termination option being exercised), it adjusts
the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised
term, which are discounted at a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease
liahilities is revised using the original discount
rate when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment
is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being
amortised over the remaining {revised) lease
term.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting
depends on the nature of the medification:

+ if the renegotigtion results in cne or more
additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone
price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is aceounted for
as a separate lease in accordance with the
abave palicy

+ * in all other cases where the renegatiation
increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased),
the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification
duite, with the right-of use asset being
adjusted by the same amount

+ if the renegotiation results in a decrease in
the scope of the lease, both the carrying
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ameount of the lease liability and right-
of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease
iability is then further adjusted to ensure
its carrying amount reflects the amount

of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification date. The right-of-use
asset is adjusted by the same amount.

Sale and leaseback

Cn entering into a sale and leaseback
transaction the Group determines whether
the transfer of the assets quuolifies as a sale
{satisfying @ performance cbligation in IFRS
15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’),
Where the transfer is a sale and providing
the transaction is on market terms then the
previous carrying amount of the underlying
asset is split between:

+ aright-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback (being the proportion of the
previous carrying amount of the asset that
relates to the rights retained), and

* the rights in the underlying asset retained
by the buyer-lessor at the end of the
leaseback.

The Group recognises a portion of the total
gain or Joss on the sale. The cmount recognised
is calculated by splitting the total gain or foss
into: .

* anunrecognised amount relating to the
rights retained by the seller-lessee, and

= arecognised amount reiating to the buyer-
lessor's rights in the underlying asset at the
end of the leaseback.

The leaseback itself is then accounted for under

IFRS 16.

Rental income from operating leases where
the Group acts as a lessor is recognised on a
straight-line basis aver the term of the relevant
lease.

twoodiand across the UK

Treasury Shares

The purchase price of the Group’s own shares
that.it acquires is recognised as ‘Treasury
shares’ within equity. When shares are
transferred out of treasury the difference
between the market value and the average
purchase price of shares sold out of treasury is
transferred to retained earnings,

Employee Benofit Trust

An Employee Benefit Trust has been established
for the purposes of satisfying certain
share-based owards. The Group has ‘de-facto’
control over the special purpose entity.

This Trust is fully consolidated within the
accounts. The cost of shares acquired by

the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust is
recognised within ‘Own Share reserve’ in equity.

Shore-Based Payments

The Group issues equity-settied share-based
payments to certain Directors and employees.
These are measured at fair value at the date of
grant, which is expensed to the consolidated
Income Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with the correspending
credit going to equity.

Non-market vesting con
into account in determining gront date fair
value. Instead, they are taken inte dccount by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting period the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and
loss with an adjustment to equity.
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Fair value is colculated using an adjusted form
of the Black-Scholes moedel which includes a
Monte Carle simulation modet that takes into
account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution (where matarial), .
the share price at gront dote and the expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme. The
expected staff numbers used in the model has
been adjusted. hased on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerations.

Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried

at fair value are included in the Income
Statement for the period except for differences
arising on the retransiation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
For such non-monetary items, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is alse
recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Non-menetary items that are held at valugtion
are transloted at the foreign exchange rate at
the date of the valuction,

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Group measures the services
received and the liability incurred at the fair
value of the liability. Until the liability is settled,
the Group remeasures the fair value of the
fiability ot the end of eoch reporting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the period.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations which have a functional
currency other than sterling are translated
into sterling ct foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The revenues and

. expenses of these subsidiary undertakings are
translated at average rates applicable inthe
period. Al resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and documented in a separate compenent of

Equity Instruments equity.

When a foreign operation is soid, the
cumulative exchange differences thot have
been recognised as a separate component

The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the Income
Statement as it excludes amounts recognised
in the Balance Sheet in relation to the expected
national insurance contributions for the shares.

An equity instrument is any contract that

evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting ol of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded of equity are reclassified from equity to the

at the proceeds received, net of any direct issue Income Statement when the dispasal is
costs. recognised.

in order to mitigate its exposure to certain
foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into
forward controcts [see Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and the cash flow hedging
accointing policy).

Foreign Currencies

The presentational currency of the Group

is sterling. The functional currency of the

Company is also sterling, Foreign currency
transactions are translated into sterling using

the exchange rates prevailing on the dates '
of the transactions. Exchange differences of

_the Company arising on the settiement of

monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are included in the Income
Statement for the period,
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Dividends

Owidends are recagnised as a lichility in

the Group's Financial Statements and as a
deduction from equity in the peried in which
the dividends are declored Where such
dividends are propased subject to the approval
of shareholders, the dividends are regarded

as declared once shareholder approval has
been cbtained and they are no longer at the
discretion of the Company.

Materiality

In preparing the Financial Statements, the
Board considers bath quantitative and
qualitative factors in forming its judgements,
and related disclosures, and are mindful of
the need to best serve the interests of its
stakeholders and to avoid unneceszary clutter
borne of the disclosure of immaterial items,

In maoking this assessment the Board considers
the nature of each item, as well as its size, in
assessing whether any disclosure omissions or
misstatements could influence the decisions of
users of the Financial Stotements.

New A ting Standards, Interp! ions And
Amendments Adopted By The Group

The Group has not early adopted any other
standard, interpretation or amendment that
has been issued but is not effective. The Group
applies for the first time the following new
standards:

« Defi n of Material - Amendrnents to 1AS
1and IAS 8

+  Definition of a Business - Amendments to
IFRS 3

+ Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Amendmaents to IFRS 9 JAS 39, 'FRS 7, IFRS
4 and 1FRS 16

- Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions -
Amendments to (FRS 1§

+  Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

By adopting the above, there has been no
impact on the Financial Statements.

FRASERS GROUP

International Financiol Reporting Standards
{“Standards”} In lasue But Not Yer Effective

At the date of authoriscticn of these
consolidated Financial Statements,

there dre no standards ir issue from the
International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB") or International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee {"IFRIC") which
are effective for annual accounting periods
beginning on or after 26 April 2021 that will
have a significant impact on these Financial
Statements.
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2.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting estimates and
judgements made by the Group regarding

the future or other key sources of estimation,
uncertainty and judgement that may have

a significant risk of giving rise to a materic!
adjustment to the carrying values of assets and
liabitities within the next financial pericd are:

Key Judgements
Determining Related Party Relationships

Maoncgement determines whether a related
party relationship exists by assessing the
noture of the relationship by reference to
the requirements of IAS 24, Related Party
Disclosures. This is in order to determine
whether significant influence exists as a
result of control, shared directors or parent
companies, or close family relationships. The
level ot which one party may be expected

to influence the other is also considered for
transactions involving close family relationships.

Control And Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities

Under 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures if an entity holds 20% or more of
the voting power of the investee, it is presumed
that the entity has significant influence, unlass
it can clearly demonstrate that this is not the
case. During the period the Group has held
greater than 20% of the veting rights of St dic
Retail Group Ple, French Connection Group Ple
[sold during the period) and Mulberry Group
Plc, whereby management consider that the
Group dees nat have significant influence over
these entities for combinations of the following
reasens: .

*  The Group does not have any
representation on the board of directors
of the investee other than o Frasers Group
representative having an observer role
on the board of Studio Retail Group Plc.
Management have reviewed the terms
of the observer arrangement and have
concluded that this does not give them
the right to participate in or influence the
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financial or operating decisions-of Studio
Retail Group Ple. Studio Retail Group Ple
can terminate this arrongement at any

time, and can determine which parts of

the Board meetings the representative can
be present at and what information they
are given access to. It should be noted the
Frasers Group representctive did not ottend
any board meetings in full or part dusing the
reporting period;

+ There is no participetion in decision
making and strategic processes, including
participation in decisions about dividends
or other distrit:utions;

* There have been no moterial tronsactions
between the entity and these investee
companies;

* There has been ne interchenge of
managerial personnel;

* No non-public essential technical
management informatien is provided to the
investee.

In assessing the level of control that
management have aver certain entities,
management will consider the various aspects
that aliow management to influence decision
making. This includes the level of share
ownership, board membership, the level of
investment and funding and the ability of the
Group to influence operational and strategic
decisions and effect its returns through the
exercise of such influence. If management

were to consider that the Group does have
significant influence cver these entities then the
equity method of accounting would be used
and the percentage shareholding [disclosed in
note 20} muitiplied by the results of the investee
in the period (as disclosed in note 34) would be
recognised in profit or Joss.

The Group holds 49% of the share capital of
Four (Holdings) Limited which is accounted
for using the equity method. The Group does
not have any representation on the board
of directors and no participation in decision
about relevant activities such as establishing
operating ond capital decisions, including
budgets, appointing or remunerating key
management personnel or service providers

) 0 Create naw Br

and terminating their services or employment.
However, in prior periods the Group has
provided Four {Holdings) Limited with a
significant loan, At the reporting date, the
amourt owed by Four (Holdings) Limited for this
loan totclled £60.0m (E21.6m net of amounts
recegnised in respect of loss allowance). The
Group is satisfied that the existence of these
transactions provides evidence that the entity
has significant influence over the investee but in
the absence of any other rights, in isolation it is
insufficiant to meet the control criteria of IFRS
10, as the Group does not have power over Four
{Holdings) Limited and therefore Four (Holdings)
Limited is not equity accounted.

Cush Flow Hedging

"The Group uses e range of forward and option
contracts that are entered into at the same
time, they are in contemplation with one
another and have the same counterparty.

A judgement is made in determining

whether there is an economic need or
substantive business purpose for structuring
the transactions separately that could not
also have been accomplished in a single
transaction. Management are of the view that
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the options and ¢ strategy for
managing the options independently of the
forward contracts. The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as one
instrument and hedge accounting for the
forwards is permitted.

Under IFRS S.in order to achieve cash flow
hedge accounting, forecast transactions
{primarily Euro dencminated sales and USD
denominated purchases) must be considered
to be highly probable. The hedge must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in cash flows attributable
to theé hedged-risk. The forecast transaction
that is the subject of the hedge must be highty
probable and must present an exposure to
variations in cash flows that could ultimately
affect profit or loss. Management have
reviewed the detailed forecasts and growth
assumptions within them, and are satisfied
that ferecasts in which the cash flow hedge
accounting has been based meet the criteria

vioodiand across the UK

per IFRS 2 as being highly probable ferecast
transactions. Should the forecast levels not pass
the highly probable test, any cumulative fair
value gains and losses in relation to either the
entire or the ineffective portion of the hedged
instrument would be taken to the Income
Statement.

Managemaent considers various factors when
determining whether o forecast transaction is
highly probable. These factors include detailed
sales forecasts by channel, geographical area
cnd seasonality, conditions in target markets
and the impact of expansion in new areas.
Management also consider any change in
alternative customer sales channels that could
impact on the hedged transaction.

If the forecast transactions were determined
to be not highly probable and ofl hedge
accounting was discontinued, the Hedging
reserve of E11.5m would be shown in Finance
Income.

Key Estimotes

Provision For Obsolete, Slow Moving Or
Defective Inventories

The Directors have applied their knowledge and
experience of the reteil industry in determining
the level and rates of pro:
calculating the appropriate inventory carrying
values. Specific estimates and judgements

. applied in relation to assessing the level of

inventory provisions required are considered in
relation to the foliowing areas:

c: Continuity inventory

b. Seasonal inventory lines - specifically
seasons that have now finished

Third party versus own brand inventory

a »n

Ageing of inventory

Sports Retail or Premium Lifestyie

mon

Local economic conditions

Divisional specific factors

T @

Increased cost of inventory and lower
margins with the devaluation of the Pound

i. Over-stock and out of season inventory as a
result of Covid-19
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Provision estimates are forward looking and
are formed using a combination of factors
including histerical experience, management's
knowledge of the industry, group discounting,
sales pricing protocels and the averall
assessment made by managerment of the

risks in relation to inventory, Management use
a humber of internally generated reports to
monitor and continually re-assess the adequacy
ond accuracy of the inventory provision. The
nol cost of repricing inventory and
handling charges in relation to relocating
inventory {(tunnelling) are considered in arriving
at the appropriate percentage provision. The
assessment involves significont estimation
uncettainty, therefore in order to check

thot the assumptions applied remain vatid,
management produces a range of outcomes
and the prevision is set within this range.

Key assumptions used to create the estimates
are: '

+ Discounting - Based on historical
experience and management's anticipated
future discounting including the impact of
Covid-19

*  Tunnelling - Cost of handling stock for
reworking, repacking and repricing

+ Repricing - Labour cost associated with
repricing units of stock

+ Shrinkage - Stock lost through demage and
thelft

Total Group inventory provision at 25 April 2021
is 16.6% (FY20: 15.79%}. A 1% change in the total
provision would impact underlying EBITDA by
approx. £13.2m {FY20: £14.2m]). Management
do not consider it appropriate to disclose
sensitivities for key assumptions in isolation as
in practice changes in one assumption would
lead to an offset in another,

Property Related Provisions

Froperty related estimates ond judgements

are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience, externol odvice and other
factors, including expectations of Future evants
that are believed to be reasenable under the
circumstonces,
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Dilapidations

The Graup provides for its legal responsibility
for dilopidation costs following advice from
chartered surveyors and previous experience
of exit costs {including strip out costs and
professional fees). Management use a reference
estimate of £300,000 (FY20: £100,000} for large
leasehold stores, £50.000 (FY20: £50,000) for
smaller leasehold stores (£25,000 per store

for Garme UK and Game Spoin stores) ond
$/€50,000 (FY20: $/€50,000) for non-UK stares.
Management do not consider these costs to ke
capital in nature and therefare dilapidations
are not capitalised, except for in relation to

the safe and leasebuck of Shirebrook in the
prior period in which ¢ material dilupidations
provision was capitalised.

A 10% increase in dilapidation cost per store
would result in an approx. £8.0m reduction in
underlying EBITDA.

Other Provisions

Provisions are made for items where the Group
has identified a present lega! or constructive
obligation arising as a result of ¢ past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be*
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the ameunt of the
obligation.

Legal and regulatory provisions relate to
management’s best estimates of pravisions
required for legal and regutatory clairms and
ongoing non-UK tax enquiries. Other provisions
relgte to management's best estimates

of provisions required for restructuring,
employrment and commercial. Where
applicable these are inclusive of any estimated
penalties, interest and legal costs, See note 28.

sWondln
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In reletion to the non-UK tax enquiries
management have made o judgement to
consider all claims collectively, applying the
following key estimates to the gross amounts
{excluding re-imbursement assets):

+ 0% penalty (FY20: 13%;). A 5% increase to
15% would result in approx. £6.5m increase
in the provision (FY20: approx. £7.0m).

« 3% interest on the liobility (FY20; 3%). A
1% increase to 4% would result in approx
£11.5m increase in the provision {FY20:
opprox. £10.0m),

Management are satisfied that the judgement
to consider all claims collectively is the only
reasonable opproach because they are all
dependant on the cutcome of a court ruling on
the interpretation of the non-UK tax enquiries.
Management are satisfied that with regard to
timing o reasonable range of outcomes are all
grecter than one year and so are satisfied with
including the provisions as non-current.

Other Receivables And A ts Owed By
Related Parties

Cther receivables and amounts owed by
related parties are stated net of provision far
any impairment. Management have applied
estimates in assessing the recoverability of
working capital and loan advances made to
investee comparves. Matters considered include
the relevant financial strength of the underlying
investee company to repay the loans, the
repayment period and underlying terms of the
monies advanced, forecast performance of the
underlying borrower, and where relevant, the
Group's intentions for the companies to which
monies have been advanced.

ity e DK

1FRS 16

The key areas of judgement in relotion to
property leases recognised under IFRS 16
ore below: |

+ IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-
cancellable periad of a lease together
with the options to extend or terminate a
lease, if the lessee were reasonably certain
to exercise that option. The Group will
assess the likelihood of extending lease
contracts beyond the break date by toking
into account current economic and market
conditions, current trading perfarmance,
forecast profitability ¢nd the level of capital
investment in the property.

+ IFRS 16 states that the lease payments shall
be discounted using the lessee's incremental
borrowing rate where the rate implicit in
the lease canneot be readily determined.
Accordingly, all lease payments hove been
discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate [IBR). The IBR has been determined
by tising a synthetic credit rating for the
Group which is used to obtain market data
on debt instruments for companies with the
same credit rating, this is split by currency
to represent each of the geagraphical areas
the Group operates within and adjusted for
the lease term.
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The weighted average discount rates based on incremental borrowing rates used throughout the
period across the Group’s lease portfolio are shown below. The discount rate for each lease is
dependent on lease start date, term and location,

Leoas Tarm UKk Rurope Hest of Workl
Up ta § years 4% -1 8% Q3% -08% 15% - 33%
Greater than § years and up (o 10 years 20% -20% Q5% - 13% 25% - 3.5%

han 10 years and up to 30 yaars 2I%-25% 5B% - 14% 9% -37%

Greater than 20 years 5% - 1A% 119 - 179% 5% - 3 8%

*  The right of use asset will be reviewed for impairment ot each reporting period in line with |AS
36 impairment to review whether the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. for
impairment testing purposes the Group has determined that each store is a separate CGL). The

- recoverabie amount is calculated based on the Group's kotest forecast cash flows which are
then extrapolated to cover the period to the break date of the lease taking into account historic
performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group's views on future
profitability of each CGU. The key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates,
gross margin rates, changes in the operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rote derived
from the Group's weighted average cost of capital using the capital asset:pricing model, the
inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity risk premium and a risk adjustment {Beta). Given
the number of assumptions used the assessment involves significant estimation uncestainty.
The assumptions used are consistent with those disclosed in the Freehold Land and Buildings
and Long-term leasehold section below. Impairments in the period have been recognised for
the emount of £174.9m, being £168.2m against the right-of-use asset {£114.1m UK Sports Retcil
segment, £20.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £31.0m European Retuil segment, and £2.6m Rest
of the World Retail segment) and £6.7m against plant and equipment (E2.6m UK Sports Retail
segment, £0.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £3.6m European Retail segment). The impairments
were due to the ongoing impact of Covid-19 and the challenges in the retail sector on the
forecast cash flows of the CGLUL

The key assumgptions, which are equally applicable ta each nm_ch in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of the right of use asset are consistent with the cashflow projections for
the Freehold land and Buildings impairmert assessment.

A sensitivity onalysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin os these ore considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed o sensitivity for both ne lockdewn in year 1and a lockdown which lasts four meonths
compared to two months;

Foresast: Impact ofchangeln  impairment increase /

tducracse) m
Sales year { - N lockdown 15% - mprovament t239)
Sabes yaar t - 4 months lockdown 15% - reduction 635
Exisling Gross Margm year 1 »40% 100ikps  improveiment {46
Exishing Gross Margm year | »40% 100bps - redyction 53
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Freehold Land and Buildings and Long-term leasehold

Freehold land end buildings and long-term leasehold assets are assessed ot etich reporting period
for whether there is any indication of impairment in line with 1AS 36 impairment.

An asset is impaired when the carrving amount exceeds its recoverable amount. [AS 36 defines
recoverable amount as the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs

of disposal and its value in use, the Group has determined that each store is @ separate CGU.
Impairments in the period have been recognised in the amount of £117.9m (FY20: E£nil} due to the
ongoing impact of Covid-19 and the chalienges in the retail sector on the forecast cash flows of
the CGU. This is split £84.4m against freehold land and buildings {(£68.7m UK Sports Retail segment
and £15.7m European Retail segment), £3.9m against long-term leasehold [£2.9m UK Sports Retail
segment and £1.0m European Retail segment}, £29.0m plant & equipment (£15,1m UK Sports Ret
segment, £8.8m Premium Lifastyle segment, £5.1m European Retail segment), and £0.6m investment
property {all UK Sports Retail segment).

Value In Use (il

The value in use is calculated based on five year cash flow projections. These are formulated by
using the Group's forecast cash flows of each individual CGU excluding any Covid-19 impact, taking
into account historic performance of the CGU, and then adjusting for the Group's current views on
future profitebility of each CGU as a result of Covid-19 and knowledge of the current market, The
key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates, gross margin rates, changes in the
operating cost base and the pre-tox discount rate derived from the Group's weighted average cost
of capital using the capital asset pricing moedel, the inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity
risk premium and a risk adjustment (Beta), Given the number of assumptions used the assessment
invelves significant estimation uncertcinty.

The key assumptions, which are equatly applicable to each CGU, in the cosh flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of the freehold land and buildings were as follows:

Koy wrsumptions Yeuri Yeor 2 Year3 Yeard Yaos §
Soles decline 5% 5% A% 1% %
Existing gross margin > 40% -100bps -T75bps -150hgs -125bps 100bps
Operating costs ncreuse per ane % % 1% 1% 1%
Discount rate 5% % % 5% %

Terminot growih rate of 2%

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptians, With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months
compared to two months:

Iimpalrmant increasa /

Foteetnt: Impoct of: {detrama] £m
Sales yaar t - No lackdown 15% - impravesnent 15331
Sales year t — & months lockdown 15% - reduction 516
Existing Grass Margrn year 1 »40% 100bS - Improvemsnt i74)
Exrsting Gross Margin year 1 >40% 100bps - reduction 9.3

Fonted on Stenbeis 100° Recycled and Carbon Captured throuah the Waoodland Trost. helping to create new Brtish woodland across the UK
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Fair value less costs of disposal

For those CGUs where the value in use is tess than the carrying value of the asset, the fair value less
costs of disposal has been determined using both external and internal market valuations. This fair

volue is deemed to fall in to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as per IFRS 13. The preperty portiol

consists of vacant, Frasers Group occupied and third party tenanted units, one property can include
all thrae types, The following valuation methodology has been adopted for each:

Seenarle

Voluation methedelogy

Kay orsumptions

Yyacont

Estimated Rental Value [ERVY and sudable revarsianary yield
opphed to reflect the morkst ko generate o net cap tal value. A
deduction ta the capitol volus generoted is then made bused
an the vaid pencd with applicable rates poyabls for the umt
rant free mcentive

Vaid penod and rant free band - twe bands opplied deper
on ciicumstances

= Tyemrvoud, 3 yeare rant fres, or

> 7 vuors void, 3 years rent free
reld bands - ranging from 7% - 15%

Frosers Group 0ccupled  Will B Gssumed the unt IS v0Cant qen ther is no legally

binding Inter-compony agreement in ploce Therafore @ vad
and ent free incentive pened assumed, the cost amount then
deducted kom the capual value gerarated by the ERY and
reversianary yield Although we consider the commertial reaiity
15 thot fair vatue less costs to sal will be highar than vacant

this very o 195 & with
both tachnical aecaunting rules and that of cur managerment
sxperts.

Vord peniod b remt free bond - two bonds anpled depending
on cicumstancas

4 year vl 2 years rent free. ar

© 2yeursvod, 3 yeors
Yield bunds - ranging lram 7% - 15%,

v

Third porty tenanted An ERV 15 applied using o percentage bond on the passing rent

An appropriate reversionory yield 15 agpiied reflecting the ask

LRV bonds apubed 1o pestimy rent - ranging lam 0% to <$0%
Yietd bands - ranging from & 5% - 15%

Management will fram FY22 change our main
reporting KP1 from Underlying EBITDA to
Adjusted PBT. Thus from FY22 the Group will ne
longer report Underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT
is Reported Profit Before Tax less the effects of
unhedged FX, exceptional items, and gains and
losses on strategic investments. Management
have teken this decision for the following
reasons:

+  With the centinued significant investment
in and roll out of our elevation strategy
on both the physical ond digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation to both the Boord and
our stakehoiders in terms of assessing
performance has grown.

+  Our understanding from a number of

financial sectors including the banking
sector is that IFRS16 is becoming an

.

Onerous lease provision

Pravisions for onerous lease contracts are
recognised when the unovoidable costs of

g lease obligations exceed the ecanomic
benefits expected to be received over the term
of the lease. Where an oneraus lease has been
identified, the property, plant and equipment
associated to thot store are also reviewed for
impoirment.

Monagement use store EBITDA in order to
determine whether an onerous lease exists.
Specific assumptions, which involve the use of
estimates and involve significant estimation
uncertainty, that are used te determine the
appropriate fevel of provision are consistent
with the cashflow projections for the Freehoid
land and Buildings assessment except for the
following:

ad on Slenbais 100

of tenant and renewal tp generats a caoitat value. wall olst
provide ¢t net intial yield bsed off the current pussing rent

A 10% increase in the market valuation amounts used in the impairment calculations would result in
a decrease in impoirment of £7.5m.

The total recoverable amount of the assets that were impaired at the period end was £170.0m, with
£87.0m of this being based on their fair value less costs of dispasal and £83.0m being based on their
value in use.
Kli.- " tes In Relati To Aft ive
Performance Measures

The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying Profit before tax and underlying

EBITDA 1s earnings before investment incorme,
finance income ond finance costs, tax,
depreciation, amortisation and impairment.

It includes the Group's share of losses from
basic EPS provide further useful information for m_ﬂu%““m”nm_ .mwﬂ_“_wmnM_MM_nm_”MM“_—MJH.MMMM”_MM__umm
mroqmso_n_.m_.m on the :.:nm_.:.__._m performance 16, foreign exchange gains/losses in selling and
of the Business in naa_w_o: to ﬁ,ym _.muoaaa. administration costs, exceptional costs, and the
numbers and are consistent with how business profit / loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic

_umlo:‘.:o:_.um is :..mo.w:ﬂmn_ internally. They are investments and properties. Underlying EBITDA
not recognised profit measures under IFRS and also excludes fair value adjustments on step
may nof be directly comparable with "adjusted”
profit measures used by other companies.
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increasingly important consideration, +  Discount rate 2% {FY20: 2%) across the

including on covenants in many new Group
financing arkangements. +  Cperating costs increase 3% (FY20: 3%])
+  With thrs new measure being introduced aeross the Group

we are trying to align with the Financicl +  Store profitability includes 100%
Reporting Council's themetic standpoint contribution towards central overheads
with regord te ‘alternative performance

measures’ as far as possible whilst retaining = Assumed get out cap of 10 years (FY20: 10
a degree of interpretation qiven facters <mo_.m__. being the maximum period for tatal
outside of our control, such as FX and unavoidable costs

strategic investments movements which +  Planned store closures, relocations and re-
are exceptionally difficult to forecast, . brandings

particularly months in advance The

following are further key estimates used

with regard ta the alternative performance

measures used by the group.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of soles and margin as these gre considered to
b€ the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed o sensitivity for bath no lockdown in year 1ond a lockdown which lasts four months
compared to two months:

Farec Impect of; . !S...”d..“_.d.._ni . -. _h
Sattes yaur 1~ Netockdomwn 15% - improvament o4 4
Sales yeor 1 - 4 manths Iockdown 5% - redut 1510
Existing Gross Margin yer 1340% 100D - Improvern [
Ewisting Gross Margin yeur 1>40% 100bps - red 25

Further information on the basis of the estimation of provisioning for dilapidations and onerous ledase
contracts is detaited in the provisions accounting peolicy and note 28,

Impairments of plant and equipment and short-term leasehold improvements of £24.2m have glso
been recognised as a result of identified enerous lease contracts (£6.4m UK Spoits Retail segment,
£2.7m Premium Lifestyle segment, £15.1m European Retail segment).
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's current activities result in the
following financial risks and set out below are
management's responses to those risks in order
to minimise any resulting adverse effects cn the
Group's financial performance.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
principally via:

a. Transoctional exposure from the cost of
future purchases of goods for resale, waere
those purchases are denominated in o
currency other than the functional currsncy
of the purchasing company. Trensactional
exposures that could significantly impact
the income statement are heclged. These
exposuses are hedged via forward foreign
currency contracts which are designated
as cash flow hedges. The notional and “air
value of these contracts is shown in note 29;

b. Transactional exposure from the sale of
goods, where those sales are denomincted
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the selling company.
Transactional exposures that could
significantly impact the income stotement
are hedged. These exposures are hedged
via forward foreign currency contracts
which are designated as cash flow hedges.
The notional and fair value of these
contracts is shown in note 29;

c. Loans to non-UK subsidiaries. These are
hedged via foreign currency transactiors
and borrowings in matching currencies,
which are not formally designated as
hedges, as gains and losses on hedges and
hedged loans will naturally offset; and

d. The Group uses currency options, swaps
and spots for more flexibility against cash
flows that are less than highly probable
and therefore do not qualify for hedge
accounting under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. Exposures in respect of
written options to sell Euros or buy USD are
explained in the Financial Review. These
are not hedged and movements in fair
value could significantly impact the Inccme
Statement in future periods. See note 29,
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Interest Rate Risk

The Grougp has net borrowings, which are
principally at fiooting interest rates linked to
bank base rates or LIBOR. The Group uses
interest rate financial instruments to hedge

its exposure to interest rate movements using
interest rate swaps although hedge accounting
is not applied. The Group regularly monitors
and reacts accordingly to any exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and the impact on
its monetary assets and liab

Credit Risk

The Directors have a credit policy in place
and the-exposure to credit-risk is moanitored
on an ongeoing basis. Credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit
over G certain amount. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of financiai assets.

At each balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the balance sheet.

Investments of cash surpluses, borrowings and
derivative instruments are made through banks
and companies which must fulfil credit rating
cnd investment criteria approved by the Board,

Liquidity Risk

The Group has sufficient liquid resources to
manage the operating requirements of the
business and it does this through utilisation

of its revolving credit facilities together with
equity and retained profits thereby achieving
continuity of funding and short-term flexibility,
while keeping interest to a minimurn.

Management regularly review forecasts to
ensure there is adeguate headroom on the
focilities and to ensure the Group is operating
within its financial covenants.

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect
of its long term financial assets {in relation to
listed company shares).

The price risk relates to volatility in the market,
and how other comprehensive income and
equity would have been affected by changes
in market risk that were reasonably possible ot
the reporting date. If the quoted stock price for
these securities increased or decreased, other
comprehensive income and equity would have
changed. The listed securities are classified as
Long term investments ot fair value through
other comprehensive income so there would be
ne effect on profit or loss.

The investments in listed equity securities
llong-term Financial assets) are considered
medium to long-term strategic investments.
In accordance with the Group's policies, no
specific hedging activities are undertaken in
relation to these investments.

Copital Management

A description of the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for maneging capital are
included in note 29,

Printed on Stembas 100 Hecycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodiand Trust, helping 10 create new Butish woodand across the UK
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4, SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Management has determined to present

its segmental disclosures consistently with

the presentation in the 2020 Annucl Report.
Management considers operationally that

the UK Retqil divisions (UK Sparts Retaii and
Premium Lifestyle} are run as ane business
unit in terms of allocating resources, inventory
management and assessing performance.
Under IFRS 8 we have not ot this reporting
dote met the required criteria with enough
certajnty to aggregate these operating
segments. We will continually keep this under
review at subsequent reporting dates. We
continue to monitor the impacts of Covid-19,
Brexit, aind the continued uncertainties this
has brought relating to the political and
econemic environments, and market and
currency valatility in the countries we operate
in. European countries have been identified as
operating segments and have been aggregated
into a single operating segment as permitted
under IFRS 8. The decisicn to aggregate these
segments was based on the fact that they each
have similar economic characteristics, simitar
long-term financial performance expectations,
and are similor in each of the fallowing
raspects:

»  The noture of the products;

+  The type or class of customer for the
products; and

*  The metheds used to distribute the
products.

30
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In cecordance with paragraph 12 of IFRS 8
the Group's operating segments have been
aggregated into the following reportabie
segments:

1. UK Retail:

i. UK Sports Retail - includes core sports
retail store operations in the UK, plus all
the Group's sports retail online business
{exciuding Bob's Stores, Eastern
Mountain Sports, Malaysia and Baltics),
the gyms, the Group's Shirebrook
campus operations, GAME UK stores

. and online operations, and retail store
operations in Northern freland.

Premium Lifestyle - includes the

results of the premium retail businesses
Flannels, Cruise, Van Mildert, Jock Wills,
House of Fraser end Sofa.com aleng
with relcted websites.

2. European Retil - includes all the Group's
sports retail stores, management and
operatians in Europe including the Group's
Eurcpean Distribution Centres in Belgium
and Austria, as well as GAME Spain stores
ond Beltics online.

3. Rest of World Retail ~ includes the results of
US based retail acti s, Asia bosed retail
octivities, along with their e-commerce
offerings.

4. Wholesale § Licensing — includes the results
of the Group's portfalic of internationally
recognised brands such as Everlast,
Karrimor, Lonsdale and Slazenger.

It is management's current intention to run the
Group as four operating segments being UK
Retail {including UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle), European Retail, Rest of World Retuil
and Wholesaole & Licensing. Management is
satisfied that the UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle will meet the criteria permitted under
IFRS 8 to aggregate as one segment in due
course,

throtinh the Weodiand 1

Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended
25 April 2021:

UK Pramium  UKRetall  European Rusk of Totul  Whelesals |\ L Qroup
Sparts Lilestyle Tetah Retall World Aeigil Ratgil & Liconsing Tetal
IEm) Em) {Em] lem) (&m) (&) tem} (L] )
Soles 1o external customers 1968 § 356 23044 8152 w27 14120 133 14211
Sutes 1 other Leqments - - - - %4 195 4] -
REVENUE 19608 154 23049 153 i) 14120 U1y 1954 24383
Grass proht 8293 3103 1158.8 2397 640 14833 675 1,590.8
QPERATING PRGFIT/
(LOSS) BEFORE FONEIGN
EXCHANGE, EXCEPTIONAL 27 n2a F1k] (58.8) s T .3 - ny
ITEMS, PSPOSAL OF
PROPERTIES AND IFRS 16
Ercaplonal Homs 144 16t le.0) 1211 1Y) L
Prabt an disposal of 15 . s v . R -5
inangibile assets
Prolit un wale of propsrties 10 - 14 ua o 1 - 1)
Foregn ewthonge reulised {2021 |02} l20.4} L] 14l 21,0 53 - (26.3)
(191 17 LX) a7 135 (88.0) N {ss.0)
(50.2) 1.8 126.4) 15343 a6 3.3 i) - 160.3)
1023
on
+0
{36.3)
PROFIT REFORE TAXATION
Taxation
LOS3 FOR THE PERIOD
Other segment items included in the Income
Statement for the 52 weeks ended 25 Aprif 2021:
~
uK Prmlum UK Retcil  Eurepyam Rust ol Totwd  Whalesghe
Sparts Litastyle Tetal Ratgil World Rétail Retall & Llewnaing
{Em) Km iml ftend () (Emy Em)
Property, plant & suupment depreciatian 1518 W 743 151 57 2153 17
Property, plant & equipment imparrment 956 124 0.8 086 - Ly -
IFRS 16 RDU deprecial 515 64 579 ng 23 431
IFRS 16 KO impairment 141 05 M6 o 26 -
Investinant property depraciaon [ . 18 "
Imvastimgnt praperty Impoirment né a8 os
.namﬂhqhnmn«ﬁ% o/ 200 155 (2581 it @ 1273
Intang ble gmartssaron - - - 08 o8 13 2]
Imangible impament ir 23 60 31 21 - [ X}

b across the LK
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FRASERS GROUP

Information regarding segment assets and lia

the 52 weeks then ended:

ies as ot 25 April 2021 and capital expenditure for

Information regarding segment assets and liab
the 52 weeks then ended:

ies as at 26 April 2020 and capital expenditure for

UC Pemiun UK Rstall  Surepean Aest OF Total  Whalesole Lo Greup
Sparte Lifestyle Tetal Retait Werld Ratail Retail & Licenaing T Tatal
ikm) (Em} I&m} iEml {Em) (em) (Em) Em) {Em)
Tatal assets 45367 43R 7 LTI LI 158 4 48033 Jaa7 13629 3,788
Total kobtibies 2,357 8) 1499 61 12,4824} (8570] 195.1) [1,404.5) 12754 11629 {2,571
Tangible usset additions 746 219 WES 74 ER 18y 1% - nea
Right of use asset oddihons iy 141 e 243 24 143 05 - 1Haa
Ik ible assets acqulred 37 23 -2 - 8.0 10 - 10
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020;
UK Premion  UKRuball  Eurepesn Aot OF Total  Whelessle L Group
Sportn  Lifestyle Totol Retail WerldRatail Retail & Licensing - Totul
lm) {Em) [Em} |Em) {Em| {Cm} Lk (Em) {Em)
Soles to extenal custmers 22033 o 19333 BY7 7 1742 17921 160 7 - 3574
Sules to piher segments - - - - 78 el
REVENUE 2,203 120 19153 97T 4.2 21972 e may FXL
Gross prohif w037 JdB 6 12514 2675 174 1,5974 £55 18628
QPERATING PROFIT /
(LOSS) BEFORE FOREIGN
EXCHANGE, EXCEPTIONAL uss 118.0) 1226 us e 0.8 14 - uy
HEME ANDIFRS 16 -
Excepbional items - [rxil {63} {3.6} (35 - n.g -
Profit on sola of prapsrbas 332 - 3 bl - 34.2
Foreign exchange realised 295 14 0.9 41 04 354 {05 -
IFRS 18 odjustments 2.3 1% 7} 2.4y {465} 9 (46.0)
OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) 019 3.3 vl o4} 1)) e 103 .

Investment ngpme

costs

Finance incoma

Finance cost

Share of lass of associated
uniertalings

Faic value gain on stap

gcquisibon 204

PROFIT REFORE TAMATION urs

Taxation 181

PROFLT FOR THE PERIOD 1010

Sales to other segments are priced at cost plus a 10% mark-up.

Other segment items included in the Income Statement for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:

uKk Pramlum U Retali Eurspsan Ruit Of Totdl Whelesala Group

Sperts  Lilestyle Total Ratail Werld Retait Retall & Licansing Total

tm) tem) itm lemi ] ftm lem)

Dapraciuben 985 w07 neg 334 &8 14 16d.0

FRS. 16 ROU depreciation/Imprirmsnt 134 161 1292 79 13 2198

IFRS 16 disposal of leasa ligbibtes 27 {02 r9) 1641 [0.4] - mn

Exceplion mpanment 27 59 e 35 - m

Amartisglion/lmpoirment 21 FRy 41 39 - [ 1] 124 204

1

uK Premium  UNRetull  Eurepean Rast OF Whelesale oo o o
Spotts  Lifariyle Tatal Rotnil Werld Ratall Hatall & Liconsing ~
lem 1emi 1em) fem) &m fEm tm )
Total assets 33249 4747 37906 4555 1286 43841 344.3 1860 2]
Tatal hobilltes (1,966 B} (55611 11,542.9) 1A220) 195 1) {3,388.0) [L:ERH] BEO Y {2.547.%)
Tangble asset oddwions 336.8 254 162.2 487 125 3228 - I3
Right cf us asset additions 506 225 115 255 23 103.2 - 1013
Intangible assets arquirad 27 85 bE] a1 - 143 - - 14.1
Geographic Information
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
uK Europe USA Aria  Elminotisns Tetak
tem) {em) tem) tom) {emi lem|
Segmental revenye from externgl custoners .77 6452 2137 437 - 1,613.3
Total capiial expend iture 156 % 4, - 12 23 - 1104
Non-cument segmenl gssets” 10523 149 277 46 - 1,993
Total segmental ossets 42647 5892 25A.27 vy 3629 st
.m:n_z.a_su defered tox ond hnonckl instruments.
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
uK Hon-UK. us Asla’ Elninations Total
lEm) {£m) itm tem) temy it}
Sagmental ravenus brom external customers 28510 223 2352 489 - 33574
Total capital expenditurs 262§ 568 19 23 - 1.5
Non-current segmental gssets® e a1 204 18 - 15089
Total segr al assets L arxa 3548 9% 18602} 38602
*Excludes delerred tox and linancial instruments
Material non-current segmental assets — by o nen-UK country:
UIA  Belpum  Amtda Estonlr Irelund Spain
1Eml tem) 1em) ] iem) femi
FrH 1277 468 124 - 129 ¥y
o 38 a2 303 243 529 367
Material segmental revenue from external customers - by a non-UK country:
UsA Helgium Auntria Ertsnia Iraband Spain
temt tml leml Hm i ttm}
FY21 137 931 A2 1 95 7 95,4 2081
FYm 2352 kR 552 1031 1473 1841

-
Ngte the Gioyp hos na individual ¢ustomer which otcaunts for more than 104 of revenwe in tha current or prier perod

Prnled on Stenbers 1007 Recycled and Carbon Capiured thraugh the Woodland Trust, helping to creatae now Brtish woodland across the UK
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The following table reconciles the reported operating profit to the underlying EBITDA as it has been
one of the main measures used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker when reviewing performance
during the period:

Reconciliation of operating (loss)/profit to underlying EBJTDA for the 52 week period
ended 25 April 2021:

o ﬂ.._.?....n._._. " ..._.u_..m" i i.._._nﬂ”_“ R | rd....._u..ﬁ Grotp Totod

m! £y {Em) IEm) Kml {Em) &m) {Em)

OFERATING (LOSSE FROFIT (58.2) s 64} 153.4) hL] (s Uy (603
Hwﬁmnwuﬂn‘,M..nhhuuwﬂﬁa (0 561 (25.6) a o7 () . o
IFRS ¥ ROU deprecictien §15 64 579 a9 23 B2 - 73
(FRS 16 ROU wMipairment na 05 nLs o 24 1842 1682
wwaﬂmﬂﬂga,,g finclugling investment 187 e sy 53 57 ma 12 13
”womﬂmhnﬂ_:aa (including 1nvestment 562 2o oz 08 . .:,., ns
Intavigrble artarrsatian - - - 05 as “6 21
REPONTED ESNDA N2 ns iy %S us " ng 568
{Profitlinss on sale of pronerties o) - nm 88 o1 (1 2] - N
Exceptional stems 31 18 [{E ] 31 - 16 - 16
IFRS 16 odjustments ' {811 238 ) 1839 104 feasy ’ 1619}
Realised FX loss / [gain) 1012 02 04 108l 14 ne 53 26
UNDERLYING EKITDA 2 539 ma a1 156 2k o 103

I Relatus to ke reversol of IFRS 16 et und oneraus lense provisians

Reconciliotion of aperating profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week pericd ended 26 April 2020:

UK Pramum  UKAwall  Eurepean  RestOf Tetal  Whel Grear
Sperts  Lifestyle Total Retail World Setoll Retall & Licensing Total
Em itmt (2 Eml temi tem) {Em ©m
OPERATING PROFIT / {LOSH) 013 m.a s ] [eX]] 1.8 3 my
IFRS 16 pisposol of tacsa liobilty @n [LE) .o 1640 it 4 @5 - 1.8
IFRS 16 ROU depraciotion/impainment N3 161 1.2 7O 133 nss - nes
IFRS 16 PPE impoirment 33 ir 60 - *7 23
Deprecation 953 06 LR 15 48 154.T ta L)
Amartisatiandmpanmant 21 ia 42 g - 4.0 2s 15
Share af loss of associnted undertolungs 159) - e . - (G0 5.9
REPOATED EMTDA 490 52 408z 1024 A 536.2 510
Frofit on sole of propertias 132.2) - 1112 1210} - 13421 154.2)
Exceptionol tems 27 69 A& as - nr n1
IFRS 15 odpsiments' w59 67 112204 1307 (248) (719 - (2.9
Realised FX {gan| £ loss 2921 s mn na 104) |35.3) a4 49
UNDERLYING EMTDA 4 48 sy 54 16.2) F 51 302.%
] Reloies to the reversal of IFRS 16 rant and ohesous |20se provisions
92
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5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

52 warht #nded 32 washt sndad

5 April 2021 28 April 2020

|Em) s 1Em)

Reat secentibia 63 w1
Other n7 162
o4 ns

Other operating incame retotes to chargas for mrcrof, iease surender prermiums, od hog mcoime ond suidry churges to thind parbes

6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

52 waaksanded 52 wraaks anded

W April 1671 6 Aprid 1030

L) {Ewi

irnpoirments 1510 a3
Profit on digposol ot Itangibile assets 25 -
(18 f1a

The wmpairment 0 both the current ond pror yeor relates to goodwill, wherely the discountad present value uf future cosh flows 4o ot suppert the full
votue of the assels The profit on dispasal of intosgible o1sets ralutes 1o 1he sale of certam IP selobng to\ne BELONG busness

7 PROFIT ON SALE OF PROPERTIES

S2wesksmnded 52 wawks endedt

35 Aprl 2021 26 April 3010

m) ()

Proht on ssle of propertis ) 97 5432

t on 1 sale of proparties in the current panod includes gains on the sala of Europeon properties The priot panod [orgely relates to the gen oo
sule und leosenack of tha Shirebrook distrisution certtra tunits A, B, €. D und F Brook Park Eost, Shierook NGJ0 8RY)

8. . OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
Operating {foss}/profit for the period is stated after charging/(crediting):

S2waek #nded 32 waek anded

28 apeit 3031 % April 3030

e} 1Em)

Fareigh exthange (oss 7 (gen] 263 (3431

AND oK H T ASSETS:

-Deprecaotion of profery. ANt & eglibraent fncd « e ugset) 2985 584

putment of property, plant £ a ment fincl nght-of-uge asiet) 364 1IN E

Gaprac of mvestmant properties 19 33

-impoirment of mvestment property L1 -

-Aunortisation of intahgibhe oisets Al tas

- wepiemernt of imtangible ossers It 190
IFRS 16 LEASES:

Prohit on disposal and mod ficationfremeasusemant of lease atilities 27 1971

Vanable lesse payrmants 5 %4

Short term and low valyr lmase sxpenises ne 560

s e UK
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FRASERS GROUP

SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR

The remuneration of the ouditors, RSM UK Audit LLP, and associated firms, was as detniled below:

10. INVESTMENT INCOME

52 waaks ended 52 washs mrdud
28 Apdi 2021 26 April 2010
{Em) Emi

AURIT
Audit of the Group ond company - recu 15 15
Audit of the Group ond rompuny - nan-recurmng o1 04
Audit of subsidiary companes us 08
Audit reiaked assurance servicas . 01
. 14 z%

There were ne non-audit services provided in either the current or prior period.

9. PAYROLL COSTS

The average monthly number of employees, including Executive Directors, employed by the Group
during the period was;

53 waaks anded 51 wanks ended

13 Apdi 200 16 April 2020

2122 25,505

Distribution, admmistration and other 4374 4,614
8498 .0y

The decrease in employees is mainly due to natural attrition, including in part, the integration of new
acquisitions.

The aggregate payroll costs of the employess, including Executive Directors, net of amounts recaived
from Government grants, were as follows:

52 waeks snded 57 wanhs unded

35 Apri) 2020 36 April 2020

Wogas and salarias 3422 456 4
Soriof secunty costs 293 305
Pensian costs . 58 59
ba) 4318

Aggregate emoluments of the Directors of the Company are summearised below:

52 wuekn snded <2 weahs mndud

8 Aprl 2021 24 Apsl 2020

1Em) £m

Aggregote emaluments 05 04

Further details of Directors’ remuneration are given in the Directors' Remuneration Report, Details of
key management remuneratien are given in 1ote 34,
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52 waoks andvd

26 April 2020

- ]

Prafit on disposal ative ingneal instruments i 74
Premum receved on danvatve

Four value gain on equity dervotive haanciol instruments 73

Dividend incame LH 05

107 w2

The profit an disposal of financial assets mainly relates te Hugo Bess contracts for difference. The
fair value gain on equity derivative financial instruments mainly relates to Hugo Bess options and
contrasts for difference. The premium received on derivative financial instruments mainly relates to
Hugo Boss options.

11. INVESTMENT COSTS

52 wasks anded $2weeks ended

13 April 2021 26 April 2020

{eml tem)

Lass on disposal of inancial assets ond equity denvative tnanciol instrumants - 140
Foir value loss an equity denvative financal instruments 77 358
1¥ o3

The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the current period mainly relates to movements in
contracts for difference.

The loss on disposal recognised in the prior period mainly relates to the sale of equity derivatives.
The fair value loss an equity desivatives in the prior period moinly relates to Huge Boss options and
commedities.

12. FINANCE INCOME

.u:-a_ue-_ .-u:_i.u_ne

I&m) LEm|

Bonk interest receivoble 35 6
Other hinarce income: 3§ 81
Four value adpustment o dervatwe nancal instruments - 211
20 1o

The fair value adjustment to derivative financial instruments relates to differences between the fair
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options thot were not designated for hedge
accounting from one period end to the next. Other finance income largety relates to premiums
received on option contracts.

1 acruss the UK
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13. FINANCE COSTS

52 wesks ehided 52 weaks wnded

5 April 3021 26 April 010

liml {Em}

Interest on honk leans und overdralts i 79

Other irterest BE 04

Interest on retirement beneht obligations 01 o

IFRS 16 lease nterast e 105
Fuit value gajvstment 10 demvative bnanoot mstruments 46

182 293

The fair value adjustment to derivative financial insteuments relotes to differences between the fair
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
accounting from one period end te the next.

14. TAXATION
52 wawks #neled 52 weaks anded
18 Aprif 121 28 April 2020
i teml
Current tax B2 572
Acyustinent in respect Lo pror penots ’ 134 EE]
TOTAL CURRENT Fax % ol
Deferred tox not ) 1258
Adjustrment in respaet o priat penods L%l 72
TOTAL TAX {$EE NOTE 20| 0.3} (18.6)
[ 415
Praft before toxation BS 1435
Taxation gt the standard rate of 1ax n the UK of 19% [2010 15%] 16 271
Non-taxable ncome 139) 122 4i
Experisas not dedicuble for ko purposes 1o we
Oher tax odustments na 9k
Adjustmérts in respant of prior penidds « current tox ) 136 X
Adjustmants i respect of prar panods - deferred kax 102} 77
Changes w deferred tax rate - 1211
35S LS

Non-taxable income largely relates to profits en property disposal due to differences between capital
aflowances and depreciation. Expenses not deductible for tax purposes relate to non-gualifying
depreciation, impairments, and fair valuation of investments.
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Basic earnings per shara is calculated by dividing the sarnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

For diluted eqrnings per share, the weighted average number of shares, 501,955,281 (FY20:
505,826,890), is adjusted te assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares under the
Group's share schames, being 88,605 {FY20: 1,239,075}, to give the diluted weighted average number
of shares of 502,043,886 [FY20: 507,065965). However, as there is a loss for the period ended 25 April
2021, the effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares is anti-ditutive, and therefore the weighted
average number of shares for the Diluted EPS calculation has been kept the same as far the Basic
EPS calcutation for the current period.

Basic And Diluted Enrnings Per Share

52 wyaln anded 52 wasks snded

a3 April 25 Apnl % April 26 Aprit

021 021 020 020

Basic Dikried Barie Dikted

lemy wmy wmi

ILoss)ipratit for the panod [GX (83 01 938 CELY

Natibarin theussnbs Dumbar in thourands

werghted average number of shares 501955 501,955 505827 507.06¢
Pencu par thure

Earmings per share {165} (185 w5 185
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Underlying Earnings Per Share 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The underlying earnings per share reflects the underlying performance of the business compared Mahtof bl e
with the prior period and is calculated by dividing underlying earnings by the weighted average wecuist LT Lensehold | eeithel  quipmant Fotal
:cBUm.H of m:Em.w mn.: the period, ::qu_,\.,.:m earnings is cum.n_ by BQJQmmBm_._.ﬁ as d measure - ' el ) tem] ) e
of profitability within the Group. Underlying earnings is defined as (loss)/profit for the period o8t
attributable to equity holders of :...m parent for each financial period but excluding the post-tax AT 28 APRIL 2013 N T P a Pro 1728
effect of certain non-trading items. Tax hos been calculated with reference to the effective rate of tax Recognised on adoption of (FRS 16 2125 B . - R . 2%
for the Group. Acquisitions 188 54 05 - 81 bl
The Directors believe that the underlying eornings before exceptional items and underlying earnings Addrons 1012 72 L 154 1287 -Au7
per share measures provide additional useful information for shareholders on the underlying Elumuoted on disposals (209] 1335) o3 16 7) g 3.2
performance of the business and are consistent with how business performance is measured Reclassheations / Remeasurements” 28 . . B 130 "
internally. Underlying earnings is not a recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly Exchange diferences R 36 52 o8 28
comparable with “adjusted” profit measures used by other companies. AT 26 APRIL 2010 s34 es 0.8 me e
52 wanks anded 52 weshs unded Acquisitions (sae note 314 21 os . - 90
25 Aprll 28 Apl % Apal 5 Ap) Additions LIELS B3 43 20 788
on - N
-Mluwn E—hwﬂtuh "”hu“ - !rn"‘n“ Ehminated on aisposals 487 &S] wn [GXe]) (57 4)
l&m) l&m) (] Ly Reclossilications / Remeosurements!’ 64 179.41 9.2 ar 87 3.0
(LOS3I/PROXIT FOR THE PERIOD (s3.6] 183.0) 9 ne Exchange d 145 24 03] 29 PR
Post tax odjusiment to [lossi/pralit lor the penod for the following itams AT 25 APRIL 2071 P P i w7 s 27
Reulised Iossfigaint on lorword foreign axchanga contracts %7 197 126 1261)
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
Faw vglue adjustment to lorward fotaign exchunge contracts 34 34 16 0) 16 0
Fawe value goin on step acquisiton - - 120 4] 1204) AT 33 APRIL 2014 - a3y (o] e |4na s hidiou
Far vglue adjustment to denvabwva financiol instruments {47 5} (47 5] 369 269 Recagnised an ardoption of 1IFRS 16 - - - - 52 162
Dividend incorme and profit on disposal of bancial nmn.m.n ond equity denvative (485 tan s 77 77 Chorge for the penod - {21961 (47 8] 125 1701 (10421 (M1}
ncial instrumants ; ar
- L] ¥
Profit on dispasal of 187 ) (5a2) 58 2) ated on dhsposuls 2 61 100 248
\paimant of goadwl o a1 i, " Exchange differances 09 051 4 o8 26 L
Profit on dispasol of intangble assets 15 6} 56| - - AT 218 APRIL 1010 man (1523} 8.7} ) (3879) 1,970.5)
IFRS 16 odjustments 768 68 569 569 Chorge for the penod 821 174'5] 18] ms| me.8 {2985}
UNDERLYING {LOSSVPROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 852} 1453 n1 nr impaument (168.2| 8441 (@9l o 159 8] e
Numbar in theuronds Numbar In thausonds
Ehrmaated on disposals 415 .2 03 alt 544 1201
Shares in issue of the period enrd 501955 501958 505,827 507046
Pance gor thars Panca par thars Rese kasasbic s / Rermensursments - w1 {179 - {88 &8
Earrngs per shara . {m.0p ro] 953 163 Exchonge dilferances 21 0.2 01 o1 23 B
AT 1S APAIL 2021 ey lann {48 ey (698.5) 15429
NET BOOK YALUE
AT I5 APRIL 2071 My 4227 1018 a waa 11649
AT 18 APRIL 1020 2087 Te8E 2.9 1wy F TR} 13476
AT 38 APRIL 2019 - e 3 8.0 1289 213
A} The £43.0m wos due tao plont ond equipment not forming part of the final sale ond leasebock complated durtng
the preor yaar
N [¥i] In the prior penad thers w no separgte disclosere of impairment from depreciabion in respect of the property, plant ond aguipment. Tatal
Impairment tn FY2Q was £122.6m of which £97 Bm related to the Right-of-uss cassate
t3) In the urrent perod a number of prapertizs were identihied that wesa previously cigssifad within Frashald Lond snd Buildwgs but management

balieve 1t by more appropnote 1o ciassily within Long-term Leosel These hawa therefome been adjusted in the pencd as reclossificatians

Note 2 provides further detail on the property related impairments (relating to ROU assets, freehold
land and buildings ond onercus lease provisions).
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Leases

The Group adopted IFRS 16 on 29 April 2019. The Group only has property leases within the scape of
IFRS 16, including retail stores, offices and warehouses. Leases are largely for o period between 1- 15
years typically with break clauses. It is management’s intention to continue to enter into turnover
linked leases in the future.

The Group presents right-of-use ossets thot do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, plant and equipment’, the same line item as it presents underlying ossets of the same
nature that it owns. The carrying emount and movements in the-peried can be seen in the table
above.

Lease fabilities are presented separately within the Consclidated Balance Sheet. The maturity
analysis of lease liabilities is show in note 29e. Interest expense on the lease liobility is presented as @
component of finance costs as per note 13. Cash payments for the principal portion and the interest
portion of the lease liability are presented in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement with further
details given in note 26,

The Group is party to a number of leases that are classed os short term leases and with variable

FRASERS GROUP

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Sesdw) Tredemerks Wrands

{Em) (Cmj (G HEm)
LO8T
AT 28 APRIL 2019 1589 »a [t 3149
Acyuisihans 27 20 - “r
Disposals t04) - {0.4)
£ xchonge gdjustments a6 04 40 [X]
AT 26 APKIL 2020 4 S0 04 e
Acquishans isee note 31t 60 - - .
Addditiang - w 10
Disposals [EE] - (33}
Exchange adustments 8 (98] TL
AT 25 APRIL 2021 o2 w0 WL
AMORTISATION AND

fease payments. These are typically property leoses on turnover based rents. Note 8 discloses AT 28 APRIL 2019 te2.5)
variable lease poyments and short term and tow value lease expenses incurred in the period. Cosh Amartisation charge 17 1601
flows in the period relating to variable lease payments, shart term lease payrments, and leases for low imparrment -
value assets were approx. £24m (FY20: approx. £72mij. it is expected that future cash flows will not be “Drspaset ‘ 0d Rk
materially n__..mmﬂm.._w,nc the FY20 cash 39.2.9 Leases ta which the Group is committed but have not yet echma ot on P N .
commenced ot period end are not considered to be material.
. AY 76 APRIL 2010 [ER] &0 168) (3144}
Arnortisuton charge o3y ni 155 A}
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Irpenrmant 19 - 1
Freshold iond and (isposal - 33 13
Buldings h dpus 3 47 07
-
et Exchange adpstments 04 58
casr AT 25 APRIL 2021 (124.09 8. {10.3) (2215)
AT 28 APRIL 2019 AND 25 APRIL 2020 a8 JR— pos - Py 05
Elminoted on dispasals 1761
AT 26 APRIL 2020 4.9 49 Ha U4
AT 25 APRIL 2031 ;.2
AT 28 APEIL 2018 73 3 e e
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT .
aT2 018 Amortisation is charged to selling, distributicn and administrative expenses in the consolidated

Cirarge for the period

AT 16 APRIL 2030

Charga for the period

tmptinnent

Etmingred on disposals ' 53
AT 25 APRIL 01 )
NET BDOK VALUE

ATIS APRIL 011 8]
AT 78 APRIL 2030 L2
AT 28 APHIL 2010 ) 323

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 25 April 2021 were estimated cs being
materially in line with carrying values. The valuations were calculated by the Group's internal
property feom who ore oppropridtely qualified chartered surveyers and foliow the applicable
valuation methodology of the Royal institute of Chartered Surveyors. Note 2 provides further detaif
on the property related impairments.
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Income Statement,

The majority of the net book value of intangibie assets refates to the £86.5m purchase of Everlost in
2007
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The cairying value of goadwill and brands thet are considered to hove an indefinite life are allocated
to the Group's operating segments before aggregation. With the exception of Everlast, none of

the individual cash-generating units (CGUs) are considered material to goodwill or indefinite fife
intangibles. The carrying value of goodwill and brands allocated to the Group's CGUs (as aggregated

except in the cose of Everlast) is shown below:

23 April 2011 26 April 2020
Gandwill Bronds Gondwill Brandh
{Em) (Em} {Em) ({Em)}
European Retal - - 36
Wholesale & Licensing (excl Everlasth 143 - 143
Everlost 14 698 362 844
[ 4“9 L7R] A

The Group tests the carrying amount of
goodwill and assets with an indefinite life
annually for impairment or more frequently if
there are indications that their carrying value
might be impaired. The carrying amounts

of other intangible assets are reviewed

for impairment if there is an indication of
impairment, R

Impairment is calculated by comparing the
carrying amounts to the value in use derived
from discounted cash flow projections for

European Retail goodwill and the goodwill from
acquisitions in the period.

The Everlast brand is amortised over a 15
year period within the selling, distribution and
administrative expenses category within the
income statement. The amount charged to
the income statement in the period is £5.5m
(FY20: £6.0m), the future amortisation charge
is expected to be approximately £6.0m per
annum for the remaining 13 year amodisation
period (FY20: 14 year},

The key assumptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cash fiow projections used to

support the carrying amount of goodwill were as foliows:

Axat 25 April 2021 Kurspeon-Retal !..a_qi_.-._.u_._.huﬂ.-r...-_ Evadast
Terminal sates growth 30% 210% 20%
% yeor forecast growth ' 135%) 153%)" 1 6%;)
Grass pnasgin 30%-40% -

DPiscount rats A% b3% 12,19
a0t 26 Apell 2030 Ruropean Retal P Evarbast
Taimmnat sales growth 20% 20% 0%
5 year lorecusl growth * 20% - 20% 5%
Gross mangn FOF 40N -
DIscount rate B 2% . . 62% 121%

in The & yeor growth rotes are basad on the overage growth ovaer 5 yaars

The some pre-tax discount rate is used in European Retail and Wholesale & Licensing {excl. Everlast)
as these CGU's are considered to have similar risk profiles. A specific discount rate is used for Everlast

as this business operates in a different market and has different characteristics.

The key assumptions are based on market data and management's histaricel experience and future

plans for each CGU.
Sensitivity Analysis

each CGU to which the intongible assets are |
allecated. A CGU is deemed to be an individaal
fascia or brand and these have been grouped
together into similar classes for the purpose of
formulating operating segments as reported

in note 4. The total recoverable amount of

all CGUs in relation to the above intangible
assets wos £262.3m of which £136.8m related
to Everlast. Due to the ongoing impact of
Covid-19, the European Retail goodwill was
impaired to £nil with an impairment charge of
£3.1m {FY20: £nil) being recognised where the
discounted present value of future cosh flows
did not support the full value of the asset.

Value in use calculations are based on five-year
management forecasts with o terminal

growth rate applied thereafter, representing
management's estimate of the long-term
growth rate of the sector served by the CGUs.

Total impairments of £9.1m (FY20: £19.0m}
have been recognised in relation to goodwil
on loss maoking companies ond are individualts
immaterial to each CGU that has been

written down, These impairments include the
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A reasenably possible.change in any key assumption would not cause the carrying value of the
Everlast or Wholesale & Licensing (excluding Everlast) CGU to exceed its recoverable amount,
the tokle below shows the amount of headroom and the revised assumption required in order to

eliménate the headroom in full,

The European Retail goodwili has been impaired in the period as a result of the engoing impact of

Covid-19.

bt g —
Recoveruble omount of CGU [fm 1255 1268
Currant hatdroom [Ln} s 45
Revised §-year forecast growth rate % 177%) 12 5%]
Rewised terminal growth rate % < {1000%) 0.5%
Rewsed discount rate % 576% 14 0%,

Printed on Stainbeis 100% Recycted and Garboo Cap.ured through the Woodkind Trusl. hielping 1o creqate new Bolish woadiand across tha UK
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for associates and joint ventures in occordance
with |AS 28, The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's investment in
associctes and joint ventures:

Asraciater

(Em)

AY 23 APRIL 2019 1.8
Addihions B EAd
Share of s for the pencd syl
Foir volus aoliusterment 02
Disposals [Fini3

AT 26 APRIL 2610 AND 13 APRIL 202 -

The share of loss in the prior period relates to Game Digital ple prier to sbtoining a controlling
interest in July 2019

The fair value adjustment in the priar year relotes to the increase in the fair value of the previously
held 38.1% equity interest in Game Digital plc at the acquisition date on 8 July 2019,

The disposals in the prior period mainly relctes to the de-recognition of Game Digital plc os an
associate due to obtaining o controlling interest.

The Group currently holds a 49.0% share of Four (Holdings) Limited {FY20: 43.0%), the carrying
ameunt of this investment is £nil. Detailed disclosures have not been presented as the results are
immaterial. The Group is owed £64.5m from the group of companies headed by Four (Holdings)
Limited {£26.5m net of amounts recognised in respect of loss allowonce} (FY20: £67.5m, £33.8m net
of lass aliowance), see nate 22 for further detoils, The group of companies headed by Four (Holdings)
Limited made a profit of £8.1m in the period (FY20: loss of £19.8m).
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20. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group is not looking to make gains through increases in market prices of its long-term financial
assets, therefore on initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made the irrevocable election to account
for long term finoncial astets at fair value through ather comprehensive income (FYOCH. The
election has been made on an instrument-by-instrument bosis, only qualifying dividend income is
recagnised in profit and loss, changes in fair varlue are recognised within OCl and never reclassified
to profit and loss, even if the asset is impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised. The majority of
long-term financial assets are recognised in the UK Sports segment

The fair value of the long-term financial assets is based on bid quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date or where market prices are not available, at management's estimote of fair value.

The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's financial assets during the period;

25 ApRl 201 26 April 0320

lemt et

At begnning of pened B1B BA &

Arfditrons LEE] 48

Urspasals ot S e

Amaurits recognised throuyh alber comprehensive mcome: 73 {19 74
Excharys difteranres 1

2813 na

Included within long-term financial assets at the period ended 25 April 2021 are the following direct
interests held by the group:

* 36.8% (FY20: 12.5%)] interest in.Mulberry + 5% (FY20: 0.2%) interest in Hugo Boss AG
Group plc *  Vagriouys other interests, nohe of which

= 35.6% (FY20: 36.9%} interest in Studio Retail represent more than 5.0% of the voting
Group plc pawer of the investee

During the pericd the Group sold its 25,19 interest in French Conngction Group ple due to it no
longer being considered part of the Group's long-term strategy. The fair value at the date of
derecognition was £2.6m with the £1.7m gain on dispesal being recognised in investment income.

The following tabie shows the fair value of each of the Group's long-term financial assets (ol listed):

26 Aprl 2020

5 April 2611

{emi )

Mulbstey Grouw ok 520 e
Stugha Retal Group blc 837 Ay
Hygo Boss AG nas 70
Zrench Connactian Group pic - 15
har 19 40
AT END OF PERIOD 3633 2

These holdings have been assessed under
IFRS 9 Financial instruments and categorised
as long-term financial assets, os the Group
does not consider them to be dassociates and
therefore, they are not accounted for on on
equity basis, see note 2.

assist in building relationships with key suppliers
and brands.

Our strategic investments are intended to allow
us to develop relationships and commercial
partnerships with the relevant retailers and
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21. INVENTORIES

25 ApH 3038 16 agell 2020
#m jomy
Goods For resale 1096 & 1158 3

As at 25 Aprit 2021, goods for resate include @ right of return asset totailing £4.5m (FY20 £2.4m).
Amounts writter off in the period relating to stock was £24.3m (FY20 £39.0m),

The following inventory costs have been recognised in cost of sales:

25 Apeil 2021 26 April 2030
[ 1kl
Cost of invantores recognised os an expense 20945 22948

The Directors have reviewed the opaning and closing provisions against inventory and have
concluded that these are fairly stated. The Group has reviewad its estimates and assumpticns for
calculating inventory provisions at 25 April 2021, Overal! provisions have decreased from £223.0m in
FY20 to E212.8m as at 25 April 2021, changes in the provision are recegnised in cost of sales.

22, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

28 Apil 1021 26 aprl 2020

L} iEm)

Trade racevables 572 575
Deposits 10 respact of dérvohive financial instrurments Mo na
Amounts awed Ly ralatad purhes (see note 34) 268 347
Cther recmvablas 2469 | 1967
Prepayments B46 545
5465 Az

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to
their fair vaiue. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of asset above, plus any cash balances. Cther receivables also include unremitted sales
receipts.

Deposits in respect of derivative financial instruments are collateral to cover margin requirements for
derivative transactions held with counterparties. The collateral requirement changes with the market
{which is dependent on share price, interest rates and volatility) and further purchases / sales of
underlying investments held.

Included within other receivables is the reimbursement asset totalling £118.3m (FY20: £118.3m) in
relation to the Group's ongoing non-UK tax enquiries, for further information see note 28,

The majority of the Group's trade receivables are held within the Wholesale & Licensing businesses,
each customer's creditworthiness is assessed before payment terms are agreed.

Under IFRS 9, the Group has applied the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses
for trade receivables, using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on a very low credit risk
characteristic, representing management's view of the risk, and the days past due. The credit quality
of assets neither past due rior impaired is considered to be good. The Group considers g debt te be
defaulted ot the point when no further amounts are expected to be recovered. Financial ussets are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. If recoveries are subsequently made
after receivables have been written off, they are recagnised in profit or loss.
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The amounts owed by related parties mostly relates to the group headed by Four {Holdings} Limited,
far further details see note 34.

Exposure to credit risk of trade receivables:

28 Apri 2031 26 Aprll 2020

Em) fEml

Curtent . a8 EL]
0-30 duys post duy 120 130
30-60 days past dus 40 a2
40-90 days past dus 24 20
Over 90 days post due 70 : 73
5.2 513

The credit quality of assets neither past due nor Impaired is considered to be good.

The movernent in loss allowance relating to trade receivables and amounts owed to related parties
can be analysed as follows: :

52 waaks ended 52 weaks andued

15 April 3033 2% April Xr20

lEm itm)

Opening posthan .2 338
Amaunts charged to the income stotement 223 136
Amounts witten off as uncoll=ctuthe i01) 16 5}
Amoutits recovered during the penad {0t 106}
CLOSING POSITION 3.3 4.2

Included in the below table is the loss allowance movement in amounts due from related parties as
follows:

52 waekn ended 33 wanky mndud

25 Aprl 2021 36 April 2020

em) L]

Qpening position 138 108
Amounts charged to the incoma statemant 44 13,0
£LO3ING POSITION a4 HE

The gross carrying amount of the balance due is E65.2m [FY20: £67.5m). The charge in the period has
been recorded in Selling, distribution and administrative expenses. £12.4m of the gross amounts due
from related parties balance is due in less than one year with the remaining being due in more than
a one yeor (FY20: £7.9m due |ess than ene year).

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over d large number
of customers. The loss allowance / charges have been determined by reference to past default
experience, cutrent / forecasted trading performance and future economic conditions.

Deposits in respect of derivative financial instruments and prepayments are nok considered to be
impaired.

1 woodliand across the UK
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

25 Ageil 2021 26 April 2020
tom) tem)
Cash w bonk and in hand - Sterling 1441 4538
Coth in bank and » hand - US Dellorg Y74 173
Cash in bank gnd in hand - Euras 1925 582
Cash n bank and m hund - Gthar a0 85
4910 330
24. SHARE CAPITAL
75 kprii 2028 25 April 2030
1em) (tw)
AUTHORISED
999,500,010 erdinary shores af W0p each 000 noa
ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND PULLY PATD
640,602,369 (2030 640.602,369] ordinary sharet of 10p #ach LAl Hd 1
SHARE CAPITAL
AL 25 Aprit 2021 ond 26 Apnl 2020 fd &l
The Group holds 121,260,175 shares in Treasury as Contingent Share Awards

at period end (FY20: 121,260,175).

The halders of ardinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends os declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per ordinary share
at general meetings of the Company.

We are aware of unsponsared Amaericar
Depository Receipt {ADR) programmes
established from time to time in respect of our
shares. We have not sponsored or authorised
their creation and any questions should be
directed to the relevant depositary.

Frasers has not and does not intend to offer or
sell its Ordinary Shares or other securities {in
the form of ADR or otherwise] to the general
public in the United States ror has it listed

or intends to list its Ordinary Shares or other
securities on any national securities exchange
it the United Stotes or to encourage the trading
of its Ordinary Shares on any over the counter
market located in the United States. Frasers daes
not make arrangements to permit the voting of
Ordinary Shares held in the form of ADRs and
its publication of periodic financial and other
infermation is not intended to facilitate the
aperation of any unsponsared ADR programme
under Rule 12g3-2{b} of U.S. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended or otherwise.
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ted on Stemnbers 100%, Recycled and Carbon Capturad thounh the Wouodland Trest i

The Executive Share Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Scheme,
which was appraved by Shareholders on 10
Septernber 2010 and is a HMRC approved
scheme, the Board may moke share owards in
respect of the ordinary shares in the Compony.
Awords may be made to Executives ond Persons
Discharging Managerial Responsibilities over a
fixed number of shares subject to performance
conditions. Further details are set out in the
Oirectors' Remunaration Repert.

Arn award of 8073036 shares was granted on
10 September 2010 at o share price of 125.5
pence. Between 27 April 2020 and 25 April 2023,
1,000,800 shares sold by participants following
exercise of awards were acquired by Estera
Trust (Jerseyi Limited, as Trustee of the Sports
Direct Employee Benefit Trust (Trustee}, with
the acquisition funded by a loan advanced

by the Company. The shores were acquired at
374.8 pence per share. At the period end 6m
of the shares in the scheme kave since vested
[FY20: 5m) and 2m have since lapsed meaning
all shares granted by the scherme have now
exaercised or lapsed.

FRASERS GROU?P

Share Schemes

The 2011 Share Scheme was a four yeor scheme
based upon achieving undetlying EBITDA
(before the costs of the scheme] of £215m

in FY12, £250m in FY13, £260m in FY14 and
E300m in FY15 coupled with the individual
participating employee’s satisfactory persona)
performance and continued employment.

All of the ahove targets have now been met
meaning thot approx. 11.6m shares vested in
September 2017 and approx. 4m shares vested
in September 2015.

Between 27 April 2020 and 25 April 2021,
150,470 shares sold by porticipants following
exercise of awords under the Group 2011 -
Share Scheme were acquired by Estera Trust
{Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports Direct
Employee Benefit Trust (Trustee), with the
acquisition being funded by d loan advanced
by the Company. The shares were acquired ot
prices of between 251.8 and 460.8 pence per
share in off-market transactions. The weighted
average purchase price was 365 pence per
share {FY20: 257 pence per share).

A share-based poyment charge of £nil (FY20:
nil) was recognised in respect of this equity
settled award for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021, based on the Director's best estimate of
the number of awards that will be made. The
charge is calculated bosed on the fair value on
the grant dote, which is deemed to be the date
on which the entity and counterparty reached a
shared understanding of the scheme,

The Group holds 17,386,913 shares in the
Own Share Reserve as at period end (FY20:
17,386,213}

r

Fearless 1000 Bonus Scheme

At the annual general meeting in October
2020, our shareholders gave approvai for

the Fearless 1000 bonus scheme. Under this
scheme shares may be issued by the Group to
employees for no cash consideration. All Group
employees (exciuding executive directars, their
family associates, and the Chief Commercial
Officer) are eligible to participate in the
scheme. Under the scheme, 10 million shares
are awarded to eligible employses if certain
market conditions are achieved. This would
equate to E100m worth of fully paid ordinary
shares in Frasers Graup ple that could be paid
to eligible employees if our share price reaches
£10 any time over the next four years. The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
trading days to trigger the vesting of shares ot
the end of the four yeor vesting period. 50%

of the shares are granted after 4 years and the
remaining 50% cfter 5 years. One thousand
eligible employees will receive the shares with
a potential value ranging from £50k ko £9m if
the share price is gt £10 at the vesting dates. In
all other respects the shares rank equally with
other fully paid ordinary shares on issue.

The share element of the scheme is deemed

to be an equity-settled scheme as defined by
IFRS 2 Share-hased payment. in fine with the
accounting palicy in note 9, the fair value at the
date of grant is expensed to the Consolidated
Income Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting peried, with the carrespanding
credit going to equity.

The assessed fair value ot grant date of the
shares granted during the period ended 25
April 2021 was 165.69p per share for the 4 year
vesting period and 165.95p per share for the §
year vesting period. The fair value at grant date
is independently determined using an adjusted
form of the Black-Scholes model which includes
a Monte Carlo simutation modsl that tokes

into account the exercise price, the term cf the
option, the impact of dilution {where material],
the share price at grant dote ond expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme.
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The model inputs for shares granted during the period ended 25 Aprit 2021 included:
- exercise price: £nil

~ grant date: 10 February 2021, being the date the Deed of Grant was executed

- expiry date: 7 October 2024 and 7 Octcber 2025

- share price at grant date; 450p

- expected price volatility of the company's shares: 38.8%

- expected dividend yield: 0%

- risk-free interest rate: 0.1%

The expected price volatility is based on thz historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the

scheme), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly avaitable information.

A charge in the Consolidated income Statement of £0.8m has been recognised in the period in
relation to the equity-settled element of the scheme resulting in £0.8m now being held in equity.

The scheme also has a cash-settled bonus “or all dther eligible employees who do not qualify for
the Fearless 1000 share scheme, The cash bonus at the end of the 4 year period is based on the
employee tenure and has been accounted as an other long-term employee banefit as defined by
1AS 19 Employee Benefits. A charge in the Consolidation Incorme Statement of £0.5m has been
recegnised in the period along with a corresponding tiability.
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25. OTHER RESERVES

Parinanent Lapitel Revare i Tl sther
te copitel resarve erve funeres Ruservas
[£m} [em} {Em} {Em) [(10]
01 1.0 LIE2)) 487 {9123)
Cash flow hedges
recagnised i the pernd - . . 164 164
period - ineffectiveness
he peniod ond reported in the sales . - -
- ra¢lassihmd and feported in cost of sales - - - 374
- taxation - - - 38
AT 25 APRIL 2020 - ad “w (o013 a0
Cash Mow hadges
recagaised in the nenod - - - 04 04
reclassitied in the panod and reported w sales - . - 28 28
- reclassified and reparted in cost of safas - - - AT nu
- taxation - - - EL a8
AT 15 APRIL 2071 0.1 2] (987.) ns 1947.)

The permanent contribution to capital relates to a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company on 8
February 2007 under a deed of capital contribution.

The copital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of the Company's redeemable preference
shares of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007,

The reverse acquisition reserve exists as a result of the adoption of the principles of reverse .
acquisition accounting in accounting for the Group restructuring which accurred on 2 March

2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Company and Sports World International Limited, Brands
Heldings Limited, International 8zand Monagement Limited and CDS Holdings SA with Sports World
Internationat Limited as the acquirer.

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains end losses on hedging instruments
deemed effective in cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recegnised in the income statement only when the hedged transaction impacts the
income statement.

Printed on Steinbers 100° Recycled and Carbon Castured throuah the Woodland Trust helping (o credade new Brnsh woodiand across the UK
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Other Bulance Sheet Reserves

The foreign currency transiation reserve is used to record exchonge differences arising from the
translation of the Financial Statements of foreign subsidiaries and associates.

The own shares and treasury shares reserve represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group ple
purchased in the market and held by Frasers Group Emnployee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under
the Group's share options scheme.

The Group helds 17,386,913 shares in the Employee Benefit Trust as ot peried end {FY20; 17,388,755).

The non-controlling interests of the Group mostly relates to Sportland International Group AS and
its subsidiaries, This company is incorporated in Estonio with the principal places of business being a
number of Baltic countries in Europe, The non-controlling interests hold 40% of the share capital of
Sportland International Group AS. During the period £3.0m profit (FY20: £2.8m} has been allocoted
to the non-controlling interests of Sportiand International Group AS, resulting in an accumulated
non-controlling interasts ot the end of the period of £12.4m [FY20: £5.4m). A dividend of £0.9m was
paid to the non-controlling interest in the period {FY20: Enii). The group of companies headed by

Sportland Internaticnal Group AS has total assets of £67.8m and total liabilities of £14.6m.
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26. BORROWINGS

5 Apri) 2021 26 Aprit 2020
e 1Em}
CURRENT
Leqie lnbnnins 1885 1y
NOH-CURRENT:
Bank and other loons 058 8000
Lease lulities 5342 4760
TOTAL 14238 15344

An analysis of the Group's total borrowings other than bank overdrafts is as follows:

5 April 2021 26 Apeil 2010
(tml ftmi
Bomawngs - stathag F08% 400 0

As at period end, loans are at a rate of interest of 1.3% (FY20: 1.3%) over the interbank rate of the
country within which the borrowing entity resides,

Reconciliation Of Liubilities Arising From Fi ing Activiti

The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Hen-surrant Current  $hare buy Total
barrswings  berrswings backs
(Lm) {tm} (Em} k)
AT I APRIL 2010 (L] - 0.0 i1t
CASH-FLOWS:

- Borrowings drawn down 5100 - - s10.0

- Borrowings repmd 1436 5 - - 3]

- Shore buy back - - 1435} 439
LEASE LIABILITY:

~IFRS 16 Lease Lighiltes 2598 1363 -

- 1FKS 16 Lense Liobilibes - Acquisitiens 164 ne . -

NON-CASH MOVEMENTS:

- Share buy bock - - 19 1y
AT 28 APRIL 2020 1,308 ury - 1540
CASH-FLOWS:

- Bowowings diawn down. WET . - LETR]

- Borrawings repand 2R - - {13282}
LEASELIABILITY:

- 1FRS ¥4 | ease Lial - (7803 tha)

_nwm 16 Lense Linbibties  modifcahons, rameasurements, bmnsfecs fram non-curant 1o cunent. won 81 ) va
areng i axchange od nts

RS 16 | eute Liakalites - new leases 933 05 - e

AT 25 APRIL 2021 12409 S - 14208

The acquired borrowings {note 31) of £1.4m were repaid in full during the period.

The Group's Working Capital Focility is at £913.5m (FY20: £213.5m) available until November 2021
and is not secured against ony of the Group's assets. During FY19 the Group enocted an extension
option for a further year to November 2022 for £847.5m.

Bastinh wooliand across the UK
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es and covenants. The carrying

The Group continues to operate comfortably within its banking fac
amounts and fair value of the borrowings are not materially different.

Reconciliation of Net Debt:

25 April 2021 6 April 2020
£m) {Em)
Bortowings 11428 61 15247)
ADD BACK:

- Leass hobilties i 6241
Cash and cash sguivatents 4570 5340
NET DEST - aas) Ja65.0)

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Jr— ._-h“.u..._._..“ Toxlosses Bonus shars “.sz.u._.“ Vel .-...h"_-_.-h Yotal

ancondington ecoverable  acheme oY Beands  geberey
praciatien

tem {om) tEm) ) il Jema 1w m
AT 20 APRIL 201% .8 1 120,81 11.8) 5
Creoited/chorged] ta tha incame statement 23 138 74 18 e
Charged o resarvas 72 - . - - T2
Craditad to hadnig rssarve - . sa
AT 26 APRIL 2028 s - - 18 1 u1
Cradited/icargady to the incaime statument e 1 10 174 w1
Charged to reserves - - - [ k]] - 5 - 12
Credited ta bedging reserves . - - - 30 - 10
AT 35 APRIL 2028 a4 (3 - 02 0.9 ) s wa
23 apeil 2021 26 April 2020
£m} Em)
Delerred tox ossets 46y 459
Deferred tax hablltes 1240} 125 5)
MET DEFERRED TAX BALANCE %3 43

The tax rates used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 19%, on the besis that this
was the tax rate that was substontively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised Yo the extent that realisation of the releted tax benefit is probable
on the basis of the Group's current expectations of future taxable profits. The Group has approx.
£134m of taxable losses not recognised as a deferred tax asset {approx. £25m deferred tax asset).

included within other temporary differences is a deferred tax asset in relation to the Share Scheme
and o deferred tax liability recognised on other intargible assets upon acquisition.

The deferred tax effects of the acquisitions made in the year were considered and it was determined
that there was no material impact on the Group, or the fair value of net assets ccquired.
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28, PROVISIONS

Lagaland  Proparty

regulatary related Cthar Total

{Em) {Em) (Em iEm}

AT 29 APRIL 2019 0 23 e 243
Arnounts prowrded 130 758 - 888
Amounts utilised / reversed 6) 1708) (53 {977
Acquisitions - 06 - © 106
AT 16 ARRIL 2020 a4 w1 27 " 1360
Amounts provided 73 415 - 488
Amounts od / reversed 1469 {531 i14) 238
AT 23 APRIL 2021 8.8 tat 13 [k

Legal and regulatory provisions relate to manogernent's best estimate of the potentiol impact of
claims including legal, commercial, requlatory and ongoing non-UK tax enquiries. The timing of

the cutcome of non-UK tax inquiries and legal claims made against the Group is dependent on
factors outside the Group's control and therefore the timing of settlement is uncertain, After taking
appropriate legal advice, the cutcomes of these claims are not expected to give rise to material loss
in excess of the amounts provided.

A reimbursement asset of £118.3m (FY20: £118.3m} has been recognised separately within debtors
relating to ongoing non-UK tax enquiries.

Included within property related provisions are provisions for dilapidations in respect of the Group's
retail stores and warehouses, Further details of managements estimotes are included in note 2.

Other provisions relate to provisions for restructuring and employment {non-retirement related).

During the period, onerous lease provisions [pre-IFRS 16} were recagnised due to an angeing
management review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and anticipated
freehold acquisitions, resulting in overall increased provisions of £71.9m [FY20; £26.9m), with refarance
to the Group's alternative performonce measures. See Glossary for more details.
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to creats new British woodland across tho UK



FRASERS GRQUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021 ' ) FRASERS GROUP

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FINANCIAL ASSEYS - 36 APRIL 2620 Lovel] Luwel1 Levala Qthey Tetal
{tm) lEm fem L] e
a. Financial Assets And Liabilities By Category And Fal

Value Hierarchy AMORTISED COST:

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities, which are principally denomingted in Trate ond other receivoblest . 3255 -
Mﬁm—.__j@ or Cm UO__Dﬂm. were as mod_cc(.m_ Cash and cosh souwolents - - - 5340 534.0
FINANCIAL ASSETS ~ 25 APRIL 2021 Lavel ) Lewsla Level 3 Othar Tatol Amount cwet] by related parties - - 142 M2
K £} ) €|
teml temy ttm ] i oo
AMORTISED COST -
Lang Tenm Financial Assets tEquity Instrurments] - desgnatus 815 - - ne
Trade und other recevoblas® . - - 4351 43151
Cash und cash equivalents - . - as7u 1570 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (FV):
Armaunts owed by ratated partiss - . - 268 268 Foregn ferward purchase and sales comracts N 704 - . ma
Devwgtive ingneiul ossets - controcks for dilferenca - 17 - - 7
FVOcK
- b8 kA
Leong Tetm Finonciol Assets {Equity Instrumants - designoted 2633 - - - 2633

FINANCHAL LAABILITIES - 26 ARRIL 2020
AMGRTISED COST:

GERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS FV):

Foreign forward purchase and ssles contracts - T ass - - 1y
Non-current harrowings - - - 15000} 300.0}
Denvative finoncial assets - contracks for difference & equity opriens - 01 - - 201 -
- Tradle and other paybles** - - - 158471 47
- 5.4 . . 54
IFRS 16 Lease fhobiities - - (624 1824
NEY 25 APRIL 2021
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABRITIES (FY)
AMGRTLSED COST,
Foreign forward nnd written ootion purchnse and sules contract - Unhedgea - 198} - -
fNon-¢ utrant rorowings . - (705 6 1105.9) -
Derweats iobihtiss - contructs for thiference & gquity ophgns - 134 4}
Trade and other hoyvables* - - - 1207 {620.9)
- (4.3} - -
IFRS 16 Laose hobibes - - - 7224 oy
Brupayments of £54 5m ora act ncludsd as o inanciul assel
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIARILITIES [FV):
B “*Qiher Laxes inclueng sue ol secunty costs of £478m ore not included os &
Foreign forward ond witten opliahs purchase and soles contracts = Unhedged - (7 5; - - (L]
Dervatiye inantial hebilities - contracts for difference & eawty ontions M 07 - %.]) . + ATy P
- il ! b. Financial Assets And Liobilities Sensitivitias By Currency
- .3 - - 18y

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dellars and Eures. The table below
illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to o 5% increase
and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Steriing exchange rates ot the year-end date,
assurming all other variables remain unchanged The figures hove been calculcted by comparing the
fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts, assets and liabilities at the current exchonge
rate to those if exchange rates moved os illustrated. The income statement figures include the profit
effect of any relevant derivatives which are not in @ designated cash flow hedge. The impact on US
Dollar and Euro related hedging instruments is included in equity.

*Prepayments of 84 e ot weluded os o hranciol asset.

*"OUlier toxas including sacial equnty Losts of £26 2m ore not included s © hinanc:

The analysis has bean prepared using the following assumptions:

1. Existing assets ond liabilities are held a3 at the period end;

2. No additional hedge contracts are taken out

104 .
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Usp

Trade and Qther Recevable

Cosh and cosh equivalents

Trode ont Gihar Poyablss 385 0f (£d &

Trade ond Gther Recaivobles

Coshond cash equivglents

(196 6 (si0.1)

BENSITIVITY
usp EUR

5%

552 bt d (9.8} L3 t2.6) i

Trode ond Cther Praprbles 14528} {259

There is no difference
(FY20: £n ).

Fair Valye Hierorchy

The Group uses the foltlowing hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

*  Level 1: quoted {unadjusted] prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

*  Llevel 2; other techniques for which all
inputs which have o significant effect orr the
recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3: technigues which use inputs which
have a significant effect an the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

Controcts for difference are clossified os | eves
2 as the fair value is calculgted using quoted
prices for listed shares and commeoedities gt
contract inception and the period end.

Foreign forward purchoze and soles controcts
and options are classified as Level 2, the

Group enters into these derivative financial
instruments with various counterparties,
principally finencial institutions with investment
grade credit ratings, Foreign exchange

forward contracts and options are valued

using valuation techniques, which employ the
use of market ohservable inputs, The most
frequently applied valuation techniques incluge
farward Pricing and swap models usitig present
value caleulations. Tha models incorporgte
various inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
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between fair volue and carrying value of the above financil instruments

forward rates, and yield curves of the respactive
currencies,

Long-term financial assets such as equity
instrurnents ore clossified as Level 1 as the foir
volue is colculoted using quoted prices,

The fair value of equity derivative agreements
are included within the derivative financial

-assets bafance of £204m and derivative

financiat liabiities balance of £17m. The
derivative financial ussets and derivative
financial liabilities as at 25 April 2021 relate to
strategic investments held of between 0.04%

‘ond 8.41% of investee share copital,

Sold options are classified as Level 2 as the
fair vadue is calculated using ather technigues,
where inputs are observable,

Trade receivables / payables, omounts owed
from related parties, other receivables /
payables, cash and cash equivalents, current /
non-current borrowings, and lease figh Bs are
held ot amortised cost.

The maximurm exposure to credit risk as at 25
April 2021 is the carrying value of ecch class of
asset in the Balance Sheet, excest for amounts
owed from related parties which is the gross
carrying emeunt of £65.2m.

¢ Darivetives; Foreign Currency Forward
Contracts

{i) HEDGING

The most significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations relates to purchases
made in foreign currencias, principally the US
Dotlar and online sales in Eyrgs, The Group's
policy is 1o reduce substantially the risk
assaciated with fareign currency spot rates

by using forward fixed rate currency purchase
contracts, taking into account any foreign
currency cash flows. The Group does not

hold or issue derivotive financial instrurnents
for trading Purposes, however if derivatives,
including both forwards and written options,
do not qualify for hedge accounting they are
accounted for as such and accordingly any gain
or loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement. Management are of the view that
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering ifito the options and « strategy for
menaging the options independently of the
ferward contracts. The forward and options
<ontracts are therefore not viewed as one
contract and hedge acceunting for the forwards
Is permitted.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at inception
of the hedge relationship and at every reporting
period end through the assessment of the
hedged items and hedging instrument to *
determine whether there s still an economic
relotionship batween the two,

The critical terms of the foreign currency
forwards entered into exactly rmatch the terms
of the hedged item. As such the economic
relationship and hedge effectiveness are based
on the gualitative factors and the use ofaq ’
typothetical derivative where approprigte.
Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the
critical terms of the forecast transaction no
longer meet those of the bedging instrument, for
example if there was change in the timing of
the forecast sales transactions from what was
initially estimated or if the volume of currency

in the hedged item was below expectations
leading to aver-hedging. Differences can arise
when the initial value on the Hedging instrument
is not zero,

w0 Cleals new Brngh woodland actows the UK
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The hedged items and the hedging instrument
are denominated in the same currency and as a
result the hedging ratio is always one to one.

All derivative finaneia) instruments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initially ot foir
value and reported subsequently at fair vatue

in the statement of finenciol position. To the
extent that the hedge is effective, changes in the
fair value of derivatives designated a5 hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges are recagnised
in other comprehensive incoma and inciuded
within the cash flow hedge reserve in equity.
Any ineffectiveness in the hadge refationship is
recognised immediately in profit or loss,

At the time the hedged item affects profit or
loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive incoma is reclassified
from equity to prefit or loss and presented

s o reclossificotion adjustment withir other
comprehensive income, If o forecast tronsaction
Is ne longer expected to oceur, any related

gain o loss recognised in ather comprehensive
income is transferred immediately to profit

or loss, if the hedging relationship ceases to
meet the effectiveness conditions then hedge
Accounting is discontinued and the related gain
or loss is held in the equity reserve until the
forecast transaction oceours.
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The fair value of hedged contracts as ot 25 April 2021 was:

18 April 2031 16 April 2020
wml em?
ASSETS .
US Diollar purchosss - GEP 24
\U5 Dollar purchases - EUR 23 171
Eura sales 07 a5
TOTAL 1L 588
LIABILITIES
" puithases - GBP 73 -
1J8 Dellar purchoses - EUR 01
ToTAL 24 -

The details of hedged forward foreign currency purchase contracts and contracted forward rates
were as follows:

25 Apeil 20210 26 April 2020

lEm) [

Curreney GaP Cumeney 11

Us Dollar purchases 7200 5231 - -
Cantracted rates USD / GBP 136-14

US Dallar purchnses w0 me 200 Bkl

Cornlracted rotes USD / EUR B 113 132

Euro soles ) (24004 1247 8 15400} 15198

Cantracted rotes EUR / GEP oy 9% - 109

The timing of the contracts is as fallaws:

Curreney Husdging against Curreney vahe Timing Ratdd

USO/GRR USD inventory putchases UsD o om Y22 - FY23 Vgt

USC/EUR UST invertory Burchases USD 1200m FY22. 612 (WIRRE

EUR/GER Eurg sales CUR 80 Oin . 7423 099

Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where thee critical terms of the forecast transaction no longer meet
those of the hedging instrument, for example if thete was a change in the timing of the forecast sales
transactions from whot wos initiclly estimated or if the volume of currency in the hedged iterm was
below expectations leading to over-hedging. :

5 Aprit 2021 28 Aprid 1920
’ {Erm} {em)
“hange In discounted spot volue of outslunding heaging mstruments since inception af the hedge 4 5) 1358
Change i vale f hedged tem used to detenmnine hedge metfectiveness (280 1599)
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25 April 2024 1% April 2010
1£m} (Em)
Changw
intha tar Chunasnthe
value of the valun of
curmney  th hadged "™ curney
ferward em
S Dollars purchases - GBR ) 148)
1S Dolkare purchases - EUR PRl 21 67 67
Furo sales 1 31 a8 2%

At 25 April 2021 £242.4m of forword sales controcts and £607.0m of purchase contracts qualified
for hedge accounting and the gain on fair valuation of these contracts of £0.4m has therefore been
recagnised in other comprehensive income.

At 25 April 2021, £210.5m hedged purchase contracts had a maturity of greater than 12 months (FY20:
£nil of purchase contracts} and £242.4m of hedged sales had o matwrity of greoter than 12 months
[FY20. £242.4m of scles contracts),

The movements through the Hedging reserve are:

Tetat
TotalHedge  Deforred
i

usD/cap FUR/GRP  AUD/GBR usD/EUR mevement Tax Hedging

AS AT Z4 APRIL T019 pin) 40 [2] 1 583 (L]} 46T
Recogmsed a8 - 1 %4 - "4
Inef oz - 02 - a1
Reclassifed n sales - ha w03 - nn - 1
Reclassthed in mventory { cost of soles (349 - - 125 1374 - ara}
Delerre Yax - - - 28 23
&S AT 15 AERIL 2020 - 166 - w2 ns 5.9 200
Recogmised 49 a1 - 21 04 - 0.4
Reclassifad in sales - 1281 - - 128 - f28)
Reclasslied i mventory / cost of soles - (i B - LA
Deterred Tax - - - 3o e
AT AT 25 APRIL 2021 . .0 - 22 e (1.4} 1ns

{ii} The sterling principal amounts of unhedged forward contracts and written currency option
contracts and contracted rates were as follows:

15 Aprl 2011 26 Aprl 2030
(Lm) (Em}
s Dollar purchases 401
fanteacted roles USD / EUR 13
- Eurn snles 13838 (633d)
Cookracted ratss FUR / GRR 059 059109
- Eura purchases no
Contrarted rutes FUR ¢ GBP B 116

The lass on fair value of the written options and swaps of £4.6m has been included within finance
income {FY20: gain £21.3m).

A asrons ha UR
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At 25 April 2021, £nil of unhedged purchase contracts had @ maturity at inception of greater than 12
months [FY20: £nil purchase contracts] and £335.4m of unhedged sales had o maturity at inception
of greater than 12 months (FY20: £240.0m of sales contracts).

These contracts form part of the Treasury management activities, which incorporctes the risk
management strategy for areas that are not reiiable enough in timing and amount to qualify for
hedge accounting. This includes acquisitions, disposals of overseas subsidiaries, related working
capital requirements, dividends and loan repayments from overseas subsidiaries and purchase and
sale of overseas property. Written options carry additional risk as the exercise of the option lies with
the purchaser. The options involve the Group receiving a premium on inception in exchange for
accepting that risk and the outcome is that the bank may require the Group to sell Euros. However,
the Group is satisfied that the use of options as a Treasury management teol is appropriate.

In FY21 there are nil short term swaps at period end. FY20 value excludes short term swaps of USD/
GBP of USD 190.0m and EUR/GBP of EUR 75.0 and EUR/USD of EUR 80.0m which were required for
cash manoagement purposes only,

d. Sensitivity Analysis

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars ond Euros. The table below
illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,
assuming all other variables remain unchanged. The figures have been calculated by comparing
the fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts at the current exchange rate to those if
exchange rates moved as illustrated. The income statement figures include the profit effect of any
relevant derivatives which are not in a designated cash flow hedge. The impact on US Doliar and
Euro related hedging instruments is included in equity.

Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity:

Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity:

Ineamw Stoteirant Equity
28 At 26 April % aprl 26 April
2021 2020 e 010
. £m} [ I&m} l&m}
Interast rote incrensa of 0 S% (301 Ll (30¢ Ja1)
Interast inte dacrense of § 4% . 30 41 30 a9

Long-term Investments Sensitivity Analysis i

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of price risk in relation to long term investments held by
the Group:

25 April 2021

Equity

{Em)

Share arice inciense of 0% 58
Shore price decrease of 10% i

e, Liguidity Risk

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of
the Group's nen derivative liabilities and foreign currency derivative financial instruments:

Insome Stotement Equity
25 Aprit 24 apl 25 april 28 april
208 2010 102 2020
(Em} m] {€m) {Em)
Starling strengthens by 10%
US Dallar a1 e 1tz 134
Euro 214 151 09 ]
Sterhing weakens by 10%
Us Daliar 59 {340y 03 115 a}
Eua 108 034 n3a a5 4]

Interast Rate Sensitivity Anulysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to o 0.5%
increcse or decrease in interest rates, assuming all other variables were unchanged.

The analysis has been prepared using the foilowing assumptions:

*  For floating rate assets and liakilities, the amount of asset or liability outstanding at the balance
sheet date is assumed to have been cutstanding for the whole year.

= Fixed rate financial instruments that are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate
risk for the purpose of this analysis.
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Lessthaniypear  1telysan  ZieSysans OverSywams Total
(Em) {Em) 1£m) 1&m] Lm}
wen

HON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIARILITIES
Bonk loans ond cverdrafis - mag - - 5%
Bank louns and ovardrafts mberest - 9.5 - - 9.9
Trade and other payables 6461 - - - [
IFRS 16 Lease s 1966 ni 1968 6709 e

FINANGIAL INST
Cosh inflows {396 5) 1#66.9) {80 &} - 11.244.0)
Cash outflows 3891 7989 815 - 12605
;111 140.5 " 5109 2564.6
030

NON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIARILITIES
Bonk igans and overdraks - ui30 - - $00.0
Bonk iaans and pverdralts interest - 13.2 - - 1.2
Trada and other payubles 6025 - - . §02.5
IFRS 16 Lease habilihes 1467 1021 1982 7571 04

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS"
Cash llaws 11186 5] {467 &) . - (1640.7]
Cush outllows 12251 4848 - - 17009
T 19373 ”m.a a1 22004

“Excludes contingsnt cash flows

1d Carbon Captured through The Woodland Trost, nelping to cinale new Britsh woodlknd across the UK
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Capital Monogement

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
porent company, comprising issued share copital
{less treasury shares), shore premium, retained
earmngs and cash and borrowings.

It is the Group's policy ko maintain o strong
capital base so as te maintain investar, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain the
development of the business. .

in respect of equity, the Boord hgs decided that,
in order to maximise flexibility in the near term
with regards to a number of inorganic growth
opportunities under review, not to return any
cash by way of a final dividend at this time.

The Board is committed to keeping this poiicy
under review and to loaking to evaluate
methods of returning cash to shareholders when
appropriate.

The objective of the Share Scheme is to

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

encourage employee share ownership and to link
employee’s remuneration to the performance of
the Comuany. It is not designed as a means of
managing capital.

In respect of cash and borrowings, the Board
regularly monitors the ratio of net debt to
Reported EBITDA (Pre-IFRS 16), the working
capital requirements and forecasted cash flows,
however no mipimum or maximurmn ratios are set.
The ratio for net debt to Reported EBITDA (pre
IFRS 18] is G.5 {FY20: 0.7). The objective is to keep
this figure below 3.0 (FY20: 3.0).

Based on this analysis, the Board determines
the approgriate return to equity holders whilst
ensuring sufficient capital is retained within the
Group te meet its strategic objectives, including
but not limited to, acquisition oppertunities.

These capital management policies have
remained unchanged from the prior yeat.

52 weaks ended 52 weake amded

18 Apedl 2021 2t Apr 1020

|Em) {Em

Trode poyables 7783 076
Amounts owed ta relared undert shings 76 At
Oother toxes including soriel sacunty costs 362 78
Other poyebles 10 08 3
Accrugls 2252 174
sds) B0z

Included within other poyobles are amounts cutstonding in respect of gift cards and vouchers of

£28.8m {FY20: £40.6m).

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their

fair value,
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tronsaction between market participants
at the acquisition date. The leases were
acquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or leose
liobifity has been recognised on acqu

31.  ACQUISITIONS

i. ©n 22 August 2020, the Group acquired
the trade and assets of DW Sports for cash
consideration of £37.0m which is deemed
to be the fair value of the consideration,
The acquisition complements the Group's ii.
existing gym and fitness club portfolio and is
consistent with the Group's elevation strategy,
Goodwill represents the premium associated
with advantagecus site locations, potential
growth opportunities offered by economies
of scale, and the assembled workfarce, The
fair value adjustment to property, plant
and equipment relates to management’s
assessment of the price thot would be
paid for the acquired assetsin an orderly

on,

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Haldings Limited, the
entire share cupital of GRMNT Limited, and
the trade and assets of 18 Montrose (519%
awned) for considergtion of £2.7m. These
acquisitions will provide increased product
offerings in the 'Premium Lifestyle' division.
The fair value adjustment to property, plant
and equipment relotes to the recognition of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

The asset and liability values at acquisition are detailed below. We have reviewed the fair value of
the assets and ligkilities acquired. The following table summarises the fair values of
consideratien paid:

DW Eparts Ofhar
Hml {rm)
Cosh cangidaration 7o yai

DW Sports

Book value ..."u._u.ﬂﬂ__.ﬂ FoirValue  Bosk Vakis Pair Value

[ Ll i) fEm) ({Em) ftm)

Prauery, plant and equament " L2 no 1" 15 18
Intangible assets . 29 9 . - - -
rventuties iR 0y w 52 07 59
Cash ond cash equivplants - - - K] - [E]
Banuwing: - - 104} - 114
working copitl a3 . 03 108 - 1084
Legse - - 1)
Goodaa . a7 31 23 13
Borgon purcritse . - {31
Ngn-u ng inlergsts - . . - 1K)
Rt pssers acouied e w0 4f no s nn w7

The bargain purchase of £3.1m from the Other acquisitions has been recognised within cost of sales
within the period. The Goodwill arising on all acquisitions of £6.0m has been impaired to £nil as at
periad end with the impairment being recognised in Exceptional items, see note 6.

sraodland avrons Hie UK
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Since the date of control, the following amounts have been included within the Group's Financial 33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Statements for the period: .
atements for the perio The Group hod capital commitments of £87.1m as af 25 April 202126 April 2020: £318m) relating to

Acqulsitions DW Sperts Other Total warehouse development.
I£m) {€m) (L]
Ravenue 12 35 14 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Qperating [Losshiproht 1153 (k] nay}
(LOSSVPROFIT BEFORE TAX 5.2 03 1 The Group hos taken advantage of the exemptions contained within tAS 24 - “Related Party

Disclosures” from the requirement to disclose transactions between Group companies as these have

Had the acquisitions been included from the start of the period the following amounts would have been eliminated on consolidation

been included within the Group's Financial Statements for the period:
The Group entered into the following moterial transactions with refated parties:

Aequiritions DW Sparts Other Tetal
1Em) tEm 1em 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
Ravenue 150 83 243
Oparating loss 147 F] 1129) Trade Trade
Ruletiomhlp Salw Pweshases and sther and sther
LGOS BEFORE TAX a7 L8] {148 . ecaivables payabies
. [T " ; {Em) (Emi (Em) {Em)
There were no contingent liabilities acquired as a result of the above transaction.
RELATED PARTY
3 SH INFLOW FROM OPERATING AC  Four {Holdugs) Limited & subsidianes Assocate 22 411 .5 01
- Mash Halcings Limvtad Purent . - 02 -
COMIpony
52 wanks ended 52 weeks snded
25 April 202t 26 April 1010 Mk Ashley Plc Gwactor 11 - - -
£
feml L] N M Design Londan Limited Cannected - o1 - -
Profit before taxation s u3s Fersons
Net finance costAimcomet - 7z nn MM Prop Consultoncy Limited nazwm-”““ - 25 - 5
Net investment lincornebicost . 196 0) 346 L
Share of losses of u ing - %9 Newcastle United Footbalt Club Limitad & 5t James Heldugs nnm_wmhwﬂ.“ 02 a1
Four value gain on step ocquisition - (20 A} -
CPERATING LOSS)/PROF] - 1$0.3) o1 Rongers Retal Lirited Associate - . o1
Depraciatian of property, plant and syupment ) 2985 3810
Depraciation an nvestment properties 19 33 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020
Gam on disposal and morddication/remeasurement of lanse liabilk es 1277 w9 .
Amortisation of mtang ble assets n LLE] Trade
Sulatiomhip Sales  Purchases  and sther
Imptwment of tangie and intangible assets and svestmant prapariies 261 90 vecaivables
Pralit on disposal of praparty, plant ond equpment 1971 15421 (Em em) m
Prafit on dispasal of intangible assets 75 - RELAFED PARTY
Gaim an burgain purchase Z Faur (Holdings) Limited & subsicharies ' Associata 1 425 38 24
OPERATING CASH INFLOW BEFORE CHANGES IN APITAL 5153 o) -
rent
[incresel / decrease w racuivables | {136 &) 735 Mash Holdurgs Linuted company - o2 -
Dcrease / fincreass] o invantories 9931 nzo sl e ety - o Drorter 0 - - -
increasa in poyables 649 618
Connected
Increase / {dacraosa] in pravisions 254 s 1 Newzostls United Faatball Club Limited & $1 James Heldings Umited hersoms 07 20 o 20
CASH INFLOWS FROM GPERATING ACTIVITIES B £ 4383 -
Hangers Retar Limitad Assecrate - - - o1
1 The outste bolonce with Four (Holdings) Limited reflects the funding related to Agent Provecolaur Monagam cansider th erlying
results of Four [Holdings] Limited supports the recovarability of tha recaivables balunee The resuits of Four [Holdings) Limitsd are not matenal or
the basis of net ssets and proht before tox, subsequently dstalsd diselosuras have et been presented under IFRS 12,
2} Use of the Company jet and helicopter are charged al commareiu ratus
) %] The sules relare Lo wwentary and purchoses Includh the reversol of the FY0 adverlising charga
109
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An agreement has been entered into with
Double Take Limited, a company owned by
Mash Holdings Limited in which Matilda Ashley,
Mike Ashley's daughter, is a director. Under

the agreement, Double Take Limited licenses
the Group the exclusive rights to the cosmetic
brand SPORT FX. During the period a review
has been undertaken and no royalties or other
fees are expected to be payabie to Double Take
Limited for these rights until at least September
2021, the fee arrangement will continue to be
reviewed on an ongoing basis, no provision is
reguired in the financial statements. It should
be noted that the Group {rather than Double
Take Limited) owns the rights to SPORT FX for
clothing, footwear and sports eguipment.

N M Design Lendon Limited a company in
which Nicola Murray, Michael Murray's mother,
is @ director, perform design work for the Group
in relation to some of the Group's sites.

A pr n was made in FY20 for £2.0m
payable to Newcastle United Football Club, this
was reversed in FY21.

The trade and other receivables balance with
Four (Holdings) Limited includes an unsecured
loan balance of £60.0m (gross of amounts

recognised in respect of loss allowance)

which attracts interest at a rate of 3% within
current assets. This has been accounted for

at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 9
The carrying velue has been determined by
assessing the recoverability of the receivable
balance, discounted at an oppropriate market
rate of interest. £4.7m was recognised in the
year in respect of doubtful debts. Further
disclosure can be faund in note 22,

The sales amount in relotion to Four {Holdings)
Limited relates to the interest charge on the
loan and the purchases relate to the purchase
of clothing products.

At the period end the Group does net have
significant influence over but holds greater than
20% aof the voting rights of Studio Retail Group
plc and Muiberry Group ple. Studic Retail Group
ple have disclosed transactions with the Group
as a related party within their most recent
Financial Statements. Transactions between
Studic Retail Group plc and the Group related
to normal commercial trading arrangements
and are not considered material to the results
of the Group. The latest equity amounts and
results are shown below:

Mulbariy Grupplc  Shudic Retdil Group plc

. Paried apded 11 March  Pariod epded 26 March

00 0

Share Copital 1a 487
Shetta Pramium w2

Other Resarvas. az a9

Retained sumings 70 53

Total wquity n4 5]

PROKIT FOR THI FERIOD: 14 0

The Group does not consider it has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the entities ond so management do not consider the Group to be able to exert
significant influetice over these entities as per JAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

and |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

1o
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Key Manag . Executive And N, ive Director Comp i
25 Apeif 1324 26 Apeil 2000
temy e
Salurnes Short term brane!its 13 15
Snare-s 1 payinents -
Other puynents B a3
TotaL 13 s

Key management personnel are considered ta
be the directors and members of management
who play a key part in the long term strategy
and operations of the Group.

MM Prop Consultancy Limited, a company
owned and controlled by Michael Murray, who
is o member of key managasment persenne!

as per IAS 24, continues to provide property
consultancy services ta the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the Worid for
both eur larger format stores and our combined
retadl and gym units but it also provides advice
to the Company’s in-house property team in
relation to existing sites in the UK, Europe and
Rest of the World.

In the year al! properties are assessed and
those that ore considered by the Group's
independent non-executive directors to have
completad development and be eligible for
review at the year-end are assessed and if
required valued by an independent valuer
who confirms the value created by MM Prop
Consultancy Limited. The Group's independent
non-exacutive directors then review and agree
the value created and have full discretion to
approve a poyment to MM Prop Consultancy
Limited of up to 25% of the value created.
There is a current pipeline of properties that
may be eligible to be assessed both positively
ond negatively by the Group's Non-executive
directors in future years.

and across the LK

In the current year £2.5m has been accrued

based on 25% of the value created on two

properties where the gain has crystallised -

through contract exchange or completion

of sale [FY20 -~ £nil provided ond £nil paid,

MM Prop Consultancy Limited was last paid .
in relation to FY19). This is payable to MM

Prop Consultancy Limited cnd agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the period the Group entered into an
agreemant with M.P.M Flevation Limited, a
compony owned and controlled by Michoel
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M.P.M Elevation Limited will be poid an annuai
fee of E0.1m in relotion to the provision of the
elevation stroteqy services [FY20: £nil).
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35. VULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The Group is controlled by Mike Ashley through
his 100% shareholding in Mash Beta Limitzd and
Mash Heldings Limited, which own 303,507,460
{58.44% of the issued ordinary share capital

of the Company] and 26,492,540 {510% of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company)
ordinary shares respectively at the period

end. MASH Holdings Limited is the smallest

and largest company to consolidate these

accounts. MASH Heldings Limited is registered in -

England and Wales and a copy of their financial
statements can be obtained from Comparies
House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ.

36. POSTBALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the cggregate
purchase price of ali shares acquired unde- the
programme to be no greater than £60m and the
maximum number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of
10p each. The purpose of the programme was
to recluce the share capital of the Company.
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquirec
through this programme. .

On 21 June 2021 the Group commenced on
irrevacable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
June 2021 and ends on the day of reporting full
year FY21 results. The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programmz=
were no greater than E60m and the maximum
number of shares tc be purchased were 10m
ordinary shares with o nominal value of 10
each. The purpose of the programme was t2
reduce the share capital of the Company. In total
to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each far
consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme.

m

_
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The Board is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEQ rofe from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

It is cusrently proposed that Michael Murray

will assume the role of CEQ on 1 May 2022.

A reward and remuneration pockage is now
under considerction on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEQ role. Any reward
and remuneration pockage will be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is tronsforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers und cur brand partners,
especially on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021,

The Board consider it appropriate that Michael
ieads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey.

Shouid Michael Murray assume the CEQ role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEO role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
as un executive director.

st woodiand across the UK
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37. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

NAME REGISTERED OFFICE COMPANY  PERCENTAGE OF I55UHED SHARE
ADORERS NUMBIR CAPITAL HELD
18 Moniross Rato! Limited Shirebraok’ 1577636 75
- Faurth Flaor Terento Sauare
5 Pointz Lirmitad [tn hauidation) Toronto Street Luads L$12H. on £950314 o
23 Apnl 2020
Actvotor Bronds Limited Shicabrook! 5344658 100
Activator Progcts Limitad Shirsbrogk” 410461 we
Cogency Gigbal nc 850 New
Active Apparel New Carp Bufton Road Suite 20t Dover 1270164 100
Deloware 19904; USA
alpha Develgpments Stotkport Ltd Shirebraok! 12662564 0o
12th Floor, Menara Synphony
Ne 5, Jaton Semangat (Jalan
Professor Khoo Kay Kimi,
AP Brands Holdings Ltd Celayan 12 46700 46300 100
Pecaling Jaya, Selongor Dgrul
Ehsan, Malaysa )
Chinch's Hause. Lord Streer,
Bullotrx Assacwatus Linited Oouglas, isle of Man, IM95 1RZ, me2Ic 00
Isle of Man
Clinck's House, Lord Straat,
Betlotrix Oyerseas Limitéd Douglos, Iske of Man, IMI9 1RZ, 128827C 100
Isle of Man
Ciench's House, Lerd Street,
latrix Unlimited Douglas, Isle of Man, M9 1RZ, METOC 1
Isle of Man
Blua Squore Seles Limited Shuebrock: 1862691 00
" The Gorporation Frust Company,
Corporation Trust Center, 1209
Balr's Skares USA LLC Crange Streat, Wirmington, New 639085 o
Castle Caurty DE 9801,
United States
Laopoldstraat, ne 79, 3800 .
Brands & Fastan NV Mecholen, Bolgum D477-895-817 [CE]
Brands 001 Linwted Shebrok © 5347540 W
rands Alnca Limitad Shirebrogk: #R3STES W00
Brands Holdings Limited* Stirebreck " 4DBI4I5 0
Brands toldiags Sponsorship Limited Shwebinole 10175418 100
Brandis In¢ Limited Shwebioak' 3585119 W
Brasher Leisure Limited Shirebrack" o941 N
BSL infernational Limvted Shirebrack ! 2800425 e
. Wi Central de Mithewras ni 121,
- 4475-124, Frauena da Mithanos,
Cohce - Comercio de Artigos de Desportos S & Conati e Mg, Porten 503751604 w0
Partugol
Compn Limited Shirebrogle' 5398677 0o
C ¢ Puerta Veneoo, lacaf 84,
Cordinal investinents $1 Teav, Jardinies Reates, 7, 50021 BABS42766 100
Zaragoza, Spain
Carlton Shutlezocks Limited Shirebrock " 480582 oo
Cariton Sports Company Limited Shirebraak " 461686 . 100
| €CPueitavenec, local B4,
Cotrinona Investments S L Trav. Jordmes Reales, 7, 50021 B8BA42682 100

farageze, Spon
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Fare, Industnel, Avenue Eenast,

CDS P 5A Salvay 29 1480 Saintes, Belqum 06attor 100
Cira Citteno Brands Limited Shirebraak’ 116590676 00
Commumty Bug Limited Shirebrook £2460040 wo
Crminal Glothing Limiterd Shirebrook - 84750 0o
Marlin Hause, 184 Ingrarn Street.
Cruise Clothung Limited Glangaw Scotland, G 1N 50382001 100
CC Puertp Venecia, locnl 84,
Curlna investments § | Frov Jardines Realey, 7, 50074 BBHMGIEY 0o
Zurageze. Spoin
David Guoftrey & Assoceates WG Lunted Shiehiook' 670530 100
Design Saurce Supply Limited Sturabronk 9636568 w00
Mhnk Digital Holdings Litvited Shirebeook RULELIEY 100
Dink fhgital Cimited Shisebroak” 072685 G0
Direct Fistung Limitect Shirebrook! 8303469 0o
Direct Gall IP Limted Shirebrook” 9911086 100
Trect Galt Reta Limted Shirabrook” 815889 h 100
Leopoldstraal ne 749, 600
Dutiney interietional NV Mo helar, Belyum 235297220 100
Unit 19538 4 1905, Exchange
Iowes, 33 Wong Ch Rood,
Eostchance Limted Kaploaon Bay, Kowlaan, 174345 0L
! . Hong Kong
First Floor Lo Chasse Chambers
Epoch Properes Limded St Helier JEZ 4t Jarsey 74751 100
Etull Services Limited Shirghrook! 5146997 100
Evans Cycles Brands Limted Shirebroak’ 1634915 o
tvens Cycles Limited Shirabrook” nsIEs0 100
Evans Cyrlas Proparty Limitad . Shirabirook” N834a3y W
Everlast Australia Limitest Sluralwook' 03912 100
Evarlost 43 West 19th 5t 3rd
Cverlast Sorts Intenational ine Carp, Floor New York, New Yok, 10018, 13-7811380 100
Uni Stotes
Corporation Sarvice Carmpany
80 tate Strent, Albary. "
Eveddast Sparts Mig Carp New York, Taz307-2543, 131804772 100
Uited States.
Corporation Service Company
Everluct Wond Bosng Headguaners Corporotinn BO State Street, Albany, New 13184773 100
York, 122207-2543, Unated States
The Corporation Trust Campany,
Corporation Trust Canter, 1209
Everlost Worldwichs Inc Qrange Straet, Wilmington, New 13:36727% 06
. Castle County DE 19801,
Linied Stotes
Exspants Lirnited Shirebrook " 779040 100
Feruger And Btorkburn Limited Shirabraok” 539554 100
FG |AF Heldings] Limited Shirebiraok! 12281982 100
FG USA Tmde Groyp Limited Slurehraok’ 13216390 100
/0 Duff & Phelps L
the Choncery 58 Spring
Field & Trek {UK) Ltd [ Gordans, Manchester, Greatar 5627577 00
Manchester, M2 1EW,
United Kingdam
Shirebiraok ' HBI6ABA wo

wowdifand aoross the UK



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Forever Media Limited

Shirebrook'

8249185

0o

Internotigral Brand Manonemant Limited* Shirabrosk” 5142121 100
Forever Sports Limited Shirabrook * 9489811 100 investing Business Limited Shirebrook! 1780314 100
Frasers Graup (Evropean Holdings] Li Shaabrook' 17903845 100 Jack Wils [tP) Limited Shirehrask” N775495 100
Frasars Group Financiol Services Limited Shiralirook 13191369 100 Jack Wills Proparty Limted Shirebrook 1775643 100
Frasers Graup Loyalty Services Linited Shireliroch’ 13340637 00 Heaton House, (DA Business
Jack Wills Retanl el ) Limited Pork, Whitestown, Tailoght, 656208 100
reashield Lirnited Shirebruck ' 6330786 100 Db, Ireland, DZAESA2,
Game AK Limited Basingstoke: 10142852 il Juck Wills Retail Lirited Sivrubrook™ 11634810 100
Guma Belong Limited Shirebrock: 12794477 100 James Lillywhitas Limited Shirgbroak" 18840 100
Game Cigital Holdings Lirmitea Basingstoke ! 7893832 08 Kangol Holdings Limited Shirabroak™ RRIPFEL] 100
Game Digital Limited Basingsroke' 5040213 100 kangal Lireuted Shirabrogi * 2343792 100
Game Digitel Salutions Limited Basingstake 9476209 100 Kangal Trustees Li i Shrebrookt 1505512 100
Game Esports and Everts Lumited Besingstoke' ! 254730 100 Atrunaka Kudan Buildng 6/F,
= Karrimar International 1147 Kudankita, Chiyada-ku, QI00-01-012124 E
Game Retad Limited Hasmgstoke 7837246 100 Tokyo, 102-0073, Jopon
Some Spain Holdings Limited mnu.:mmgrm:. 0846707 100 Karmmer Limted Shirghrack’ 5215974 a0
Game Spamn Investments Linited Basingstoke' ! 10863881 100 Kansington Health Clubs Limited Shirsbrack! 5021489 100
&f Virgihe 7 - 9, Parcelas 12 - 13, - a8 )
Gaine Stores Ibena SLU Pozueto du Alarcon, Madid, 581205751 00 ¥eoGa P Linited Shirebruck L 0o
9 L Julio WK} Limited Shiebrook * 5737550 100
Gelert |P Limitad Shirgbroak™” 8576185 160 Lupushift Limited Shirebroak * 8146743 100
Galert Lonited Shirebrovk 8576204 00 Lillywhites Luwwtad - Shirebrook 350935 100
Urst 19038 & 19085, mun:nq:mnm Litesome Sportswear Limitad Shiuebrook! ' 207857 100
Tower, 31 Wong Chiy Road, "
Global Apporel (HK) Limvtad Kowloon Bay, Kawloon, ez o0 Lonsdale Australia Limitad Shirebrook 1665885 oo
Hang Keng
Lonsdate Boxing Limited Shirabrook" 3912303 100
Gelddigga Brands Limited Shirebrack™ 6636173 w00
Lonsdale Sports Limited Shirebirack!' 4430761 100
€C Puerto Veneaa, local 84,
Gotuy Investments 5 L Trov Jurdines Reales, 7, $0021 BBH542709 60 Lowall Sporis (Heldings) | mnited Sherebrock™ 9608995 100
Zaragaza, $POIN Lovell Sports Limited Shirebrock” 4184358 100
Graduate Clathing Limited Sturgheagh 251038 €1 Lovells SP Lirmitad Shuebrack! BOOIS09 100
GRMNT Ltd Shrabrock 4403 190 Masters Holdars Linvied Shirabrack” e 100
Bert Haanstrokade 2, 10B/DN, )
GT-Lines BY Armstardam, Metharkands 17117820 00 Midtawn Ltd Shirebrook 9467597 w00
. The Corporatian Trust Company,
® " 86124 100
Gul 1P Limited Sturebroo) 2438 _ Corporation Trust Centar, 1209
Gul Watersparts Litmited Sturebrook! 2589715 100 Mississippt Manutactuning LLC Orange Strest, Wilmington, New 3470013 w00
Castle County DE 19801,
PO Box BT1SEX, 5th Floor Lesley Unitad States
Heatons {N 1) Limited Bulldings, 61-65 Fountam Street, NID35559 100 A
‘Ballast, Northern lrelond The Corporation Trust Company,
Carparatian Trust Center, 1209
. Heaton House, 1A Business Muountan Sports LLC Orange Shreat, Wilmuington, New 63B6374 WO
Keaqtons Storas Limitad Park, Whitastown, Tallaght, 509535 08 Castle County DE 19801,
Dubhn, relend, D2AE932, Unitad Stotes
Heuloh House, DA Business The Carparation Trust Company.
Hegtons Unlimited Coimpany Park, Whitestown, Tallaght, M2 104 Comoration Tryst Ganter, 120%
Oubhn, Ireland, D24E932, Mountom Sports USA LLC Orange Straet, Wilmingtan, Nev 124259 100
Castle County OF 19801
Hadaven or Hell Limited Shirebrook” 5899281 100 Lritett Stotes
HK Sports & Golt Aktiabolag - | Eskoltarprvagen 2, 169 96, 5565108189 00 Muddyfox IP Limitad Sturebrook™ 0746764 100
Bastad, Sweden
Vrutelsfon ' mied Sinduron HETI )
Heaton Houss, DA Business
HOF Ireland Stores Limited Park, Whitastown. Talleght, 626384 Newea IR Limited Shirabrook' 6836778 w00
Dublin, Irsland, D24E932
No Fear Brand Lirmted Shirebronk'* 5568043 00
Hot Tuno 1P Limited Shitabrook £636792
No Fear International Limited Shurebronk 5532402 100
House ol Frasar Brands Limite Shirebioak! 10687367 100
No Fear USA Limited Shirebrogk'" 2410 0o
House of Fraser Limited . Shirebrook” 10686581 100
ORI-NI Limited Shirebrook! 1635034 00

13
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Olympus Ventums Limited Shirebraok 45752 16 St Flogr, Lestey Buildings,
S014Bollymanal Limited &1-65 Fauntan Street, Belfast, NIE5IEZS 108
P W P Sportbose Limited Shirebrook 33691 oy . Morthern reland. BT1 5EX
Paddle Sport Limited Shiretuaok: 6816690 wo 501 (Bangor} Limited Shirebrook 552570% 100
Acodemy Houye, 36 Poland SDI {Borraw i Furness) Limitad Shirabrock! 1574 o
FOD Callechian Services Limited Sueat. Landon, WIF 7LU, 3918495 100
. United Kingdom SOI{faliost) Limited Starabrook” g872471 100
PropeTler (UK | Lummted Shreprock 2770207 00 SO MBerwick] Limted Shirebroak ™ 2739951 100
Psyche Holdiigs Limited Shieabrook 03238665 0 S0 (Bevws y-Caed) Limitsd Shurebraok’ 6816673 n0r
Psyche Limiteg Shirsbrook 0284401 o0 SO0 {Birkenhead Limtegt Shwrebrook 7849158 100
utfa P Limitad Shirebreiok 090128 mo SOI Bshnp Auckland; Lmied Shirebroak 1004245 100
Gueensberry Boxing IP Limited Shirstraak 7925363 00 5D [Brands 1| Limnited Shirehrook " 1795958 100
Queensherry Rules Limited Shirebroak' 6722660 WH1 S0 {Brands 21 Limiteg Slwrebrgai ! 17249584 oo
C.C.Puerto Vengan, local B4, SOI [Brands 3 Lnmten Shirebrook 12299567 100
Quentin Invastments S 1 Trov Jardines Reales, 7. 50021 BBA542733 0o
Zaragara Spon 501 (Brands 2] Lmitea 12799515 100
Cuiekraply Limited Shirebroak” 5604727 0 SDIBridgwater) Limited 7852061 155
Repubhc IP Lirytad Shirebwosie 5635015 100 SOI [@nghtont Limiked Shrebraalc 17579280 109
Repubhe com Ratail Limitad Shrebraok 8248957 100 SDI [Brimton! Lunted Shirebroak ! 9127300 100
Rhapsody investmants |Euwaps] SA 1Cate n.rm.:., L1450, 821 60x w00 SO Brogk By Limi] Soretroch M 20
ukembourg SEM {Bravk ROWI Limitad Shwrabrack” 9736806 1oo
Robmsons Country Lensure Liemled Shirebrook 1204722 0o ol ook U] Lemed Shirebragk - 2320174 o
388 Brands Lrmred Shrabrack 635565 00 501 (Burtan Limiled Shureleaok” 495632 00
. 5 Sports [S61 PTE LTD ReruoL e P ATh SGAROAE 198203096N a0 SO (Card i Flanneh] | emted Shirebiroole 77359 100
048679 SO Card I Q81 Limited Shirebroak 17578045 100
5D (ketail Co 10 Limuea Shirebrock” TeeIne o 501 [Curhsle) Limited Shirabraak 7BA19S8 160
SD IRetail CoTlj Limitad . Shiebronk” 12290852 100 SO (Chatharn Linited Stiraviock * 6826679 100
SD (Retail Co 1) Lemed! Sturabrook” 12298797 an SUICheshimt 2} Limited Shuabragk’ pra— 00
S5 [Retenl Co 3} Limated Sheebrock. 12298767 100 <DI fChgshunt] Limited Sturebromt ~ 1775599 00
SD [Ratal Co 4} tumted Shieabroakt 63501 100 S0 (Chunal Onling Linited Shirebrock” 10246762 100
5B IRetail Ca7) Limilad Shurehrook™ 1687276 100 [P — Shrabroo 1857078 00
SO Retet Co 8] Limered . Shirahrook” neBzIzs 050 Sth Floar, Lastey Birlcings,
SDURetlCoRl L mied Shabrook netsr7 20 L it 811525 e o
SD Emstnan Limited Shubroak Be9750 0 SO (€ cachesrer] Linitecd Shireniock’ 5632/90 100
SO Gutdoor P timited - Sturabrook BE60252 0o S Corop] Liwtert Srebroon sasen s
S0 Outdoor Limited Shrsbrack” 8560750 10 501 ICorkl Limed Shirebrook ™ 175763 100
sDB2SA whﬁﬂ ,u,,%“..mw__umﬂ“.uuw.mmﬁmﬂ 964 188 00 401 (Coventryl bimited Shirebeook egi1z8 100
SOI{PIGPCo 135} Limged Shirebrook 11227937 00 S0+ (Barfigtan] mited Shirebrack 10515193 lon
SbI ISP Holdmgs) Limited Shorebiook 10662050 00 501 {erby) Limited Shrebrook’ FM31 loe
SOLAberdoan 2) Lunted Shrebroak 2575871 150 501 (Berry) Lituted 2.Mhzn.”"”mw,ﬂmm_”wuaw:muﬁmw NIB33340 10
5D (Aberdeen} Lmited Shirebrock! 513542 100 Nerthern irelonrd BT1 SEX
SO {Aberiystwythj Limited Shirebrock™ 2789996 no SO {Donecstert | imited Shirebirook 5888670 oo
SDI{Acgea 5t Limited Shirubrask 10162604 0o SOI [Bundles) Limted Shrebrauk 02004 oG
S0t |Auntree) Limited Shrebrook 1352461 100 S01 Duntermbnel Limitad Shirebroak 8483679 100
S0 (Ashford) Limited Shirghrank * TBABAG0 0o mm, (East Humt Limited Shirebraok 980978 100
SBI {Ashingten; Limited Shirebrook” 7849231 00 SD1{East Kilbreiel Limitea Shuretirack® E56368 100
SO0 [Ayt] Linted Shirebraak 5528267 00 SoNEdwbuight Limited Shirebroak 10100550 100
SDI [Enheldll Linited Shirebrook: 10086204 100
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SOHFulhami Limited Shurebrook: 1852037 100 5D (Newton Abbot} Shirebinoke’ 6836666 100
Dt [Gansborough) Limited Shirebiook: 6338907 0o SDIINFSK) Limited Shirebrook - 10919102 100
5DI [Galoshmls) Limited Shirebiaek! ) 7852091 o 5D [Northampton] Limted Shirebroake" 7850271 100
501 [Glasgow Fort} Lumted Shwrebicok FBEE04 00 SDI [Northwich) Limited Shirehraok® 5656255 100
SDI [Glosgow Frasers) Limited Shirebrook ' N531595 L) S01 [Nattinghum| Limied Shirebrook! 10100669 100
SDI [Glasgow Ingrom Streath Limned Shirebrogk 9925519 o 501 [Nuneaton) Limited Shrebraok ! 7852249 100
S0 (Glourestar) Limited Shirebrook 852067 00 SOl [Oswestoy} Lumited Shirebrook " 2363 100
501 [Great Yareauth) Limited Shrebreok - 132687 - 100 SDI [DxfordStreet HOF] Limited Shirebraok 7976784 100
501 [Hanieyl Limitad Strrebrook: 11228017 100 S0 [Oxford Street) Lunited Shirebrook OABOBE 100
501 [Hustings] Lemited Stwrebrack’ 8625193 100 501 [Panzance| Limited Shirebrook 7852297 100
S0 [Herelord) Linuted Shirebrook ! GBASA 4D e SDI [Peteriae} Linuted Shirehrook 7R52401 100
S0 [Hofco) Limited Shvrebrook * BII9960 00 S0 [Plymouth Flannelst Limted Shurabragk™ 9127387 100
S04 [HoH Haldings] Limited Shirebrook 10161592 00 501 {Plymouth] Limitsd shirebrogk* 9470468 100
DI [Hounslow) Limitat Shirebraok' 10086118 00 SDI [Portsmauth] § imited Shirebrook - 12579294 100
SO [Hallt Limited Shirabraok’ 9636564 100 SO [Prestan) Limuted shirebraak™ 10915199 100
SDIIpswich 2} Limited Shirebraak! 12578948 100 SBI |Projo 1001 Limiled Shirebroak' 11732700 we
S [ipswicht Linited Shirsbrook™ STE8AT1 100 01 {Propza 101} Limited Shirehrogk * 1773466 100
SO [Isla of Manl Limited Shirebraok ™ 9901755 100 SD1{Propco 102) bimited Shurebraok* 1775629 100
SDI [Jersey Holding] Limted Shirebrook' 0177028 100 $01 {Propco 105} Limited Shirebrock" 1775597 190
501 [K Lynn) Limited Shirebrook™ 0073076 100 SDU{Proace 107} Limited Shirebirack’ 175206 100
SDI {Keighley) Lirmited Shirebrogk: 6260239 00 SDH {Propro 1H] Limuted Shirebrook" 1775722 100
5Dt [Kendal] Lirnted Shirebrock: 633B918 100 SD1 {Propeo112] Limited Shirebrook” FUTIED 100
SDI [Kentish Town) Limited Shirebroak: 9901702 160 501 {Propco 11] Lemited Shiretirack’ 12298708 06
SDI {Kiddermnstart Limited - Shirehraok 9203731 100 501 {Propca 115] Limited Sturebiack! 12360052 100
SOI {Kilmarnock) Limited Sturetiaok FH53433 100 SDI (Propco 116 Limited Shirsbirach’ 12332460 100
501 {Kingston) Limited Shuretiach' 10915209 w0 SDI (Prapco 117) Limited Shirebrook 12332456 100
SDI{Kitkealdy) Limitad Shiretirooh 52097 00 SDI tPropea 118 Lirmde, Shirabrook" 12337859 100
SDl{Leeds) Limited Shirebrock 9391515 100 $U {Propco 19} Limited Shirshiack " 12332662 100
501 {Laicester] Limnitad Shirebirook' FINI0 100 SDI {Prapeo 125 Litnted Shirebrock " 12572378 W00
SOI {Liverpoal) Limited Shirebrack’ 3BBATSY 100 S0t (Propeo 131) Limited Sturebrook 9127266 100
SBI {Lowestah] Limited Shirabrock” 7B52265 100 SDI {Propco 133} Limited Shirzprook! 8972439 100
SDVLSL Holdwgs) Lirited . Shirebirock 10181824 w00 SO [Prapea 134) Limited Sturabrook " 9625631 100
DI (Manchastur Clisathom Hil) Limited Slrebrock HNDGIES 100 S0I {Prapea 1371 Lirmitect Sturebraok” nza7n 0
SDI [Manchester Dlentan} Limited Shirehrock * 9127295 100 DI (Propeo 35 Limited Shirebrook” 500282 160
SDI [Market Road) Limited . Shirebrack' 10899247 00 S0 [(Propco 36) Limited Shirebroak " 11523336 100
SDI [Meddllesbrough] Limited Shirabrook ' 00RIS0T 00 SDI [Frapeo 37) Limited Shirebrack 11523343 100
SDI [hgsssu Street) Limited Shirebroo) 11227964 w0 50| [Propco 38) Linited Shirabrook 1523424 00
S0l fiNeathi Limited 7853548 00 SOI [Propue 39) Limited Shirsbrook 11523440 v 0o
SDI [Newark] Lirmeted 7853470 w0 SDI |Propeo 40] Lunited Shirabroak ' 11523489 . W00
SDI {Newcastlsl Lunuted 9127286 100 SOI {Propeo 41) Lumited Shurabronk!! 11523621 00
SDI {Newport IOW] Lid Shirabroak™” 12578944 100 SDI {Propro 43] Lirted Shurabrook™ 1571953 100
SD{ (Newport] Limited Shurebrtok’ #E29118 160 SDI{Propeo 43) Lirmited Shiabroak™ 11523509 100
S0 (Newguay] Limited Shirabrook! 10085800 Ri+) SDi{Propco 44) Limited Shirebronk! ' 11523608 00

5th Floor, Leddey Baldings, . SDI{Propco 43) Limited Shirebrook! 1523654 00
SO [Newry) Limited 61-65 Fountoin Strest, Belfosr, NI653355 160

Northern Iraland, BT 5EX SDI {Propco 46) Limited Shirebrook" 11523748 100
13 .
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SGI{Prapco 47) Limited Shirebrook ! 1530370 00
SDI [Fropeo 481 Limited fin hqwdotient Torom M.H.«mﬂ_uw Squm 1829759

SD1 [Propea 49 Limited Shirebronk 1526115 100
SO1(Prapeo 501 Lumited Shirebrack” 1536187 "o
5D1{Prapco 1) Limited Shaabrook’ 1517237 e
SDI [Prapao 53 Linited shirebragk 11526972 00
SDI [Fropro 54} Lumited Shirehrook' 1577149 100
SDI(Prapeo 55) Loted Snrabrack ' 11527303 0o
S0t {Propea 58] Limted Shirabreck " 11527362 me
SDI [Propes 571 Lirnited Shirehraok ' 1527300 100
S04 Propeo 58] Lamited Shicebraok’ 1527596

S01(Propea 53 Limited 4th Floor Toranta Square, 1527584 100

Terante Street, Lgads, LS1 2H)

SDI IPropeo £0) Limited Shirebrook 11531386 100
SDF [Propco 61 Limited Shirebrath 11531352 100
SUI (Propee 62) Limited Shirebrook' N531844 100
S04 (Prapca 63} Lamited Shirebrook' NsNS03 - wee
SDI {Propco 6d] Limited Shirebrack 11531506 wo
SOH IPropco 65 Luited Shirebraok 1531532 100
SV (Propea 67) Linuted Shirebrok” 1572676 100
S01(Prapce 68] Limitad Shirabrook: 572831 00
SDI{Propeo 69] Limited shrebrock’ ns72430 100
SDi [Propco 7] Limitad Shirebroak 1572933 00
SO (Propeo 7 Limited Shirebrook” 11574887 w0
5Dl {Propco 13) Limited Shirgnrook 11575050 19165
S {Fropco M) Limited Shirebrack N55051 \]
501 (Propco 73] Limited Shiebrook: 1577256 00
S0 {Propco 18 Limitad Shirebrook” ns7I6I7 00
5D [Fropeo 173 Limiced Shirebraok * ) N57B164 00
501 {Propco 861 Limited Shirebraokc® 1577670 00
SDI {Propco 8l Lmted Shirabrook: 1623 0o
501 {Propco 83} Limead Shirgbrook 11646302 106
501{Prapca 85} Limited Shirebrook 1649632 0
SD14Propco B8] Limited Shirebrock " 1164975 06
SO [Fropes 87} imied Shirebicck 1649336 w0
SO (Propco 88) Limited Shirebrank 1674753 00
S81{Propro B9) Lirmitad Shiratrook Medpiat 00
SDI |Propen 50) Limited Shirebrak™” 1645821 100
SO [Propeo 911 Lmited ‘ Shirebragk' 1687077 o
5D (Propco 92) Limited ) Shirehrook 1730204 100
SDI{Propco 93} rmited Shirebrook' 1730253 100
501{Propeo 941 Limned Shirebrook! 130440 100
5Dt [Propao 96) Limited Shirebrook’ 11730503 100
SDI (Propco 98) Lim Shirabtaok 11730868 100
SDItPrapeo 591 Limited Shirabrook” et

SO1{Ramsyotal Limited Shwehrgol 7851750 040
SOl [keading] Limtted Shirebrook 422164 100
DI [Redear] Lmited rebrook 2231452 o
S (Rotle St} Lirnrted 7857663 00
SO tRemfond: Limied W0OMEA7 00
SDI{Sphsbury] Lt Shitetrook” 10107547 ©10a
41l ISearbargughy Limted Shirebrook ' A12R463 00
S0 [Seunthorpe Panshes Centre) Limited Shiretraok " N0442 100
SDHScunthorpe) Limited Shirelyrook” 1852055 00
SO1S G [Pragrca 128 Linmbad Shirabraok’ 5388635 00
S0! |Southarmptan 2) Limted . Shirebroak' YEESEES 0
501 [Sauthainpton) Limited Shirebrook’ 4517480 100
SDE(southpert Limited Shurulrook " LLIEE 100
SDI¢St Ausefl] Limited Shuehrook! BSR4 100
$0I |5t Holens) Limntad Shirgbroak” 7852281 100
5D [Statfordh  mitedt Shirebreok ! 8568681 100
SD1 (Staunses] Limited Shiretruok® 826482 ]
SDI{Stockpoit) Limted Shiretiraok” 637218} 100
50! [Stoke Langton) Limited Snirabrook 7853877 100
S0 [Stoke Newangten] Lrmited . Shirebragk' ! 7852207 160
SO Srabunel mited - Shiralrook ™ 9850243 104
SDI{Streatham] Lirmited Shirebrook’ 13044315 100
501 4Strond) Lnnited Shirebrook’ 7857351 100
501 [Sunderland] Lamted Slyrenrook’ B755347 100
SOt (Sutton} Lamited Shirepraok 22801 100
S0 {Swandon| Limited Stre ook PEBAEE2 100
501 | Tallaght] wnited Seirshrook 10915203 - 00
DI (Taunten) L irated Shirenraok * 1852191 100
SDI (Thonet] Lunited Shireepok ! 12529034 100
SDItThe House Yarm| Limited Shuehrack’ 12330877 a0
301{The Linn Hotel] Limited Shirebrook 6816880 00
SO1{Thurroeh) Lirmted! Shirebrook W0IE 743 100
501 [Feowbniagal Limited Shereprook: 12355661 100
sb {uxariage 21 Limited Shirenrmod 127716 100
SO1{Uxbridael Limited Shirebrook Wit 100
01 (Waketwld) Linvted Shirebrogk 648371 00
S0I [Walsall) Lirited Shireprogk’ ' 852284 100
SDI (Walerd] tumited Shwebrook’ 6328505 0o
SOH {Wirines| Limited Shiebirook: 8576472 100
S {wigany IP Limited Shirebrook™ 6835407 100
SO Mgy Lirmrted Shirehrook! 12579287 100
501 [Wishawl Limsted Shirebrock” 6056365 1o
S0 Wrexham) Lenited Sharelyronk 10815260 - 00
SLH (Wythanshawe) Li - Shiebrook GHBGISA wo
SOH{Yeovi Limited Shirebrook’ 12577947 00
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SO {York) Limited Shurabrock 1331381 100

The Corporation Trust Company,

Corporation Trust Center, 1209
5012300 Collms LLC OrangeStreat, Wilinington, New 8/003 00

Castle County DE 19801, Unied

States

Tha Corporation Trust Company,

Carporation Trust Center, 1709
501735 Collins LLC Qrange Streel, Wilmington, New 8728 100

Castle County DE 19801, Unted

Stotes
501 Aviation Linited? Shirebrack:” 9633152 100
S0 Futness (Birmrgham] imted Shirebrogic ' 4038952 100
SDI Fitess (Bury St Edmynds) Limited Shirubraok” 9038545 100
$DI Fitness (Cheltenham) Limited Shirebrook 5039840 100
SO1 Fitess [Colchestor] Limited Shiretirack” 903901 100
SD1 Fitness (Cropclon] Limited Shirabirack ' 9019243 100
SD1 Fitnass (DW) Linted Shirebraok 12298794 100
SDI Fitnass (E psom} Linuted Shirebrook 9039043 100

Fourth Fluor Torents Square,
581 Fitness (Forehom) Lirmitae (n iguidution) Torames Straet, Luwds, L5 2H1 9039057 100
SDI Fitness (Formby) Limited Shirebrook: 5039895 0
501 Futness (Glasgow) Limied Shirabraok 503881 106
SOI Fitness fGouldford) Limited Shurebrook 9035269 100
SDI Fitness (Hovel Limited Shiretiraok: $039030 100
D Fatness Huntingdon) Lmited Shwrabrak” soa3H81 100
DI Fitness (K Heath) Limited ) Shirebrack’ 9039717 0o
DI Fatness 1K Lynn] Limitad Shirebrook 9039847 100
5DI Ftness (Kattaring} Livuted Shirebraok 9039852 100
S0 Fitness (Lincoln Cityl Limited Shirabrack 5039331 100
501 Fitness {Lincoln South West) Limited Shirstiracke 039319 100
501 Fitress (Liverpoal Liruted . Shirebrook 9039347 100
SDI Fitness (Munchester) Limiled Shirubrook’ 9034339 100
501 Fitress (Miingoviel Limited Shirsbrock 9039510 100
SDI Fitress INuwork) Limited [E—— 9039640 w00

fo Keonaclys, 10th Floor, River

; Houss, 48-60 High Street

b ) ,
DI Fieness [N Limited Balfast, Nocthern Ireland, B11 NI6F2014 100

ZBE. Uented Kingrom

oo Kennedys, 10th Floce, Rwver

Housa, 48-60 High Street,
SDI Fitness [N12) Lirmitad Bt NI672032 10

2BE, United Kingdom

</ Kermredys, 10th Flas, Ruver

House, 4850 High Street,
SDI Fitness (N1 3 Limited e A et Ni672035 w00

2BE, Unvtad Kingdorn

o Kennadys, 10th Flacs, River

) House, 48-60 High Strast,
S0l Fitness (NI 4 Lirnited Beltast, Northern Ireland, BT1 NI672885 0o

2BE, Unites Kingdorm

/o Kennedys, 10th Flaor, River
5D Fitness (N1 51 Limitad Heuse, 48 60 High Straat, Ni672684 100

Bellgst, Nerlhern ireland, 871
26E, Umtad Kingdom

17

50 Fitness (Narthfield) Limted 9039417 W00
SO Fitness (Rughy) Limited $039408 100
S0 Fitnass (Sale] Limited 5075405 00
5D Fitnass (5alisbury) Limted Shrebroak! 39429 00
SO Fatnass 1 Liutad Shiabrook™ 12371973 100
501 Fitness 10 Limued Shirebrook™ 12372368 00
501 Fitness 11 Limited Shiratyraok* 12810382 100
SO Fitness 12 Lemuted Shirabrack’ " ras70se 160
SDH Fitness 13 tumnted Shirebrook’ 12620585 100
SO Frtness 14 Lurated Shirehraok' 12020516 100
SDI Fitnass 15 Lam Shirebeaok" 12822245 100
SDI Fithess 1 Limitad 12827564 100
SDI Fithess 17 Limied Shirebroolk! 12832597 100
SDI Frtnass 18 Limited Shirebraok! 12822794 190
SDI Fitriess 19 Limited Shirebrook’ 12821856 100
SDI Fitiiess 7 Limitad Shirehrook™ 12372165 100
SO Fitness 30 Limitad Shirebrook” 12623728 00
SDI Fitness 71 | imited Sturebrook! 12823572 100
SO Fitriess 22 Limited Shirehrook” 12823510 100
SO Fitness 23 Lumited Shirabronk 12823786 100
S Ftness 24 Limited Shirabrovk’ 11823986 W0
SDI Fitness 25 Limited Shirebraok! 12823526 o
5D Frtnass 26 Limded Shirzbrook 12825248 100
SDI Frtness 27 Lunited Shirebrook' 1283041 100
SO Frness 28 Limited Shirebrook 12825356 100
5D Frenass 29 Limwed Sturehraok’ 12625569 100
500 Fitnass 3 Limited Stutalrook ! T 1237169 100
SDI Fitness 30 Limited Shirabrook” 12825721 100
D Fitness 31 Limited Sturebrook” 12930743 we
504 Fitnass 32 Luned Sturebrook ' 12930838 100
$Df Fitness 33 Limited Siurabrank® 12930826 100
SDI Fitness 34 Limited Shirebrook” 12930829 100
SDI Fitness 35 Limited Shirabrook 12930938 100
DI Fitness 36 Lirited Shirebrook™ 12930954 100
S0 Fieness 37 Limited Shirabrook” 12930544 100
5Dl Fitness 38 Limited Shurabrack 05038714 100
SDI Fiknass 39 Limited Shirabroak! G903B768 100
5Dl Fitoggs & Limited Shirgbrogk’ 12372174 100
5Dl Fitness 40 Limited Shirebrook™ %0388 100
S0 Fitness 41 Limited Shirabrook! 09038839 100
DI Fitness 42 Limited Shirzbrook 050316943 100
S| Fitness 43 Limited Shirehrook" 05039023 100
50| Fitness 44 Lomited Sirebrook" 09039343 100
S0I Fitiwss 45 Limited Stirebraok - 03039481 100
501 Fitnuss 46 Lanitad Shirebrook " 13030435 100

ted on Stenbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Caplured through the Woodland Trust, hetping to creats new Bntish woodiand across the UK
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The Carporation Trust Company,
Corperabion Trust Center, 1209

SDI Fitness 47 Lamiyes] Shirebrack:” 13030364 0o
SDI Fitness 48 Limited Shrrelsrook: 13030107 105
SOI Fitness 49 Limited Shirghrack 13030173 100
SDI Fitmess 5 Limited Shuretiroake 127099 Lob]
SDI Fitmass 50 Limited Shuehronk: 13030475 04
SDi Fitness 6 Limite Shirebrook! 12372224 1041
SDI Fitness 7 Limited Snirebrook” 123772218 on
S0 Fitness § Limited Shirebrook: 12372305 00
SDI Fitness 9 Limtad Shirgtirack 12372303 0o
SDI Four Limitert Shirahrook: 919719 0D
Tha Corporation Frust Gutnpony,
Corperotion Trust Center, 1209
501 Gtk Card LLC . Grange Streat, Wilmington. New S6773735 00
Custle County DE 19801,
United States
SDI Golf Limited Shirebrook!" 40B3S12 1o
The Cotparation Trust Company,
Corporatiun Trust Center, 1209
SO Hafdings USA imc Grangw Strect, Wimimpton, New £ES17D1 Wiy
Castle County DE 19801,
United States
SO! Lifestyle Lumred Snirabrook+ 4353614 01
. Corporation Serwce Company,
SOI Properties (USA} Inc. 2 Ofiice Purk Court, Suite 103 533877 100
Columbia
Van Kenynenburgweg 45,
SDI Praperty {Europet BY A672PL Bergen p Zooim AI04A2554 10ty
Netherlonds
SDI Property [Evans Cycles] Limitad Shirghrook | 1646213 00
SOU Property Lamtad® Shurebreok: 2367493 00
The Carpoeation Trust Cempany,
Corporgtion Trust Center, 1209
501 Praperty US Ine Orange Street, Wilmington, New 800024
Costle County DE 19807,
United States
5Dl Property LS Limited Shuebrook: 11322420 100
SO1 Retail Services Limited Shirebraok: 8143302 100
501 Sport Lendon Limited Shrebrook! YB4BTE? 109
SDI Sports {SC 2016 L1d Shurebrooke 429750 wog
SDI Sports {Staka) Limted Sharebrook 0163722 e
The Carporation Trust Company,
Corporgtign Frust Center, 1203
SDI Sports Group Amencas LLC Orange Street, Wilmington, New 2047393 10
Costie County (E 19801,
Urnted States
Tha Cerporation Trust Company,
Corporghion Trust Cetter, 1209
DI Stores LLE Oranga Street, Witmingtan, New 1240337 1)
Castle County DE 19801,
United States
The Carparation Trust Campuny,
Comparatian Trusk Canter, 1209
SDIUSALLC Orange Streat, Wilmmgtar, New 6385155 W
Costhe County DF 801,
Uited Statas

Franted on Stenbers TI0% Recye
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SOH Veritures LLG. Orange Straet, Wilmington, New 6B70027 100
Castla County DE 19801,
United Stotes
501 Property [Beburg) BY Netherlands B495R07 100
DI ot Fitness Parent Limited® Sturebrook * 9087454 w00
Parc ndustriel, Avenue Frivest.
e sa Salvay 79 WBO Sointas, Belgnm §10198 636 10
Sevan Stiong Limited Shirebsrook’ 7756304 100
Shellco A2 Lamited Shiebrook’ WHATA08 100
A Deglavo str 50 Ly-1-75 Rign .
4020311076 &0
554 SIG Logihes Latwa I
A Deglova str 50 1v-1-35 Higo
514 Sportland ot 40003510961 60
SIA Spartsdirect com A Deglava sir 50 Lv-1-35 Riga 20103933873 60
Latwa
Ski and Gurdoor Warchowse Limited Shebraok’ 97213 100
Skins 1P Livvted Shirabraok’ 12168568 a0
Werzmagat Caron IHoligs] Limuted Shurebroak 104630571 Wan
Slazaigers Austraia L ibed Shirgbrook™” 9217319 mo
Siczangers Limited - Shirebrook 116000 100
Smith & Brouks Limited 2072120 100
Smith And frooks Group Lamited Shuebrook Q7333 1041
Sruth And Bronks Holdings Limtert Shuebrook! 4583573 100
SND Sport Vert rebs GinbH Flugpltz:irafia 30, 600, We 21 m w00
Austria
1he Black Church , St Mary.s
i! rukae b "
Sole Manubicture reiand Limied ace, Dubin DO7 pAAX wetond 69523 100
Sota com Budeo | imited Shisbrook{l 9343958 100
N Flaas & ¥ 6, Den Dungen,
Sntacam v B275HI%, Notholnads 17198764 100
Satacom L Shirgbrook 5222498 w00
Sondica 1P Limited Shirabraok’ 6546121 w00
Semsort Lenited Sturebronk 4079888 W6
St Fybi & Sparts Experts Lagithbetricbs Gy FWIPIatastrale 30, .Sm.c”,”” N 95028 mm 100
Flugplatzstiafie 30, 4600, Wet:
Spurt Eytil Holding GmbH ugplatzstiabe 0, . els 180095 x W0
ustha
€25, 3rd Flaos, ASEAN Bulding,
90 Minzhy Avarug, Xinniu
Spartdirer t com Ching Pte Limited Community, Mingh Street, S14403005755H75030 100
Longhua Distnct, Shenzhen,
Chuna
Parnu mat 9 Kaskknng, ;
Sportiond Eestie AS Tethre Estomnge 1190 106712 60
Purnu mnt 134 Kesklinng,
Suuetland Internatiomal Group A S Tl Extoms 11977 10953155 0
6 Eu Foag Sen Steaet, #1109,
Spurts Diract [Singapare] Pre Lid The Central, 0S3B1, Singancre 2020045427 5
Level 15-2. Bangunon Fober
impennl Courl. Jalan Sultan
Sports Uirect Asia Retar 50 Bhd sl 6250 Kk Lot W F s
Maloysia
Spents Drwct Holdings Lim Shirebrrok sa64317 100
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Sports Dlract Intornstionat Holdings Limitac* Shirebrack 6027431 10
Spatts Diract Intermational Limitad Shipgbrack’ 125787 00
Luwel 15-1. Bongunon Fabar
porlol Caurt Julan Sulton "
Sports Direct MST Scn Bhd il 52700 Kutla Lompar TENEM i B
Molaysia
Sports Werld Intarnational Limtted Shirgbipak S501264 00
o Van Konljenburgwng 45, 4612 PL
Sparts Warld The Nathaestands BY. Bargun op o, Nelherinnds 34056191 0
Spartsdirect leatond) ahl - Skogarind 3, 201, xnnﬁ,ﬂm._‘_m sinunzen 00
Unil 19038 E 1905, Exchangw
Terwt, 33 Wang Cliw Rond,
s Sportditact.com (Acia) Ltd Kowiaan hay, Konigan, Hong 1216219 0o
Kang
. Haain 315, Jrd Flowr Bullding 2,
Na 239 Gang'aa fead, Chinn
Spottadivact.cam [Shanghal Linfted {Shunghnil Pilol Frise Tone, FINOISMAIK46I46A 50
Shanghal, Chlnu
' 6F,-BE-9, Na, 113, ChaoluRd,,
Spartsdlract corn {Talwar] Umited Xitun DIst,, Tolchung City 47, BIHOSY 95
Tolwan
Sportadiesct com Austria GmiH Flugplusstralis 20, 4600, Wels 08138y 100
Prre (s trlul, Avenue Eenast,
Sportidirect cotn Aelgium SA. Solvoy 29 1460 Salntas, Belghin 416 768470 100
‘ ' Miltindey Styliariou 348, Shop 2, ;
. Spértsdiract.eom Gyprus Limiled WA77 Talo, Pophe, Cypeas HE 230340 100
Praagus t - Nove Mesto, No Porlcr
, Sportsdirect.com Crsch Sepublic 1.ro, 1074/3n, 100 00, Cruch Reopuliic 14268933 00
Spottadirect.com Fitaass Limitad Shirgbrook'® $028527 wnoe
N Zo¢ das Brotnou, Rue das.
Sportagingtcom France Brataciix, 910, Villaby, France FRI7TI79046261 00
- H-1053 Audapost, Koralyl Mihaly y
Spartsdiract.com Hungary Kit uica 12, Hungary 01-09-986814 wo
Spertadireet cam immoliien Gt Flugnlatzstralts 30 auw.eﬁun Wi p 00
Brawery Steaut, Zone 3 Conlral
Sportediract.com Malta Limitact Businass District Birkirhara CHD cearre 100
3040 Maolia
Parau nt 139¢, Kesklinha,
mvaj..-n_..‘n.ho_.. ou Tallinn, 11318, Estania 1285817 o0
N § Skinclowa Straet, 61-804
Spoitsdiract com Bolond $.722.00 Pornoh, Poland , 00-812, 452610 00
Warsaw
¢/u Norton Rosa Fulbiright, L1,
Spartsdiract.corn Ply Uid 485 Bourke Struat, Mellou £03 187 219 100
: VIC 3000, Australin
. N Pa¢e Industral, Avenus Emaest,
Sportsdiract.com Ratall Euraga) S.A, Soluoy 76 1480 Salntos, el 4S6BHI04A 100
Spartsdirsct.cam Retall Limited® Shinghrook* 3405347 00
- Cantra Comarclol Puante
Veanecia, Local 84, Travesio da - n
Seortsdreclcom SLU Spain 103 Jardinias Reoles o+ 7, 50021, B-Bessman0 100
2aragata , Spain
. Yysoka 28, BNCS, Brotislovn, ;
Sportsdirect.cam Slovakio s.r.0. Slovakia 47240 450 00
Sportedirertcom SLYN dao. Planjava 4, 1136 Trzin, Slovanio N9BIS00 100
com Switzerland AG, Fuupl 27,301 Bam,
CHE- Switzmrland 331683951 100
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Spartadirect carn Vienao Nuith GrliH Weh, Elugplatasteal 30 FNID4480G . 100
SSG Sport GmbH [SSD) vambolrite 4B, EEMM..‘:._“_.U WRBTIM N 0o
Sletling Resoutces [Moldings! Limited Shirgbsgok 4651701 100
Statling Ruroutces. Litvutad ] Shirshraok® 1413254 100
Stirlings (Argryle Strewt) Limitad xn:_ﬁrzh—“.__ﬂi.._m“”..a.nﬁhﬁm SCOBRI0B : 100
Strovh Corporabion Limited Shitehrock 3003584 . B 106
Styihe Succusa Lid * Shirbrook™ 1182052% 100
' € C.Pusita Yanacin, local B4, N ’
Suplay Investments 1 Traw Jardines Raotes, 7, 50021 . BERS42601 . 100
. Zatngata, Spoi
Swimun Eupan SPHL Salony 3748 St Perghen smcisys L w
Toblu Tunnis Pro Europa Ltd Shirahrook* 5003853 100
+ 3773 Howand Hugus Phyey, STE .
The Antlgua Group Ing 5005 Lax vagas, Nawada, USA G7IAR79-4 100
49169-6014 . ]
The Flanials Group Limited Shirabarookd 238510 100
The Tradamar Licenilng Company Limiled Shirabroak® 477839 0o
Tatal Estatay Linted Shirabrook® 4956214 L e
Trt Yoowl UK Lirmhad Shirolsraoke® 10680690 100
UAB 5D |Guduning) LT Seimpnlshlu n._".__.z e 135039616 T om
AR Spartiond LT S g, O e 135039836 . B
UAR Sportsdirect com Selrmynisklug. 3 Vinun 0415563 . 5t
Univarsnd Cyclen Lirnited Shirabrook* 1329867 . 100
USA Pro 1P Limiterd ook £497014 10a
USC 1P Lim Shirabtook® sBisEon 100
Lind Tackle Limitad Shhslrook® TOR9ISL 100
Voo Mildart [Lifesiyla} Lindlud Shirohroak® * 8113959 B 100
Vinecomb investmants Holdings wumited * Shirohtook® 10161816 . 100
Vinwcomb Inwestments Limitad Shintheookt® . 2306022 C00
Voodeo Dolis Brand Linuted Shirabrook® 5323305 100 '
Waresliop? Limited Shitubrook! 870840 100
Huoton House , IDA Au i
Wortambogl Pash, Whilastown, Tolfaght. 387014 100
Oublin 24, Irel - .
Waturnw Anghng Products Limitad Shirehrook™ 2698174 100
Weat Coast Gupitol HOFCOI Limited 18 Athcll Crestart, Ednburgh, SCAEU : 100
Wastroinster Mamtactuning LLC ? c___nn.. Park oum;m .uw.nc“__..n“_mw . 44358 100
Wildlaw timilagt + - Shirobraak® as7ie78 ' 100
Williars Sykes Limited Shiralirook* 23129 <m0
warld of Service International Limltad Shirehrook” 103465 i .00
Workd ol Servcy Limitad Shiratarook 6020729 : 100
Yeorngms Ouldoors Limkad - Shirnbirook™ LT M 100
2aparoh SPrao ul, Zamicka 22, Robchowss KRS 0000459435 wn

63-021 Ggukl, Polond

n Unilt A, Brook Pork £ost, Shiratwock, NGO BRY

*Durmct shareholdings hald by Frosars Group pic.
17} Unky House, Teflard Road, Bosingatoke, Humps)

e, RG12 6

I woodland across the UK
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Frasers Group pic intends to provide a parental guarantee for the following United x_.zmn_oi

incorporated subsidiaries thus entitling them to exemption from stotutory audit under saction 479A

of the Companies Act 2006.

EOMPANY NAME COMPANY HUMBER COMPANY NAME COMPANY HUMBER
Diract Fishing Limited 0B203469 5D {Market Road) Limitad 10799247
Hat Turg 1P Limited 06836792 SDI {Micidlesbrough) Lirnited 10081509
80 Equestrion Limed 08692780 5D [Nossau Sireet] Limited 1227964
50 Outdeor Limited - 08560260 07853548
SDI [Abercieen) Limited 08512592 SCt {New Cavendizh Street) Limitad 06306917
SDI [Aberwystwylh} Limited 02789956 - SBI [Newark) Limited 02853470
SOl {Alnties) Limited 03352462 SD1 {Newcastle] Limited: 09127286
5DI [Ashford] Limited 7843440 5D} {Newpost) Limitad QRE79TME
S0 Ashington} Limited O7BAFI 5DI (Newquay) Limnited 10083800
SO {Ayr} Limited 05528267 mm_ INewtan Abbot) Limted 06836666
5DI {Rangar) Limited 05579705 5D {Northompion] Limited GTRSZ27Z
5DI [Barrow In Furness} Limited ‘07851524 ST (Northwich) Limited 05654295
5D [Beddgelert) Limitad 08577551 S0 (Nottinghasn) Limited 10100605
501 {Ballast) Limitad 9472471 SO{NuReaton] Limitect 02852249
SO {Berwick) Limited i 02739957 SDI [Oswestry} Limitad 07852363
5DI (Betws-Y-Coad) Limitad 0681667% 501 iOxlord Street) Limited 10046080
5D (Bexlayheath} Limited 097688372 SDI {Paisley} Limitad 02533408
SD4 {BIrkanheacd) Limited 7845198 504 IPenzancel Limitad 01852297
SDI {Bishop Aucklund Limited 03004246 « 5D (Pstarle) Lunited 07852401
50| iRrldgwater) Limited 07852061 SOt {Plymouth Flannels) Limited a91273a7
SD1{Brixton} Limited ’ 09127300 SO {Plymouth} Limited 09470468
SO1 {Burton) Limitad 08495632 SO [Preston) Limited] 10915199
50| {Cardiff Flannels) Limited 10177359 $01 {Ramsgote) Limitad 01852250
5DI {Carlisle} Limited 07851959 501 {Reading) Limited 10422164
SBHChatbem) Limited 06836679 SDI {Redear) Limiteg 02731452
sol ..n—.our:n._ 2 Limited W7ISHI SO {Ralle St Limiteed 07852669
5DI {Cheshunt) Liuted 1725599 SOt {Romifard) Limitad 10071547
SD! ICloetor) Limited: 07852078 SDI (SalisburybLinitad | 107572
SDI [Colchester) Limited 05632750 5D {Scarboroughl _yr.:_wmn_ 06328463
SOt {Cark) Limited 1775763 S {Seunthorpal Limnited 07852055
st {Dorlington) Limited WIIS193 501 {Sloght Linmted 07852412
5Dl IDarby} Limited 09310031 SO {Solihull) Linited- 0R12647
DI iDercy) Limitad NI653340 S0 {Southampton 7} 0566588%
5D! {Doncaoster) Limitecd G9BEE6 0 S0t {Southamplan} Limeted DBSYP80
5D iDundee) Limited 09702004 SDI {Soulhpart) Limited 09838806
SCH (Dunfarmiing) Limited 0OR483679 S0 (St Austall] Limitad 07852204
SDI [East Hem] Limited . 09810378 SDI {5t Helens) Limited 07852281
SD! {Eqst Kilbride} Limited 06656360 SDIistollordt Limited . 08568681
5D (Ednburgh) Limited 101009%0 SDI iStake Longton) Limited 07853877
501 {Enfield} Limited 10086209 50 [Stoke Newington] Limited + a78s2n?
SO {Fulham) Limited 07852097 5D} (Strghane) Limited 09890243
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s8I (Gainsboroughi Lunited Q628907 5D [Streathormd Limbted 10066335
SDi {Golashlels} Limitad 07A52091 501 (Strood) Limited 7852251
SDI (Glasgow Fort} Limited 09861504 St {Sunderland High Sireet) Linited Wo7rs
S0 {Glasgaw Frasers} Limlted N5N554 SDI [Sundarland) Livted 08755347
SDi {Glosgow Ingram Straen L 09975519 SO {Sutton) Limiced 2280m
501 (Gloucester} Limuted 07852067 SDI {Swingian) Limited 09888662
SDI (Great Yarmouth) Limited 732687 SO0 (Taltagit} Limtec 10915200
SOt (Hanlay) Lirmitad n2807 501 (Teunton) Linited OIBSHIAN
501 {Hastings) Limiled 08625892 5D {Thurrechk) Lunited 10089743
501 (Herelord) Limiled 09800642 501 {Unbridge 2} Uimitecl 09127316
SO {Hofcal Limited DBI19960 SDI {Unbiclga) Lirnited WITR2TE
DI (Hoh Holdings) Limitad 1061593 SDI (Wakelielrl) Limtad oR4aIM
S0 (Hounslow) Limitad 10086218 501 {Wholsall} Limitec! 07852289
SO (Hull] Limited 09638564 SDI (Watford) Linited 06328505
SDI Ipswich) Limited 0972841 S {Waymouth) Limitad 06716652
5D {Isla ©f Mon) Lunited 05301745 SOI {Widnes) Lirrated 0R57264727
SDI K Lynn) Lunited 1073076 SO (Wigon) Linited 12579287
SO [Kesghtey] Lirmmec 06760215 5D {Wishow) Linited 06656365
501 (Kendal) Lirmted 06330918 SO [Wolverhamptan) Linted 097108223
501 (Kantish Town) Limited neYOTn? SOt Wythenshawe] Lunitecl 09659156
5D (Kidderminster) Limited 09203731 501 {Yark) Limited 11331391
SDI {Kilmarnock) Limitee 07853433 SDI Four Limid e 08715773
S0l {Kingston) Lunltad ) WNE09 SDI Golf Limited 03083512

CPRS2097 3D Properties {Wigon) Linnted 0686522
SDI {Leads) Limiler 09293515 SDI Property Limlled s 02767493
SDI {Laicester) Limited ag12ITo SDI Sport Londen Lituted 09BA5TAT
SOI (Liverpoolf Limitad 09838734 50 Sports [Eosh Homi Lirnited 10259101
SDI {Lowestoft) Limited 02852265 SDI Sports (Stoka) Linnted 637122
SO |Ls] Haldingst Limited 0161824 Stirhngs (Argyle Street) Limitad SC088108

Di {Luton] Limitad 09680625 Vinecomb investments Haldings Limicec WSIBIE

5DI (Manchester Cheetham Hill} Limited 10100969 Wareshopt Linited 03870849
501 [Manchester Dentor) Lumted 17295 Wareshap3 Limited 03870808
Alpha Developments Stockport Limitad 12662564 SO1 (Mopeo 75] Limitad N5772586
SD4 (Steckport) Limged 06372181 S0 Propco 119) Limite 12302862
501 [The House Yann) Limited 123328N S0 {Carcll Q5) Limite:! 12578045
5D {Trowbndgel Lunited 12355661 5D {Ipswich 2) Lirnited 12578948
SD (Yool Eimited 125171947

Sy waondinamd acpees t
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FRASERS GROUP PLC | COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET IN EQUITY

at 25 April 2021 For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
Netes N Hi_“ﬂ" .-»-iwmm ’ Share
Cuilad Shars  Tressry Pam Cepitel L baved Prafie
(tm} Eml upthars  premium share  conints redstmption O ..s._u...-. Total
FIXED ASSETS B eapital account etarve resarve e ranareh
Investrments 2 14949 11158 (Em) [Em} (Em} (£m] {Em) {em) {em) lEm)
CURRENT ASSETS . AS AT 20 APRIL 2013 44 1743 1317} [X] 0 (62.2) - 2413 [FE)
Debtars 4 %19 BE 8 [Loss) for the financiol pariod - - - - - - 1427 “rn
R | o value ndjustment in respect of long- . . i i :
Cash ot bank and in hand *® nis tarm linanciol assets - recogrised i - . 2 220
hidgi 4204 Share purchuse - - 140l - - 07 : : .y
Creditors, omounts falling dua within ona yaar 5 1605 0 19015) Revarsol af pnor year lan valuatian of
oo - - - - woe
NET CURRENT LIABUITIES (430.8) ey shore buybark contractual abliguation
HET ASSETS 1064 1349 AS AT 28 APRIL 2020 ada P E] (1957} 041 [ X ] [{54-]] - mes 47
Piolit for the fingnoiol pened - - - - - - - e s
CAPITAL AND RESIRVES Far val
air value adjustment in respect of long- - - - 713 "
Calledt up share capitgl ? &1 s41 tetim Finoy assets - recagnised g
Share prermium 4743 B4 Share schame - - - - - 03 od - i
Traasury share reserve [295 71 {295 7) AS AT 35 APRIL. 3021 [t T3 (295.3) o1 [T [CLR]] [T] 490,09 1,064.%
1 al . . . '
Permanent contribution ta captal g The share premium account is used to record the excess proceeds over nominal value on the issue of
Coniltol redermptian reserve 8o 80 shares, The permanent contribution to capital relates to a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company
Own shore resarve f66 71 1670) an 8 February 2007 under a deed of capital contribution. The capital redemption reserve arose on
Shara bosed paymant reserve a8 . the redemption of the Company's redeemable preference shares of 10p ecch at par on 2 March 2007.
Profit und Loss accaunt 4800 ey The awn shares and treasury reserves represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group plc purchased in
SHAREHOLDIRS FUNGS Toeat 7547 the market and held by Frasers Group ple Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under the Group's

Share Scheme. For further information see note 25 in the Group Notes to the financial statements,
Frasers Group plc repotted o profit after taxation for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021 of £231.8m P * !

(FY20: a loss of £47.7m).
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Statements.

The Finarcicl Statements were approved by the Board on 5 August 2021 and were signed on its
behalf by:

Chris Wootton
Chiet Fineneiol Officer
Company number: 06035106
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Policies

Frasers Group plc (the "Company”) (Company
number: 06035106) is a company incorporated
and domiciled in the United Kingdom, its shares
are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The
registered office is Unit A, Brook Fark East,
Shirebrook, NG20 8RY.

These financial statements have been prepared
in compliance with FRS 102 "The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK

and Republic of [reland” (“FRS 102") and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

The financial statements are prepared in
sterling, which is the functional currency of the
Company. Monetary armounts in these financial
statements are rounded to the nearest £G.1m,

These accounts have been prepared in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards, A summary of the
material accounting policies adopted are
described below.

Basis Of Accounting

The accounts have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for the modification
to a fair'value basis for certain financial
instruments as specified in the accounting
policies below.”

These financial statements for the peried ended
25 April 2021 are prepared in accordance with
FRS 102, The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006, a profit and loss account of the
Company is not presented. The Company's
profit after taxation for the 52-week period
ended 25 Aprit 2029 was £231.8m [FY2G: loss of
£47.7m).

122

As permitted by FRS 102 the Company has
taken advantage of the disclosure exempticns
available under that standard in relgtion te
financial instruments, presentation of a cash
flow statement, share-based payments, the
aggregate remuneration of key management
personnel and related party transactions with
other wholly-owned members of the Group.
Where required, equivalent disciosures are given
in the Group accounts of Frasers Group plc.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of Frasers Groug plc is
that of an investment holding compony.

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are
cccounted for at cost less provision for
impairment. In the Group accounts associotes
ore accounted for under the equity method

by which the Group's investment is initially
recorded at cost and subsequently adjusted

to reflect the Group's share of the net assets

of the associate. As this is not permitted under
FRS 102 associates are accounted for at cost
less provision for impairment. An astessment s
made ot each reporting date of whether there
are indications that the Company’s investment
in subsidiaries or associates may be impaired or
that an impairment loss previously recognised
has fully or partially reversed. If such indications
exist, the Company estimates the recoverable
ameunt of the asset. Shortfalls between the
carrying value of the investment and their
recaverable omounts, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value-in-use, are
recognised as impairment lesses, Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or foss.

The Company has followed the reguirements
of IFRS 9 for listed investments, as permitted
by FRS 102 Section 12. The Company has made
the irrevocable election available under IFRS

9 to account for the investments at fair value
through the other comprehensive income
{FVOLI),

Fair value movements through other
comprehensive income

Elections are mode on an instrument-by-
instrument basis to accaunt for movements
in selected instruments through other
comprehensive income. The Company has
elected to account for movements in its listed
investments through other comprehensive
income. These investments are not subject

to impairment and gains and josses are not
recycled to the profit and loss account on the
disposal of listed investments. Dividend income
is recognised in the profit and loss account.

This treatment does not apply to investments
in the Compony's subsidiaries and associates
where movements are recognised in the profit
and less gecount and investments are subject
to impairment.

Associates

An entity is treated as an associated
undertaking where the Company exercises
significant influence in that it has the power to
participate in the eperoting and financial policy
decisions,

Financiol Assets

Financicl assets, other than investments
and derivatives, are initially measured ot
transaction price (including transaction
costs) and subsequently held at cost, less
any impairment. Provision for impairment is
established when there is objective evidence
that-the Company will nct be able to collect
amounts due according to the original terms
of the receiveble. The Company applies a
consistent accounting policy as the Group in
terms of impairment of financial ussets ond the
recognition of expected credit losses.

Finaneial Liabi

Financial liabilities are classified according

to the substance of the financial instrument's
contractual obligations, rather than the
financial instrument's legal form. Financial

es, excluding convertible debt and
derivatives, are initially measured at transaction
price (ofter deducting tronsaction costs) and
subsequently held at omortised cost.

Employee Benefit Trust

An Employee Benefit Trust hos been established
for the purposes of satisfying certain share
based awards. The Group has 'de facto’ control
over the special purpose entity.

The cest of shares acquired by the Sports Direct
Employee Benefit Trust is recognised within
'Own share reserve’ in equity.

Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is provided for on o full provision
baosis on all timing differences, which have
arisen but not reversed at the balance sheet
date. A deferred tax asset is not recognised to
the extent that the transfer of economic benefit
in the future is more unlikely than not.

Deferred tax is calculated on o nen-discounted
basis ot the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the periods in which timing differences
reverse, based on tax rotes and laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded in the Company's functional currency
by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liobilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranstated at the rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All differences

are taken to the prafit and loss account.
Nen-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Dividends

Dividends on the Company's ordinary shares
are recognised as a in the Company's
Financial Statements, and as a deduction from
equity, in the period in which the dividends

are declared. Where such final dividends

are proposed subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders, the final dividends are
only declared once shareholder approval has
been obtained.

Prtited on Steinbeis 100%, Ret woodiand across the UK
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Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract thet
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting alf of its lia
Equity instrurments issued by the Company
with the exception of those accounted for via
merger relief available under Section 612 o°

the Companies Act 2006, are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of any direct issue costs.

Income From Group Undertakings

Income from Group undertakings is recogn sed
when qualifying consideration is received from
the Group undertaking.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the
exemption contained in FRS 102 and has
therefore not disclosed transactions or balances
with wholly-owned subsidiaries which form part
of the Group. See note 34 of the Group Financial
Statements for further details of related party
transactions.

Share-Based Paymaents

The Compdny issues from time to time
equity-settled share-based payments to cetain
Directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries. These are measured at fair value
at the date of grant, which is expensed to profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with the corresponding credit going to
equity, -

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken
into account in determining grant date fair
value. Instead, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting period the
Compary revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and loss
with an adjustment to equity.

Fair value is calculated using an odjusted fo-m of
the Black-Schales model which includes a Monte
Carle simulation model that takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the
impact of dilution (where matericl), the shars

123

price at grant date and the expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected
dividend yield, and the risk-free interest rate

for the term of the scheme. The expected staff
numbers used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions,
and behavioural considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Company measures the services
received and the liability incurred at the fair
value of the liabifity. Until the liability is settled,
the Company remeasures the fair value of the
liability at the end of each reporting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the [ncome Statement
for the period.

The credit for the share based poayment charge
does not equal the charge per the profit and loss
as it excludes amounts recognised in the balance
sheet in relation to the expected national
insurance contributions for the shares.

Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements

In the application of the Company's accounting
policies, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual resuits may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates ond underlying assumptions

are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions

to acceunting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the
revision affects only that period, or in the pericd
of the revision and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions which have a
significant risk of equsing a moterial adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabi
are outlined below.

Control and Significant Influsnce Over Certain
Entities

The Company holds greater than 20% of the
voting rights of Studic Retail Group ple and
Mutberry Group pic. The Company exercises the
same judgements as per Note 2 of the Group
financial statements on assessing whether it has
control and significant influence over associates
and joint ventures.

p ent of

At each pericd end management assess the
future performance of entities with which the
Company holds an investment in to ascertain
the future economic value of its investments,
Judgement is involved in the assessment of
future performance and this involves an element
of estimation uncertainty. As at the period end
the directors haove reviewed the carrying value
of its investrments and has made impairments
as disclosed in Note 2 of the Company financial
statements.

Printed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Cartbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, helping to creale new Bntish woodland across the UK
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2.  INVESTMENTS

Ipvestmant Ih  Investmante  -9MTITT™ .

whbdioie inssreciotes Mol Total

£m) {Eml mj £m)

A3 &Y 24 APRIL 2o18 11242 "a 104 1,216
Addibons 325 48 23 865
Transter 158 (15.8) - -
Impament charge 1220) . . {220
Disposals - - o] an
Armounts d through othar c. i ncome - 1227 2
AS$ AT 16 APRIL 1030 14553 - [LE] 11358
Additions 788 - LEE] Wit
Impavment charge N w . . i)
Disposols - 1561 5.6
Armounts itad through other ¢ ive ncome - - 173 ™
Exchange differances - - an [E2]
A AT 23 APRIL 2007 11313 - LR Y 14948

The fair value of the long-term financial assets
is based on bid quoted market prices at the

balance sheet date or where market prices are
nat cvailable, ot management's best estimate.

Leng-term financiol assets include various
haldings including @ 35.6% stoke in Studio
Retoil Group plc and a 36.9% stake in Muiberry
Group ple for further details refer to Note 20 of
the Group Financial Statements,

For further disclosures in relotion to investments
in asseciates and leng term financiol assets

see note 19, 20 and 34 of the Group Financial
Statements.

The Directors assess the value of the
investments in subsidiaries at each period

end for indicators of impairment. For the

period ended 25 April 2G21 an impairment

loss of £11m has been recognised within the
income statement for loss making companies
where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying value (FY20: £22.0m). The additions to
investments in subsidiaries in the period ore due
to a reorgonisation of the US subsidiaries,

124

The Company is the principal holding company
of the Group. The principal subsidiary
undertakings of the Company are set out in
note 37 of the Group Financial Statements.

The Group's policies for financial risk
management are set out in Note 3 and Note 29
of the Group Financial Statements.

FRASERS GROUP

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Assets And Liobilities By Category

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets and lick
Sterling or US Dallars, were as fellows:

s, which are principally denominated in

N 25 Aprll 2010 ¢ April 2020
Em) L}
FINANCIAL ASSETS
AMORTISED COST:
Trade and other recevables® ' 1Al 7t
FVOCk
Long Tenn Financiol Assats (Equity Instruments) 2616 HO 3
DERIVATIVE FIMANCIAL ASSETS [FY):
Derivalive hnonciol ustats - contecs for diference ) 201 77
Ay 13
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
AMDRTISED £OST:
Trode ard other payobiut 6073 B671
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABMITLES (FV):
Dervative finoncial Liobihbes - contrects for difference 17 244
0.0 (UL

. Prepayrments uf £3 /m (FY20. £0-1ml, corparation tax of £1 Om [FY20 £10mi ond delered tax ossets ol £l [FY20, £3 7mb are hot ineluded as o

hnanoign asset

4. DEBTORS .
8 April 1021 36 Aprll 2020
lEm) 1£m}
Amounts awed by Group undertokings 58 R
Deavotive hrancial ugsats 01 7
Cothar gabtar 13 T3
Cerperation tox 10 10
Brapayminis 27 a1
Digtersedd tax assets [note 6] N ar
1629 L

Cther debtors includes £121.0m (FY20: £71.3m) of deposits in respect of derivative financial
instruments which are collateral to cover margin reguirements for derivative transactions held with
counterparties. The collateral requirement changes with the market [which is dependent on share
price, interest rates and volatility} and further purchases / sales of underlying investmenits heid.

Further information on derivative financial assets can be found in the Group consolidated accounts
in the financiat instruments note 29 and the financial risk management disclosure note 3.
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5. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

B Aprl 2011 6 Apsil 2020

Em} 1E£m)

Trada creditors 13 05
Amounts owed to Group undedakngs 6025 8658
Dervatwe financial hobilities 17 a4
Other craditars 33 08
$00.0 i 015

The amounted owed to Group undertakings mainly relates to an unsecured interest free loan with
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited which is repayable on demand,

Further infermation on derivative financial liabilities can be found in the Group consolidated
accounts in the financial instruments note 29 and the financial risk management disclosure note 3.

Other creditors at 25 April 2021 mostly relate to the accruas for costs payable to MM Prop
Consultancy Limited, see note 34 of the Group financial statements.

6. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Othar temporary
AT 20 APRIL 201% 3
Credited ta the proht and lass accaunt 04
AT 26 APRIL 2010 * 7
Charged ko the profit and lass account {a7

AT 25 APRIL 2011 -

The tax rate used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 19% (FY20: 19%) on the
basis that these were the tax rates that wera substantively enccted at the balance sheet date for the
periods when the assets and liabilities cre expected to reverse.

7. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

25 Apeit 2031 26 April 2010
) {m}
AUTHORISED
999,500,010 ordinary sharas of 10p each 1000 1000
454,990 redeemable praferenca shares of 10p each
nwo.n 103.0
CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
540,602,369 {FY20 640,602,364} ordinary shore of 10p each 6at a1
SHARE CAPITAL .1 oy

The company holds 121,260,175 ordinary shares in treasury as at the period end date
{FY20: 121,260,175).
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‘8. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

©n 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the aggregote
purchase price of dll shares acquired under the
programme to be no greater than £60m and the
maximum number of shares to be purchased
of 10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of
10p each. The purposes of the programme was
to reduce the share capital of the Company.
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired
through this programme.

Cn 21 June 2021 the Group commenced an
irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed pericd which commenced 21
June 2021 and ends on the day of reporting full
year FY21 results. The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programme
were no greater than £60m and the maximum
number of shares to be purchased were 10m
ordinary shares with a neminal value of 10p
each. The purpose of the programme was to
reduce the share capital of the Company. In total
to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this programme.

The Béard is now in discussions with regards

to transitioning the CEO role from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

1t is currently proposed that Michael Murroy

wHl assume the role of CEO on 1 May 2022,

A reward and remuneration package is now
under consideration on the assumption Michoel
Murray assume the CEO role. Any reward
and remuneration package will be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is transforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and cur brand partners,
especially on projects such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021.

The Board consider it appropriate that Michael
leads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey.

woodiand actoss the UK

Should Michael Murray assume the CEO role,
Mike Ashley would step down from the CEO role
at the same time but would remain on the Board
as an executive director.

9. PAYROLL COSTS

Frasers Group plc has no direct employees, the
Dizectors are remunerated through Sportsdirect.
com Retail Limited, Details of the Directors'
remunerction can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

10. RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions with the Company

are disclosed within note 34 in the Group
Financial Statements.
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GLOSSARY

CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD

Unaudited Income statement

Slwarls  Stwseln  Stwasks Mg
anded 75 epded i wnded 29 ended 20
apdt2o1  aprd2030  Apritzonw PR aprilaon
I£m) {Em} (Em} 1Em] £m)
REVENUE B} 36253 39574 37019 33595 32453
Cost of sales 209431 (229481 20841 120244 1914 7)
GROSS PROFIT 13308 16626 15835 13351 13306
Selling, distribation ond odministiative Bxpenses (hé36.0) {1564 3) 14138} 1172 &) (1,255 64
Othar operating ntame s 25 114 85 225
Excupbional tems n.se} 14y (LY w73
Prolt on disposal of property () a4 w3
Proht an chaposal of subisid iy - - . - 799
QPERATING (LOSS/PROFIT 1605} e 1605 005 1601
Invastment incama/costs) 60 (3486} 67 [LEK]] W
Finunce incame 1.0 g 400 1a 88
Finance cost {38 1293 |19 4] 1409 (54
Shove of [loss) £ profe of assoriated underoMINgs and juint vantures - (1S g a8 {84 o8
Forr value gam on skep acquisition - 204
PROFIT BEEDRE TAXATION X} s 793 811 M6
Taxstion i26.5) 1425 632 (3791 (a9 91
(LOSSI/PRCFIT RO R THE PERIOD 7%.0) o0 N4 G 232 w7
Equty holders of the Group {81.0) 938 n2a- 201 2189
Non-eentrollng nterests 10 >z 40 23 18
{LOYSI/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD .o 1010 60 232 w7

Notes to the consolidated Income Statemant; five year record:

1. Allinformation is presented under IFRS.

2. The five year record has been prepared on the same basis as the Financial Statements for the 52
weeks ended 25 Aprii 2021, as set out in note 1, basis of preparation, of the Consotidated Finarcia!
Statements.
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES
Reconciliation of excluding acquisitions and currency neutral performance measures:
Pramium

UK Sperty Buropesn Rest O Whalwale

Hutail __ Listyla Rutcli_World Ratel! & Licanalag 0P T
REVENUR
F¥21 Repurted 1968 5 7356 152 1827 1533 16083
Adpustients lar ecquisiions and curency neutral (3074} 18381 U0z 51 - - {5938
FY1 EXELUDING AND CURRENCY NEUTRAL 1861 #4513 4127 1527 1513 1018
F¥I0 Reported 22033 i 6977 1742 1602 39574
Adustrnents lor gequisiions and currency neutral 2817 798 {1783) ingt 173} 1934.3|
FY10 EXCLUDING AHD NEUTRAL, 19458 610 s 8.0 19 34320
% VARIANCE . (14.6%) 14% 120.8%) {6.3%} 0.3% (FLd%)
UNDERLYING EBITDA
F¥71 Raparted o2 539 41 56 780 Woa
Acyustrman's for acguistions and currency neukral 04 11384 74y - - {01)
FYITEXCLUDING ACTUISITIONS AND CURRENCT NEUTRAL 7.8 a0 ny 5.6 2.0 oo
Fr20 Reportad 45 518 (6.8) 253 121
Achustmems fer acquisitrone find currency heutral 39 50 62 N us
FY?0 EXCLUDING ACQUISITIONS AND CURRENCY NEUTRAL bt 4 568 6.8} us L XY
% VARIANCE 19.7% W% [1058%]  (£173%) WI% 163%
Movement in provisions pre-1FRS 16;
Legal and Praparty
moalatery  rebited Other Total
|Em) tm} (K
AT 24 APRIL 2019 0 s a0
Amounts provicied 120 m2 -
Amounts ulibsed £ reverset 1) 170.8) /53)
Acqursitiont e
AT 28 APRIL 2010 254 urs a1 e
Armouats provided Ta 82 - 1ase
Amounts utibeed / reversed 1701 14581 14 (LX)
AT 25 APRIL 2021 Eild mse 13 S

During the period, onerous fense provisions (Pre-IFRS 16] were recognised due to an ongaing
management review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and onticipated
freehold ocquisitions, resulting in overail additional onerous provisions of £71.9m (FY20: £26.9m) in
the pericd, with reference to the Groups alternative performance measures.
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Reconciliation of underlying performance Bmow:qmm‘ﬁmm_._.oh and PBT):

Reconciliation of Adjusted Profit/(loss) before Tox performance measure:

52 wesks onded 53 wuaks ended

25 Apeil 2021 26 April 2030

PRT PET

im) I&m}

REPORTED 15 s
Exceptional iterms ) 16 131
Fenr walue gain on step ncquisttion 204
For value adustment to foreign currency contracts a6 73
Met investment lincomed / costs {550} 346
Reahsed FX loss / {gaind 261 1348)
Shure scheme 13 R
ADJUSTED [L%]) 17

52 wasks snded 52 wanhs ended
, 35 April 202t 36 April 2020
EBITDA IBIThA rat
] I&mi {Em)
OPERATING (LO43}/ PROFIT ) - me -
Depreciation of property, plont und equipment snd investment prcpertias
[axcluding nght-of-use assat] i ) 13c8
Impairment of property, plant and aguiptant and investrment prapertles
faxcluding nght-of-use azsat] 186 . ua
Amortisation of intangible assets 71 145
Impoirment of intangible ossats {non-exceptionall - - -
IFRS 16 nght-of-uss asset depreriation a1 - w6
IFRS 16 nght-of-use assat impairment 68.2 - 1651
IFRS 16 dispasel and madfication/rameasureiment of {zase habilities 1277] - 157
183 - 3465 -
Shora of [loss) / prolit und imparrments ol associates - - ns9 -
REPORTED 5343 [X] 5510 1435
Exceptional ltetns 16 16 131 131
18 " LR 123
IFKS 16 Reversal of rent expense 11273 1223 1375 1375
IFRS 16 Reversal of onarous lease provision (36 6] [366) (35 5) [35 5]
IFRS 16 right-af-use asset depreciation - 821 226
IFRS 16 nght-of-use osset imparment - %82 - WE1
IFRS 16 disposal and modification/rameasurem - 1277) - 197
Interest Payable - IFRS 16 ng 109
{163.9] s {ma 359
Proht on sale of propertes:
Prahit on sale of prapartes - pra-IFRS 16 bass 197 t97) 1109 3 (10931
IFRS 16 sale ond lenseback - adjustment o post-HFRS 16 busis - - 551 551
N (34.2) %42}
{Prafit) / loss on disposal o fingng ol instruments - (48 5) 77
Realised FX lass / {i 6.3 263 348t
Fent vulu aejustinent an equity dervtives - (42.5)
Faur volue adjustment on lanegn currency comtrocts - 16
Fuir value gan on step acquisition -
UNGERLYING 3.8 58 024 174
127 .
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COMPANY DIRECTORY

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Investor Services plc
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS%9 627

Telephone:
0370 707 4030

COMPANY SECRETARY AND
REGISTERED OFFICE

Frasers Group plc

Unit A, Brook Park East
Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

Telephone:
0344 245 9200

Frasers Group plk is registered in England and
Wales (No. 06035106)

SOLICITORS N

Reynolds Portar Chamberlain LLP
Tower Bridge House

St Kathearine's Way

Lendon

ETW 144

Dentons UK and Middle East LLP
Cne Fleet Place

London

EC4M 7WS

BROKERS

Liberum Capital Limited
Ropemaker Place, Level 12
25 Rapemaker Street
London

EC2Y 9LY
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Barclays Bank plc

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London ’

E14 4BB

HSBC Bank plc

8 Caonadc Square
London

E14 5HQ

AUDITORS

RSM UK Audit LLP
25 Farringdon Street
London

EC4A 4AB

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The date, time and format of the Annual
General Meeting to be announced in line with
Covid-19 guidance. Each shareholder is entitled
to attend {subject to Covid-19 guidance) and
vote at the meeting, the arrangements for
which are described in a separate notice.

RESULTS
For the year to 24 April 2022

*  Half year results announced:
tbc December 2021

= Preliminary anncuncement of fuil year
results: the

- Annual Report circulated: the

SHAREHOLDER HELPLINE

The Frasers Group shareholder register is
maintained by Computershare who are
responsible for making dividend payments
and updating the register, including details
of changes to shareholders’ addresses. If you
have a query about your shareholding in Sports
Direct, you sheuld contact Computershore's
Frasers Group Sharehokder Helpline on:

0370 707 4030. Calls are charged ot standard
geographic rates, although network chorges
may vary.

Address:

The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol

BS99 627

Website:

www.computershare.com

WEBSITE

The Group website at www.frasers.group
provides news and detcils of the Company's
activities plus information for shareholders and
contains real time share price dota as well as
the latest results and announcements.

UNSOLICITED MAIL

The Company is obliged by law to make its
share register publicly availoble and as
consequence some shareholders may receive
unsalicited mail, including from unautharised
investment firms.

For mere Information on unauthorised
investment firms torgeting UK investors, visit the
website of the Financial Conduct Authority at
www.feaorg.uk

If you wish to limit the amount of unsolicited
mail you receive contact:

The Muiling Preference Service
DMA House

76 Margaret Street

London

WIW 855
Telephone:

020 72913310
Email:
Eﬁm@..u_q:c.c_.m.cr

or register online at
www.mpsonline.org.uk

Frasers Group plc

Unit A, Braok Park East
Shirebrook

NG20 8RY

0344 245 9200

www.frasers.group




